Orange County “Deed Book Zero”

Deed Information Abstracted from the Register of Orange
By Mark Chilton, August 2023

In early 1781, General Charles Cornwallis occupied Hillsborough re-imposing loyalist
control of Orange County. Before long, Cornwallis and his army moved out, and as he
left the Loyalists knew that the Revolutionaries would take back control.

Loyalist James Munro later stated in an affidavit that “when Lord Cornwallis gave
sudden and unexpected orders for the movement of the army from Hillsborough,” he
decided to seize, “the Records of the County with intention to hold them, in order to
strengthen the influence of government until the contest should be decided.”

“l had all the records above mentioned privately buried underground in the woods along
with my own bonds, books, and most valuable papers, with strict directions not to touch
them until | should return; consequently they were suffered to remain in that situation so
long, that when they were taken up, many of the books were found quite destroyed, and
almost all my own papers rendered entirely useless.”

Of the several deed books which Munro buried, only one was salvaged, a book that was
at that time known as Orange County Deed Book B and has since been renumbered
Orange County Deed Book 1. Though there were thousands of real estate transactions
in Orange County between its formation in 1752 and this incident in 1781, only a small
fraction remains well documented in Orange County Deed Book 1.

However, in the 18th century, deeds had to be proved in court in order to be recorded in
the deed books. The probate of a deed in court served the same purpose for which we
now use a Notary Public — as proof that the deed was signed by the person whose
signature appears on the deed. Deeds were typically proved either by having the
grantor acknowledge his signature in court or if he was unavailable then one of the
witnesses to the execution of the deed would testify to the genuineness of the signature.

In Colonial Orange County, it was the practice to record the probate of deeds in the
minute book and/or a sort of notebook. That notebook, commonly referred to as the
Register of Orange, included the names of the grantor, the grantee, the acreage
conveyed and the name of the probate witness, but not the legal description.

My work here is an abstract of the Register of Orange. | have endeavored to copy each
name as it appeared in the Register of Orange — though the modern spelling of many of
these names is significantly different. It is also clear that in some cases, the person
entering the information into the Register of Orange did a rather casual job of it, as will
become clear from looking through this work.

Some of the deeds listed in the Register of Orange are the exact same deeds we find in
Orange County Deed Book 1; others are grants of land from Earl Granville for which the



original grant is to be found at the North Carolina State Archive in Raleigh. Still other
deeds proved in the Register of Orange are deeds which were brought back in after
1781 and re-recorded — primarily in Orange County Deed Book 3. For each of these, |
have listed the location of the deed or Granville grant.

For many other deeds listed below, there does not appear to be any surviving copy. For
these deeds, | have attempted to supply evidence of what that deed likely was — by
pointing to either prior or subsequent deeds for the same property.

Because Orange County was subdivided to create Chatham, Guilford and Caswell
Counties, and two of those were further divided to create Randolph, Rockingham and
Person Counties, it was necessary to look at early deeds from those six counties in
addition to Orange. So, you will find below places where | point to the deed books of
those counties. There are also a few deeds | found in a few other counties which help to
elucidate the deeds listed in the Register of Orange.

CDB = Chatham Deed Book

CwDB = Caswell Deed Book

GDB = Guilford Deed Book

Gv = William D. Bennett's Orange County Granville Grants

GvDB = Granville County Deed Book

GWB = Guilford Will Book

OCPQS = Orange Count Court of Pleas & Quarter Sessions Minute Book
ODB = Orange Deed Book

OWB = Orange Will Book

PDB = Person Deed Book

RaDB = Randolph Deed Book

RkDB = Rockingham Deed Book

RwDB = Rowan Deed Book

SSLG = Secretary of State’s Land Grant boxes at NC Archives in Raleigh
WDB = Wake Deed Book

Use your browser’s search function to find names of interest.
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North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions begun and held for
the County aforesaid on the Second Tuesday in June Anno Dom 1752. Present his Majesties &c.

Regln 1 Gabriel Johnston esq to James Taylor, 545 acres, proved by John Tinnin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2 James Taylor to Robert Taylor, 545 acres.
ReglLn 2 James Taylor to Robert Taylor, 545 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1 Gabriel Johnston esq to James Taylor, 545 acres.
RegLn 3 Gabriel Johnston esq to Cavins Tinning [Carnes Tinnen], 262 acres, proved by David Mitchell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 4 Gabriel Johnston esq to John Tinnin, 223 acres, proved by Joseph Duncan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 5 Gabriel Johnston to James McAllister, 276 acres, proved by James McCarver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 6 Gabriel Johnston to David Mitchell, 280.5 acres [or 260.5 acres?], proved by Cavin Tinnen.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/55 Henry Meazon to James Huie, 1 May 1779, 140
acres on E Fork of Eno River, adj William Clark, Tinnen - part of Tract 19 [Gabriel Johnston to
David Mitchell, ReglLn 6], to John Tinnen 18 Aug 1777 [OCPQS 3/18], to Henry Mason 1777
[OoCPQsS 3/18].

Regln 7 Zachariah Martin Sr to James Swafort, 309 acres, proved by James Dickey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 32 James Swafer to James Dickey 159 acres & Regln
491 Thomas Swafford to Thomas Basket 150 acres.

RegLn 8 Zachariah Martin to William Mayars [William Miers], 320 acres, proved by Thomas Mathews.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

[Page 2]

ReglLn 9 Zachariah Martin to Thomas Mathews, 320 acres, proved by William Mier.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/51 Thomas Matthews to Henry Mayner, 30 Jul 1755,
320 acres on S side of Haw River - part of 640 acres Granville to Zachariah Martin 8 Jun 1752,
Martin to Matthews 24 Jun 1752 [RegLn 9].

ReglLn 10 Joseph Wells to Joseph Wells Jr, 269 acres, proved [Sep 1752] by John Pyke. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/2.]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 11 Hosea Tapley to William Jay, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/9]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/231 William Jay to James Satterfield, 9 Jun 1756, 56
acreson ___ of Flat River, adj Jay - part of 640 acres granted to Hosea Tapley 8 Aug 1752 [filed in
Granville County?].

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas and Quarter Session begun and held for the
County aforesaid at the house of Mr James Watson on Enoe on the second Tuesday in December Anno
Dom 1752. Present his Majesties Justices &c.

ReglLn 12 Timothy Terrell to Morris Elliss, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/8]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but probably Granville to Timothy Terrell, 24 Jun 1751, 640 acres in
Anson or Bladen County. H112, H8527. RegLn 27 Morris Ellis to Timothy Terrel, 640 acres.

Regln 13 Marmaduke Kimbrough to Henry Beddingford, 600 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/8]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Marmaduke Kimbro, 2 Nov 1752, 600 acres adj James Russell,
Buffalo Creek. Gv104, SSLG 94-G. Later to William Mebane RwDB 1/149, to Abraham Burd RwDB
2/252, to George Parks not found, to William Wiley GDB 1/207, Robert Wiley & David Wiley to
Thomas Crouch GDB 5/64, to Nathan Lester GDB 5/492

RegLn 14 William Miers to Joseph Boggs, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
0oCPQS 1/9]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but part of ReglLn 8 Zachariah Martin to William Mayars [William
Miers], 320 acres.

ReglLn 15 Abraham Nelson to Robert Lyttle, 325 acres, proved by James Watson esq. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/12]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Abraham Nelson, H4297 registered in Granville County.
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RegLn 16 Robert Jones Jr to David Williams, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/13]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 17 Robert Patterson to John Wade, 380 acres, proved by John Patterson. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/11]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 91 John Wade to Samuel Parke, 380 acres.

Regln 18 Thomas Matthews to Thomas Carr, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/11]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas &c begun and held for the County aforesaid
at the house of James Watson on Enoe on the second Tueday in March Anno Dom 1753. Present his
majesties Justices &c.

RegLn 19 John Sidwell to Thomas Mathews, 240 acres, proved by Joseph Wells. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/10]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 20 William Reed to Elizabeth Douglass, 120 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/13 - “a deed of marriage settlement”]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 21 John Wade to Isaac Jackson, 640 acres, proved by John Wade. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/17]
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas & ¢ begun and held for the County aforesd
on the second Tuesday in June Anno Dom 1753. Present his Majesties Justices &c.

ReglLn 22 James Taylor to John Taylor, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/17. ODB 1/32 cites this as ODB A/39.]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/32 John Taylor to George Miller, 22 Aug 1755, 320
acres on a branch of Little River - James Taylor to John Taylor 12 Jun 1753 ODB A/39 [RegLn 22].
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ReglLn 23 James Taylor to Thomas Wiley, 381 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/17]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor H2753, Patent Book 14:81. Later RegLn 96 to William
Reed [William Wiley?], 381 acres, ReglLn 2359 William Wiley to Jonas Chamberlain, 381 acres,
ODB 5/366 Jonas Chamberlin by executor to William Chamberlin, 28 Feb 1794, four tracts...third
tract 381 acres — from William Wiley 12 Aug 1765 recorded ODB A1/500 [ReglLn 2359], ODB
5/403 to Isaac Jackson, 7 Jan 1795, 381 acres.

ReglLn 24 James Taylor to Judith Cotes, 320 acres, proved by [acknowledgement]. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/17]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Nuncupative will of Judith Coates in Halifax County VA left
320 acres to Robert Shearman. Regln 1025 Robert Shearman to Robert Lytle, 320 acres.

ReglLn 25 Timothy Terrel to Zachariah Martin, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/16]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/109 Zachariah Martin Sr to George Martin, 27 Nov
1755, half of tract from Granville to Timothy Terrell, Terrell to Zachariah Martin Jr [ReglLn 25],
Zachariah Martin Jr to Zachariah Martin Sr [RegLn 108 or ReglLn 125].



ReglLn 26 Timothy Terrel to William Reynolds, 639 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/15]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Timothy Terrell, 24 Jun 1752, 639 acres on Polecat Creek. RaDB
8/427, H8568.

RegLn 27 Morris Ellis to Timothy Terrel, 640 acres, proved by Zachariah Martin. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/15]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but probably Granville to Timothy Terrell, 24 Jun 1751, 640 acres in
Anson or Bladen County. H112, H8527. ReglLn 12 Timothy Terrell to Morris Elliss, 640 acres

RegLn 28 Earl Granville to John Grice, 225 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/15.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Grice, 28 Apr 1753, 275 acres on a branch of Flat River, adj
Osborn Jeffreys, head of a branch. Gv11, SSLG 91-F.

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Please &c begun and held for the County
aforesaid at the Court house on Enoe on the second Tuesday in September Anno Dom 1752 [sic, but
apparently 1753]. Present his Majesties Justices &c.

ReglLn 29 James Bowie to Thomas Whitehead, 400 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/36]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bowie, 31 Aug 1753, 400 acres adj Capt Synnott. Gv14, SSLG
84-M, Regln 1564. Regln 29 James Bowie to Thomas Whitehead, 400 acres. ReglLn 1390 Thomas
Whitehead to Reason Whitehead, 400 acres. Regln 1777 Reason Whitehead to Edmund Faning,
400 acres.

RegLn 30 Thomas Wilkinson to Francis Wilkinson, _ acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/42]
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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RegLn 31 Patrick Boggan to James Allison, 238 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/43]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 32 James Swafer to James Dickey, 159 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/42]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 32 James Swafer to James Dickey, 159 acres. ReglLn
2661 Lawrence Thompson Jr to Moses Embrie, 159 acres. ODB 6/168 Robert Morrison to John
Shy, 10 Jun 1795, 14.75 acres on Haw River, adj mouth of a branch, Robert Morrison - part of
Granville to Zachariah Martin 24 Jun 1751, to James Swaffer [ReglLn 7], to James Dickey esq, to
Lawrance Thompson esq, to Lawrence Thompson Jr, to Moses Embree.



ReglLn 33 John Wade to Marmaduke Kimbrough, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/45]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 34 William Chambers to John Pryor, 375 acres, proved by Paul Harrilson. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/37 but John Chambers to William Pryor]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 35 [Gabriel Johnston by executrix] Frances Johnson to John Anderson, 300 acres, proved by
affirmation of James Taylor (Quaker). [Also proved at OCPQS 1/39]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 36 Francis Brandon to Mary Maxwell, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/36]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 37 Mark Morgan to John King, 380 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/39]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 22 Apr 1753, 380 acres on head branches of Lick
Creek. Gv5, SSLG 96-I, RegLn 235.

RegLn 38 Zachariah Martin Sr to Joseph Walker, 175 acres, proved by James Dickey. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/37]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 39 James Collins [Sr] to Zachariah Martin [Sr], 320 acres, proved by James Dickey. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/39]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 40 Joseph Wells to John Marshall, 137.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/36]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 41 George Williams to William Hellems, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/36]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/367 Moses Embree & wife Margaret to William
Lindley, 8 Apr 1773, 200 acres on branch of Cane Creek - part of Granville to George Williams
[Gv13, SSLG 102-H], to William Helms [RegLn 41], to Hugh Smith [ReglLn 481], to David Morgan
[not found], to Moses Embree 25 Mar 1767 [ReglLn 2494].

ReglLn 42 Miles Parker to Mathew Cary [& wife Sarah], 125 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/39]



Chilton’s notes: The part of Gv9 not conveyed by ReglLn 337.

ReglLn 43 Anthony Chamness [& wife Sarah] to Richard Kemp, 90 acres, proved by affirmation of
Richard Kemp. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/37 by affirmation of William Cox (Quaker)]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB H/177 Richard Kemp to Daniel Williams, 2 Aug 1793,
6.25 acres on waters of Cane Creek, adj Richard Kemp - part of Granville to Anthony Chamness
[filed in Anson County], to Richard Kemp [RegLn 43].

ReglLn 44 Anthony Chamness to Richard Cox [William Cox], 100 acres, proved by affirmation of Richard
Kemp (Quaker). [Also proved at OCPQS 1/37 Anthony Chamness & wife Sarah to William Cox]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB E/76 James Moon & wife Ann to John Moon, 27 Apr
1789, 100 acres in Earl Granville's boundaries in Orange County, on S side of Haw River, on Cane
Creek, adj Richard Kemp - part of 490 acres Granville to Anthony Chamness 24 Jun 1751 [filed in
Anson County], to William Cox 9 Aug 1753 [ReglLn 44, to James Moon ReglLn 1980].

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas &c begun and held for the County aforesaid
at the house of James Watson Esqg on Enoe River on the Second Tuesday in December Anno Dom 1753.
Present his Majesties Justices &c.

RegLn 45 William Chambers to John Yate, 100 acres, proved by John Pryor. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/49 William Chambers to George Yate]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/46 George Yate to John Rogers, 26 Jul 1755, 100 acres
on N side of Hico Creek, adj Country line [i.e. Virginia Line], John Pryor.

ReglLn 46 John Wade to James Wilkinson, 620 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/48]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Wade, H2769, ReglLn 2048

ReglLn 47 John Wood to Robert Little, 640 acres, proved by John Wade. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/50
but which says 320 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Gv12
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ReglLn 48 Henry & Alexander [McCulloh] to [Henry] Morris Cooper, 320 acres, proved by John Wade.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/58]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 49 James McGowan Sr to [James McGowan] Jr, 250 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/60]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/609 James McGowan & Elizabeth McGowan to
Thomas Hart, 23 Jul 1771, 250 acres adj James McGowan Sr, head of a spring.

RegLn 50 Earl Granville to Wi[lliam Churton], 640 acres, proved by Enoch Lewis. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/76]



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 51 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 295 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/76]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/170 Drury Mims & wife Lidda to John Avent, 28 Sep
1772, 295 acres on N side of Cape Fear River, adj Cheek. [Granville to Enoch Lewis RegLn 51, to
Richard Cheek Regln 710, to Ezekiel Shaddock not found, to Drury Mims ReglLn 1358.]

Regln 52 Earl Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 482 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 29 Apr 1754, 482 acres on the three forks of
Bartons Creek that Blalocks Mill is on, adj head of a bottom, first branch. Gv35, SSLG 93-I.

Regln 52A Hugh Laughlin to [damaged], 640 acres, proved by Zachariah Martin.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but probably Granville to Hugh Laughlin, 10 Dec 1753, 640 acres on
Cane Creek. Gv24, SSLG 95-C, ReglLn 55.

RegLn 53 Hugh Laughlin to Thomas Lin[dley], 308 acres, proved by . [Also proved at OCPQS
1/89]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 54 Earl Granville to H[ugh Wood], 315 acres, proved by [William] Churton. [Also proved at
0oCPQS 1/77]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Woods, 20 Dec 1753, 315 acres on both sides of Spirit Branch,
on S side of Eno River. Gv26, SSLG 102-J.

RegLn 55 Earl Granville to [Hugh Laughlin, 640 acres, proved by William Churton]. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/77]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Laughlin, 10 Dec 1753, 640 acres on Cane Creek. Gv24, SSLG
95-C, ReglLn 55.
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RegLn 56 William Martin to James Crow, [640] acres, proved by Be[njamin Martin]. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/47]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/209 James Crow & Grace Crow to Henry Wasson, 31
Mar 1756, 640 acres on N side of Haw River, adj an island - Granville to William Martin 2 May
175_ [Patent Book 6:189, SSLG 124B, H4764], to Crow 10 Dec 1753 [ReglLn 56]. [See CDB A/287
for later title.]

ReglLn 57 Robert Cate to Andrew Mitchell, [100] acres, proved by [James Dic]key esq. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/59]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 58 Michael Synnot to Francis [Day], [250] acres, proved by [A]lexander Mebane esq. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/60]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/93 Francis Day & Mary Day to Jonathon Fincher, 10
Sep 1755, 250 acres on Buck Quarter Creek, adj Michael Synnott — [Granville to] Michael Synnott
[filed in Granville County] to Francis Day 12 Nov 1753.

ReglLn 59 Zachariah Martin to Isaac [Collins], 175 acres, proved by James Dickey esq. [Also proved at
0CPQS 1/58]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 60 John Wade to Benjamin Cate, [84] acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/60]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/430 Thomas Gray to Charles Dunagan, 25 Oct 1782,
84 acres on Little River, adj Mill Creek - part of 384 acres Granville to John Wade 28 Apr 1753
[RegLn 360, H2768, 84 acres to Benjamin Cates ReglLn 60, to George Horner RegLn 1931].

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of P[leas] & Quarter Sessions begun and held for the
Coun([ty] aforesaid on the Second Tuesday in March Anno [Dom] 1754. Present his Majesties Justices.

ReglLn 61 George Williams to William [Miers], 100 acres, proved by David Mier. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/58]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 62 William Miers [& wife Elizabeth] to John Stanfield, [220] acres, proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/58]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but part of ReglLn 8 Zachariah Martin to William Mayars [William
Miers], 320 acres.
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North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas &c begun and held for the County aforesaid
at the house of Mr James Watson on Enoe River on the second Tuesday in July Anno Dom 1754. Present
his Majesties Justices &c.

Regln 63 James Currie to Robert Donalson, 315 acres, proved by . [Also proved at OCPQS
1/74]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 64 William Willson [& wife Hanah] to Phillip Young, 211 acres, proved by John Hues. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/79]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 65 William Chambers to Paul Harrelson, 640 acres, proved by John Sy[kes]. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/74]



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 66 William Chambers to Thomas Low[damaged], 476 acres, proved by
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 67 Earl Granville to John [Gray], 500 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Gray, 25 Mar 1752, 500 acres on S side of Seven Mile Creek.
Gvl, SSLG 91-E.

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas begun and held for the County aforesaid at
the house of Mr James Watsons on Enoe River on the second Tuesday in October Anno Dom 1754.
Present his Majesties Justices &c.

ReglLn 68 James Dickey to Lawrence Thompson, 159 acres, proved by affirmation [of James Taylor
(Quaker)]. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/91]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 32 James Swafer to James Dickey, 159 acres. ReglLn
2661 Lawrence Thompson Jr to Moses Embrie, 159 acres. ODB 6/168 Robert Morrison to John
Shy, 10 Jun 1795, 14.75 acres on Haw River, adj mouth of a branch, Robert Morrison - part of
Granville to Zachariah Martin 24 Jun 1751, to James Swaffer [ReglLn 7], to James Dickey esq, to
Lawrance Thompson esq, to Lawrence Thompson Jr, to Moses Embree.
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RegLn 69 John Rutherford esq to Lawrence Thompson, 332 acres, proved by affirmation of James
Taylor (Quaker). [Also proved at OCPQS 1/91]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 70 William Serjant to Stephen Serjant, 222 acres, proved by

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Sargeant, 25 Apr 1754, 222 acres on both sides of
McFarlands Creek, adj William Sargeant. Gv28, SSLG 100-A1, ODB 1/268, ReglLn 230.

Regln 71 Robert Thompson to Solomon Debow, 230 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/84]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 72 John Rutherford esq to Thomas Thompson, 160 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/91 for 359 acres, proved by Lawrence Thompson]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 73 Giles Tillet to Isaac Simmons, 337 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/84]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Giles Tillott, 25 Apr 1754, 337 acres on both sides of Rosses Creek of
Haw River. Gv27, SSLG 101-I.



ReglLn 74 Robert Harper to Hugh Dobbin, 315 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/85]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 75 Nathaniel Giles to Nicholas Colbert, 100 acres, proved by Josiah Stephens. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/84]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 76 William Jay [or Robert Jay] to John Satterfield [Jr], 150 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/85]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 77 George Williams to James Downin, 240 acres, proved by William Hellems. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/85]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/387 William Downin to James Newlin, 18 Jul 1781,
240 acres on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek - now in possession of William Downing heir of
his father James Downing deceased, part of Granville to George Williams 12 May 1753 [Gv13,
SSLG 102-H], to James Downing 29 Jul 1754.

RegLn 78 John Rutherford esq to Thomas Lampsie, 294 acres, proved by William [Anderson]. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/85 to Thomas Lapsley, 295 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Please &c. begun & held for the County aforesaid
at the house of Mr James Watson on Enoe River on the second Tuesday January Ann Dom 1753. Present
his Majesties Justices.

RegLn 79 George Williams to William Murrah, 150 acres, proved by James Murrah. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/85 for 100 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/633 John Tripp & Ann Tripp & William Tripp to
Thomas Steele, 9 Nov 1791, 100 acres on S side of Haw River & S side of Cane Creek, adj William
Helms, James Downing, George Allen. Proved Nov 1792 by Thomas Hadley. [Granville to George
Williams Gv13, SSLG 102-H, to William Murrah ReglLn 79, to Nicholas Tripp Regln 513.]

RegLn 80 James Taylor to James Paul, 250 acres, proved by John Anderson. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/91]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 81 John Rutherford esq to Ralph Williams, 300 acres, proved by Thomas Lapsie. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/85]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 82 John Rutherford esq to John Tinnen, 200 acres, proved by James Clark. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/84 by Lawrence Thompson esq]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 83 John Rutherford to Alexander Lackey, 323.5 acres, proved by William Anderson. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/86]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/589 Alexander Lackey to William Lackey, 17 Dec 1769,
half of 323.5 acres on waters of Eno River, distinguished in original deed by #12, bounded on E
by east most branch of Eno River which divided #10 & #19 from said tract, to N by #13 & #14, W
by #9, S by #8. [Part of Governor Gabriel Johnston's 8929 acres].

RegLn 84 John Rutherford esq to Joseph Duncan, 157 acres, proved by Lawrence Thompson. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/84]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 85 Earl Granville to James Watson, 321 acres, proved by Enoch Lewis.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Watson, 17 Jun 1754, 321 acres on forks of Seven Mile Creek,
adj Mr Gray. Gv51, SSLG 102-C.
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RegLn 86 John Rutherford to James Ray, 179 acres, proved by Joseph Allison.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 87 Thomas Mathews to John Sidwel, 140 acres, proved by Aaron Jones.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 88 William Chambers to Burges Harrelson, 100 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 89 Thomas Lindley to Francis Jones Saddler, 200 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/447 Francis Jones to John Carter, 9 Nov 1789, 200
acres on waters of Cane Creek, bounded on S by William Lindley & Henry Holliday, E by
Nathaniel Carter, N & W by Johnathon Lindley - recorded ODB A/171 [RegLn 89 Thomas Lindley
to Francis Jones]. Proved Aug 1791 by Eli Hervey.

RegLn 90 Earl Granville to John White, 227 acres, proved by John Haywood.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John White ReglLn 90, H2839

ReglLn 91 John Wade to Samuel Parke, 380 acres, proved by Thomas Wade. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/103]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 17 Robert Patterson to John Wade, 380 acres.

RegLn 92 Earl Granville to James Payne, 380 acres, proved.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Payne, 27 Apr 1754, 380 acres on N side of Deep Creek. Gv31,
SSLG 97-E.

RegLn 93 Earl Granville to James Payne, 360 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Payne, 27 Apr 1754, 360 acres on both sides of N Hico Creek.
Gv32, SSLG 54-H. Filed in Granville County?

Regln 94 Earl Granville to Zachariah Keadly, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Zachary Cadle, 25 Oct 1753, 640 acres on Back Creek, below the
Upper Buffalo Lick. Gv18, SSLG 94-E.
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RegLn 95 Earl Granville to Edward Jones [Edward Stone], 395 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/111 to Edward Stone]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Stone, 12 Mar 1755, 395 acres on N side of Stones Creek,
adj Governor's line. Gv74, SSLG 100-G-5.

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions begun and held for
the County aforesaid at the house of Captain James Watsons on Enoe River on the second Tuesday in
June Anno Dom 1755. Present his Majesties Justices &c.

Regln 96 Thomas Wiley to William Reed [William Wiley?], 381 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor H2753, Patent Book 14:81. ReglLn 23 to Thomas Wiley,
381 acres. Later Regln 2359 William Wiley to Jonas Chamberlain, 381 acres, ODB 5/366 Jonas
Chamberlin by executor to William Chamberlin, 28 Feb 1794, four tracts...third tract 381 acres —
from William Wiley 12 Aug 1765 recorded ODB A1/500 [ReglLn 2359], ODB 5/403 to Isaac
Jackson, 7 Jan 1795, 381 acres.

Regln 97 John Jones to John Stanfield, 241 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/610 William Common to Joseph Stout, 6 Jan 1792,
120.5 acres on waters of Cane Creek - part of 241 acres John Jones to John Stanfield 13 Aug
1754 [RegLn 97], by will to his son John Stanfield [not found in OWB]. ODB 4/283 Jonathon
Lindley to Joseph Stout, 13 Jan 1786, 120.5 acres on N side of Cane Creek - part of 682 acres
Granville to John Jones 11 Jun 1754 [Gv39, SSLG 94-C, ReglLn 239], 241 acres to John Stanfield 13
Aug 1754 [ReglLn 97], to Jonathan Lindley 27 Nov 1785 [not found].

ReglLn 98 Dennis Collins [& wife Margaret] to John Lea, 480 acres, proved by William Lea. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/112 to William Lea]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Dennis Collins, 8 May 1755, 480 acres on both sides of Cobbs Creek.
Gv91, SSLG 87-H, ReglLn 626.

ReglLn 99 John Lea to Zachariah Lea, 206 acres, proved by William Lea. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/112]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 100 John Lea to Andrew Cadwel, 100 acres, proved by William Lea. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/113]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 101 Robert Jones Jr to Thomas Dobbin, 160 acres, proved by Robert Jones Jr. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/112]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 102 Robert Jones Jr to John Campbell, 176 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/112]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
[Page 14]

RegLn 103 John Jones to William Nelson, 120 acres, proved by John Jones. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/112]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/200 William Nelson & Ann Nelson to George Maris,
10 Mar 1770, 120 acres & 144 poles on S side of Haw River, on branch of Cane Creek, adj field,
John Stanfield - part of 682 acres Granville to John Jones 11 Jun 1754 [Gv39, SSLG 94-C, ReglLn
239], to Nelson 31 Aug 1754.

Regln 104 Zachariah Keadle to Benjamin Keadle, 256 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/113]

Chilton’s notes: Half of this is ODB 3/584 John Douglass & Ellener Douglass to James Carrigan, 28
Jan 1763, 128 acres adj Thomas Lapsley - part of 640 acres Granville to Zachariah Cadle 25 Oct
1753 ODB A/212 [Gv18, SSLG 94-E, ReglLn 94], to Benjamin Cadle 13 Apr 1754 [ReglLn 104], to
Douglass 22 Feb 1760 ODB 1/305 [RegLn 671].

ReglLn 105 Zachariah Keadle to Mark Keadle, 128 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/113 to Mark Morgan]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/208 John Forrest Sr to John Forrest Jr, 26 Dec 1794,
[128 acres] adj branch - part of Granville to Zachariah Keadle 25 Oct 1753 [Gv18, SSLG 94-E,
ReglLn 94], to Mark Keadle [RegLn 105], to Lodwick Lard [RegLn 1975], Lard to Benjamin
Thompson [Regln 1976], Thompson to John Forrest Sr [not found].

Regln 106 Earl Granville to William Johnson, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Johnston, 12 Mar 1755, 400 acres on Vernons Creek. Gv68,
SSLG 94-B.

ReglLn 107. William Mebane to Alexander Mebane, 400 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/110]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 108 Zachariah Martin [Jr] to Zachariah Martin Sr, 320 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/112]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 109 Benjamin Bolen to Henry Webb, 300 acres, proved by David Nelson. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/110]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 110 John Rhodes to Duncan Bohannon Jr, 640 acres, proved by David Nelson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/110 for 320 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 111 Thomas Brooks Sr to Thomas & Samuel Brooks, acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions begun and held for
the County aforesaid at the house of Mr James Watson on the second Tuesday in September Anno Dom
1755. Present his Majesties Justices.

ReglLn 112 William Ellis to John McGee, 300 acres, proved by Joseph Boggs esq. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/111]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/1 William Ellis & Mary Ellis to John McGee, 3 Jan
1755, tract on Sandy Creek, adj a fork of Sandy Creek, the Trading Path - Granville to William
Ellis 7 Oct 1754 [Gv56, SSLG 90-B]. [Same deed at ODB 2/201. See RaDB 7/345 for later title.]

Regln 113 Earl Granville to John Wood, 600 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/110]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Woods, 11 Jun 1754, 600 acres on Stones Creek. Gv43, SSLG
102-J, ODB 2/202.

ReglLn 114 John Wood to Gilbert Strean, 600 acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/111]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/4 John Wood to GJilbert Strai]n, 10 Jun 1755, 600
acres [no creek or adjoiners] - from Granville to John Wood 5 Jun 17__ [Gv43, SSLG 102-J, ODB
1/2, ODB 2/202, ReglLn 113]. [Same deed at ODB 2/205.]

ReglLn 115 Gilbert Strean to Ann Hunter, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
0oCPQS 1/111]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 2/206 Gilbert Strean to Ann Hunter, 10 Jun 1755,
300 acres - part of John Woods to Strain 10 Jun 1755 [ODB 1/4]. [Same deed at ODB 1/5.
Granville to John Wood Gv43, SSLG 102-J, ODB 1/2, ODB 2/202, ReglLn 113.]



ReglLn 116 Earl Granville to Richard Caswell, 337 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/111]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Caswell, 14 May 1755, 337 acres on N side of S Fork of
Morgan Creek. Gv100, SSLG 86-D, ODB 2/207.

Regln 117 Earl Granville to Benjamin Martin, 600 acres, proved by Zachariah Wood. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/111]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Martin, 13 Mar 1755, 600 acres on W side of Haw River,
on both sides of Cane Creek. Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9.

ReglLn 118 Benjamin Martin to William Johnson, 490 acres, proved by Zachariah Wood. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/111]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/12 Benjamin Martin to William Johnson, 26 May
1755, tract on S side of Haw River, adj George Martin, mouth of Cane Creek - Granville to
Benjamin Martin 13 Nov 1754 [Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9, ReglLn 117]. [See also preceding item
& ODB 2/212. Later to James Nethery ODB 1/156, to Michael Murrah ReglLn 421, to Richard
Woods ReglLn 776, after which see CDB B/182 for later title.]

Regln 119 Benjamin Martin to George Martin, 110 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/111 by Zacahariah Wood.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/13 Benjamin Martin to George Martin, 25 May
1755, 110 acres on Haw River, on both sides of Cane Creek - Granville to Benjamin Martin 13
Mar 1755 [Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9, Regln 117]. [Same deed at ODB 2/214.]
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RegLn 120 Earl Granville to William Boggan, 419 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/110]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Boggan, 15 Jun 1754, 419 acres on S side of S Fork of Little
River, adj John Dunagan. Gv49, SSLG 84-1, ODB 1/15.

Regln 121 John Rutherford esq to James Clark, 380 acres, proved by Thomas Lapsie. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/112 by affirmation of James Taylor (Quaker)]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/18 John Rutherford to James Clark, 17 Aug 1755,
380 acres on waters of Little River - part of 8929 acres [Granville to Gabriel Johnston] 5 Mar
1751. [Same deed at ODB 2/218.]

Regln 122 John Rutherford to David Hart, 285 acres, proved by James Taylor. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/112 John Rutherford to James Hart, 285 acres]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/20 John Rutherford to James Hart, 17 Aug 1755,
285 acres on Eno River, number 16, bounded to W by easternmost branch of Eno River, to N by
number 11, to E by number 15, to S by outlines - part of 8929 acres conveyed 25 Mar 1751 from
Granville to Gabriel Johnston. [Same deed at ODB 2/220.]



Regln 123 Samuel Benton to Nathaniel Kimbal, 500 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/113 for 300 acres, proved Jun 1755 by Robert Harris]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/22 Samuel Benton to Nathaniel Kimbro, 2 Jun
1755, 300 acres on a branch of Crabtree Creek - Granville to Samuel Benton 28 Oct 1751 [Patent
Book 14:187 in Johnston County]. [Same deed at ODB 2/222.]

ReglLn 124 Michael Synnot to Thomas Holden, 500 acres, proved by Daniel Willson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/117]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/27 Michael Synnott to Thomas Holden, 1 Jan 1755,
500 acres adj Mr Day, the Mountain - where James Latta now dwells - Granville to Michael
Synnott 25 Mar 1752 [ODB 1/23, ODB 2/224. H2682]. [Same deed at ODB 2/226.]

Regln 125 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/30 Granville to James Taylor, [first half of this item
missing]. Apparently the same deed at ODB 2/227 Granville to [none] Taylor, [no date], [blank].

Regln 126 John Taylor to George Taylor, 100 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/32 John Taylor to George Miller, 22 Aug 1755, 320
acres on a branch of Little River - James Taylor to John Taylor 12 Jun 1753 ODB A/39 [RegLn 22].

Regln 127 Hugh Laughlin to Thomas Lindley, 3.75 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/35 Hugh Laughlin to Thomas Lindley, 10 Aug 1755,
partnership agreement to build a water grist mill on Cane Creek, 3.75 acres on S side of Haw
River, on land of Hugh Laughlin & Thomas Lindley, water to be taken out of land of Laughlin &
seat for the mill to be Thomas Lindley's, 3 acres. [See Granville to William McFerson, Gv296,
SSLG 95.1-C, Regln 763; Granville to Thomas Lindley. See also ODB 1/37.]

Regln 128 Thomas Lindley to Hugh Laughlin, 3.75 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/37 Thomas Lindley to Hugh Laughlin, 10 Aug 1755,
partnership agreement to build a water grist mill on Cane Creek, 3.75 acres on S side of Haw
River, on land of Hugh Laughlin & Thomas Lindley, water to be taken out of land of Laughlin &
seat for the mill to be Thomas Lindley's, 3 acres. [See Granville to William McFerson, Gv296,
SSLG 95.1-C, ReglLn 759; Granville to Thomas Lindley RESEARCH. See also ODB 1/36.]

Regln 129 John Crieg to James Paule, 360 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/38 John Creige to James Paul, 18 Feb 1755, 360
acres on waters of Eno River - Granville to John Craig 12 Jun 1754 [Gv46, SSLG 88-G].
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RegLn 130 Joseph Collins to William Chavis, 320 acres, proved.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/40 Joseph Collins to William Chavis, 4 Feb 1755,
320 acres on S side of Flat River - part of Granville to Joseph Collins 28 Oct 1752 [Patent Book
11:333 in Granville County].

ReglLn 131 John Stroud Jr to William Blackwood, 325 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/41 John Stroud Jr to William Blackwood, 12 Nov
1754, 325 acres on Old Field Creek of New Hope Creek - Granville to John Stroud 23 Oct 1754
[Gv57, SSLG 100-1, ReglLn 718].

Regln 132 His Majesty to Earl Granville, 375 acres, proved by William Spright.

Chilton’s notes: ? ODB 1/42 Henry Pope to Arthur Cook, 10 May 1755, 375 acres on Swift Creek,
adj Henry Days Branch - Granville to Henry Pope 28 Oct 1744 [sic] [RESEARCH, not in Bennett].

RegLn 133 William Piggot to William Cox, 180 acres, proved by Joseph Maddock.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/44 William Piggott to William Cox, 4 Sep 1755, 180
acres on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek - Granville to William Piggott 3 Feb 1754 [Gv63,
SSLG 97-M].

Regln 134 George Yate to John Rogers, 100 acres, proved by John Pryor.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/46 George Yate to John Rogers, 26 Jul 1755, 100
acres on N side of Hico Creek, adj Country line [i.e. Virginia Line], John Pryor. [From William
Chambers Regln 45.]

Regln 135 Thomas Armstrong to Thomas Harrison, 300 acres, proved by James Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/47 Thomas Armstrong to Thomas Harris, 22 Aug
1755, 300 acres on N side of Deep River about 6 miles above Mr Duncan Campbell - granted
Armstrong [ReglLn 202 Earl Granville to Thomas Armstrong, 300 acres]. [Later to Lewis Brantley
Regln 1989, 120 acres to John Bird CDB A/38 et seq.]

Regln 136 George Martin to William Howlet, 110 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/48 George Martin to William Howlett, 19 Jun 1755,
110 acres on Cane Creek - Benjamin Martin to George Martin 25 Mar last [ODB 1/13, ODB
2/214, Regln 119]. [See Granville to Benjamin Martin Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9, ReglLn 117.]

Regln 137 James Lindley to James Howlet, 100 acres, proved by John Lambert.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/49 James Lindley Jr to James Downing, 25 Jul 1755,
100 acres on both sides of Cane Creek, adj James Downing - part of Granville to George Williams
[Gv13, SSLG 102-H].

Regln 138 Thomas Mathews to Henry May[n]or, 320 acres, proved by Richard Jones.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/51 Thomas Matthews to Henry Mayner, 30 Jul
1755, 320 acres on S side of Haw River - part of 640 acres Granville to Zachariah Martin 8 Jun
1752, Martin to Matthews 24 Jun 1752 [RegLn 9].
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Regln 139 Earl Granville to James May, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Ray, 13 May 1755, 240 acres on both sides of N Fork of Little
River. Gv98, SSLG 98-1, ODB 1/52.

Regln 140 Earl Granville to John Hunter, 177 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Hunter, 8 May 1755, 177 acres on a small branch of Eno River
that runs through Capt Gray's land. Gv92, SSLG 93-A, ODB 1/55. [Surveyed for Samuel Flake.]

Regln 141 Earl Granville to William Blackwood, 480 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Blackwood, 14 Mar 1755, 480 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv87,
SSLG 84-C, ODB 1/58.

Regln 142 Earl Granville to Michael Synnot, 275 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Synnott, 13 Mar 1755, 275 acres on both sides of Eno River,
adj John Webb & William Goss. Gv78, SSLG 100-J, ODB 1/61.

RegLn 143 Michael Synnot to James Couch, 275 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/64 Michael Synnott to James Couch, 9 Jul 1755,
275 acres on both sides of Eno River. [See Granville to Michael Synnott Gv78, SSLG 100-J, ODB
1/61, Regln 142.]

Regln 144 Earl Granville to Hugh Barnet, 200 acres, proved by Robert Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Barnett, 27 Apr 1754, 200 acres on both sides of Mayo Creek.
Gv30, SSLG 83-L, ODB 1/66.

RegLn 145 William Bird to Francis Farley, 6000 acres, proved by Robert Jones Jr.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/69 William Byrd & Elizabeth Byrd to Francis Farley
& Simon Farley, 25 Oct 1755, two tracts totalling 26000 acres on both sides of Dan
River...second tract, 6000 acres granted to William Byrd the son by patent 22 Mar 1742 [RkDB
A/9]. [This deed also recorded at RwDB 3/13.]

Regln 146 Earl Granville to Mark [Morgan], 490 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/71 Granville to Mark Morgan, 26 Apr 1751, 490
acres in Bladen County [now Orange County], on branch of New Hope Creek. [Patent Book 11:24
in Bladen County.]

ReglLn 147 Earl Granville to William Crege, 475 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Craig, 6 Sep 1754, 475 acres on both sides of Batts Creek of
New Hope Creek. Gv55, SSLG 88-G, ODB 1/75.

Regln 148 Earl Granville to William Creig, 280 acres, proved.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Craig, 13 Mar 1755, 280 acres on both sides of Richland
Fork of New Hope Creek. Gv81, SSLG 88-F, ODB 1/78.
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Regln 149 Earl Granville to Samuel Nelson, 425 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Nelson, 12 Jun 1754, 425 acres on waters of John Williams
Mill Creek, adj David Mims, Thomas Matthews. Gv47, SSLG 97-B, ODB 1/80.

RegLn 150 Earl Granville to James Dunny [James Denny/Deany/Dennis], 200 acres, proved by William
Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Denny, 12 Mar 1755, 200 acres on both sides of Eno River,
adj James Watson. Gv73, SSLG 88-M, ODB 1/84.

Regln 151 James Dunney to William Cox, 70 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/86 James Denny to William Cox, 10 Sep 1755, 70
acres on Eno River - incl plantation of William Cox, part of Granville to James Denny 12 Mar 1755
[Gv73, SSLG 88-M, ODB 1/84, ReglLn 150].

ReglLn 152 Earl Granville to William Reed, 112 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Reed, 12 Mar 1755, 112 acres on N side of Eno River, adj
the old Trading Path, Governor [Gabriel Johnston]. RegLn 152.

Regln 153 Michael Synnot to John Agar, 640 acres, proved by Thomas Fisher.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/91 Michael Synnott to John Agar, 175 _, deed of
trust on plantation on which Synnott now lives [no creek or adjoiners] - part of 640 acres from
Granville to Michael Synnott 2 May 1752 [RESEARCH, not in Bennett], also 30 head of black
cattle, 50 hogs, 6 horses, 1 cart, 1 wagon, with all plantation utensils & household furniture, all
the corn now growing or that may hereafter grow on said plantation.

Regln 154 Francis Day to Jonathan Fincher, 250 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/93 Francis Day & Mary Day to Jonathon Fincher,
10 Sep 1755, 250 acres on Buck Quarter Creek, adj Michael Synnott — [Granville to] Michael
Synnott [file in Granville County] to Francis Day 12 Nov 1753 [RegLn 58].

RegLn 155 Francis Day to Jonathan Fincher, 416 acres, proved by said Day.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/94 Francis Day & Mary Day to Jonathon Fincher,
10 Sep 1755, 416 acres adj Michael Synnott - Granville to Francis Day 12 Mar 1755 [Gv72, SSLG
88-L, Regln 242].

Regln 156 James Taylor to Henry Gold, 360 acres, proved by James Taylor.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/96 James Taylor to Henry Gold, 9 Dec 1755, 360
acres on waters of Flat River, adj forked pine - Granville to James Taylor 8 Nov 1755 [Gv115,
SSLG 101-C, Regln 364].



ReglLn 157 John Rutherford esq to James Taylor, 626.5 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/97 John Rutherford to James Taylor, 7 Nov 1755,
two tracts, first tract, 385 acres, number 15, adj James Hart, John Anderson; second tract, 241
acres, number 6 adj easternmost a fork of Eno River, James Taylor, Thomas Lapsley - both part
of 8929 acres Granville to Governor Gabriel Johnston 25 Mar 1751.

Regln 158 Christopher Rhodes to Joseph Barbee, 220 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/100 Christopher Rhodes & Judith Rhodes to Joseph
Barbee, 9 Dec 1755, 220 acres on Third fork of New Hope Creek. [Granville to Christopher
Rhodes, Gv21, SSLG 98-L, ODB 1/164, ReglLn 194.]
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ReglLn 159 Duncan Bohannan to Joseph Bohanan, 320 acres, proved by Duncan Bohannan.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/102 Duncan Bohannon Sr & Susanna Bohannon to
Joseph Bohannon, 9 Dec 1755, 320 acres on New Hope Creek.

Regln 160 Duncan Bohannan to Joseph Bohannan, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/103 Dunkin Bohannon Sr & Susannah Bohannon to
Dunkin Bohannon Jr, 9 Dec 1755, 640 acres on both sides of New Hope Creek.

ReglLn 161 John Rhodes to John Bohanan, 567 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/105 John Rhodes to John Bohannon, 9 Dec 1755,
567 acres on Kitts Creek of Northeast Creek, adj a fork of Kitts Creek, the low ground, the prongs
of the Creek. [See Granville to John Rhodes, Gv109, SSLG 99-B.]

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas &c begun and held for the County aforesaid
at the house of Mr. James Watson on the second Tuesday in December Anno Dom 1755. Present his
Majesty’s Justices &c.

Regln 162 Henry Beasley to John Bohannan, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/106 Henry Beasley & Mary Beasley to John
Bohannon, 9 Sep 1755, 640 acres on Northeast Creek of New Hope Creek, adj the low grounds
of a small prong. [See Granville to Henry Beasley, Gv60, SSLG 84-F, ReglLn 308.]

ReglLn 163 John McCullers to Benjamin Blake, 490 acres, proved by Arthur Cook.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/108 John McCullers to Benjamin Blake, 8 Sep 1755,
490 acres on both sides of S Fork of Crabtree Creek, adj Francis Jones.

Regln 164 Zachariah Martin to John Martin, 320 acres, proved by William Person.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/109 Zachariah Martin Sr to George Martin, 27 Nov
1755, half of tract from Granville to Timothy Terrell, Terrell to Zachariah Martin Jr [ReglLn 25],
Zachariah Martin Jr to Zachariah Martin Sr [ReglLn 108 or ReglLn 125].



ReglLn 165 Robert Jones Jr to William Wynne, 1885 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/111 Robert Jones Jr to William Wynne, 9 Dec 1755,
four tracts, on both sides of Hogans Creek - first tract, 213 acres; second tract, 252 acres; third
tract, 440 acres; fourth tract, 980 acres.

Regln 166 Thomas Bradford to Thomas Bradford, 220 acres, proved by William Day.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/113 Thomas Bradford & Mary Bradford to Thomas
Bradford Jr, 24 Sep 1755, 220 acres on S side of Lick Creek, adj where the P line crosses the
Creek - part of a tract granted Thomas Bradford 26 Mar 1752 [Patent Book 11:322].
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Regln 167 John West to Solomon West, 550 acres, proved by Stephen Merrit.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/114 John West Sr to Solomon West, 21 Jul 1755,
100 acres on N side of Toms Creek, adj mouth of the mill, the spring, the Ridge Path - part of 550
acres Granville to John West Sr [Granville to John West Regln 244, H2837].

Regln 168 James Watson to William Mouat, 577 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/116 James Watson to William Mowat, 6 Dec 1754,
577 acres on fork of Watsons Creek of Haw River. [See Granville to James Watson ODB 1/240,
Regln 222, see also ODB 1/244.]

Regln 169 John West Sr to Alexander West, 100 acres, proved by Stephen Merret.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/117 John West Sr to Alexander West, 21 Jul 1755,
100 acres on N side of Stony Creek, adj the path that goes from Alexander West's to James
Nichols - to incl plantation Alexander West now lives on, part of a tract of 550 acres Granville to
John West Sr [ReglLn 244, H2837].

Regln 170 Isaac Jackson to Thomas Jackson, 350 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/120 Isaac Jackson to Thomas Jackson, 8 Sept 1755,
350 acres on both sides of Buck Quarter Creek, adj Captain Synnott.

Regln 171 William Churton to Harman Husband, 2 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/122 William Churton to Harmon Husbands, 4 Nov
1755, 2 acres in Hillsborough, on Eno River - Husbands shall within two years build a habitable
house.

Regln 172 Samuel Nelson to Hugh Smith, 425 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/124 Samuel Nelson to Hugh Smith, 9 Mar 1756,
425 acres on waters of John Williams Mill Creek, adj David Mims, Thomas Matthews. [Granville
to Samuel Nelson, Gv47, SSLG 97-B-1, ODB 1/80, ReglLn 149.]

Regln 173 James Taylor to James Armstrong, 670 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/125 James Taylor to James Armstrong, 10 Oct
1755, 607 acres on Eno River, adj Governor Gabriel Johnston.

ReglLn 174 William Wynn to Michael Joyce, 213 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/126 William Wynne to Michael Joyce, 9 Mar 1756,
213 acres on both sides of Hogans Creek - Robert Jones to Wynne 9 Dec 1755 [ODB 1/111,
Regln 165].

ReglLn 175 William Wynn to Benjamin King, 252 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/128 William Wynne to Benjamin King, 9 Mar 1756,
262 acres on both sides of Hogans Creek, adj Robert Jones Jr - Robert Jones Jr to Wynne 9 Dec
1755 [ODB 1/111, Regln 165].

ReglLn 176 Joseph Pinson to Joseph Porter [sic], 393 acres, proved by John Patterson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/130 Joseph Pinson to Hugh Pourter, 14 Feb 1756,
393 acres on E side of N Fork of Haw River, adj mouth of High Rock Creek. [Granville to Joseph
Pinson Gv52, SSLG 98-A. ReglLn 2280 Hugh Porter to Jane Willson, 393 acres.]
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Regln 177 John Grist to Osbhorne Jefferys, 225 acres, proved by Hosea Tapley.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/132 John Grist to Osborn Jeffreys, 23 Dec 1755,
225 acres on branches of Flat River, adj Osborn Jeffreys, head of a branch - Granville to John
Grist 28 Apr 1753 [Gv11, SSLG 91-F, RegLn 28].

Regln 178 Thomas Langley to Edward Williams, 150 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/133 Thomas Langley to Edward Williams, 11 Mar
1756, 150 acres on both sides of Hico Creek, part of a larger tract.

Regln 179 David Stapler to Dennis Collins, 100 acres, proved by William Willson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/135 David Stapler to Dennis Collins, 25 Nov 1755,
100 acres on N Fork of Hico Creek.

ReglLn 180 Bazel Brashear to John Watson, 480 acres, proved by John Gray.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/136 Basel Brashear to John Watson, 11 Mar 1756,
lot 9 in Hillsborough, adj Eno River - part of Granville to William Churton, Churton to Brashear;
also lot __in Hillsborough; also 480 acres on Reedy Fork and Buffalo Creek; also white or grey
gelding.

Regln 181 John Gray to Blake Baker, 384 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/138 John Wade by Sheriff John Gray to Blake
Baker, 10 Sep 1755, per order against John Wade 18 Mar 1755 at New Bern commanding sale of
four tracts totalling 1600 acres with a grist mill on one of them, this deed for 384 acres on S side
of Little River, adj Mill Creek - Granville to John Wade 28 Apr 1753 [Granville to John Wade



Regln 360, H2768], [84] acres of which Benjamin Cates has a deed from John [Wade] [RegLn
60].

ReglLn 182 John Gray to Blake Baker, 500 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/141 John Wade by Sheriff John Gray to Blake
Baker, 10 Sep 1755, per same order, 500 acres on Mountain Creek, adj Joseph Collins - Granville
to John Wade 28 Apr 1753 [H2767, RegLn 359].

Regln 183 William Churton to William Reed, 1 acre, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/144 William Churton to William Reed, 4 Nov 1754,
lot 85 in Hillsborough, on Eno River, adj Market Street. [See ODB 1/146, ODB 1/147, ODB 1/149,
ODB 1/158.]

ReglLn 184 William Reed to Thomas Clark, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/146 William Reed to Thomas Clark, 4 Nov 1755, lot
85 in Hillsborough, adj the Prison - William Churton to Reed 4 Nov 1754 [ODB 1/144]. [See ODB
1/147,0DB 1/149, ODB 1/158.]

ReglLn 185 Thomas Clark to Edward Dickey, 0.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/147 Thomas Clark to Edward Dickens, 5 Dec 1755,
half of corner lot adj the prison, where James Dickey lives - William Reed to Clark 4 Nov 1755
[ODB 1/146]. [See ODB 1/144, ODB 1/49.]

ReglLn 186 James Dickey & son to Edward Stapler, 0.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/149 James Dickie & Edward Dickie to John Slater, 2
Mar 1756, half lot in Hillsborough where James Dickey & Edward Dickey now dwell - Thomas
Clark to Edward Dickey 5 Dec 1765 [ODB 1/147]. [See ODB 1/144, ODB 1/146, later ODB 1/158.]
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Regln 187 William Churton to William Reed, 2 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/150 William Churton to William Reed, 8 Sep 1755,
2 acre lot in Corbinton on the Eno River, adj King Street, the town line, John McNish on the west.

ReglLn 188 William Crieg to John Rainey, 280 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/153 William Creige & Margaret Creige to John
Reany, 8 Jun 1756, 280 acres adj his own line - Granville to William Craig 13 Mar 1755 [Gv81,
SSLG 88-F, ODB 1/78, ReglLn 148].

Regln 189 Richard Caswell to William Blackwood, 640 acres, proved by Richard Caswell.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/155 Richard Caswell to William Blackwood, 9 Jun
1756, 640 acres on both sides of the Forks of New Hope Creek, adj Old Field Creek - Granville to
Richard Caswell 11 May 1756 [Gv163, SSLG 86-D].



ReglLn 190 William Johnson to James Netherley, 490 acres, proved by Alexander Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/156 William Johnston & Mary Johnston to James
Nethery, 13 Apr 1756, 490 acres on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek, adj George Martin —
[Granville to] Benjamin Martin [Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9, RegLn 117] & wife Martha Martin to
Johnston 6 May 1755 [ODB 2/212]. [See CDB B/182 for later title.]

Regln 191 John Slater to Glass Caston & John White, 0.5 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/158 John Slater to Glose Caston, 3 May 1756, half
lot 85 in Hillsborough whereon James Dickey late formerly dwelled - James Dickey & son Edward
Dickey to Slater 2 Mar 1760 [ODB 1/149]. [See ODB 1/144, ODB 1/146.]

Regln 192 William Boggan to Jesse Hollings, 320 acres, proved by Henry Webb.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/159 Margaret Boggan & William Boggan to Jesse
Hollingsworth, 24 Apr 1756, 320 acres on N side of Flat River, adj George Laws, Knap of Reeds
Creek, Henry Morris - part of tract granted Henry McCulloh 3 Mar 1743, to Patrick Bogan 3 Dec
1753 [not found].

RegLn 193 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbey, 600 acres, proved by Henry Webb.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 23 Oct 1754, 600 acres on Northeast Creek of New
Hope Creek, adj the old flag pond. Gv59, SSLG 83-I.

Regln 194 Earl Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 220 acres, proved by John Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 26 Oct 1753, 220 acres on Third Fork of New
Hope Creek. Gv21, SSLG 98-L, ODB 1/164.

RegLn 195 Earl Granville to Robert Patterson, 640 acres, proved by John Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Patterson, 1 May 1752, 640 acres on New Hope Creek, adj
Patterson's Spring. ReglLn 195.
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ReglLn 196 Earl Granville to Hosea Tapley, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/171 Granville to Hosea Tapley, 1 Nov 1751, 400
acres near head of Flat River. Patent Book 14:81 in Granville County, H2752

ReglLn 197 Earl Granville to Aron Vanhook, 400 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found. IS THIS FILED IN GRANVILLE COUNTY?
ReglLn 198 Earl Granville to Edmund More, 145 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/177 William Jay to Edward Moore, 8 Jun 1756, 146
acres on the NE Fork of Flat River, adj John Satterfield, William Neeley, William Jay, N Fork of
Flat River, Richland Creek - part 394 acres Granville to William Jay 6 May 1756 [Gv156, SSLG 93-
G, ODB 1/236, Regln 221].



ReglLn 199 Earl Granville to William Crieg, 323 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Craig, 20 Feb 1756, 325 acres on both sides of New Hope
Creek, adj Andrew Mitchell. Gv133, SSLG 88-H.

Regln 200 Earl Granville to Alexander Mebane, 320 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Mebane, 13 Feb 1756, 320 acres on both sides of James
Collins Creek. Gv128, SSLG 96-D, ODB 1/182.

RegLn 201 Earl Granville to William Johnson, 540 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Johnson, 6 May 1756, 540 acres on N Fork of Terrells Creek.
Gv155, SSLG 94-B, ODB 1/186.

North Carolina, Orange County}...March 1756.
Regln 202 Earl Granville to Thomas Armstrong, 300 acres, proved by Alexander Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/189 Granville to Captain Thomas Armstrong, 25
Mar 1752, 300 acres on S side of Deep River. [RegLn 202, otherwise not found.] RegLn 1989
Thomas Harriss to Lewis Brantley, 300 acres. ODB 1/47 Thomas Armstrong to Thomas Harris, 22
Aug 1755, 300 acres on N side of Deep River about 6 miles above Mr Duncan Campbell - granted
Armstrong [ReglLn 202 Earl Granville to Thomas Armstrong, 300 acres]. CDB A/38 Lewis Brantley
to John Bird, 120 acres.
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Regln 203 Earl Granville to James Latta, 294 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Latta, 13 Feb 1756, 294 acres on E Fork of Buck Quarter
Creek, adj Capt Synnott. Gv126, SSLG 95-C.

ReglLn 204 Earl Granville to James England, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James England, 20 Feb 1756, 240 acres on both sides of Forresters
Creek, adj Robert Davis. Gv132, SSLG 90-B, ODB 1/196. [Surveyed for Jacob Hartley.]

Regln 205 Earl Granville to William Combs, 385 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Combs, 13 Feb 1756, 385 acres on W side of Flat River, adj
Thomas Gibson, Joseph Collins, John Wade. Gv131, SSLG 87-I.

ReglLn 206 Earl Granville to John Jones, 250 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Jones, 13 Mar 1755, 250 acres on both sides of S Fork of Rocky
River, on both sides of William Cox's Path. Gv83, SSLG 94-C, ODB 1/202.

RegLn 207 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 105 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 7 Feb 1756, 105 acres on N side of Cape Fear River, adj
Shaddock, ledge or rocks. Gv125, SSLG 95-G, ODB 1/206.



ReglLn 208 James Crow to Henry Watson, 640 acres, proved by Alexander Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/209 James Crow & Grace Crow to Henry Wasson,
31 Mar 1756, 640 acres on N side of Haw River, adj an island - Granville to William Martin 2 May
175_[Patent Book 6:189, SSLG 124B, H4764, this survey shown at ReglLn 56 above], to Crow 10
Dec 1753 [RegLn 56]. [See CDB A/287 for later title.]

Regln 209 Earl Granville to John Gray, 360 acres, proved by Alexander Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Gray, 15 Mar 1756, 360 acres on both sides of Eno River, both
sides of the Old Courthouse Road, adjJames Taylor. Gv150, SSLG 91-E, ODB 1/211.

Regln 210 James Reddick to Robert McFarlin, 200 acres, proved by

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/215 James Hendrick to Robert McFarlin, 8 Jun
1756, 200 acres on both sides of Castle Creek of Hico Creek, adj Robert Jones - [Granville] to
Hendrick 27 Jun 1748 [RegLn 307, H1745].

Regln 211 Benjamin Merritt to John Smith, 75 acres, proved by Robert Wilkin.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/216 Benjamin Merritt to Ann Smith, 3 Apr 1756, 75
acres on Dan River, adj the Country line [Virginia Line], branch - Granville to Benjamin Merritt 26
Apr 1754 [ReglLn 275

Regln 212 Earl Granville to James Crow, 305 acres, proved by Alexander Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Crow, 11 Nov 1755, 305 acres on N side of Haw River, on
Terrells Creek, adj Terrells Mountain. Gv119, SSLG 88-H.
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Regln 213 Giles Tillet to John Cunningham, 320 acres, proved by Hugh Porter.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/222 Giles Tillet to John Cunningham, 16 Mar 1756,
320 acres on both sides of Haw River.

ReglLn 214 Isaac Simmons to John Cunningham, 337 acres, proved by Hugh Porter.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/223 Isaac Simmons to John Cunningham, 10 Apr
1756, 337 acres on both sides of Roses Creek of Haw River. [See Granville to Giles Tillett, Gv27,
SSLG 101-1]

Regln 215 Hosea Tapley to John Ambrey, 402 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/225 Hosea Tapley to John Embree, 28 May 1756,
402 acres on both sides of N Fork of Little River - [Granville] to Tapley 2 Jan 1756 [Gv124, SSLG
101-B, ODB 1/233].

Regln 216 Robert Jones to William Grimes, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/226 Robert Jones to William Grimes, 8 Mar 1756,
300 acres on both sides of Country Line Creek, adj Jones lower tract - part of a larger tract.



Regln 217 Edward Johnson [Edward Herrin?] to Russel Allen, 50 acres, proved by Reuben Cook.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/228 Edward Herrin to Russell Allen, 25 Feb 1756,
50 acres on S side of Neuse River - part of 200 acres Robert Barber to Herrin 23 Jun 1750 [not
found].

Regln 218 William Jay to John Satterfield, 50 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/229 William Jay to John Satterfield, 8 Jun 1756, 50
acres on NE side of N Fork of Flat River, adj Richland Creek - part of 395 acres Granville to
William Jay 6 May 1756 [Gv156, SSLG 93-G, ODB 1/236, ReglLn 221].

Regln 219 William Jay to James Satterfield, 50 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/231 William Jay to James Satterfield, 9 Jun 1756,
56 acres on ___ of Flat River, adj Jay - part of 640 acres granted to Hosea Tapley 8 Aug 1752.
[See Regln 11 Tapley to Jay.]

Regln 220 Earl Granville to Hosea Tapley, 402 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hosea Tapley, 2 Jan 1756, 402 acres on both sides of N Fork of Little
River. Gv124, SSLG 101-B, ODB 1/233.

RegLn 221 Earl Granville to William Jay, 395 acres, proved by Andrew Ha[m]pton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Jay, 6 May 1756, 395 acres on N Fork of Flat River, adj
Osborn Jefreys, Richland Spring Creek, William Jay. Gv156, SSLG 93-G, ODB 1/236.

Regln 222 Earl Granville to James Watson, 577 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/240 Granville to James Watson, 12 Mar 1755, 577
acres on both sides of Watsons Creek. [Otherwise not found.]
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North Carolina, Orange County}...June 1756.
Regln 223 William Mouat to James Watson, 577 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/244 William Mowat to James Watson, 6 Dec 1755,
bond for 577 acres - which Watson has deeded to Mouat. [See Granville to James Watson ODB
1/240, Regln 222.]

Regln 224 Earl Granville to James Railey, 422 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Rayley [James Riley], 20 Feb 1756, 422 acres on both sides of
Seven Mile Creek, adj Henry Lemmons. Gv142, SSLG 98-G, ODB 1/245.

ReglLn 225 Earl Granville to David Mitchel, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to David Mitchell, 12 Mar 1755, 200 acres on a branch of Little River,
adj Governor's line, John Brown. Gv75, SSLG 96-F, ODB 1/249.



ReglLn 226 Earl Granville to John Tomlinson, 135 acres, proved by Theophilus Hunter.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Tomlinson, 5 May 1756, 135 acres on S side of Deep River,
about two miles below the Cape Fear Road. Gv154, SSLG 101-J, ODB 1/254.

ReglLn 227 Earl Granville to James Stuart, 420 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Stuart, 8 May 1755, 420 acres on both sides of Hico Creek,
adj low grounds. Gv88, SSLG 100-I.

ReglLn 228 Earl Granville to William Serjant, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Sargeant, 25 Apr 1754, 320 acres on mouth of Mill Creek.
Gv29, SSLG 100-A1.

ReglLn 229 Earl Granville to William Serjant, 529 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Sargeant, 11 Aug 1756, 529 acres on S side of Hico Creek,
adj Jones, Sargeant. Gv165, SSLG 100-A1, ODB 1/264.

RegLn 230 Earl Granville to William Serjant, 222 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Sargeant, 25 Apr 1754, 222 acres on both sides of
McFarlands Creek, adj William Sargeant, Sargeants Creek. Gv28, SSLG 100-A1, ODB 1/268.
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North Carolina, Orange County]...September 1756.
ReglLn 231 Earl Granville to Phillip Willson, 480 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Phillip Wilson, 6 Nov 1755, 480 acres on Town Fork & Mile Creek,
adj James Hampton. Gv107, SSLG 102-I.

Regln 232 Earl Granville to Phillip Willson, 256 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Phillip Wilson, 6 Nov 1755, 256 acres on both sides of Lick Fork, adj
James Hampton. Gv106, SSLG 102-I.

ReglLn 233 Daniel Stilwell to Joseph Boreing, 163.5 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 1/278 Daniel Stillwell to Joseph Boring, 15 Sep 1756,
163.5 acres adj the lower end of a larger tract of 327 acres - to be taken of the lower end & to
incl improvements of Joseph Boreing - Granville to Daniel Stillwell 28 Apr 1756 [Gv153, SSLG
100-G].

ReglLn 234 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 575 acres, proved. [This was presumably formerly recorded
at ODB C/1.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 1 May 1752, 450 acres on New Hope Creek, incl the
fork. Gv3, SSLG 96-M.

Regln 235 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 450 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 22 Apr 1753, 380 acres on head branches of Lick
Creek. Gv5, SSLG 96-I.

RegLn 236 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 352 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor, 8 Nov 1755, 352 acres on E side of Eno River, adj his
own land, Governor's line called the Crooked tract, Hart. Gv114, SSLG 101-C.

Regln 237 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 356 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 238 Earl Granville to James Taylor, [no acreage given], proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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RegLn 239 Earl Granville to John Jones, 682 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Jones, 11 Jun 1754, 682 acres on a branch of Cane Creek, adj
John Wright. Gv39, SSLG 94-C.

Regln 240 Earl Granville to David Pinkerton, 250 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/469 David Pinkerton to Daniel Kane, 1 May 1756, 250
acres on both sides of N Fork of Eno River, where David Pinkerton formerly lived. THIS GRANT IS
FILED IN GRANVILLE COUNTY.

Regln 241 Earl Granville to Thomas Loyd, 630 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps ODB 3/422 Thomas Lloyd to John Hogan, 24 Apr 1772,
319 acres on S side of Morgan Creek, adj Lloyd - Granville to Lloyd 12 Mar 1755.

ReglLn 242 Earl Granville to Francis Day, 416 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Francis Day, 12 Mar 1755, 416 acres on waters of Seven Mile Creek,
adj Michael Synnott. Gv72, SSLG 88-L.

Regln 243 Earl Granville to William Moore, 400 acres, proved by Enoch Lewis.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 244 Earl Granville to John West, 550 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: H2387 filed in Granville County.

RegLn 245 Earl Granville to Isaac Jackson, 350 acres, proved by William Churton. [Per ODB 3/20 this
was ODB C/43 or per ODB 4/655 it was ODB C/48.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Jackson, 12 Mar 1755, 350 acres on both sides of Buck Quarter
Creek, adj Capt Synnott. Gv69, SSLG 93-G.

Regln 246 Earl Granville to William Churton, 663 acres, proved by James Watson.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 7 Jun 1754, 663 acres on N side of Eno River. Gv36,
SSLG 86-J.

RegLn 247 Earl Granville to William Churton, 900 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: No single description of this tract has been found, but it included much of the
land on the S side of the Eno River near Occaneechi Mountain. ODB 5/672 James Hogg to John
Adams, 18 Feb 1796, 132 acres on S side of Eno River, adj fork of roads from Hillsborough S by
Colonel Hogan's Old Place & W to Woody's Ferry, adj John Taylor, Major Tatum - part of 900
acres Granville to William Churton & Francis Corbin. ODB 9/136 James Hogg to Samuel
Thompson, 30 Oct 1800, 184 ac opposite Town of Hillsborough at abutment of Old Bridge adj
Wrightman's now Major Tatom's adj Western line of Town land, adj Mallett, the pond, land
purchased by Samuel of James.

Regln 248 Earl Granville to William Churton, 455 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 1 Jul 1755, 455 acres on both sides of Cobbs
Creek, near head that runs into Hico Creek of Dan River. Gv103, SSLG 87-E.
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RegLn 249 Earl Granville to William Churton, 202 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 1 Jul 1755, 202 acres on both sides of Moons
Creek, near head of Dan River. Gv102, SSLG 87-C.

Regln 250 Earl Granville to James Carter Sr, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 251 Earl Granville to William Churton, 510 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to William Churton, 13 Mar 1755, 510 acres on both sides of N Fork of
Haw River, adj Robt Harris. Patent Book 6:120. SSLG 115-I. Grant H4472 (SSLG 115-D) appears to
be a duplicate of this grant. GDB 1/26 Henry Work to John Work blacksmith, 1771, 255 acres on
N Fork of Haw River, on S side, adj Mistoney Ridge; Granville to Willliam Churton 19 Mar 1755,
to Henry Work.

Regln 252 Earl Granville to William Churton, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 253 Earl Granville to William Churton, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 20 Sep 1753, 640 acres on E side of Mountain
Creek, adj Mr John Wade's Rich Mountain tract, Joseph Collins. Gv15, SSLG 87-B.

ReglLn 254 Earl Granville to John White, 385 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to John White, 21 Dec 1761, 387 acres on W side of Catawba River,
on Mountain Creek, adj Abraham Collet. Patent Book 6:233. SSLG 130-E, RwDB 5/53, H4958.



RegLn 255 Earl Granville to William Churton, 247 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 13 Mar 1755, 247 acres on Great Troublesome
Creek & North Fork of Haw River, adj Lovelatty, Kenendys Branch. Gv80, SSLG 86-J.

Regln 256 William Churton to Peter Willson, 247 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, Gv80, SSLG 86-J, 247 acres

ReglLn 257 Earl Granville to Ozborne Jeffers, 605 acres, proved by Theophilus Hunter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 258 Earl Granville to Osborne Jeffers, 302 acres, proved by John Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 8 Mary 1756, 302 acres on both sides of Flat River,
adj Tapleys Creek, his own land. Gv160, SSLG 93-I.
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RegLn 259 Earl Granville to Osborne Jeffers, 240 acres, proved by Thomas Hunter.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 12 May 1755, 240 acres on both sides of Laurel
Creek. Gv96, SSLG 93-J.

RegLn 260 Earl Granville to Osborne Jeffers, 458 acres, proved by Thomas Hunter.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 12 May 1755, 458 acres on both sides of Lick Creek,
adj low grounds, the horsepen. Gv97, SSLG 93-I.

ReglLn 261 Earl Granville to Osborne Jeffers, 126 acres, proved by Thomas Hunter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 2656 Ozborne Jeffers to Jones Griffin, 126 acres.
ReglLn 262 Earl Granville to John Lee, 770 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Lea, 8 May 1755, 770 acres on both sides of S Hico Creek &
Richland Creek, adj William Sargeant. Gv94, SSLG 95-E.

RegLn 263 Earl Granville to William Churton, 332 acres [or 382 acres?], proved by John Pryor.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 264 Earl Granville to Richard Simpson, 612 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Simpson, 15 Mar 1756, 612 acres on N Fork of Haw River,
adj Joseph Pinson, High Rock Creek. Gv143, SSLG 100-C.

Regln 265 Earl Granville to John Wade, 430 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 266 John Gray to Daniel Weldon, 430 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 267 Earl Granville to Benjamin Merret, 75 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/216 Benjamin Merritt to Ann Smith, 3 Apr 1756, 75
acres on Dan River, adj the Country line [Virginia Line], branch - Granville to Benjamin Merritt 26
Apr 1754 [ReglLn 267].

ReglLn 268 Henry Leman to James Taylor, 500 acres, proved by William Reed. [See also OCPQS 1/281
James Claytor to Henry Lemmon, 500 acres, proved Mar 1758 by Joseph Maddock]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Lemmon, 17 Dec 1753, 500 acres on S side of Eno River, adj
Seven Mile Creek, Governor's line, John Gray. Gv25, SSLG 95-G, ReglLn 352.
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ReglLn 269 John Gray to James Taylor, 271 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 270 James Taylor to Thomas Robinson, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor, 8 Nov 1755, 640 acres on both sides of Brushy Fork of
Flat River. Gv116, SSLG 101-C, ReglLn 550.

ReglLn 271 John Pitman to Mordica Guinn, 550 acres, proved by Stephen Merret.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Pitman, 15 Mar 1756, 550 acres on both sides of Haw River,
adj Little Creek, island, Travis Creek. Gv145, SSLG 98-B, RegLn 1219.

Regln 272 Robert Patterson to Samuel Parks, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 273 Benjamin Clemens to John Hatley, 105 acres, proved by Robert Patterson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 274 Benjamin Clements to Luke Bynum, 105 acres, proved by Robert Patterson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but later Luke Bynum to Benjamin Clements RegLn 1344, 105 acres?
ReglLn 275 William Jay to Charles Freeman [sic], 250 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 276 Earl Granville to Hugh Dobbin, 300 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 8 Nov 1755, 300 acres on both sides of Reedy Fork
of Hico Creek. Gv112, SSLG 89-F.

ReglLn 277 Earl Granville to Hugh Dobbin, 292 acres, proved by affirmation of James Taylor.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 8 Nov 1755, 292 acres on both sides of Country
Line Creek. Gv111, SSLG 89-F.

ReglLn 278 Earl Granville to Samuel Harris, 50 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Harris, 25 Oct 1753, 50 acres on SW side of Northwest River
of Cape Fear, between Fall Creek & Gulf Creek. Gv17, SSLG 91-I. Later ReglLn 279 to John Parnel.
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ReglLn 279 Samuel Harris to John Parnel, 50 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Harris, 25 Oct 1753, 50 acres on SW side of Northwest River
of Cape Fear, between Fall Creek & Gulf Creek. Gv17, SSLG 91-I, ReglLn 278.

ReglLn 280 William Churton to Moses Emary [Moses Embree], 2 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 281 Earl Granville to William Chambers, 200 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.
Chilton’s notes: FILED IN GRANVILLE COUNTY?

North Carolina, Orange County}...December 1756.

Regln 282 Edward Stone to Matthew Couch, 213 acres, proved by John Slater. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/180 for 100 acres by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 283 Isaac Jackson to John Slater, 427 acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/180 by William
Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/396 John Embree to Elias Davis, 14 Sep 1771, 323
acres on waters of Eno River, adj Lytle, Jackson - part of Granville to Isaac Jackson 12 Mar 1755
[Gv70, SSLG 93-G, ReglLn 362], Jackson to John Slater 7 Dec 1755 [RegLn 283], Slater to Embree 8
Jun 1768 [ReglLn 2613].

ReglLn 284 William Johnson to James Elliot, 540 acres, proved by Hugh Crethers. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/182]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Johnson, 6 May 1756, 540 acres on N Fork of Terrells Creek.
Gv155, SSLG 94-B, ODB 1/186, ReglLn 201

RegLn 285 James Alliot to William Reed, 540 acres, proved by William Murrah. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/182]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Johnson, 6 May 1756, 540 acres on N Fork of Terrells Creek.
Gv155, SSLG 94-B, ODB 1/186, RegLn 201. See ReglLn 284 to James Elliot.

ReglLn 286 Henry Brewer to Charles Clinton, 156 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/183]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 287 Robert Jones Jr to Nathaniel Hart, 700 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/187]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 288 William Williams to Lawrence Vanhook, 640 acres, proved by James Lea. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/183]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Williams, 4 Feb 1761, 640 acres on both sides of Williams
Creek, adj Phillips Creek. Granville to William Williams, Gv482, SSLG 102-H, ReglLn 815. Later
WDB G/38 Burwell Pope to Joseph Lane, Jr, 8 Feb 1785, 640 acres on both sides of Williams
Creek and on Days Branch - Granville to William Williams 4 Jan 1761 registered in Orange
County ODB E/28.

ReglLn 289 Bartholomew Hodges to Henry Shaddock, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/191 Bartholomew Shaddocks to Henry Hodges by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 290 Mark Morgan to David George, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/189]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 291 Joseph Barbee to James Trice, 640 acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/181 by
acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Patent Book 11:21 Granville to Joseph Barbee, 640 acres on
New Hope Creek above Robert Patterson incl mouth of Third Fork adj John West, by side of
Great Branch, on both sides of New Hope Creek. Regln 327 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbee, 640
acres.

Regln 292 Hugh Dobbin to John Robinson, 280 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/182]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 8 May 1755, 280 acres on both sides of Country
Line Creek. Gv90, SSLG 89-E, ReglLn 319.

ReglLn 293 John Dunnagan to John Grag [Gray], 640 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/180 for 640 acres and some Indian corn]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 294 John Forgerson to James Lea, 298 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/188]

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to John Ferguson, Gv170, SSLG 90-D, 629 acres?

ReglLn 295 John Forgerson to George Bagby, 331 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/188]

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to John Ferguson, Gv170, SSLG 90-D, 629 acres?
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ReglLn 296 John Rutherford to Moses Ambree [Moses Embree], 384 acres, proved by Lawrence
Thompson. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/189]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 297 William Churton to Adam Dolling, 2 lots, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/188 William Churton to Adam Trollinger, lot 15 in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 298 James Watson to William Goss, 275 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/182]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Watson, 13 Feb 1756, 275 acres on E side of Eno River, adj
late Governor's line. Gv127, SSLG 102-C, RegLn 300

Regln 299 Zachariah Martin Jr to Timothy Terrell, 244 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Zachariah Martin, 7 Nov 1755, 244 acres on S side of Deep River,
where Cape Fear Road crosses. Gv110, SSLG 96-C.

RegLn 300 Earl Granville to James Watson, 275 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/182]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Watson, 13 Feb 1756, 275 acres on E side of Eno River, adj
late Governor's line. Gv127, SSLG 102-C.

RegLn 301 Earl Granville to John Holley, 200 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/182 Earl Granville to John Hurley]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/295 John Horley to Roger Atkinson, 17 Dec 1779,
200 acres on Castle Creek on which John Horley lives - Granville to Horley 20 Dec 1749 [ReglLn
301].

RegLn 302 Earl Granville to Patrick Mullen, 375 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/191 by William Landrum]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Patrick Mullen, 15 Mar 1756, 375 acres on both sides of Dan River,
adj Walnut Island, Snow Creek. Gv146, SSLG 96-M.

Regln 303 Earl Granville to Ephraim Potter, 234 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Ephraim Potter, 20 Feb 1756, 234 acres on forks of Wolf Island
Creek, adj N Fork called Thrashers Fork. Gv137, SSLG 98-D.

ReglLn 304 Earl Granville to Ephraim Potter, 350 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Ephraim Potter, 20 Feb 1756, 350 acres on both sides of N Fork of
Wolf Island Creek called Thrashers Fork. Gv138, SSLG 98-D.
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RegLn 305 Earl Granville to Richard Henderson, 448 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Henderson, 15 Mar 1756, 448 acres on M Fork of Rocky
River, adj Thomas Branson. Gv151, SSLG 91-B, ReglLn 305.

ReglLn 306 Earl Granville to Henry Johnson, 269 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/191]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Johnston, 15 Mar 1756, 269 acres on both sides of Eno River,
adj James Forrester. Gv152, SSLG 93-K, RegLn 306.

RegLn 307 Earl Granville to James Hendricks, 200 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/179]

Chilton’s notes: H1745. Also described at ODB 1/215 James Hendrick to Robert McFarlin, 8 Jun
1756, 200 acres on both sides of Castle Creek of Hico Creek, adj Robert Jones - [Granville] to
Hendrick 27 Jun 1748 [RegLn 307, H1745].

Regln 308 Earl Granville to Henry Beasley, 640 acres, proved by Mark Morgan.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Beasley, 23 Oct 1754, 640 acres on Northeast Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv60, SSLG 84-F.

RegLn 309 Earl Granville to Robert Davis, 385 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/183]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Davis, 12 Mar 1755, 385 acres on both sides of Forresters
Creek, adj James Taylor. Gv71, SSLG 88-K.

RegLn 310 Earl Granville to Robert Willson, 265 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/183]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 2/45 William Ellis to Semor York, 15 Sep 1788, 265
acres on a branch of Bush Creek, both sides of Crawfords Road to Peedee River - being Granville
to Robert Wilson 30 Jan 1755 [not found at Archives, ReglLn 310], to Ellis [not found].

RegLn 311 Earl Granville to John Allen, 600 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/190]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Allen, 20 Feb 1756, 600 acres on both sides of Cane Creek, W
side of Haw River, adj John Wright. Gv135, SSLG 83-B.

ReglLn 312 Earl Granville to Simon Dixon, 498 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/190]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Simon Dixon, 15 Mar 1756, 498 acres on both sides of Cane Creek,
on S side of Haw River, adj Henry Maynard, John Allen, McCulloh. Gv149, SSLG 89-C.

RegLn 313 Earl Granville to James Lea, 520 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/186]



Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Lea, 12 Nov 1756, 520 acres on both sides of Country Line
Creek, adj William Wilson. Gv179, SSLG 95-E.

[Page 37]

Regln 314 Earl Granville to James Murry, 225 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/183]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Murray, 7 Jun 1754, 225 acres on both sides of Quaker Creek
of Haw River. Gv37, SSLG 96-0.

RegLn 315 Earl Granville to John Forgerson, 629 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/188]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Ferguson, 5 Nov 1756, 629 acres on Cobbs Creek, adj Mary
Maxwell, William Lea. Gv170, SSLG 90-D. [Surveyed for John Campbell.]

RegLn 316 Earl Granville to James Williams, 302 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/192. This deed is cited by CDB A/147 as being registered at ODB C/286.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Williams, 15 Mar 1756, 302 acres on Tick Creek of Rocky
River, adj fork. Gv147, SSLG 102-H.

ReglLn 317 Earl Granville to Henry Hastings, 184 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/187]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Hastings, 11 Nov 1756, 184 acres on a branch of Eno River,
adj Mr Gray, Henry Lemmon. Gv176, SSLG 91-L.

RegLn 318 Earl Granville to John May, 520 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/191]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John May, 13 Feb 1756, 520 acres on M Fork of Tick Creek of Rocky
River of Deep River. Gv129, SSLG 96-D.

RegLn 319 Earl Granville to Hugh Dobbin, 280 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/187]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 8 May 1755, 280 acres on both sides of Country
Line Creek. Gv90, SSLG 89-E.

RegLn 320 Earl Granville to Alexander Mebane, 256 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/189]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Mebane, 13 Nov 1756, 356 acres on S side of Cane Creek,
on N side of Haw River, about a mile above the Piney Mountain. Gv189, SSLG 96-D.

ReglLn 321 Earl Granville to Isaac Cantril, 200 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/188]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Cantrell, 13 Nov 1756, 202 acres on ridge between Country
Line Creek & Jordans Creek, adj spring branches. Gv184, SSLG 86-A.



Regln 322 Robert Bumpas to Samuel Bumpas, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/197]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 323 John West Sr to John West Jr, 50 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/198]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/26 John Moore & Mary Moore to James Bowles, 25
Feb 1775, 50 acres on north side of Haw River & Stony Creek — [John West Sr to] John West Jr
[Regln 323] to Archibald Anderson [not found], Anderson to Moore [not found].
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ReglLn 324 Earl Granville to Aaron Pinson, 385 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Aaron Pinson, 12 Mar 1755, 385 acres on head of Stony Creek &
head of Country Line Creek. Gv76, SSLG 98-A.

Regln 325 Earl Granville to John Lawrence, 640 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 326 Earl Granville to Herman Husbands, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 14 Nov 1755, The Bottom or Number 3 tract, 640
acres on both sides of Sandy Creek of Deep River, adj Husband's Cabin Tract or Number 1,
Samuel Walker. Gv121, SSLG 93-E.

ReglLn 327 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbee, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/189]

Chilton’s notes: Patent Book 11:21 Granvillet o Joseph Barbee, 640 acres on New Hope Creek
above Robert Patterson incl mouth of Third Fork adj John West, by side of Great Branch, on both
sides of New Hope Creek. ReglLn 291 Joseph Barbee to James Trice, 640 acres.

RegLn 328 Earl Granville to John Lawrence, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
North Carolina, Orange County}...March 1757.

ReglLn 329 Robert Jones [Jr] to Thomas Dobbin, 160 acres, proved by Daniel Willson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/198]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 330 Michael Dixon to William Chambers, 89 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/201]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 331 Robert Jones Jr to Peter Henley [esq], 500 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/233]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 332 Henry Johnson to Francis Shoemaker, 50 acres, proved by John Mannen.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 333 Zachariah Martin [Jr] to John Horneday, 203.75 acres, proved by . [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/233]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB F/167 John Hornaday Sr & Christina Hornaday to
Thomas Ray, 6 Nov 1791, 203.25 acres on Mudlick Creek on S side of Haw River - part of
Granville to Zachariah Martin [Gv191, SSLG 96-C, ReglLn 1236], to Hornaday 15 Jun 1757 [ReglLn
333].

Regln 334 William Neeley to William Jay, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/534 William Neelley to Hugh Neelley, 1 May 17__,
100 acres on N side of Flat River, adj Richland Creek, William Jay - part of 395 acres Granville to
William Jay 6 May 1756 [Gv156, SSLG 93-G, ODB 1/236, Reg Ln 229], to William Neelley 14
1757 [ReglLn 3347?].

RegLn 335 Robert Jones Jr to David Hart, 390 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 336 John Blalock to Nathaniel Kimbal, 287 acres, proved by Thomas Humphris.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Blalock, 26 Oct 1754, 287 acres on forks of Bartons Creek.
Gv61l, SSLG 84-H, ReglLn 413.

RegLn 337 Miles Parker to Joseph Mimms, 253 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 338 Samuel Watt to William Saffage, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/233 Samuel Watt to William George]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 339 Christopher Rhodes to Joseph Barbee, 570 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 5 Nov 1756, 570 acres on Third Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj Christopher Rhodes. Gv171, SSLG 99-A, ReglLn 461.

RegLn 340 Earl Granville to Edward Kirksey, 300 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/232]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 341 Joseph Wells to Richard Jones, 281 acres, proved by Joseph Maddock. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/233]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by:

CDB A/209 Richard Jones & wife Jemima to Daniel Smith, 3 Mar 1773, 40 acres on waters of
Brush Creek - part of 562 acres Granville to Joseph Wells 11 Jun 1754 [Gv44, SSLG 102-D, ReglLn
374], to Richard Jones [ReglLn 341].

CDB A/343 Gideon Gilbert Sr to Joseph Gilbert, 16 Mar 1773, 140 acres on S side of Haw River,
on Bloody Creek of Brush Creek of Deep River - part of 562 acres Granville to Joseph Wells 11
Jun 1754 [Gv44, SSLG 102-D, ReglLn 374], 280 acres to Richard Jones 11 Sep 1756 [ReglLn 341, to
Gideon Gilbert See ReglLn 552.]

CDB A/433 Richard Jones & wife Jemima to Joseph Gilbert, 6 Feb 1772, 101 acres on waters of
Brush Creek, adj Daniel Smith - part of 562 acres Granville to Joseph Wells 11 Jun 1754 [Gv44,
SSLG 102-D, Regln 374], to Richard Jones [RegLn 341].
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RegLn 342 William Churton to Enoch Lewis, 1 acre, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/229]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 343 Enoch Lewis to William Reed, 1 acre, proved by John Sims. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/228 for
half of lot 6]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 344 Earl Granville to John Dunnagan, 640 acres, proved by James Paine.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described at ODB 3/418 John Embree to John Pinkerton, 10 Sep 1771, 64
acres on S side of S Fork of Little River, adj Clark, the Fork, John Dunagan - part of 640 acres
Granville to John Dunagan 26 May 1753 [ReglLn 344, to Thomas Dunagan Jr ReglLn 549, to John
Embree Regln 2573]. [Later Hardawick Davis to John Latta ODB 3/168, to James Jackson ODB
4/402.]

RegLn 345 William Boggan [& wife Jane] to James McAllister, 419 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/228]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Gv49 and ODB 6/379 Michael Robinson to James Robinson,
27 Feb 1798, 200 acres on N Fork of Little River - part of 419 acres granted to William Bogan 15
Jun 1754 [Gv49, SSLG 84-1, ODB 1/15, Regln 120], to James McAllister 8 Mar 1757 [RegLn 345],
McAllister to Michael Robinson 23 Jan 1769 [ODB 3/510].

RegLn 346 Earl Granville to Thomas Ransome [sic], 634 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Branson, 13 May 1757, 634 acres on Sandy Creek, on N side
of the falls at a cleft of rocks, adj Harmon Husband, Ward. Gv212, SSLG 84-B.



ReglLn 347 Earl Granville to William Ward, 251 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Ward, 12 May 1757, 251 acres on E Fork of Sandy Creek of
Deep River, adj Thomas Branson, McCulloh. Gv209, SSLG 102-C.

RegLn 348 Earl Granville to William Vernon, 300 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/191]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Vernon, 11 Nov 1756, 300 acres on head branches of
Vernons Creek of Deep River, adj Timothy Terrell. Gv175, SSLG 101-M.

RegLn 349 Earl Granville to William Comb, 348 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/190]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Combs, 12 Nov 1756, 348 acres on both sides of Little
Creek, adj Robert Little, William Nunn. Gv180, SSLG 87-I.

RegLn 350 John Sidwell to Richard Sidwell, 200 acres, proved by affirmation of John Sidwell.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 512 Richard Sidwell to Robert Sidwell [or Robert
Stewart?], 200 acres.

ReglLn 351 John Rutherford esq to John Woods, 366 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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RegLn 352 Earl Granville to Henry Lemond, 500 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/190]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Lemmon, 17 Dec 1753, 500 acres on S side of Eno River, adj
Seven Mile Creek, Governor's line, John Gray. Gv25, SSLG 95-G.

RegLn 353 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 640 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/183]

Chilton’s notes: Repeat of Regln 1257?
Regln 354 Earl Granville to Richard Parker, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Parker, 14 May 1755, 300 acres on both sides of New Hope
Creek, adj Lick Branch. Gv101, SSLG 97-F.

RegLn 355 Earl Granville to Richard Parker, 456 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 356 Earl Granville to Joseph Montfort, 312 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Montfort, 10 May 1756, 312 acres on S side of N Fork of Flat
River. Gv162, SSLG 96-H.

RegLn 357 Earl Granville to Gabriel Davis, 300 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 358 Earl Granville to Blake Baker, 488 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/233]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Blake Baker, 14 May 1757, 488 acres on both sides of Haw River, adj
mouth of Buffalo Creek. Gv213, SSLG ?? filed in another county

RegLn 359 Earl Granville to John Wade, 500 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/181]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Wade, 500 acres. H2767.

RegLn 360 Earl Granville to John Wade, 384 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/182]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Wade, 384 acres. H2768.
Regln 361 Earl Granville to Daniel Norris, 420 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Daniel Norris, 11 May 1757, 420 acres on both sides of Bear Creek &
the new road from Cane Creek to Cape Fear, adj the bents of a large brook. Gv198, SSLG 87-C.
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Regln 362 Earl Granville to Isaac Jackson, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Jackson, 12 Mar 1755, 640 acres adj his own land. Gv70, SSLG
93-G.

RegLn 363 William Churton to Church Wardens, 1 acre, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/240 to the Vestry for lot in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Presumably the old site of St. Matthew’s Anglican, now the site of Hillsborough
Presbyterian Church. St. Matthew’s Episcopal Church has an entirely different title history. See
Upon this Rock by Mark Chilton.

Regln 364 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 350 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to James Taylor, 8 Nov 1755, 360 acres on both sides of S Fork of Flat
River. Gv115, SSLG 101-C.

ReglLn 365 Hugh Dobbin to Thomas Dobbin, 245 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 6 Nov 1755, 245 acres on both sides of N Hico
Creek, adj Stapler, Mary Maxwell. Gv108, SSLG 89-E, ReglLn 451

North Carolina, Orange County}...June 1757.
RegLn 366 Dennis Collins to Thomas Dobbin, 245 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 367 Hugh Dobbins to John Graves, 640 acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/241]



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 368 Hugh Dobbin to John Graves, 408 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see either Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 6 Nov 1756, 408 acres
on both side of S Fork of Country Line Creek. Gv172, SSLG 89-D, ReglLn 449. Or Granville to Hugh
Dobbin, [unknown], 408 acres on both sides of N Fork of N Hico Creek. Gv856, H5774.

or

ReglLn 369 John Ferguson to Alexander Montgomery, 175 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/241 for 475 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 370 Andrew Cadwill to James Lea, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/241]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 371 William Churton to John Cook, 1 acre, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 372 John Slater to John Stubbs, 0.5 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/229 for half of lot 89 in Hillsborough by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 373 Earl Granville to John Stubbs, 350 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/190]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/72 John Stubbs to Enoch Davis, 28 Oct 1771, 350
acres on both sides of E Fork of Brush Creek of Deep River, adj Crawfords Path that goes to Pee
Dee, head of a bottom - Granville to Stubbs 6 Nov 1756 [not found at Archives, ReglLn 373]. Later
RANDOLPH.

ReglLn 374 Earl Granville to Joseph Wells, 562 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/210]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Wells, 11 Jun 1754, 562 acres on both sides of Bloody Creek
of Bush Creek of Deep River. Gv44, SSLG 102-D.

RegLn 375 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 630 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 11 May 1757, 630 acres on White Oak Creek &
Buckhorn Creek. Gv196, SSLG 95-G.

North Carolina, Orange County}...September 1757.

Regln 376 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 600 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 11 May 1757, 600 acres on N side of Deep River, adj
path, mouth of Georges Creek. Gv195, SSLG 95-G.

RegLn 377 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 426 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 10 May 1757, 426 acres on both sides of Buckhorn
Creek of Cape Fear River, adj island, Enoch Lewis, incl the islands. Gv192, SSLG 95-G.
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RegLn 378 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 10 May 1757, 640 acres on S side of Cape Fear River,
on Lick Creek, adj fork. Gv194, SSLG 95-G.

Regln 379 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 465 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 10 May 1757, 465 acres on both sides of Wolf Island
Creek of Dan River, adj rock on top of a hill, branch. Gv193, SSLG 95-G.

RegLn 380 Earl Granville to Thomas Durham, 162.5 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Durham, 6 Sep 1754, 162.5 acres on Morgan Creek. Gv54,
SSLG 89-J.

Regln 381 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 360 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 10 Nov 1756, 360 acres on Cub Creek. Gv174, SSLG
96-J.

RegLn 382 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 492 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/189]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 4 Nov 1756, 492 acres on NW branch of New Hope
Creek, adj Patterson, Morgan. Gv168, SSLG 96-K.

RegLn 383 Earl Granville to John Burney, 575 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/190 Earl Granville to William Burney, 575 acres, proved Dec 1756 by William Churton]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Burney, 20 Feb 1756, 575 acres on both sides of Little River.
Gv134, SSLG 85-J.

ReglLn 384 John Rutherford to James Taylor, 773 acres, proved by affirmation of Robert Taylor. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/258 for 770 acres by affirmation of Robert Taylor (Quaker)]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 385 James Taylor to Ann Anderson, 409 acres, proved by John Tinnen. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/258]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 386 James Taylor to John Tinnen, 100 acres, proved by William Anderson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/258]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 13/94 Richard Faucett to David Faucett, 24 Nov 1792,
two tracts on Eno River, whereon the Mill & other improvements are now situated & where
David Faucett now dwells, first tract, half of 100 acres on Eno River, adj James Hart; second
tract, 50.75 acres adj Governor [Gabriel Johnston], mill - part of Isaac Love to Richard Faucett 22
Oct 1768, both tracts part of Granville to James Taylor 14 Mar 1753 [GvSEARCH], to John Tinnen
[ReglLn 386].

RegLn 387 John Rutherford to James Anderson, 313[.5] acres, proved by Robert Taylor. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/259]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...December 1757.

RegLn 388 John Rutherford to Robert Clark, 929 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 389 Robert Jones Jr to John Warren, 200 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/257]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 390 John Stokes to Benjamin Rocks, 300 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 391 Earl Granville to John Forgerson, 475 acres, proved by Robert Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Ferguson, 5 Nov 1756, 475 acres on Rattlesnake Creek. Gv169,
SSLG 90-D.

RegLn 392 Earl Granville to Joseph Barnet, 247 acres, proved by Robert Thompson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/259]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barnett, 7 Nov 1757, 247 acres on Hico Road, where ne now
lives. Gv220, SSLG 84-D. [Surveyed for William Barnett.]

RegLn 393 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 476 acres, proved by Jacob Mason. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/244 Thomas Wiley to James Taylor, deed of trust for 476 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Jackson, Gv50, SSLG 93-F, 476 acres. See also OCPQS 1/91
James Taylor to Thomas Wiley.

ReglLn 394 Earl Granville to Joseph Barnet, 200 acres, proved by Robert Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barnett, 8 Nov 1757, 200 acres on both sides of Gents Creek
of Hico Creek. Gv221, SSLG 84-D. [Surveyed for William Barnett.]



RegLn 395 Joseph Barnett to William Barnet, 247 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barnett, 7 Nov 1757, 247 acres on Hico Road, where ne now
lives. Gv220, SSLG 84-D, ReglLn 392.
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RegLn 396 William Howel [Howlet] to John Howel [Howlet], 210 acres, proved by . [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/240 for 110 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 397 Aaron Pinson to Richard Simpson, 67 acres, proved by Stephen Merret. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/282]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Aaron Pinson, 20 Feb 1756, 67 acres on N Fork of Haw River, adj
Pinson's Mill, Moon's Mill. Granville to Aaron Pinson, Gv140, SSLG 97-M

Regln 398 William Holton to Patrick Boggan, 160 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 399 William Boggan [& wife Jane] to Thomas Stagg, 160 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/278]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 400 Arthur Dobbs esq to Inhabitants of Orange County, _ acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

North Carolina, Orange County}...March 1758.

RegLn 401 William Wynn to Robert Stubblefield, 980 acres, proved by John Seals. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/281 by John Stubblefield]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/111 Robert Jones Jr to William Wynne, four tracts,
fourth tract, 980 acres.

ReglLn 402 Michael Joyce to Thomas Harris, 213 acres, proved by John Seals. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/281 Michael Joyce to Robert Stubblefield proved by John Stubblefield]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/126 William Wynne to Michael Joyce, 9 Mar 1756,
213 acres on both sides of Hogans Creek - Robert Jones to Wynne 9 Dec 1755 [ODB 1/111,
Regln 165].

RegLn 403 John Price [& wife Elizabeth] to George Haygood [George Hagwood], 230 acres, proved by
John Seals. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/282 by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 404 Henry Leman to Joshua Grigg, 300 acres, proved by Joseph Maddock. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/256 to Joshua George]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 405 Charles Clinton to Joshua Morgan, 156 acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/277 proved
by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 406 William Willson [& wife Hannah] to William Lea, 33 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/280 by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 407 John Gray to Joseph Maddock, 360 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/198]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Gray, 15 Mar 1756, 360 acres on both sides of Eno River, both
sides of the Old Courthouse Road, adjJames Taylor. Gv150, SSLG 91-E, ODB 1/211, ReglLn 209

RegLn 408 John Rutherford to James Clark, 302 acres, proved by affirmation of Robert Taylor
(Quaker).

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 409 Earl Granville to John Armstrong, 500 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/281]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Armstong, 26 Jan 1758, 500 acres on S side of Dan River, both
sides of Moons Creek, adj Mayo. Gv224, SSLG 83-E.

Regln 410 Earl Granville to James Long, 322 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Long, 11 Nov 1757, 322 acres on both sides of Reedy Fork of
Hico Creek, adj Daniel Stilwell. Gv222, SSLG 95-L.

Regln 411 Earl Granville to James Hendricks, 570 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Hendrick, 13 Nov 1756, 570 acres on prongs of Double Creek
of Hico Creek. Gv181, SSLG 92-B.

ReglLn 412 Earl Granville to William McFerson, 480 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/191]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William McFarson, 20 Feb 1756, 480 acres on both sides of Toms
Creek alias Mill Creek, on W side of Deep River, adj William Cox. Gv136, SSLG 95.1-C.
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Regln 413 Earl Granville to John Blalock, 287 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Blalock, 26 Oct 1754, 287 acres on forks of Bartons Creek.
Gv61, SSLG 84-H.

ReglLn 414 Hugh Wood to Patrick McCulloch, 100 acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/298 proved
by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 415 Earl Granville to Phillip Pryor, 300 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Phillip Pryor, 29 Apr 1754, 300 acres on both sides of Mayo Creek.
Gv33, SSLG 98-F.

North Carolina, Orange County}...June 1758.
Regln 416 Earl Granville to John James, 500 acres, proved by Robert Terrel.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John James, 7 May 1756, 500 acres on E side of Rocky River of Deep
River, both sides of Vernons Creek, adj the County Road. Gv158, SSLG 93-G.

ReglLn 417 Earl Granville to Timothy [Terrell], 455 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Timothy Terrell, 13 Mar 1755, 455 acres on both sides of Vernons
Creek, near the head. Gv79, SSLG 101-D.

Regln 418 Earl Granville to Timothy Terrel, 259 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Timothy Terrell, 13 Feb 1756, 259 acres on head branches of
Terrells Creek of Haw River, adj his own land. Gv130, SSLG 90-D.

ReglLn 419 William Leaky to Edward Bray, 202[.5] acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/298]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB C/111 Edward Bray & wife Sarah to Daniel Vestal, 23 Jan
1782, 202.5 acres on M Fork of Rocky River - part of 450 acres Granville to William Leakey Feb
1755 [Gv64, SSLG 95-F, Regln 603], 202.5 acres to Edward Bray 15 May 1758 [ReglLn 419].

Regln 420 Edward Bray to David Vestal, 101[.25] acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/298]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB E/74 Daniel Vestal to David Vestal, 27 Oct 1790, 101.25
acres on M Fork of Rocky River - part of Granville to William Leakey 6 Feb 1755, 202.5 acres to
Edward Bray 15 May 1758 [ReglLn 419], 101.25 acres to Daniel Vestal 23 Jan 1782 [ReglLn 420].
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Regln 421 James Netherly to Michael Murrah, 490 acres, proved by Alexander Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/212 Benjamin Martin to William Johnston, 26 May
1755, 490 acres on S side of Haw River on Cane Creek, adj George Martin - Granville to Benjamin
Martin 10 Mar 1755 [Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9, ReglLn 117]. [Same deed at ODB 1/12, see also



ODB 1/11. Later to James Nethery ODB 1/156, to Michael Murrah ReglLn 421, to Richard Woods
ReglLn 776, after which see CDB B/182 for later title.]

ReglLn 422 William Creig to John Creig, 208 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 423 John Rainey to James Creige, 237 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 424 Valentine Hollingsworth to John Pyle, 600 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/298. This deed is cited by CDB M/634 as formerly recorded at ODB D/2.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Valentine Hollingsworth, 5 Dec 17__, 600 acres on Cane Creek.
Gv428, SSLG 92-G, Regln 523.

RegLn 425 William Stroud to William Stroud Jr, 157 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/303 Thomas Stroud to William Stroud Jr]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 426 William Stroud to Peter Stroud, 158 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/303]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 427 Richard Simpson to Daniel Adams, 100 acres, proved by Aaron Pinson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/277]

Chilton’s notes: The part of Gv143 not covered by ODB 3/203 (612 acres — 512 acres = 100
acres).

ReglLn 428 James Crow to William Stroud, 305 acres, proved by Thomas Loyd. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/298]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Crow, 11 Nov 1755, 305 acres on N side of Haw River, on
Terrells Creek, adj Terrells Mountain. Gv119, SSLG 88-H, ReglLn 212.

ReglLn 429 Earl Granville to Stephen Howard, 350 acres [sic], proved by William Churton. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/319 for 530 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Stephen Howard, 11 May 1757, 530 acres on N side of Deep River,
opposite the Pocket, adj Indian Creek. Gv202, SSLG 92-I.
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RegLn 430 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/320]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 16 Feb 1758, 640 acres on Sizemores Branch of Tick
Creek. Gv225, SSLG 95-H.



ReglLn 431 John Rutherford esq to Josiah Dickson, 292 acres, proved by Robert Taylor. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/277]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 432 Josiah Dickson [& wife Elizabeth] to Joseph Armstrong, 292 acres, proved by William Reed.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/337 proved by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 433 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 192 acres [sic], proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor, 23 May 1758, 196 acres on W side of Eno River, adj
late Gov Johnston. Gv236, SSLG 101-B.

Regln 434 Earl Granville to William Anderson, 282 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Anderson, 23 May 1758, 282 acres on a branch of Reedy
Fork, adj Orange County line, Rowan County line. Gv235, SSLG 83-E.

North Carolina, Orange County}...September 1758.

RegLn 435 Earl Granville to John Brown, 210 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/320]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Brown, 8 May 1755, 210 acres on Little River. Gv89, SSLG 85-H.

Regln 436 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Reynolds, 354 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/323]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Reynolds, 13 May 1757, 354 acres adj Virginia line,
Hogans Creek, Mayo. Gv211, SSLG 99-G.
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Regln 437 Daniel Morris to Joshua Smith, 200 acres, proved by Aaron Pinson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 438 Earl Granville to Robert Berry, 260 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/325]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Berry Jr, 12 May 1757, 260 acres on both sides of Lick Creek,
adj Thomas Bradford, fork. Gv207, SSLG 84-F.

Regln 439 Earl Granville to James Hunter, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/468 James Hunter to Martha McGee, 1 Oct 1777,
deed of trust on 200 acres on head branch of Sandy Creek & Stinking Quarter Creek, on both
sides of the Trading Path - Granville to James Hunter 11 May 1760 [ReglLn 439]. Later
RANDOLPH.



ReglLn 440 Hector McNeil to Richard Braswell, 320 acres, proved by Plunket Ballard. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/319]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 441 Hector McNeil to Valentine Braswell, 320 acres, proved by Plunket Ballard. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/319]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 442 Earl Granville to William Wiley, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Wiley, 22 Feb 1759, 640 acres on both sides of N Fork of
Great Alamance Creek, adj mouth of Birch Creek. Gv262, SSLG 102-G.

ReglLn 443 John Patterson to William Patty [William Petty], 640 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/324]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Patterson, 23 May 1758, 640 acres on S side of Haw River, on
Robersons Creek, adj Little Creek. Gv228, SSLG 97-1, ReglLn 459.

ReglLn 444 John Patterson to Charles Johnson, 530 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/323]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 445 John Wilkerson to Elizabeth Parker, 100 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 446 John Forgerson to Joseph Borden [Joseph Boring], 163[.5] acres, proved by William Lea.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/303]

Chilton’s notes: The half of Gv153 not conveyed by ODB 1/278.
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RegLn 447 John Grist [John Grice] to William Grace, 100 acres, proved by William Lea. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/324 proved by William Sanderson]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 448 Earl Granville to William Vestal, 410 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/320]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Vestal, 5 Nov 1757, 410 acres on both sides of Rocky River,
adj Poplar Branch. Gv214, SSLG 101-M.

Regln 449 Earl Granville to Hugh Dobbin, 408 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 6 Nov 1756, 408 acres on both side of S Fork of
Country Line Creek. Gv172, SSLG 89-D.



RegLn 450 Earl Granville to Hugh Dobbin Jr, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/319]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 6 Nov 1756, 640 acres on N Fork and S Fork of
Country Line Creek. Gv173, SSLG 89-E.

ReglLn 451 Earl Granville to Hugh Dobbin Jr, 245 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/320]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 6 Nov 1755, 245 acres on both sides of N Hico
Creek, adj Stapler, Mary Maxwell. Gv108, SSLG 89-E.

Regln 452 Earl Granville to Thomas Langley, 360 acres, proved by James Taylor.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Langley, 8 Nov 1755, 360 acres on both sides of S Hico
Creek, adj low grounds. Gv113, SSLG 95-B.

RegLn 453 Earl Granville to Joseph Walker, 468 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/318]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Walker, 23 May 1758, 468 acres on N side of Haw River.
Gv237, SSLG 102-B.

RegLn 454 Earl Granville to William Cox, 375 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/324]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Cox, 5 Nov 1757, 375 acres on head of Cox's Mill Creek of
Deep River, on both sides of Crawford's Road. Gv218, SSLG 88-E.

ReglLn 455 Earl Granville to James Crawford, 204 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/319]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Crawford, 13 Nov 1756, 204 acres between N Hico Creek &
Country Line Creek, near head of Dobbins Cranch. Gv186, SSLG 88-G.

RegLn 456 Earl Granville to James Cary [Jr], 2 acres, proved by Alexander Emsley. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/336]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2001 James Cary Jr to Thomas King, 2 acres.
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ReglLn 457 William Churton to Alexander Mebane, 1 acre, proved by Joseph Boggs. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/304 for lot 120 in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 458 Earl Granville to John Patterson, 530 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/319]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



RegLn 459 Earl Granville to John Patterson, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/323 proved by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Patterson, 23 May 1758, 640 acres on S side of Haw River, on
Robersons Creek, adj Little Creek. Gv228, SSLG 97-I.

Regln 460 Earl Granville to William Barbey, 585 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Patent Book 11:21 Bladen County. Granville to William Barbee, 585 acres adj N
side of New Hope Creek. ODB 2/81 Francis Barbee to Christopher Barbee, 13 Nov 1779, 292.5 ac
on New Hope Creek - part of Granville to William Barbee 20 Apr 17__.

RegLn 461 Earl Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 570 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/198 Robert Jones Jr to Christopher Rhodes]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 5 Nov 1756, 570 acres on Third Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj Christopher Rodes. Gv171, SSLG 99-A.

Regln 462 Earl Granville to Robert Jones Jr, 384 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 463 Earl Granville to Robert Jones Jr, 500 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Filed in Granville County.

ReglLn 464 Earl Granville to Richard Kenady, 382 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/319 Earl Granville to William Cannady]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Kennedy, 7 May 1757, 382 acres adj Bolin, Wilkinson.
Gv190, SSLG 94-E.

RegLn 465 Earl Granville to Francis Collins, 320 acres, proved by Enoch Lewis.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 466 Earl Granville to Francis Johnson, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to Francis Jones, Patent Book 14:222 Johnston County?
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Regln 467 Earl Granville to Harmon Husbands, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 14 Nov 1755, Pleasant or number 4 tract, 640
acres on head branches of Mount Pleasant Creek of Sandy Creek of Deep River, adj William
Aldridge. Gv122, SSLG 93-D.

Regln 468 Earl Granville to Herman Husbands, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 14 Nov 1755, the Cabin or number 1 tract, 640
acres on both sides of Sandy Creek of Deep River, adj Samuel Walker, crossing the creek six
times. Gv123, SSLG 93-C.



RegLn 469 Earl Granville to Herman Husbands, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 5 Aug 1758, 640 acres on the fork of Loves Creek,
called Desolate Tract, on waters of Rocky River. Gv242, SSLG 93-C.

RegLn 470 William Cox to Herman Husbands, 375 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/352]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
North Carolina, Orange County}...March 1759.
Regln 471 Thomas Branson to Harman Husbands, [634] acres, proved by John McGee.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Branson, 13 May 1757, 634 acres on Sandy Creek, on N side
of the falls at a cleft of rocks, adj Harmon Husband, Ward. Gv212, SSLG 84-B, ReglLn 346. See
RaDB 2/18 et seq.

ReglLn 472 Thomas Dunnagan [Sr] to John Dunnagan, 100 acres [& chattels], proved by James Bowie.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/326]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 473 Earl Granville to Francis Jones, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Patent Book 11:227?

Regln 474 Alexander Lackie to David Pinkleton, [part of?] 323 acres, proved by Thomas Clark.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 475 Harman Cox to Isaac Varnon, 479 acres [sic, but 497 acres], proved. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/352 proved by Joshua Gregg]

Chilton’s notes: Evidently Granville to Harmon Cox, 5 Aug 1758, 497 acres on E side of Deep
River, adj mouth of a gully. Gv243, SSLG 88-E. See RaDB 3/356 et seq.
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RegLn 476 William McFerson to Joshua Gregg, 480 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/352]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William McFarson, 20 Feb 1756, 480 acres on both sides of Toms
Creek alias Mill Creek, on W side of Deep River, adj William Cox. Gv136, SSLG 95.1-C, ReglLn 412.
See RaDB 8/397.

Regln 477 Earl Granville to William Barbey, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Barbee, 11 May 1757, 400 acres on Lick Creek of New Hope
Creek, adj Robert Patterson. Gv203, SSLG 83-G.

RegLn 478 Earl Granville to John Stanfield, 203 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/199]



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Standfield, 12 Jun 1754, 203 acres on a branch of Cane Creek,
adj John Wright, John Jones. Gv45, SSLG 100-F.

RegLn 479 Earl Granville to Thomas Dobbin, 475 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 480 James Downey [Joames Downing] to George Allen, 100 acres, proved by William Churton.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/357 proved by affirmation of James Lindley (Quaker).]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 481 William Hellams to Hugh Smith, 200 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/357]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/367 Moses Embree & wife Margaret to William
Lindley, 8 Apr 1773, 200 acres on branch of Cane Creek - part of Granville to George Williams
[Gv13, SSLG 102-H], to William Helms [ReglLn 41], to Hugh Smith [ReglLn 481], to David Morgan
[not found], to Moses Embree 25 Mar 1767 [ReglLn 2494].

ReglLn 482 Glass Caston & John White to William Nunn, 0.5 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/203 Glass Caston & John White & Ann White to William Nunn, lot in Hillsborough,
proved Mar 1757 by William Reed as to Glass Caston and Daniel Cain as to John & Ann White]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 483 Osborne Jeffers to John Alston [Jr], 458 acres, proved by Thomas Webb. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/352]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 12 May 1755, 458 acres on both sides of Lick Creek,
adj low grounds, the horsepen. Gv97, SSLG 93-I, RegLn 260.

ReglLn 484 Stephen Howard to William Thompson, 329 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/358 for 328 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/88 John Thompson to William Thompson, 11 Dec
1771, 328 acres on Arthurs Creek of Deep River - part of Granville to Stephen Howard [Gv202,
SSLG 92-1, Regln 429] 11 May 1757, to William Thompson, to John Thompson [not found] 4 Sep
1770.

ReglLn 485 Earl Granville to John Overton, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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RegLn 486 Hugh Smith to William Cox, 428 acres [425 acres?], proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/124 Samuel Nelson to Hugh Smith, 9 Mar 1756, 425
acres on waters of John Williams Mill Creek, adj David Mims, Thomas Matthews. [Granville to
Samuel Nelson Gv47, SSLG 97-B, 425 acres.]



RegLn 487 William Cox to Harmon Cobb [Harmon Cox], 375 acres, proved by James Nicholson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Cox, 5 Nov 1757, 375 acres on head of Cox's Mill Creek of
Deep River, on both sides of Crawford's Road. Gv218, SSLG 88-E, ReglLn 454.

Regln 488 William Cox to Tilman Cobb, 75 acres, proved by James Nicholson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 489 William Cox to George Pauley, 375 acres, proved by James Nicholson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 490 William Cox to James Nicholson, 375 acres, proved by Joshua Gregg.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 491 Thomas Swafford to Thomas Basket, 150 acres, proved by affirmation of James Lindley.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/352]

Chilton’s notes: The remainder of ReglLn 7 Zachariah Martin Sr to James Swafort (309 acres) not
conveyed by ReglLn 32 James Swafer to James Dickey (159 acres). ? Same as ODB 3/8 Thomas
Baskett to Robert Morrison, 22 Oct 1782, 150 acres on S side of Haw River, adj George Martin -
Granville to Zachariah Martin Jr 24 Jun 1751 [Patent Book 11:16 in Anson County], William
Baskett by will [OWB A/72] to Thomas Baskett?

RegLn 492 Earl Granville to Semore York, 640 acres, proved by Harman Husbands. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/352]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Seymour York, 5 Aug 1758, 640 acres on both sides of Sandy Creek.
Gv240, SSLG 102-L.

Regln 493 Semore York to Henry York, 175 acres, proved by John McGee.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by:

RaDB 7/294 Henry York to Edmond Hays, 21 Jul 1797, 30 acres on E side of Sandy Creek, adj York
- being part of Granville to Semore York 5 Aug 1758 [Gv240, SSLG 102-L, ReglLn 492], to Henry
York [ReglLn 493].

RaDB 7/297 Henry York to my loving son Samuel York, 9 Apr 1796, 40 acres on W side of Sandy
Creek. Proved Nov 1797 by William York.

RaDB 8/85 Henry York to William Wilborn, 1 May 1799, 105 acres on Sandy Creek, adj Samuel
York, Edmond Hays - being part of Granville to Semore York

ReglLn 494 Semore York to William Ingleson, 120 acres, proved by John McGee.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/140 William Ingleson & Sarah Ingleson to Simore
York, 7 Aug 1772, 120 acres on Sandy Creek - part of Granville to York 5 Aug 1758 [Gv240, SSLG
102-L, ReglLn 492]. Later RANDOLPH.

Regln 495 John Fergurson to John Walker, 275 acres, proved by James Dochaster.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 496 Edward Moore to William Jay, 145 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/356]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 497 Hector McNiel to John Brantley, 148 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/351 proved by Plunket Ballard]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/107 James Riddle & wife Temperance to Anthony
Minter, 12 Dec 1771, 148 acres in fork of Cape Fear River. [Formerly Hector McNiel to John
Brantley ReglLn 497, to William Riddle ReglLn 927.]

ReglLn 498 Hugh Wood to John Wood, 251 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/356]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 499 Benjamin Clements to Joseph Copeland, 406 acres [half of 486 acres?], proved by Robert
Patterson. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/358]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by:

ODB 3/298 John Falconer & Elizabeth Falconer to Thomas Blyth, 13 Oct 1768, 122 acres on N
side of Haw River, adj gut, branch, island - part of 486 acres Granville to Benjamin Clemmons
1758 [Gv246, SSLG 87-G to Joseph Copeland ReglLn 499, to John Falconer Regln 1781]. [See CDB
A/51 for later title.]

ODB 3/296 John Falconer & Elizabeth Falconer to Joseph Copeland, 13 Oct 1768, 121 acres on N
side of Haw River, adj mouth of Sugar Tree Gut, branch - part of 486 acres Granville to Benjamin
Clemmons [Gv246, SSLG 87-G to Joseph Copeland ReglLn 499, to John Falconer ReglLn 1781].
[See CDB A/232 for later title.]

Regln 500 Adam Trollinger to Jacob Mason, 1 acre lot in Hillsborough, proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/244]

Chilton’s notes: lot in Hillsborough

ReglLn 501 Jacob Mason to John Woods, 1 acre lot in Hillsborough, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/240]

Chilton’s notes: lot in Hillsborough
Regln 502 Lawrence Thompson to James Thompson, 320 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 503 William Forrist to Edward Gresham, 170 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/336 proved by acknowledgement]



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 504 James Collins to Richard Parker, 320 acres, proved by Robert Patterson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 505 Earl Granville to John Patterson, 400 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/327]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Patterson, 23 May 1758, 400 acres on Morgan Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv226, SSLG 97-H.
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RegLn 506 Earl Granville to John Patterson, 364 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/321]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Patterson, 23 May 1758, 364 acres on New Hope Creek, adj
Piney Mountain Creek, Reed, John Alston, Patterson. Gv227, SSLG 97-I.

ReglLn 507 Earl Granville to John Rhodes, 320 acres, proved by Miles Parker.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Rhodes, 26 Apr 1753, 320 acres on S side of New Hope Creek.
Gv7, SSLG 99-B.

Regln 508 Blake Baker to Robert Jones Jr, 500 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 509 Earl Granville to Robert Jones Jr, 384 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 510 Earl Granville to William Nunn, 402 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Nunn, 15 Mar 1756, 402 acres on fork of Great Creek, adj
John Woods. Gv144, SSLG 97-C. [Surveyed for Thomas Nelson.]

Regln 511 John Wright [& wife Rachel] to William Brown, 123[.5] acres, proved by affirmation of
James Shaw. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/278]

Chilton’s notes: part of Granville to John Wright, 2 Mar 1755, 404 acres on Cane Creek, adj
James Williams. Gv66, SSLG 102-K-7. ODB 14/10 William Brown estate by executor to Peter
Stout, 4 Feb 1810, 123.5 acres on Cane Creek, adj Daniel Foust formerly William Nelson - part of
Granville to John Wright 2 Mar 1752, Wright to William Brown 13 Mar 1758. Now in Chatham
County.

ReglLn 512 Richard Sidwell to Robert Sidwell, 200 acres, proved by Thomas Shaw. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/278 to Robert Stewart]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 350 John Sidwell to Richard Sidwell, 200 acres.



ReglLn 513 William Murrah to Nicholas Tripp, 100 acres, proved by William Hellems. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/322]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/633 John Tripp & Ann Tripp & William Tripp to
Thomas Steele, 9 Nov 1791, 100 acres on S side of Haw River & S side of Cane Creek, adj William
Helms, James Downing, George Allen. Proved Nov 1792 by Thomas Hadley. [Granville to George
Williams Gv13, SSLG 102-H, to William Murrah ReglLn 79, to Nicholas Tripp ReglLn 513.]

Regln 514 Earl Granville to William Rhodes, 429 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Rhodes, 11 May 1757, 429 acres on Bakers Creek, adj
Bohannon. Gv197, SSLG 99-B.

ReglLn 515 James Dickey to John Johnson, 340 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/336]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 796 John Johnson to James Mims, 340 acres.
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ReglLn 516 Isaac Cantril to John Cantril, 202 acres, proved by James Watson. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/325]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Cantrell, 13 Nov 1756, 202 acres on ridge between Country
Line Creek & Jordans Creek, adj spring branches. Gv184, SSLG 86-A, ReglLn 321.

ReglLn 517 Joseph Collins to Isaac Collins, _ acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/319 Joseph Walker to Isaac Collins, 230 acres, proved Sep 1758 by James Walker]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 696 Isaac Collins to John Collins, 115 acres. Reg Ln
1612 Isaac Collins to Robert Patterson, 115 acres.

ReglLn 518 Daniel Stilwel to John Forgerson, 163 acres, proved by Thomas Dobbin. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/277]

Chilton’s notes: The half of Gv152 not conveyed by ODB 1/278?

Regln 519 Osborne Jeffrers to William Barnes, 241 acres, proved by Robert Terrel. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/299]

Chilton’s notes: Half of Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 29 Apr 1754, 482 acres on the three forks of
Bartons Creek that Blalocks Mill is on, adj head of a bottom, first branch. Gv35, SSLG 93-1, RegLn
52.

ReglLn 520 Osborne Jeffers to Henry Warren, 482 acres, proved by Robert Terrel. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/300 for 241 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Other half of Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 29 Apr 1754, 482 acres on the three
forks of Bartons Creek that Blalocks Mill is on, adj head of a bottom, first branch. Gv35, SSLG 93-
I, ReglLn 52.



Regln 521 John Gray & Enoch Lewis to John Dunagan, 640 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/303]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 522 Earl Granville to Thomas Lindley, 356 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/320]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Lindley, 11 May 1757, 356 acres on S side of Cane Creek, on
N side of Haw River, above the Piney Mountain. Gv200, SSLG 95-J.

ReglLn 523 Earl Granville to Valentine Hollingsworth, 600 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/320]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Valentine Hollingsworth, 5 Dec 17__, 600 acres on Cane Creek.
Gv428, SSLG 92-G.

ReglLn 524 Earl Granville to Lodewick Clapp, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/327 Earl Granville to William Clap]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Ludwick Clapp, 25 Mar 1752, 640 acres on N Fork of Alamance
Creek. Gv2, SSLG 87-G.

ReglLn 525 Henry McCulloch to Hugh Woods, 551 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/367 Henry McCulloch to Hugh Smith]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 526 Earl Granville to James Woods, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 527 Earl Granville to John Alston, 300 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 528 Earl Granville to Watson Bromfield, 320 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 529 Earl Granville to George Clap, 320 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/273]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 530 Earl Granville to John Mitchel, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 531 John Mayo to William Armstrong, 875 acres, proved by James Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 532 William Boggan to Robert Abercromby, 460 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Boggan, 22 Feb 1759, 460 acres on S Fork of Little River, adj
John Dunagan, Kain, Boggan. Gv279, SSLG 84-J, RegLn 555.

ReglLn 533 James McAllister to Henry Wagoner, 320 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/375]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 534 James McAllister to James McCarver, 320 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/375]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/479 William Littlejohn to George Alston, 15 Mar 1795,
320 acres on both sides of N Fork of Little River, adj James Murdock, Michael Robinson formerly
Bogan, Henry Waggoner, James McCaver - part of Granville to James McAllister 22 Feb 1759
[Gv252, SSLG 95.1-A, ReglLn 586], to James McCaver 12 Jun 1759 [RegLn 534], to William
Littlejohn 20 Oct 1777 [OCPQS 3/385].

ReglLn 535 Henry Wagoner to George Wagoner, 160 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/374]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/248 George Waggoner to John Hall, 28 Oct 1772, 160
acres on a fork of Little River, adj James McCaver - part of Henry Waggoner to George Waggoner
12 Jun 1759 [ReglLn 535].
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Regln 536 Margaret Boggan to John Brown, 216 acres, proved by James Ray. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/375]

Chilton’s notes: ReglLn 582 Earl Granville to Margaret Boggan, 216 acres. Not found, but see ODB
4/727 John Brown to William Jamison, 3 Oct 1785, 216 acres on N Fork of Little River - Granville
to Brown 22 Feb 1759 [not found — was this actually from Margaret Boggan ReglLn 5367]. Proved
Oct 1788 by James McCallister before Jno Williams. [This deed also appears at ODB 4/9]

ReglLn 537 James Taylor to John Dowel, 220 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/375]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1700 John Dowel to Isaac Lewis, 220 acres & Regln
2662 Isaac Lewis & his wife to John Woods, 220 acres.

ReglLn 538 John Cook to John Dowel, 1 acre, proved by William Anderson. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/374 for a lot in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 539 James Taylor to William Few, 640 acres, proved by James Bowie. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/278]



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/486 William Few Jr to James Milner, 7 Aug 1772, four
tracts, first tract, 460 acres on both sides of Little River, adj John Pinkerton, Earl Granville,
Robert Abercrombie, orphans of William Ray, orphans of James McAllister - John Dunagan to
William Few 9 Aug 1768, parts of two tracts 640 acres Granville to Dunagan 26 Apr 1753 [ReglLn
344] & 398 acres Granville to Dunagan 2 Feb 1761 [Gv472, SSLG 89-J, RegLn 2029].

ReglLn 540 William Comb to Joseph Maddock, 50 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/565 Joseph Maddock to James Thompson & Samuel
Chambers & Francis Wilkinson & Daniel Cloud, 15 Jul 1768, 5 acres to be used only for Eno River
Meeting belonging to the people [called] Quakers, adj John Carson, the Great Road - whereon
the meeting house & other buildings now stand, part of Granville to William Comb 12 Nov 1756
[Gv180, SSLG 87-I, ReglLn 349], to Maddock et al 10 Jun 1759 recorded ODB E/42_ [RegLn 540].

ReglLn 541 Henry McCulloch to Joseph Piggot [William Piggott], 297 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but apparently also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to
William Piggott, 11 Mar 1758, 297 acres in Tract 11. Collectively described by:

ODB 3/95 Samuel Piggott to John Wheeler, 6 Jan 1784, 150 acres adj my own land, my brother
John Piggott - part of Henry McCulloh & John Wilcocks to my father William Piggott [ReglLn 541].

ODB 12/34 John Piggott to William Marshall, 15 Jun 1805, 238 acres on Rock Creek of Stinking
Quarter Creek - part of two tracts, old part granted [Henry McCulloh to] William Piggott 11 Mar
1758 [ReglLn 541], willed to son Jeremiah Piggott [OCWB A/111], to John Piggott [OCPQS 3/349],
other part NC to John Piggott 18 May 1789 [Ofile 1848].

Regln 542 Henry McCulloch to Benjamin Piggot, 160 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
0CPQS]

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Benjamin
Piggott, 7 Aug 1758, 160 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 543 William Armstrong to James Armstrong, 175 acres, proved by James Boyd. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/374 proved by George Boyd]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 544 William Armstrong to John Armstrong, 17 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 545 John Armstrong to William Armstrong, 100 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 546 John Armstrong to George Boyd, 183 acres, proved by James Armstrong. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/374]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 742 George Boyd to Joseph Akins, 183 acres.



Regln 547 Daniel Gold to Joseph King, 100 acres, proved by Stephen Maret. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/374]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/227 Joseph King to John Thompson Sr, 5 May 1759,
100 acres on waters of Flat River - being tract granted to said Thompson by Joseph King 9 Dec
1755 & to said Joseph King by deed from Granville [not found].

Regln 548 William Vestal to Thomas Vestal, 205 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 549 John Dunagan to Thomas Dunagan Jr, 64 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/373]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/418 John Embree to John Pinkerton, 10 Sep 1771, 64
acres on S side of S Fork of Little River, adj Clark, the Fork, John Dunagan - part of 640 acres
Granville to John Dunagan 26 May 1753 [ReglLn 344, to Thomas Dunagan Jr RegLn 549, to John
Embree Regln 2573]. [Later Hardawick Davis to John Latta ODB 3/168, to James Jackson ODB
4/402]

RegLn 550 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/371]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor, 8 Nov 1755, 640 acres on both sides of Brushy Fork of
Flat River. Gv116, SSLG 101-C.

Regln 551 Joseph Wells Jr to Thomas Carr, 282 acres, proved by affirmation of William Jones.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/64 Thomas Carr & wife Miriam to Daniel Smith, 16
Apr 1770, 282 acres - Granville to Joseph Wells 20 Jun 1754 [Gv44, SSLG 102-D, ReglLn 374].

ReglLn 552 Richard Jones to Gedian Gilbert, 140 acres, proved by affirmation of Aaron Jones.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/343 Gideon Gilbert Sr to Joseph Gilbert, 16 Mar 1773,
140 acres on S side of Haw River, on Bloody Creek of Brush Creek of Deep River - part of 562
acres Granville to Joseph Wells 11 Jun 1754 [Gv44, SSLG 102-D, ReglLn 374], 280 acres to Richard
Jones 11 Sep 1756 [ReglLn 341].

ReglLn 553 Earl Granville to Thomas Cate Jr, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/368]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Cate Jr, 7 Mar 1759, 640 acres on main fork of Cane Creek,
on N side of Haw River. Gv291, SSLG 86-G.

Regln 554 Thomas Cate Jr to Joseph Cate, 177 acres, proved by Richard Cate.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 555 Earl Granville to William Boggan, 460 acres, proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/370]



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Boggan, 22 Feb 1759, 460 acres on S Fork of Little River, adj
John Dunagan, Kain, Boggan. Gv279, SSLG 84-).

ReglLn 556 Earl Granville to Robert Abercromby, 324 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/369]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Abercrombie, 28 Feb 1759, 324 acres on Ellerbee Creek.
Gv284, SSLG 83-A.

ReglLn 557 Earl Granville to Thomas Lindley, 600 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/372]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Lindley, 22 Feb 1759, 600 acres on S Fork of Cane Creek, W
side of Haw River. Gv248, SSLG 95-J.

ReglLn 558 Earl Granville to Francis Jones, 203 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/372]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Francis Jones, 22 Feb 1759, 230 acres on S side of Bear Creek,
opposite Little Bear Creek. Gv272, SSLG 94-A.

Regln 559 John Bohannon to Christopher Barbee, 567 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Rhodes, 7 Nov 1755, 567 acres on both sides of Kitts Creek of
Northeast Creek of New Hope Creek, adj low grounds. Gv109, SSLG 99-B.

ReglLn 560 John Bohannon to Christopher Barbee, 268 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Bohannon, 4 Nov 1756, 268 acres on Kitts Creek of Northeast
Creek of New Hope Creek, adj Beasley, Rhodes. Gv167, SSLG 84-K.

ReglLn 561 Earl Granville to Harman Husbands, 540 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/369]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 5 Nov 1757, 540 acres on S side of Deep River,
adj Thomas Armstrong. Gv216, SSLG 93-C.

Regln 562 Earl Granville to Harman Husbands, 192 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 5 Nov 1757, 192 acres on N side of Deep River,
adj Stephen Howard. Gv215, SSLG 93-A.

ReglLn 563 Earl Granville to Joseph Maddock, 507 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/369]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Maddock, 22 Feb 1759, 507 acres on both sides of Eno River,
adj John Gray, Lemmon. Gv250, SSLG 96-A-1.

Regln 564 John Dowel to Ralph Williams, 250 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/372]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 565 John Patterson to William Rhodes, 22 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/321 proved by William Reed esq]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 566 James Taylor to Francis Wilkinson, 271 acres, proved by Lawrence Nixon?.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 567 William Hellams to William Morrow, 425 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 568 Enoch Lewis to John Rhodes, 600 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 11 May 1757, 600 acres on N side of Deep River, adj
path, mouth of Georges Creek. Gv195, SSLG 95-G.

Regln 569 Timothy Terrel to Solomon Terrel, 510 acres, proved by Zachariah Martin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 570 Earl Granville to John Patterson, 150 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Patterson, 23 Oct 1754, 150 acres on both sides of Pattersons
Creek, adj Joseph John Alston. Gv58, SSLG 97-H.

Regln 571 Joshua Fincher to Jonathan Fincher, 416 acres, proved by Samuel McDuff.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to Francis Day Gv72, SSLG 88-L, ReglLn 242, to
Jonathon Fincher ODB 1/94, to Joshua Fincher RegLn 571, to Richard Fincher ReglLn 572

Regln 572 Joshua Fincher to Richard Fincher, 416 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/356 Jonathan Fincher to Richard Fincher proved by Thomas Holden]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to Francis Day Gv72, SSLG 88-L, ReglLn 242, to
Jonathon Fincher ODB 1/94, to Joshua Fincher ReglLn 571, to Richard Fincher ReglLn 572

Regln 573 Henry McCulloch to Charles Davis, 187 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/367 Henry McCulloch to Joshua Willocks]

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 2/562 Thomas Davis & Elisabeth Davis to Jeremiah
Piggott, 21 Jul 1769, 87 acres on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek, adj Charles Davis - Henry
McCulloh to Charles Davis 2 Aug 1758 [ReglLn 573], to Thomas Davis 31 Jan 1761 [RegLn 1927].

ReglLn 574 Miles Parker to Valentine Braswell, 175 acres, proved by Richard Braswell. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/372]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Miles Parker, 26 Apr 1753, 175 acres on Northwest River of Cape
Fear River, adj Campbell. Gv8, SSLG 97-E, ReglLn 878.
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ReglLn 575 Henry McCulloch to Joseph Buckingham, 171 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/367]

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Joseph
Buckingham, 7 Aug 1758, 171 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 576 Benjamin Clemants to John Edwards, 80 acres, proved by Thomas Lockheart. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/374]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 577 William Boggan to Margaret Boggan, 650 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/375]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 578 William Reed to Thomas Clark, 146 acres, proved by James Watson. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/233 for 46 acres by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/241 John Dowell by Sheriff to Nathaniel Walton, 26
Jul 1769, 146 acres on waters of Eno River - levy on John Dowell, part of land from Granville to
William Reed [Gv139, SSLG 98-K, ReglLn 624], to Thomas Clark [ReglLn 578], to Dowell [ReglLn
1472, deed of trust to William Few ReglLn 2335 upon which this is a foreclosure?].

Regln 579 William Reed to Jacob Mason, 1 acre, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 580 Earl Granville to James Bowie, 291 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/368 for 292 acres.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bowie, 22 Feb 1759, 292 acres on Ellerbee Creek. Gv277,
SSLG 84-M.

Regln 581 James Bowie to Lawrence Redman, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 582 Earl Granville to Margaret Boggan, 216 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/368]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 536 Margaret Boggan to John Brown, 216 acres. ODB

4/727 John Brown to William Jamison, 3 Oct 1785, 216 acres on N Fork of Little River - Granville

to Brown 22 Feb 1759 [not found — was this actually from Margaret Boggan Regln 5367]. Proved
Oct 1788 by James McCallister before Jno Williams. [This deed also appears at ODB 4/9]

ReglLn 583 John Wood to Thomas Wood, 100 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 584 Earl Granville to William Denny, 465 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/372]



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Denny, 22 Feb 1759, 465 acres on N side of Reedy Fork of
Haw River, adj George Findley. Gv267, SSLG 89-A.
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ReglLn 585 Henry McCulloch to Joseph Bogs, 546 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/367]

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Joseph Boggs,
11 Mar 1758, 546 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 586 Earl Granville to James McCallister, 640 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James McAllister, 22 Feb 1759, 640 acres on a fork of Little River,
adj Tapleys Creek, James Murdock. Gv252, SSLG 95.1-A.

ReglLn 587 Earl Granville to James Allison, 450 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/372 Earl Granville to Joseph Allison]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Allison, 22 Feb 1759, 450 acres adj John Dunagan. Gv276,
SSLG 83-C.

RegLn 588 Earl Granville to James Dickey, 346 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/369]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Dickie, 11 May 1757, 346 acres on both sides of Seven Mile
Creek, adj James Riley. Gv204, SSLG 89-A.

RegLn 589 Earl Granville to Thomas Holden, 247 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/373]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Holden, 22 Feb 1759, 247 acres adj Fincher, Buck Quarter
Creek. Gv271, SSLG 92-E.

Regln 590 Earl Granville to Samuel Temple, 233 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Temple, 1 Mar 1759, 233 acres on both sides of Bear Creek
of Rocky River, adj Daniel Norris. Gv287, SSLG 101-D.

ReglLn 591 Earl Granville to Frederick Brown, 233 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
0OCPQS 1/367]

Chilton’s notes: Deed of Surrender shows Henry McCulloh to Frederick Brown, 233 acres? See
also Regln 1669 Frederick Brown to Phillip Cooper, 116 acres?

Regln 592 Henry McCulloch to David Lowe, 350 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/366]

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to David Low, 8
Mar 1758, 350 acres in Tract 11.



ReglLn 593 Earl Granville to John McKnight, 511 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/372]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McKnight, 22 Feb 1759, 511 acres opposite mouth of S Buffalo
Creek, adj N Buffalo Creek, William Blackwood. Gv249, SSLG 95.1-F.

ReglLn 594 Earl Granville to Samuel Walker, 283 acres [sic], proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/371 for 583 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Walker, 22 Feb 1759, 583 acres on Sandy Creek, adj Harmon
Husband. Gv264, SSLG 102-B.
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RegLn 595 Earl Granville to William Long, 340 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/371]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Long, 22 Feb 1759, 320 acres on Mitchells Creek, adj
Mitchell. Gv274, SSLG 95-M.

ReglLn 596 Earl Granville to John Allison, 154 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/370]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Ellison, 22 Feb 1759, 154 acres on both sides of a branch of
Little River, adj Gov Johnston. Gv275, SSLG 83-C.

Regln 597 John Dunagan to James Clark, 300 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/320 proved by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 598 Isaac Gaddis to John Dowel, 250 acres, proved by John Dowel. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/398 proved by John Wood]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see OCPQS 1/258 James Taylor to Isaac Gaddis, 250 acres,
proved Dec 1757 by John Tinnen.

Regln 599 Harman Husbands to William Thompson, 540 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/398]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 5 Nov 1757, 540 acres on S side of Deep River,
adj Thomas Armstrong. Gv216, SSLG 93-C, ReglLn 561.

ReglLn 600 William Few to Barnaby Hales, 330 acres [or 300 acres?], proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 601 James Taylor to Edward Brenon, 196 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/398]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor, 23 May 1758, 196 acres on W side of Eno River, adj
late Gov Johnston. Gv236, SSLG 101-B, ReglLn 433.



ReglLn 602 Earl Granville to Robert Bumpas, 640 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Bumpass, 29 Nov 1760, 640 acres on both sides of Tar River.
H1340. ODB 3/539 Robert Bumpass to William Bumpass, 7 Feb 1771, _49 acres on Tar River, adj
Samuel Bumpass - remaining part of 640 acres Granville to Robert Bumpass 6 Oct 1753 [ReglLn
602], sold to Samuel Bumpass & Edward Bumpass.

Regln 603 Earl Granville to William Leakey, 405 acres, proved by James Carter.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Leaky, 5 Feb 1755, 405 acres on Middle Branch of Rocky
River of Deep River. Gv64, SSLG 95-F.

RegLn 604 Josiah Dickey to Hugh Barnet, 634 acres, proved by James Carter. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/413 Josias Dixon to Hugh Barnett proved by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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RegLn 605 Enoch Lewis to William Wiley, 640 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/415]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 16 Feb 1758, 640 acres on Sizemores Branch of Tick
Creek. Gv225, SSLG 95-H.

ReglLn 606 Aaron Vanhook to David Vanhook, 200 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/414 proved by Lawrence Vanhook]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 607 Earl Granville to David Cain [sic], 428 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Daniel Kain, 27 Feb 1759, 428 acres on both sides of Forresters
Creek. Gv281, SSLG 94-E.

RegLn 608 Earl Granville to William March, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Marsh, 22 Feb 1759, 640 acres on S side of Haw River, on
Little Creek & Brooks Creek, adj John Martin. Gv251, SSLG 96-A.

RegLn 609 Daniel Cain to David Pinkerton, 428 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/415]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Daniel Kain, 27 Feb 1759, 428 acres on both sides of Forresters
Creek. Gv281, SSLG 94-E, ReglLn 607.

ReglLn 610 Earl Granville to John Wood, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Woods, 28 Feb 1759, 200 acres on both sides of Mountain
Creek of New Hope Creek. Gv285, SSLG 102-).

ReglLn 611 Earl Granville to John Rutherford [sic], 315 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/368 Earl Granville to Patrick Rutherford]



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Patrick Rutherford, 22 Feb 1759, 315 acres on both sides of S branch
of N Fork of Little River, adj William Aldridge. Gv258, SSLG 99-G.

ReglLn 612 Earl Granville to William Morrow, 550 acres [sic], proved. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/323 for
552 acres proved by William Churton]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Morrow, 23 May 1758, 552 acres on branches of Haw River
& Cane Creek, adj John Jones. Gv230, SSLG 96-M.

Regln 613 William Marsh Jr to John Stewart, 120 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 614 John Lambert to William Wright, 273 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/413 John Lambert to William White proved by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 615 Earl Granville to Stephen Scarlet, 1 acre, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/415 but in the Minute Book it is listed as Thomas Holden to Stephen Scarlett]

Chilton’s notes: This is evidently Thomas Holden’s donation of the original 1 acre on which the
old St. Mary’s Chapel was built and where the cemetery is today. Stephen Scarlett was acting
here as a trustee or vestryman.

North Carolina, Orange County}...December 1759.

ReglLn 616 William Cox to James Few, 2 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/414 proved by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 617 Earl Granville to Thomas Lloyd, 195 acres, proved by John Wright.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 618 Zachariah Keadle Jr [Zachariah Cadle] to Thomas Lapsey [Thomas Lapsley], 128 acres,
proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/399]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 6/175 Thomas Lloyd to William Walker, 17 Sep 1787,
158 acres adj Joseph Thompson - 128 acres is part of Zacharlah Cadle to Thomas Lapsley Sr, to
Thomas Lapsley Jr 13 Aug 1759, other 30 acres by will of Thomas Lapsley Sr [OWB A/220] to
Thomas Lapsley Jr, to Thomas Lloyd Jr 13 Sep 1787.

ReglLn 619 Earl Granville to Thomas Brooks, 640 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/378]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Brooks, 23 May 1758, 640 acres on Tick Creek, adj the New
Road from Cane Creek to Cape Fear. Gv234, SSLG 85-F.

Regln 620 Earl Granville to John Brooks, 639 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Brooks, 23 May 1758, 639 acres on Tick Creek, adj Ephraims
Creek. Gv232, SSLG 85-F.

ReglLn 621 Earl Granville to Thomas Clark, 304 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 622 Earl Granville to Michael Holt, 739 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Holt, 20 Aug 1759, 739 acres on waters of Little Alamance
Creek, adj McCulloh, Phillips Spring Branch. Gv314, SSLG 92-G.

ReglLn 623 William Reed to Walter Ashmore, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/413 for a lot in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 624 Earl Granville to William Reed, 292 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/190]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Reed, 20 Feb 1756, 292 acres on branches of Eno River, adj
Isaac Jackson. Gv139, SSLG 98-K.

RegLn 625 Earl Granville to James Collins, 350 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/202. CDB A/35 cites this deed as ODB E/229.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Collins, 12 Nov 1756, 350 acres on Haw River, adj Collins
Creek. Gv178, SSLG 87-I.

Regln 626 Earl Granville to Dennis Collins, 480 acres, proved by Sherwood Haywood.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Dennis Collins, 8 May 1755, 480 acres on both sides of Cobbs Creek.
Gv91, SSLG 87-H.

ReglLn 627 Richard Braswell to David Mims, 320 acres, proved by Plunket Ballard. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/412]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 628 Earl Granville to John Allred, 520 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/369]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Allred, 15 Mar 1756, 520 acres on both sides of Mount
Pleasant Creek. Gv148, SSLG 83-C.

ReglLn 629 Earl Granville to William Aldridge, 256 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/368]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Aldridge, 13 Nov 1756, 256 acres on a branch of Sandy
Creek of Deep River called Mount Pleasant Creek, adj Harmon Husband. Gv183, SSLG 83-B.



ReglLn 630 William Reed to Andrew Shanklin, 146 acres, proved by James Watson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/356]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 34/15 Mary Shanklin to Joseph Moore, 146 acres.
Regln 631 James Wade to Nathaniel Harris, 150 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 632 Earl Granville to Isaac Jackson, 476 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/208]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Jackson, 17 Jun 1754, 476 acres on both sides of Great Creek,
adj John Woods, James Taylor, Abraham Nelson. Gv50, SSLG 93-F.

RegLn 633 Earl Granville to James Taylor, 381 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/208]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor H2753, Patent Book 14:81. Later ReglLn 23 to Thomas
Wiley, 381 acres, ReglLn 96 to William Reed [William Wiley?], 381 acres. RegLn 2359 William
Wiley to Jonas Chamberlain, 381 acres, ODB 5/366 Jonas Chamberlin by executor to William
Chamberlin, 28 Feb 1794, four tracts...third tract 381 acres —from William Wiley 12 Aug 1765
recorded ODB A1/500 [ReglLn 2359], ODB 5/403 to Isaac Jackson, 7 Jan 1795, 381 acres.

ReglLn 634 Earl Granville to Robert Reed, 325 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/378]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Reed, 15 Mar 1759, 325 acres on both sides of Piney
Mountain Creek & branches of Bakers Creek. Gv293, SSLG 98-J.

Regln 635 Earl Granville to James Anderson, 247 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Anderson, 15 Aug 1759, 247 acres on head branches of
Forresters Creek, on both sides of Hico Road to Orange Courthouse. Gv309, SSLG 83-D. ReglLn
697 James Anderson to Isaac Anderson [Isaac Gattis?], 240 acres [247 acres?]. ODB 4/169 Isaac
Gattis & Hannah Gattis to Andrew Burke, 10 Mar 1789, two tracts, first tract, 247 acres on head
branches of Forresters Creek, on both sides of road to Orange Court House - Granville to James
Anderson 15 Aug 1759, Anderson to Isaac Gaddis 30 May 1760 [ReglLn 697].

RegLn 636 William Churton to Andrew Corbin, 1 acre, proved by James Watson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/240 to Andrew Corbin Reed for a lot in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 637 William Churton to James Watson, 1 acre, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/240 for a lot in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 638 Henry McCulloch to Peter Hilton, [damaged]2 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Helton, 11
Mar 1758, 320 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 639 Henry McCulloch [& Joshua Willocks] to John McGee, 305 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/367]

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John McGee, 8
Aug 1758, 305 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 640 Henry McCulloch to Thomas Lowe, 320 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/368]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/217 Thomas Lowe to William Dent, 6 Feb 1773, 320
acres on Reedy Branch, both sides of Trading Path, adj brown of a hill - McCulloh to Lowe [ReglLn
640].

ReglLn 641 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 22 Feb 1759, 640 acres on New Hope Creek. Gv253,
SSLG 96-K.
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Regln 642 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 682 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 22 Feb 1759, 682 acres adj Mulkey, Morgan. Gv257,
SSLG 96-I.

Regln 643 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 22 Feb 1759, 640 acres on New Hope Creek &
Morgan Creek. Gv255, SSLG 96-L.

Regln 644 Earl Granville to William Blackwood, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Blackwood, 1 Mar 1759, 640 acres on both sides of
Brashears Creek of Reedy Fork of Haw River. Gv286, SSLG 84-C.

Regln 645 Earl Granville to Andrew Mitchel, 560 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Andrew Mitchell, 22 Feb 1759, 560 acres on both sides of
McGowans Creek of Eno River. Gv256, SSLG 96-F.

ReglLn 646 Earl Granville to James Bowie, 295 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 647 Earl Granville to Alexander Lackey, 256 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Lackey, 17 Aug 1759, 256 acres adj Moses Embree, Col
Rutherford, Joseph Duncan. Gv310, SSLG 95-K.

Regln 648 Earl Granville to Thomas Hart, 483 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Hart, 7 Aug 1759, 483 acres on Horsleys Creek of Country
Line Creek of Dan River, adj his own line. Gv305, SSLG 91-K.

RegLn 649 Earl Granville to David Hart, 292 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to David Hart, 6 Aug 1759, 292 acres on a branch of Horsleys Creek &
Country Line Creek. Gv300, SSLG 91-J.

Regln 650 Earl Granville to Thomas Hart, 273 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Hart, 17 Aug 1759, 273 acres on N Fork of Country Line
Creek, adj Jones. Gv311, SSLG 91-K.

ReglLn 651 Earl Granville to John Piles, 243 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Pyle, 1 Mar 1759, 243 acres on S branches of Cane Creek, adj
road from Cane Creek to Cape Fear. Gv288, SSLG 98-F.
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ReglLn 652 Earl Granville to Thomas Hart, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Hart, 15 Aug 1759, 640 acres on forks of Horsleys Creek, adj
prong, fork. Gv306, SSLG 91-K.

Regln 653 Earl Granville to John Cate, 227 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Kate, 20 Aug 1759, 227 acres on S Fork of Flat River, adjJames
Dickens. Gv313, SSLG 86-E.

ReglLn 654 Earl Granville to Thomas Cate, 456 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Cate Jr, 7 Mar 1759, 456 acres on fork of Cane Creek, on N
side of Haw River. Gv290, SSLG 86-G.

Regln 655 Earl Granville to John Woody, 374 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Woody, 15 Aug 1759, 374 acres on S side of Haw River. Gv307,
SSLG 102-K.

RegLn 656 Earl Granville to Duncan Bohannan, 695 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Duncan Bohannon, 21 Aug 1759, 695 acres on S side of Deep River,
just above the mouth of Rocky River. Gv316, SSLG 84-).

ReglLn 657 Henry McCulloch to John Grace, 287 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/368 to John Graves]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to
John Graves, 9 Jun 1759, 387 acres in Tract 11. Also partly described by:



ODB 6/5 Boston Graves to John Efland, 25 Aug 1795, 129 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter
Creek of Haw River, adj Jacob Graves, John Graves - part of Henry McCulloh to John Graves
[Regln 657], to son Boston Graves.

ODB 10/242 William Bell to Ludwick Albright, 10 Apr 1800, 287 acres on branches of Alamance
Creek & Stinking Quarter Creek, adj James Woods, Jones path, Henry Kimbro, the Trading Path.
[McCulloh to John Graves ReglLn 657, to William Bell not found.]

Regln 658 Earl Granville to William Armstrong, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Armstrong, 6 Aug 1759, 500 acres on both sides of Moons
Creek. Gv304, SSLG 83-E.

RegLn 659 Earl Granville to John Armstrong, 373 acres [sic], proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Armstrong, 6 Aug 1759, 371 acres on both sides of Moons
Creek, adj branch. Gv303, SSLG 83-E.

Regln 660 Earl Granville to George Boyd, 180 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Boyd, 21 Aug 1759, 180 acres on both sides of Country Line
Creek, adj Boyd. Gv315, SSLG 84-A. [Surveyed for John Boyd.]

ReglLn 661 Earl Granville to William Wiley, 636 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Wiley, 22 Feb 1759, 636 acres on Birch Creek of Little
Alamance Creek, on both sides of the Quaker Road. Gv261, SSLG 102-G.
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Regln 662 John Wright to John Brownrigg, 385 acres, proved by Samuel Johnson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 663 John Wright [John White] to George Brownwrig, 227 acres, proved by Samuel Johnson.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John White ReglLn 90, H2839

ReglLn 664 Henry McCulloch to Thomas King, 210 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Thomas King, 20
Jun 1759, 210 acres in Tract 12.

RegLn 665 Earl Granville to John Bohanan, 402 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/428]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Bohannon, 4 Nov 1756, 402 acres on E side of Cape Fear River,
adj Goff. Gv166, SSLG 84-K.

ReglLn 666 Zachariah Cadwel [Cadle] to Jacob Railey, 128 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/428 Earl Granville to Jacob Railey]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 667 William Blackwood to John Duffel, 480 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/427]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Blackwood, 14 Mar 1755, 480 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv87,
SSLG 84-C, ODB 1/58, ReglLn 141.

Regln 668 [Ambrose] Joshua Smith to Dorman Henson, 200 acres, proved by William Hart. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/427]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
North Carolina, Orange County}...March 1759 [sic]

ReglLn 669 John Wood to William Carlisle, 200 acres, proved by William Hart. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/427 proved by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 670 William Mebane to John Edwards, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/428 proved by William Mebane]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 671 Benjamin Cadwel [Cadle] to John Douglas, [part of] 640 acres, proved by William Reed.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/423 for [blank] acres proved by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/584 John Douglass & Ellener Douglass to James
Carrigan, 28 Jan 1763, 128 acres adj Thomas Lapsley - part of 640 acres Granville to Zachariah
Cadle 25 Oct 1753 ODB A/212 [Gv18, SSLG 94-E, ReglLn 94], to Benjamin Cadle 13 Apr 1754
[ReglLn 104], to Douglass 22 Feb 1760 ODB I/305 [RegLn 671].

ReglLn 672 John Dennis to Henry Sell, 80 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/427]
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 673 Earl Granville to John Johnson, 382 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [This deed is cited
by CDB A/426 as formerly being recorded at ODB E/308.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Johnston, 6 Aug 1759, 382 acres on a branch of Mudlick Creek.
Gv302, SSLG 93-K.

ReglLn 674 Peter Wilson to Christopher Vandergrist, 257 acres [247 acres?], proved by William Reed.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/426]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 675 Samuel Temple to William Hart, 53 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/427 Savannah Temples to William Hart]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2393 William Hart to George Harland, 53 acres.



Regln 676 Thomas Bragg to William Horton, 50 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 677 John Campbell to Charles Stephens, 163.5 acres, proved by John Forgerson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/427]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/451 John Campbell Sr to Charles Stephens, 6 Oct
1770, 163.5 acres on both sides of Reedy Fork of Hico Creek - part of a tract [327 acres] from
Granville [to Daniel Stilwell, Gv153, SSLG 100-G], the other 163.5 to Stephens by W Churton [?]
registered ODB E/313. [This deed also at ReglLn 677.]

ReglLn 678 Aaron Pinson to Robert Wells, 82 acres, proved by Stephen Maret. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/425]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Aaron Pinson, 13 Mar 1755, 82 acres on Stony Creek of Haw River.
Gv77, SSLG 98-A.

Regln 679 John Bohanan to Samuel Saxon, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/71 Samuel Saxon & Elizabeth Saxon to John Jenkins,
24 Feb 1785, 320 acres part in Orange County & part in Chatham County, on NW prong of New
Hope Creek, adj the low grounds of the Prong of the Creek - Granville to Beasley [Gv60, SSLG 84-
F, ReglLn 308], to John Bohannon [ReglLn 162], to Samuel Saxon [ReglLn 6797].
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ReglLn 680 John Bohannan to Henry Beasley, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/428]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but apparently ODB 1/106 Henry Beasley & Mary Beasley to John
Bohannon, 9 Sep 1755, 640 acres on Northeast Creek of New Hope Creek, adj the low grounds
of a small prong. [See Granville to Henry Beasley, Gv60, SSLG 84-F, ReglLn 308.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Beasley, 23 Oct 1754, 640 acres on Northeast Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv60, SSLG 84-F.

ReglLn 681 William Vernon to Joshua Hadley, 300 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/427]

Chilton’s notes: Gv175 Granville to William Vernon, 11 Nov 1756, 300 acres on head branches of
Vernons Creek of Deep River, adj Timothy Terrell. Gv175, SSLG 101-M, ReglLn 348.

Regln 682 James Paul to Thomas Stubbs, 250 acres, proved by Thomas James. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/427]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 683 Earl Granville to John Dennis, 507 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Dennis, 27 Feb 1759, 507 acres on branches of Buck Quarter
Creek of Eno River, adj Isaac Jackson. Gv283, SSLG 88-M.



Regln 684 James Cheek to John Brown, 100 acres, proved by James Cheek. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/428 James Clark to John Brown proved by James Clarke]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/6 John Brown to William Jamison,3 1785, 100
acres on N Fork of Little River, adj Henry Buzzard, Robert Buler, John Brown - part of Henry
Buzzard to Cheek, from James Cheek [to John Brown?] 25 Jun 175_ [ReglLn 684], granted to
James Cheek 22 Feb 1759 [Granville to James Cheek, Gv265, SSLG 86-I, RegLn 1536]. Proved Oct
1788 in Superior Court by James McCallister. [This document was evidently badly damaged
while ODB 4 was still in use and was recopied at ODB 4/725, but with gaps reflecting the fact
that information was already lost at that time.]

RegLn 685 Earl Granville to William Knox [sic], 215 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Andrew Knox, 1 Aug 1759, 215 acres on S side of Haw River, both
sides of a branch of Cane Creek, adj William Helams. Gv295, SSLG 94-I.

Regln 686 Earl Granville to William Wilson, 416 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/372 William Wilson Sr to Abraham Miles, 22 Dec
1768, 113 acres on Country Line Creek, whereon William Wilson Sr formerly lived - part of 416
acres from Granville to Wilson 11 Nov 1757 [ReglLn 686, otherwise not found].

RegLn 687 William Churton to William Reed, 1 acre, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 688 William Reed to William Churton, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 689 Earl Granville to John King, 524 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John King, 22 Feb 1759, 524 acres on waters of New Hope Creek, adj
Capt Lloyd, King. Gv273, SSLG 94-H.
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ReglLn 690 William Crieg to David Creig, 325 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Craig, 20 Feb 1756, 325 acres on both sides of New Hope
Creek, adj Andrew Mitchell. Gv133, SSLG 88-H, ReglLn 199.

Regln 691 Earl Granville to Isaac Jackson, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Jackson, 19 Feb 1760, 240 acres on both sides of Forresters
Creek, adj James Taylor. Gv324, SSLG 93-F.

ReglLn 692 Isaac Jackson to James Jackson, 240 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Jackson, 19 Feb 1760, 240 acres on both sides of Forresters
Creek, adj James Taylor. Gv324, SSLG 93-F, ReglLn 691.

ReglLn 693 Henry McCulloch to Warham Glenn, 577 acres, proved by



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Worham Glenn,
25 Jun 1759, 557 acres in Tract 12.

ReglLn 694 William Churton to James Watson, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/434 for a lot in Hillsborough proved by John Lea.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 695 Enoch Lewis to Ephraim Potter, 465 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 10 May 1757, 465 acres on both sides of Wolf Island
Creek of Dan River, adj rock on top of a hill, branch. Gv193, SSLG 95-G, ReglLn 379.

RegLn 696 Isaac Collins to John Collins, 115 acres, proved by Stephen Maret.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 697 James Anderson to Isaac Anderson [Isaac Gattis?], 240 acres [247 acres?], proved by
William Anderson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ? ODB 4/169 Isaac Gattis & Hannah Gattis to Andrew Burke,
10 Mar 1789, two tracts, first tract, 247 acres on head branches of Forresters Creek, on both
sides of road to Orange Court House - Granville to James Anderson 15 Aug 1759, Anderson to
Isaac Gaddis 30 May 1760 [ReglLn 697].

RegLn 698 Joseph Barnet to Alexander Mclintire, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/449 Samuel McMurray to Ebenezer Moss, 15 Jan
1770, 200 acres on both sides of Gents Creek of Hico Creek - Granville to William Barnet
[Granville to Joseph Barnett, Gv221, SSLG 84-D, ReglLn 394], to Alexander McEntire [RegLn 698],
to McMurray [ReglLn 1790].

ReglLn 699 Edmund Howard to John Long, 75 acres, proved by John Long Sr.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 700 Francis Day to William Castleberry, 382 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Kennedy, 7 May 1757, 382 acres adj Bolin, Wilkinson.
Gv190, SSLG 94-E, ReglLn 464.

ReglLn 701 William Kenady to Francis Day, 382 acres, proved by Richard Fincher.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Kennedy, 7 May 1757, 382 acres adj Bolin, Wilkinson.
Gv190, SSLG 94-E, ReglLn 464.

Regln 702 William Armstrong to Samuel Paul, 371 acres, proved by James Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Armstrong, 6 Aug 1759, 371 acres on both sides of Moons
Creek, adj branch. Gv303, SSLG 83-E, ReglLn 659.



Regln 703 Thomas Stag to Thomas Harris, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/427]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 704 Thomas King to George Laws, 164 acres, proved by Thomas King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 705 James Ray to George Elmore, 240 acres, proved by James Ray.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Ray, 13 May 1755, 240 acres on N Fork of Little River. Gv98,
SSLG 98-1, ODB 1/52.

ReglLn 706 Nathaniel Reynolds to James Armstrong, 354 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Reynolds, 13 May 1757, 354 acres adj Virginia line,
Hogans Creek, Mayo. Gv211, SSLG 99-G, ReglLn 436.

ReglLn 707 Charles Thompson to William Sisson, 150 acres, proved by John Wilkins.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/535 John Jones & Mary Jones to Samuel Temple, 21
Nov 1768, 150 acres on S side of Deep River, formerly in Bladen County, adj Edward Howard -
upper part of 300 acres, Granville to [Thomas] A[rmstrong] 21 Mar 1752 [ODB 1/189, ReglLn
202], to Charles Thompson [not found], to William Sisson [RegLn 707], to Jones [RegLn 1585].

Regln 708 John Brooks to Isaac Brooks, 320 acres, proved by John Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 709 John Overton to Robert Wilkins, 170 acres, proved by John Wilkins.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/567 Robert Wilkins to Francis Posey, 17 Feb 1768, 170
acres adj mouth of Island Creek, Deep River, branch, Indian Creek - Granville to Stephen Howard
1760 [Gv202, SSLG 92-I, ReglLn 429], to John Overton [ReglLn 4857?], to Wilkins [RegLn 709]. [See
CDB D/548 for later title.]
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ReglLn 710 Enoch Lewis to Richard Cheek, 295 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/170 Drury Mims & wife Lidda to John Avent, 28 Sep
1772, 295 acres on N side of Cape Fear River, adj Cheek. [Granville to Enoch Lewis ReglLn 51, to
Richard Cheek ReglLn 710, to Ezekiel Shaddock not found, to Drury Mims ReglLn 1358.]

Regln 711 Richard Cheek to Joseph Evant, 276 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 721 Stephen Phillips to Richard Cheek, 270 acres?
Regln 712 Earl Granville to Aaron Smith [sic], 54 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Anne Smith, 2 Aug 1760, 54 acres on Country Line Creek, adj
Benjamin Merritt. Gv389, SSLG 100-D.



ReglLn 713 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Walton, 402 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Walton, 15 Jul 1760, 402 acres on Middle Fork of Little
River, adj Rutherford. Gv340, SSLG 102-C.

Regln 714 James Hendricks to Thomas Hendricks, 145 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 715 James Hendricks to John Hendricks, 570 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Hendrick, 13 Nov 1756, 570 acres on prongs of Double Creek
of Hico Creek. Gv181, SSLG 92-B.

North Carolina, Orange County}...August 1759 [sic]
ReglLn 716 Earl Granville to Moses Ginn, 433 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Moses Ginn, 6 Aug 1759, 433 acres on both sides of Rocky River.
Gv301, SSLG 91-A.

Regln 717 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbee, 393 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 2 Aug 1760, 393 acres on Sycamore Fork of Crabtree
Creek. Gv400, SSLG 83-F. Johnston County DB D1/76 Joseph Barbee & wife Mary Barbee to
William Holyfield, 20 Dec 1763, 393 acres on both sides of Sycamore Fork of Crabtree Creek —
Granville to Barbee 2 Aug 1760.
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ReglLn 718 Earl Granville to John Stroud, 522 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Stroud Jr, 22 Feb 1759, 522 acres on Watery Fork of Collins
Creek, adj Mebane. Gv260, SSLG 100-I.

Regln 719 Margaret Boggan to James Boggan, 225 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 720 Margaret Boggan to Patrick Boggan, 225 acres, proved by Stephen Marel.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps ODB 3/306 John Ray to William Ray, 14 Feb 1770, 225
acres on Little River, adj Jo Mitchell, James Ragan - purchased from Henry McCulloh [by Patrick
Boggan GvDB A/1697?, to John Ray ReglLn 2306].

Regln 721 Stephen Phillips to Richard Cheek, 270 acres, proved by Thomas Avent.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 711 Richard Cheek to Joseph Evant, 276 acres?
Regln 722 Henry McCulloch to James Wade, 380 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to James
Wade, 13 Jun 1759, 380 acres in Tract 12.



ReglLn 723 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbey, 617 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 21 Jul 1760, 617 acres on Third Fork of New Hope
Creek, adj Rhodes. Gv347, SSLG 83-H. [Surveyed for Joseph Bohannon.]

Regln 724 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Howel [Nathaniel Powell], 700 acres, proved by William
Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Powell, Gv421, SSLG 98-D, ReglLn 724

ReglLn 725 Jonathan Fincher to Tyrie Harris, 160 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/448 for 165 acres proved by William Reed esq]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Joshua Fincher to Jonathan Fincher ReglLn 1978, to Tyrie
Harris Regln 725, to Edmund Fanning ReglLn 2636, to Isaac Edwards ReglLn 2631. ODB 3/539
Isaac Edwards to Samuel Clenning, 6 Feb 1771, two tracts...165 acres on both sides of a branch
of Buck Quarter Creek, adj Richard Fincher, Captain Synnott, Holden.

Regln 726 Robert Jones Jr to Ananias Allen, 600 acres, proved by Robert Jones.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/362 Annanias Allen to Isaac Allen, 130 acres.
Regln 727 Annanais Allen to Jonathan Allen, 130 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Same deed as ODB 3/362 Annanias Allen to Isaac Allen, 130 acres?
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ReglLn 728 Earl Granville to Robert Stewart, 186 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/448]

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by CDB D/183 Nath Hart & wife Elizabeth to Francis Dossett, 10
Sep 1785, 64 acres & 24 poles in Granville's boundaries, on Rocky River - Granville to Robert
Stuart.

ReglLn 729 Earl Granville to Thomas Lovelatty, 284 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Lovelatty, 11 May 1757, 584 acres on both sides of N Fork
of Haw River, adj Kennedys Branch. Gv201, SSLG 95-M.

Regln 730 Earl Granville to Michael Dixon, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Dickson, 30 Jul 1760, 640 acres on both sides of Adams
Creek. Gv376, SSLG 89-B.

ReglLn 731 Earl Granville to Michael Dixon, 330 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Dickson, 29 Jul 1760, 330 acres on both sides of Gents
Creek, adj Barnett. Gv366, SSLG 89-B.

Regln 732 Earl Granville to Alexander Gowing, 258 acres, proved.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Gowing, 25 Jul 1760, 248 acres on N side of Dan River, adj
Mayo. Gv356, SSLG 91-C. ReglLn 2295 Alexander Going to Roger Adkinson, 248 acres.

ReglLn 733 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Reynolds, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Reynolds, 15 Jul 1760, 640 acres on both sides of Country
Line Creek, adj N Fork. Gv339, SSLG 98-L.

Regln 734 Earl Granville to Joseph Anderson, 24 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found. Granville to James Anderson 240 acres?

RegLn 735 Earl Granville to John Lewis, 600 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/446]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Lewis, H7418, 600 acres. Later RANDOLPH.

RegLn 736 Earl Granville to Joel Brooks, 258 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/446 for 500 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 737 Earl Granville to Jacob Evans, 230 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/446]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jacob Evans, 7 Aug 1760, 230 acres on S side of Deep River. Gv425,
SSLG 90-B.

[Page 82]

ReglLn 738 Earl Granville to Aaron Harlan, 536 acres [sic], proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/446]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Aaron Harlan, 2 Aug 1760, 526 acres on Harlans Creek of Rocky
River. Gv411, SSLG 91-H.

ReglLn 739 Earl Granville to William Chambers, 436 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/446 for 425 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Chambers, 28 Jul 1760, 435 acres on E side of Marlowes
Creek, adj Harrelson, Highes Creek, Dickson. Gv364, SSLG 86-H.

ReglLn 740 Earl Granville to William Lea, 375 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/446]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Lee, 1 Aug 1760, 375 acres on Lick Branch of Terrells Creek.
Gv387, SSLG 95-F.

Regln 741 Margaret Boggan to John Mitchel, _ acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/403 John Mitchell & Sarah Mitchell to William
Johnston, 20 1772, 200 acres on N side of Little River, adj the Main Road, mouth of a gut -
Margaret Bogan to John Mitchell 9 Jun 1760.



Regln 742 George Boyd to Joseph Akins, 183 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 546 John Armstrong to George Boyd, 183 acres,
proved by James Armstrong.

Regln 743 William Reed to Barnaby Cabe, 112 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/447 proved by James Watson.]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/88 Granville to William Reed, 12 Mar 1755, 112 acres
on N side of Eno River, adj the old Trading Path, Governor [Gabriel Johnston]. [Otherwise not
found]

ReglLn 744 Jacob Evans to Jeffry Beck, 230 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/448.]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 1/52 Jacob Evans of Orange County NC to Jeffrey Beck
of same, 17 Nov 1760, 230 acres in Parish of St Matthews, on Deep River - being Granville to
Jacob Evans 7 Aug 1760 [Gv425, SSLG 90-B, ReglLn 737].

ReglLn 745 Anthony Chamness to Betty Mayner, 490 acres, proved by William Lea. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/448 for 117 acres]

Chilton’s notes: H36, Granville to Anthony Chamness, 24 Jun 1751, 490 acres in Anson Co, on
Cane Creek, SCC: Richard Kemp & George Williams.

ReglLn 746 Robert Jones Jr to Robert Knight, 303 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/448 Robert Jones Jr to John Wright proved by Daniel Weldon esq]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 747 Robert McFarland to Andrew Evans, 150 acres, proved by . [Also proved at OCPQS
1/447 proved by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 748 Robert Jones to Charles Mulholl[an], 140 acres, proved by Robert Jones.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/586 Daniel Smith to John Rainey, 20 Jan 1770, 140
acres on N side of N Hico Creek, adj Annanias Allen - Robert Jones to Charles Mulhollan 18 Aug
1760, to Smith [RegLn 890].

Regln 749 Lawrence Vanhook to James Lea, 200 acres, proved by John Lea. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/447]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 750 Hugh Barnet to Richard Womack, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to Hugh Barnett, 27 Apr 1754, 200 acres on both
sides of Mayo Creek. Gv30, SSLG 83-L, ODB 1/66, ReglLn 144. Or Granville to Hugh Barnet,
[unknown], 200 acres on Adams Creek, SCC: William Guthrie, Robert Mitchell. Gv812, H5727?

North Carolina, Orange County}...November 1760.

ReglLn 751 Hugh Barnet to Robert McFarland, 573 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/447]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Barnett, 27 Jul 1760, 573 acres on both sides of Mayo Creek,
adj Robert Donaldson. Gv361, SSLG 83-L, RegLn 753.

Regln 752 Robert McFarland to Frederick Carlock, 573 acres, proved by . [Also proved at

OCPQS 1/447 for 255 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Barnett, 27 Jul 1760, 573 acres on both sides of Mayo Creek,
adj Robert Donaldson. Gv361, SSLG 83-L, RegLn 753.

Regln 753 Earl Granville to Hugh Barnet, 573 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/445]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Barnett, 27 Jul 1760, 573 acres on both sides of Mayo Creek,
adj Robert Donaldson. Gv361, SSLG 83-L.

ReglLn 754 Earl Granville to Anne McKee, 378 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Anne McKee, [no date], 378 acres in fork of Little River, adj James
Murdock, Allison, John Dunagan, William Boggan. Gv394, SSLG 95.1-E.
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Regln 755 Earl Granville to Henry Maddock, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 756 Earl Granville to James Murdock, 331 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Murdaugh, 19 Feb 1760, 331 acres on both sides of N Fork of
Little River, adj William Aldridge. Gv323, SSLG 96-0.

Regln 757 Earl Granville to James Holton, 482 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: ?Granville survey for James Holton Gv887, H5942, 682 acres

ReglLn 758 Earl Granville to James Merret [or Merrel?], 450 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 759 Earl Granville to William McP[h]erson, 227 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William McFerson, 6 Aug 1759, 227 acres on S side of Cane Creek &
S side of Haw River, adj Hugh Laughlin. Gv296, SSLG 95.1-C.



Regln 760 Wentworth Webb to Thomas Harris, 200 acres, proved by Thomas Loyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 761 Isaac Jackson to William Jackson, 200 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/447]

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/494 William Jackson to Christian Shy, 4 Aug 1761, 13
acres adj Christian Shy, Isaac Jackson - part of Isaac Jackson to William Jackson [ReglLn 761].

Regln 762 John May Sr to John May Jr, 520 acres, proved by John Brooks.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John May, 13 Feb 1756, 520 acres on M Fork of Tick Creek of Rocky
River of Deep River. Gv129, SSLG 96-D, ReglLn 318.

ReglLn 763 William Churton to Enoch Lewis, 1 acre, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/231 for lot G in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 764 William Petty Sr to William Petty Jr, 212 acres, proved by John Stewart.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB B/19 John Harrington to William Alston, 29 Apr 1775,
212 acres on S side of Robeson Creek - part of patent to William Petty [not found], [to] William
Petty Jr [ReglLn 764], to Charles Harrington [ODB 3/528], to son John Harrington, being part of
tract where Mial Scurlock now lives and the Courthouse of Chatham now stands and whereon
Agnes Harrington now lives.
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Regln 765 John Landrum to Richard Copeland, 200 acres, proved by John Stewart.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/183 John Landrum to John Copeland, 24 Sep 1773,
deed of trust on 200 acres on branch of Mill Creek, adj Copelands Spring Branch, where Thomas
Jones left Creek? - John Landrum Sr to Richard Copeland 10 May 1760 [RegLn 765].

Regln 766 John Webb to Thomas Webb, 264 acres, proved by Thomas King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 767 William Churton to James Watson, 400 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/483]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 768 James Taylor to Joseph Little, 550 acres, proved by .

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor, 8 Nov 1755, 550 acres on both sides of Country Line
Creek. Gv117, SSLG 101-B.

ReglLn 769 Alexander Mebane to Thomas Ogle, 612 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 770 Earl Granville to Nicholas Warren [sic], 221 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nicholas Wierman, 2 Aug 1760, 221 acres on Richland Creek, adj
Benjamin Cox. Gv391, SSLG 102-F.

Regln 771 William Carlisle to John Hunter, 200 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 772 William Armstrong to George Lumpkin, 431 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by CwDB L/69 Roger Atkinson Sr of Dinwiddie
County VA to Thomas Wilkerson of Pittsylvania County VA, 13 Dec 1798, 215 acres on N side of
Dan River, adj Atkinson formerly Mayo, William Dix - part of 430 acres [William Armstrong to]
George Lumpkin [ReglLn 772] to Roger Atkinson Sr 4 Aug 1765 [not found].

Regln 773 Benjamin Forrest to John Thompson, _ acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 774 Isaac Jackson [& wife Mary] to Samuel Money, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/490]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 11/253 Caleb Harvey & Mary [Money] Harvey to Robert
Neal, 26 Aug 1782, undivided fourth of 200 acres on both sides of Eno River, adj Alexander
Carson, Wilie, Spirit Branch - part of Granville to Isaac Jackson 27 Jul 1760 [Gv362, SSLG 93-F,
Regln 868], to Samuel Money 19 May 1761 [ReglLn 774], Money by descent to Mary being a
coheiress with her sisters Ann, Elisabeth & Rachel. [This Deed also recorded at ODB 2/388 &
ODB 2/475.]
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Regln 775 Earl Granville to Alexander Mebane, 612 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 769 to Thomas Ogle, ReglLn 1480 to Jacob Summers.

ReglLn 776 Michael Murrah to Richard Woods, 490 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/447]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/212 Benjamin Martin to William Johnston, 26 May
1755, 490 acres on S side of Haw River on Cane Creek, adj George Martin - Granville to Benjamin
Martin 10 Mar 1755 [Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9, ReglLn 117]. [Same deed at ODB 1/12, see also
ODB 1/11. Later to James Nethery ODB 1/156, to Michael Murrah ReglLn 421, to Richard Woods
ReglLn 776, after which see CDB B/182 for later title.]

Regln 777 Henry McCulloch to Richard Brownrigg, 992 acres, proved by James Lapslie.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1772 Richard Browning to Henry Eustice McCulloch,
992 acres, proved.

ReglLn 778 Henry McCulloch to George Reves, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/448 proved by William Reed]



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George
Reeves, 19 Dec 1759, 200 acres in Tract 12.

ReglLn 779 Henry McCulloch to Joshua Will[c]ocks, 510 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 780 Henry McCulloch to Joshua Will[c]ocks, 270 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 781 Henry McCulloch to Lodewick Swing, 159 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 34/17 Henry McCullock & Josiah Willcocks by agent
to Ludwick Swing, 159 acres.

Regln 782 Henry McCulloch to Joshua Will[c]ocks, 208 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 783 Earl Granville to James Murrah, 210 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Murray, 7 Jun 1754, 210 acres on both sides of Quaker Creek
of Haw River. Gv38, SSLG 96-0.

ReglLn 784 Earl Granville to William Combs, 181 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Combs, 22 Feb 1759, 181 acres on Mountain Creek of Flat
River, adj Churton. Gv268, SSLG 87-J.
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RegLn 785 William Comb to Michael Picket [Micajah Pickett], 181 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/490]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Combs, 22 Feb 1759, 181 acres on Mountain Creek of Flat
River, adj Churton. Gv268, SSLG 87-J, ReglLn 784.

Regln 786 Thomas Lindley Sr to Thomas Lindley Jr, 320 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 787 James Bowie to John Barbee, 270 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 788 William Wiley to William Forbus, 640 acres [or 641 acres?], proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 1/489 for 320 acres. This appears to have been about the beginning of ODB F.]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 789 William Wiley to William Forbus, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 790 William Wiley to Jacob Simmons, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/489 to Jacob Summers]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 791 William Wiley to Jacob Simmons [Jacob Summers], 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 792 Peter Youngblood [& wife Magdaline] to William Cox, 100 acres, proved by
acknowledgement. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/489]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/52 William Cox & Juliatha Cox to John Pickrell, 16 Jul
1771, 100 acres on E side of Deep River, adj Broadmouth Creek - Granville to Peter Youngblood
26 Oct 1759 [Gv318, SSLG 102-M], to Cox 8 May 1761 [RegLn 792].

ReglLn 793 Peter Youngblood [& wife Magdaline] to William Moffit, 225 acres, proved by
acknowledgement. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/489]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 794 John Jones to John Stanfield, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/489 John Jones to Thomas Stanfield proved by William Reed]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to John Jones, 23 May 1758, 320 acres on head
branches of Dry Creek, between Terrells Creek & Vernons Creek of Haw River. Gv231, SSLG 94-C
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Regln 795 Peter Youngblood to George Mash, 230 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 796 John Johnson to James Mims, 340 acres [or 346 acres?], proved by acknowledgement. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/490 for 346 acres proved by James Watson]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 515 James Dickey to John Johnson, 340 acres, proved
by William Reed.

Regln 797 Edward Wills to Abraham Miles, 490 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/490 Edward Williams & wife Sarah to Abraham Mills, 150 acres]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 798 Benjamin Blake to William Barnes, 490 acres, proved by Nathaniel Jones. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/489]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/108 John McCullers to Benjamin Blake, 8 Sep 1755,
490 acres on both sides of S Fork of Crabtree Creek, adj Francis Jones.

RegLn 799 Philemon Bradford to Richard Holleman, 200 acres, proved by William Blalock. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/489]



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 800 John Pryor to Luke Robinson, 500 acres, proved by Benjamin Long.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 801 Earl Granville to John Stewart, 640 acres, proved by Benjamin Long.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Stewart, 14 Mar 1759, 640 acres on S side of Haw River, on
Robersons Creek. Gv292, SSLG 100-F.

Regln 802 Earl Granville to John Brooks, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Brooks Jr, 23 May 1758, 640 acres on waters of Ephraims
Creek & Rocky River. Gv233, SSLG 85-F.

ReglLn 803 Earl Granville to Samuel Creig, 237.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 804 James Bird to David Bradford, 188 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/491]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/96 David Bradford to William Bradford, 20 May 1771,
188 acres on Stags Creek - Granville to James Bird [Gv351, SSLG 84-G, ReglLn 1950], Bird to David
Bradford 19 May 1761 [RegLn 804].
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ReglLn 805 Zachariah Martin to Thomas Fusell, 247 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/488 proved by Thomas Cate]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Zachariah Martin, 3 Feb 1761, 247 acres on Northeast Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj Moore. Gv479, SSLG 96-B. ReglLn 1610 Thomas Fussell to Thomas Persons esq,
247 acres. no survey

Regln 806 Earl Granville to Edward Teague, 405 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Teague, 21 Jul 1760, 405 acres on New Garden Road, near
Terrell's. Gv345, SSLG 101-C.

RegLn 807 Earl Granville to Samuel Barnet, 250 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Barnett, 25 Jul 1760, 250 acres on Gents Creek, adj William
Barnett. Gv357, SSLG 83-K.

Regln 808 Earl Granville to James Anderson, 641 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for James Anderson Gv804, H5413, 641 acres
ReglLn 809 Earl Granville to Burgoon Bird, 455 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Burgoon Bird, 22 Jan 1761, 455 acres on a branch of the Meadow of
Haw River, adj branch. Gv446, SSLG 84-G.



RegLn 810 Earl Granville to William Blakeley, 362 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Blakeley, 28 Jan 1761, 362 acres on Flat River, adj Osborn
Jefffries. Gv451, SSLG 84-H. ReglLn 1722 James Blackley to James Dinkins, 362 acres. See also
Regln 1738.

Regln 811 Earl Granville to William Ware, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Ware, 9 Jan 1761, 640 acres on both sides of Hogans Creek.
Gv438, SSLG 102-C.

ReglLn 812 Earl Granville to Moses Hollis, 162 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Moses Holles, 2 Jan 1761, 162 acres on N side of Dan River, adj
Gowing, Mayo. Gv430, SSLG 92-F.

RegLn 813 Earl Granville to John Satterfield, 151 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Satterfield, 9 Jan 1761, 151 acres on head of Richland Spring
Creek. Gv440, SSLG 99-J.

ReglLn 814 Earl Granville to Darbea Henley, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Derby Henley, 3 Aug 1760, 640 acres on both sides of Millstone
Creek. Gv418, SSLG 92-C.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...February 1761.
RegLn 815 Earl Granville to William Williams, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Williams, 4 Feb 1761, 640 acres on both sides of Williams
Creek, adj Phillips Creek. Gv482, SSLG 102-H. Later RegLn 288 William Williams to Lawrence
Vanhook. WDB G/38 Burwell Pope to Joseph Lane, Jr, 8 Feb 1785, 640 acres on both sides of
Williams Creek and on Days Branch - Granville to William Williams 4 Jan 1761 registered in
Orange County ODB E/28.

Regln 816 Earl Granville to Thomas Debow, 355 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Solomon Debow, 5 Aug 1760, 355 acres on both sides of Hico Creek,
adj McFarland, Campbell, John Harrison, Robert Thompson. Gv424, SSLG 88-M.

ReglLn 817 Earl Granville to Humphry Barnet, 198 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Humphrey Barnett, 2 Aug 1760, 198 acres on Hico Creek. Gv401,
SSLG 84-D.

RegLn 818 Earl Granville to James Acock, 595 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Aycock, 8 Jan 1761, 595 acres on head branch of Crabtree
Creek, adj Caswell, Young. Gv436, SSLG 83-A.



RegLn 819 Earl Granville to John Walker, 497 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Walker, 30 Jan 1761, 497 acres on both sides of Moons Creek.
Gv459, SSLG 102-B.

Regln 820 Earl Granville to William Reves, 660 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 821 Earl Granville to Benjamin Carter, 282 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Carter, 2 Aug 1760, 262 acres on both sides of Rattlesnake
Creek. Gv413, SSLG 86-E.

Regln 822 Earl Granville to Osborne Jeffers, 480 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Osborn Jeffreys, 7 Feb 1761, 480 acres on both sides of Flat River,
adj his other tracts, mouth of a branch, James Blakeley, Joseph Mumford. Gv490, SSLG 93-J.

RegLn 823 Earl Granville to Benjamin Long, 490 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Long, 4 Mar 1761, 490 acres on both sides of Stony Creek,
asj Thomas Laxton. Gv500, SSLG 95-L.
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ReglLn 824 Earl Granville to Benjamin Long, 365 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Long, 2 Mar 1761, 365 acres on both sides of Stony Creek,
adj fork. Gv499, SSLG 95-L.

Regln 825 Earl Granville to John Murdock, 355 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/132 John McNair to James Hogg, 13 Oct 177_, 355
acres on S Fork of Little River, adj Robert Wilson, Michael Synnott, Alexander Mebane - Granville
to John Murdock 7 Jun 1761 [RegLn 825], John Murdock & wife Elizabeth Murdock to Embree 3
Aug 1761 [ReglLn 1961], John Embree to MacNair 15 Jul 1774 [not found].

Regln 826 Earl Granville to Samuel Yarborough, 476 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Yarbrough, 28 Jan 1761, 476 acres adj Phillip Pryor, creek.
Gv454, SSLG 102-L.

RegLn 827 Earl Granville to William Chambers, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Chambers, 17 Jul 1760, 280 acres on Hughes Mill Creek.
Gv342, SSLG 86-G.

Regln 828 Earl Granville to Archilus Wilson, 283 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Archelaus Wilson, 3 Feb 1761, 283 acres on Quarrel Creek, adj
Richard Holeman, Philemon Bradford. Gv480, SSLG 102-I.

ReglLn 829 Earl Granville to John Alston, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Alston, 9 Feb 1761, 500 acres adj McCulloh, fork, Great Lick
Creek. Gv492, SSLG 83-D.

RegLn 830 Earl Granville to William Hollifield, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Holyfield, 11 Jun 1761, 700 acres on Upper Bartons Creek.
Gv517, SSLG 92-H.

ReglLn 831 Earl Granville to James Crawford, 201 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Crawford, 2 Aug 1760, 201 acres on S side of Deep River, on
Buffalo Creek or Tomlins Creek. Gv412, SSLG 88-G.

RegLn 832 Earl Granville to John Smith, 236 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Smith, 30 Jul 1760, 236 acres on Wolf Island Creek. Gv373,
SSLG 100-E.

Regln 833 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Kimbrough, _ acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Kimbro, 2 Aug 1760, 516 acres on Sycamore Creek of
Crabtree Creek. Gv397, SSLG 94-H.
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Regln 834 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Kimbrough, 252 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Kimbro, 25 Jul 1760, 252 acres on Bartons Creek. Gv360,
SSLG 94-G.

RegLn 835 Earl Granville to Spinkfield Brewer, 570 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Sackfield Brewer, 3 Aug 1760, 570 acres on Watery Fork of Cane
Creek. Gv415, SSLG 70-B, survey located in Orange County Loose Granville Papers, reel
S.108.279, image 727.

Regln 836 Earl Granville to Luke Smith, 222 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Luke Smith, 1 Aug 1760, 222 acres on forks of Brush Creek. Gv388,
SSLG 100-E.

RegLn 837 Earl Granville to Robert Cate, 560 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Cate, 5 Aug 1760, 560 acres on N side of Haw River, opposite
mouth of Terrells Creek, adj James Collins, Collins Creek, incl island. Gv422, SSLG 86-F.

Regln 838 Earl Granville to John Robinson, 157 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Robinson, 9 Jan 1761, 157 acres on Bold Branch of Country
Line Creek. Gv441, SSLG 99-E.

RegLn 839 Earl Granville to John Armstrong, 250 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2467 John Armstrong to Stephen Norton, 250 acres.



RegLn 840 Earl Granville to Samuel Henley, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by CDB A/250 William Hill to Frederick Cobb, 7
Jan 1774, 280 acres begin at sweet gum by river, E 20 ch to WO, N 54 ch to P, W 51.5 ch to
sweet gum on the island, down river to 1% sta. [Part of 400 acres Granville to Samuel Henley
ReglLn 840, otherwise not found, of which 280 acres to William Hill RegLn 2519. Later to John
Burt CDB B/379.]

Regln 841 Earl Granville to Marmaduke Kimbrough, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Marmaduke Kimbro, 2 Nov 1752, 640 acres on Polecat Creek.
Gv104, SSLG 94-G.

Regln 842 Earl Granville to Samuel Parks, 315 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Parks, 2 Aug 1760, 315 acres on New Hope Creek, adj Mark
Morgan, Barbee. Gv392, SSLG 97-E.

Regln 843 Earl Granville to Thomas Laxton, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for Thomas Laxon Gv907, H6093, 640 acres
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RegLn 844 Earl Granville to Alexander McCraken, 318 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander McCracken, 4 Aug 1760, 318 acres adj Pollock, Old
Courthouse Road. Gv420, SSLG 95.1-B.

Regln 845 Earl Granville to Robert Kilgore, 218 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Kilgore, 2 Aug 1760, 213 acres adj his own land. Gv396, SSLG
94-F.

RegLn 846 Earl Granville to John Reed, 218 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 847 Earl Granville to James Culverson, 360 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Culverson, 31 Jan 1761, 360 acres on both sides of N Hico
Creek & Lynches Creek, adj Bankston. Gv466, SSLG 88-H.

RegLn 848 Earl Granville to Lawrence Banckson, 595 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Lawrence Bankson, 23 Jan 1761, 585 acres on N Hico Creek, adj a
fork of Panther Creek. Gv449, SSLG 83-F.

Regln 849 Earl Granville to Argelus Henderson, 320 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Argulus Henderson, 15 Jul 1760, 320 acres on Haw River, adj bent of
Little Creek. Gv336, SSLG 92-B.

RegLn 850 Earl Granville to Luke Roberson, 550 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Luke Roberson, 2 Jan 1761, 550 acres on both sides of Hughes
Creek, adj Country Line, John Pryor. Gv431, SSLG 99-C.

ReglLn 851 Luke Roberson to William Almond, 150 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Later RegLn 1683 William Almond to William Stokes, 150 acres. ReglLn 2284
William Stokes to Roger Adkinson, 150 acres.

Regln 852 Earl Granville to John Carson, 337 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Carson, 11 Jun 17__, 337 acres on head branches of Big Creek
of Eno River, adj William Combs. Gv518, SSLG 86-D.

RegLn 853 Earl Granville to William Morris, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Morris, 7 Jun 1761, 240 acres on forks of Morrises Creek.
Gv505, SSLG 96-M.
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RegLn 854 Earl Granville to William McFurs[on], 231 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 855 Earl Granville to William Ursery [sic], 252 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to William Utley, 21 Jan 1761, 355 acres on both sides of White Oak
Swamp. Gv445, SSLG 101-L.

RegLn 856 Earl Granville to Joseph Talbert, 655 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Talbert, 7 Jun 1761, 655 acres on both sides of Stories Creek.
Gv502, SSLG 101-A.

ReglLn 857 Earl Granville to James Talbert, 552 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Talbert, 29 Jul 1760, 552 acres on waters of Richland Creek,
adj Lawrence Vanhook, Anderson. Gv369, SSLG 101-A.

RegLn 858 Earl Granville to John Curry, 118 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Curria, 5 Feb 1761, 118 acres on both sides of Lynches Creek of
N Hico Creek. Gv485, SSLG 88-H.

Regln 859 Earl Granville to James Currie, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Curria, 15 Jul 1760, 200 acres on Adams Creek. Gv335, SSLG
86-C.

RegLn 860 Earl Granville to Joseph Kirk, 375 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Kirk, 2 Oct 1761, 375 acres on S side of Haw River, adj
Copelands Island. Gv564, SSLG 94-].



RegLn 861 Earl Granville to Christopher Kirksey, 429 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Kirksey, 30 Jul 1760, 429 acres on N side of Haw River,
on Wilkersons Creek. Gv371, SSLG 94-J.

ReglLn 862 Earl Granville to John McManamy, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
RegLn 863 Earl Granville to Samuel Harrington, 394 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Turrentine, 29 Jan 1761, 394 acres in fork of Little River &
Buffalo Creek, adj Margaret Boggan, James Cheek, John Brown. Gv455, SSLG 101-K.
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ReglLn 864 Earl Granville to John Roberts, 120 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Roberts, 7 Jun 1761, 120 acres on ridges in fork of Rattlesnake
Creek, adj his own land, branch. Gv506, SSLG 99-D.

RegLn 865 Earl Granville to Thomas Swift, 260 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Swift, 2 Oct 1761, 260 acres on waters of Sandy Creek,
called Swift's Choice, adj Harmon Husband, the bents of a branch. Gv536, SSLG 100-J.

ReglLn 866 Earl Granville to George Poplin, 550 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Poplin, 2 Oct 1761, 550 acres on Bear Creek of Rocky River.
Gv557, SSLG 98-C.

Regln 867 Earl Granville to Alexander Going, 600 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Gowan, 15 Jul 1760, 600 acres on both sides of Hogans
Creek. Gv338, SSLG 91-B.

Regln 868 Earl Granville to Isaac Jackson, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Jackson, 27 Jul 1760, 280 acres on both sides of Eno River, adj]
Alexander Carson, Jackson. Gv362, SSLG 93-F.

Regln 869 Earl Granville to Joseph Cantril, 157 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Cantrell, 22 Feb 1759, 157 acres on Toms Creek of Stony
Creek. Gv280, SSLG 86-A.

RegLn 870 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbee, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 11 Jun 1761, 500 acres on Northeast Creek of New
Hope Creek, adj Barbee, Mark Morgan. Gv522, SSLG 83-F. no survey

Regln 871 Earl Granville to Peter King, 560 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter King, 8 Jan 1761, 560 acres on Little Troublesome Creek,
branches of Pruits Fork. Gv434, SSLG 94-|.

ReglLn 872 Earl Granville to Robert Samuel Breshear, 381 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Samuel Brashears, 8 Aug 1760, 381 acres on N Buffalo Creek
& S Buffalo Creek, adj Donnell, John McKnight. Gv426, SSLG 85-B.

Regln 873 Earl Granville to Nathan Milton, 350 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathan Melton, 30 Jul 1760, 300 acres on N side of Haw River.
Gv374, SSLG 96-D.
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ReglLn 874 Earl Granville to Richard Straghan, 357 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Straughan, [unknown], 357 acres on Prestwoods Creek of
New Hope Creek, adj Francis Day, SCC: John Barbee, Henry Key. Surveyed on 11 Oct 1758 by
William Churton. Gv973, H6496, ReglLn 874. ReglLn 920 Richard Strain to William Castleberry,
357 acres. Regln 1381 William Castleberry to Paul Castleberry, 357 acres. [Paul Castelberry to
John Booth not found.] ReglLn 2355 John Booth to John Allen, 357 acres. ODB 4/412 John Allen
to John Davis, 27 Jan 1791, 357 acres on Presswoods Creek, adj Day, Francis Gray.

Regln 875 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Harrilson, 326 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Harrelson, 2 Mar 1761, 326 acres adj creek, Nathaniel
Reynolds, Joseph Doolittle. Gv498, SSLG 91-H.

RegLn 876 Earl Granville to James Denny, 375 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Denny, 2 Oct 1761, 375 acres on Pea Creek of Eno River, adj
Goss, Denny, Moons Branch. Gv554, SSLG 89-A.

ReglLn 877 Earl Granville to Ralph Holyfield, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Ralph Holyfield, 9 Jun 1761, 300 acres on Sycamore Creek of
Crabtree Creek. Gv510, SSLG 92-H.

RegLn 878 Earl Granville to Miles Parker, 175 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Miles Parker, 26 Apr 1753, 175 acres on Northwest River of Cape
Fear River, adj Campbell. Gv8, SSLG 97-E.

ReglLn 879 John Gordon to John Lawrence, 375 acres, proved by Zachariah Martin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 880 Earl Granville to John Patterson, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 881 Earl Granville to William Reed, 480 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Reed, 2 Aug 1760, 480 acres on Deep River & Brush Creek.
Gv390, SSLG 98-K.

RegLn 882 John Collins to Joseph Walker, 115 acres, proved by Augustine Hendry.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 883 Daniel McCullen to John McCullen, 220 acres, proved by .
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 884 Ann Anderson to John Anderson, 204 acres, proved by William Anderson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 385

RegLn 885 Ann Anderson to David Anderson, 204 acres, proved by William Anderson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 385

ReglLn 886 William Morris to Thomas Willson, 204 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 887 Christopher Huston to Thomas Burton, 286 acres, proved by Nathaniel Reynolds.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/272 Thomas Barton Jr to George Roebuck Sr, 17 Jun
1778, 186 acres on Moons Creek - part of Granville to Christopher Huston 18 Sep 1761, to
Thomas Barton Sr [ReglLn 887]. [Later to Richard Moore CwDB A/187.]

ReglLn 888 Robert Jones Jr to Jeremiah Ward, 1686 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described at ODB 3/288 John Ward to William Buster, 15
Mar 1770, 265 acres on both sides of Wolf Island Creek, adj Ward - [?part of 1685 acres Robert
Jones Jr to] Jeremiah Ward [RegLn 888] to John Ward [RegLn 1648]. [Later to Claudius Buster
GDB 1/402 et seq.]

ReglLn 889 Thomas Laxon to James McDaniel, 191 acres, proved by Thomas Barton.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to Thomas Laxon, 1761, 381 acres on Country Line
Creek, adj Joseph Dolittle. Gv908, H6095, ReglLn 843. ODB 3/305 James McDaniel & Mary
McDaniel to Lewis Barton, 24 Mar 1770, 116 acres on both sides of Country Line Creek, adj
Thomas Laban, Lynn - part of Granville to Thomas Laxon 1761.

Regln 890 Charles Mulholland to Daniel Smith, 140 acres, proved by John Lea.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/586 Daniel Smith to John Rainey, 20 Jan 1770, 140
acres on N side of N Hico Creek, adj Annanias Allen - Robert Jones to Charles Mulhollan 18 Aug
1760 [ReglLn 748], to Smith.

RegLn 891 Earl Granville to Thomas Gibson, 200 acres, proved by John Lea.

Chilton’s notes: H1595. See ODB 3/468 and 3/401.



ReglLn 892 Earl Granville to Thomas Gibson, 50 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.
Chilton’s notes: H1594.
ReglLn 893 Thomas Dobbins to Adam Leakey, 245 acres, proved by Francis Wright.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 6 Nov 1755, 245 acres on both sides of N Hico
Creek, adj Stapler, Mary Maxwell. Gv108, SSLG 89-E, ReglLn 451.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...May 1761.
ReglLn 894 William Searcey to Enoch [S]Pinks, 150 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 5/175 John Spinks & Salley Spinks to Nicholas Nall of
Moore County NC, 15 Feb 1794, 150 acres on Deep River, adj William Reed - being same more or
less Granville to William Searcy 9 Jun 1761 [Gv511, SSLG 100-A, ReglLn 1947], to Enoch Spinks 1
Aug 1761 [RegLn 894], to John Spinks by father’s will dated 12 Mar 1772 [GWB A:328].

RegLn 895 William Searcey to William Reed, 300 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by RaDB 1/42 William Reed Sr of Guilford County to my son
William Reed, 25 Jan 1779, lands not yet laid off, adj Deep River, apple orchard, branch, spring,
Arthur Reed. Witness: Arthur Reed, John Johnston. [See Granville to William Searcy Gv511, SSLG
100-A, Regln 1947, also ReglLn 8957?]

RaDB 2/195 William Read to John Read, 22 Dec 1785, 75 acres on N side of Deep River, adj
Richard Bird, a row of apple trees, Kerr - being part of Granville to William Searcy [Gv511, SSLG
100-A, Regln 1947], to William Reed 1 Aug 1761 [RegLn 895]. Witness: Arthur Read, Richard
Bird.

RaDB 2/12 William Reed Sr & Sarah Reed to Richard Bird, 23 May 1783, 90 acres on E side of
Deep River, adj row of apple trees, spring branch, Arthur Reed, Ransom Sutherland - incl the
spring & part of the orchard. Witness: Winsor Perce, John Read. [See Granville to William Searcy
Gv511, SSLG 100-A, Regln 1946, also ReglLn 895. See also RaWB 2/4 for a renunciation of any
interest of William Reed Jr, who once had received a deed for this land, but the deed was said to
have been destroyed in a fire.]

ReglLn 896 William Satterfield to John Conwell, 151 acres, proved by James Bowie.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Satterfield, 9 Jan 1761, 151 acres on head of Richland Spring
Creek. Gv440, SSLG 99-J, ReglLn 813. ReglLn 899 to William Satterfield,

ReglLn 897 John Patterson esq to Thomas Oden, 250 acres, proved by James Bowie.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 898 Thomas Laxton to Niel McCoy, 210 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 1028 Niel McCoy to Henry Lewis, 210 acres.



ReglLn 899 John Satterfield to William Satterfield, 151 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Satterfield, 9 Jan 1761, 151 acres on head of Richland Spring
Creek. Gv440, SSLG 99-J, ReglLn 813. Later ReglLn 896 to John Conwell.

Regln 900 William Jay to William Jay Jr, 115 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 901 William Petty to Theophilus Petty, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 902 John Barbee to Christopher Barbe, 292.5 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 903 John Sharp to Nathaniel Walton, 200 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/491]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 904 Gabriel Davey to George Flynn, 166 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/235 David Stroud to Moses Bridges, 9 Aug 1769, 166
acres on Mayo Creek, adj Gabriel Davey - part of Granville to Gabriel Davey 27 Jan 1762
[Granville survey for Gabriel Davey Gv850, H5732, ReglLn 1933], Davey to George Flynn [ReglLn
904], Flynn to Stroud [ReglLn 2428].

Regln 905 John Trice to John Trice Jr, 200 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 906 John Trice to Edmund Trice, 640 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 907 John Carragen to William Jackson, 244 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/540 Ralph McNair to Joseph Glasson, 11 Aug 1770,
244 acres on Spirit Branch & Eno River, adj William Wylie, Hugh Woods - [Granville to John
Carragan Gv834, H5607, ReglLn 2014, to] William Jackson [RegLn 907] to MacNair 19 Nov 1767
[Regln 2576].

ReglLn 908 James Cainey to William Warmon [or Wierman?], 450 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 909 James Bowie to Reason Wright, 200 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 910 Reason Whitehead to John Hinchey, 200 acres, proved by William Reed.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 911 John Carragan to William Wiley, 60 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but part of Granville to John Carragan, [unknown], 304 acres on S
side of Eno River, on Spirit Branch, adj Wiley, Jackson, Hugh Woods. Gv834, H5607.
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Regln 912 Peter Craven to John Pryor, 597 acres, proved by James Bowie.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Craven, 14 Oct 1761, 597 acres on Deep Creek of Flat River,
adj John Bumpass. Gv592, SSLG 88-F, ReglLn 2123.

North Carolina, Orange County}...August 1761.

Regln 913 James Dochester to William Serjant, 327 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 914 Niel McNiel to Joseph Mims, 320 acres, proved by Plunket Ballard.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 915 Nathaniel Walton to Henry Corl, 402 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: to Nathaniel Walton Gv340, SSLG 102-C, 402 acres.

Regln 916 Torquil McNiel to Jacob Leveans, 320 acres, proved by Plunket Ballard.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 917 William Aldrige to Nathaniel Howard, 54 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 918 Joseph Copland to Joseph Copeland, 163 acres, proved by James Sellars.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 919 Luke Smith to Nehemiah Howard, 90 acres, proved by William Aldridge.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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RegLn 920 Richard Strayhan to William Castleberry, 357 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Straughan, [unknown], 357 acres on Prestwoods Creek of
New Hope Creek, adj Francis Day, SCC: John Barbee, Henry Key. Surveyed on 11 Oct 1758 by
William Churton. Gv973, H6496, ReglLn 874. ReglLn 1381 William Castleberry to Paul Castleberry,
357 acres.

Regln 921 Thomas Bradford to Michael Roberson, 420 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.



Chilton’s notes: The part of Granville to Thomas Bradford Patent Book 11:322 not covered by
0ODB 1/113.

Regln 922 Henry Shaddock to John Record, 510 acres, proved by Joseph Brantley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 923 John Landrum to John Sellers, 100 acres, proved by Peter Sullenger.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 924 Valentine Hollingsworth to John Pyle, 13 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 925 David Hembre to David Alley, 400 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2092 Earl Granville to David Hambree [Embree], 400
acres.

Regln 926 James Taylor to John Taylor, 213 acres, proved by James Bowie.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 8/237 James Taylor to John Taylor, 10 Sep 1755, 213
acres on forks of Eno Creek or River, adj the easternmost branch of Eno River, James Taylor,
Robert Taylor, Alexander Lackey - part of tract from Governor Gabriel Johnston 10 Aug 1751.

Regln 927 John Brantley to William Riddle, 148 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/107 James Riddle & wife Temperance to Anthony
Minter, 12 Dec 1771, 148 acres in fork of Cape Fear River. [Formerly Hector McNiel to John
Brantley ReglLn 497, to William Riddle ReglLn 927.]

Regln 928 James Lindley to John Lambert, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Lindley, 8 Jan 1761, 640 acres on Terrells Creek, adj mouth of
Lick Branch. Gv433, SSLG 95-I.

Regln 929 William Forrest to James Browning, 65 acres, proved by Martin Dayle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 930 James Forrest to John Spencer, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 931 John Stewart to Zachariah Martin, 200 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/315 Benjamin Drummond & Ann Drummond to James
Massey, 16 Jan 1770, 200 acres on Mullins Branch. [Granville to John Stewart Gv359, SSLG 100-
G-1, Regln 1934, to Zachariah Martin RegLn 931, to Benjamin Drummond ReglLn 1663.]

Regln 932 Thomas Lindley to John Spurlin, _ acres, proved by William Reed.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/416 John Spurling to Lewis Kirk, 23 Jan 1772, tract on
S side of Cane Creek, N side of Haw River, above the Piney Mountain - Granville to Thomas
Lindley 4 May 1757 ODB E/10 [Gv200, SSLG 95-J.]

RegLn 933 Charles Saxton to Peter Sullenger, 400 acres, proved by Charles Landrum.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 934 Daniel Gold to Joseph Borin, 300 acres, proved by Joseph Dolittle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 935 Christopher Huston to Venerias Turner, 85 acres, proved by Joseph Dolittle.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/127 Joseph Porter & Jannet Porter to Reuben Estes,
1Jan 1779, 85 acres on S side of Moons Creek - part of Granville to [Christopher Huston Gv476,
SSLG 93-E, Regln 1953, to Venerias] Turner [Regln 935, to Joseph Porter Regln 2471].

ReglLn 936 Hugh Dobbin to Jacob Roberson, 292 acres, proved by James Dobbin.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 8 Nov 1755, 292 acres on both sides of Country
Line Creek. Gv111, SSLG 89-F, ReglLn 277.

North Caroina, Orange County}...November 1761.

ReglLn 937 James McDaniel to John Lay [Loy], 292 acres, proved by John Graves.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 938 Zachariah Martin to James Vestal, 75 acres, proved by John Graves.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 939 Christopher Rhodes to Solomon Barnes, 593 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Per ODB
3/450 this was formerly ODB H/54.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 29 Jul 1760, 593 acres on both sides of
Crooked Creek of New Hope Creek, adj Mark Morgan, Joseph Barbee. Gv370, SSLG 99-A, ReglLn
1212.

RegLn 940 William Lackey to David Vestal, 35.25 acres, proved by affirmation of James Vestal.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 941 Edward Moore to Henry Ford, 137 acres, proved by Joseph King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 942 Henry Grace to John Whitsel, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 943 Robert Cate Sr to Isaac Cantril, 280 acres, proved by Robert Cate Jr.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 944 William Petty to Rebecca Petty, _ acres, proved by Elizabeth Petty.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 945 Jacob Mason to Thomas King, 1 acre, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 946 William Reed to Jacob Mason, 2 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/357 for 2 lots in Hillsborough]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 947 William Cox to John Wood, 70 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/86 James Denny to William Cox, 10 Sep 1755, 70
acres on Eno River - incl plantation of William Cox, part of Granville to James Denny 12 Mar 1755
[Gv73, SSLG 88-M, ODB 1/84, ReglLn 150].
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ReglLn 948 John Finley to Hugh Emsley, 248 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 949 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 550 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 950 Earl Granville to Enoch Lewis, 480 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 28 Jun 1762, 480 acres on Buckhorn Creek of Cape
Fear River, adj Henry Shaddock, Lewis. Gv657, SSLG 95-H.

ReglLn 951 John Scarlet to John Railey, [part of] 700 acres, proved by John Reaves.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/36 John Riley to John Poteat, 20 Aug 1778, tract on S
side of Eno River - part of 700 acres from John Scarlett to Riley [RegLn 951]. [Granville to John
Scarlet Gv538, SSLG 99-L.]

Regln 952 Robert Baker to John McMunn, 157.5 acres, proved by John Taylor.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 953 Jessey Hollingsworth to James Vessey, 320 acres, proved by Herman Husbands.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 954 David Mims to Drury Mims, 320 acres, proved by Plunket Ballard.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 955 James Cheek to William Brian, 100 acres, proved by James Clark.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/54 William Brian & Jennet Brian to William Jamison,
31 Aug 1773, 100 acres on N Fork of Little River, adj Hoovers Branch, Colonel Brown, William
Briany, mouth of spring - part of grant from Granville [to James Cheek] 27 Feb 1759 [Gv265,
SSLG 86-I, Regln 1536, to William Brians ReglLn 955].

Regln 956 John Barbee Jr to John Patterson, 247 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 957 James Dorcaster to Abraham Fulkerson, 250 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 958 William Forrest & Benjamin Forrest & John Mannen to Thomas Forrest, 209 acres, proved
by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 959 William Forrest & Thomas Forrest & John Mannen to Benjamin Forrest, 209 acres, proved
by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 960 William Forrest & Thomas Forrest & Benjamin Forrest to John Mannen, 200 acres, proved
by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/261 William Forrest & Thomas Forrest & Benjamin
Forrest to John Mannin, 4 May 1762, 200 acres on S side of Eno River, adj Benjamin Forrest. This
deed is Reg'd from a coppie taken from ODB H/90. Proved May 1762 by acknowledgment.

North Carolina, Orange County}...February 1762.
ReglLn 961 Joseph Dolittle to John Fuller Lane, 220 acres, proved by John Graves.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2651 John Fuller Lane to John Graves, 220 acres.
Regln 962 Thomas Brooks to John Daniel, 125 acres, proved by William Barston.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/228 John McDaniel to Thomas Brooks, 3 Jun 1769,
125 acres between Tick Creek & Rocky River - part of [Granville to] Thomas Brooks [Gv546, SSLG
85-F,] to McDaniel [ReglLn 962].

ReglLn 963 Joseph Mims to Richard Hill, 328 acres, proved by Henry Braswell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 964 Mary Maxwel to David Maxwel, 155 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/60 Roger Atkinson to Joseph moore, 12 May 1778,
155 acres on both side of Hico Creek, adj Reedy Fork - bought of David Maxwell.

ReglLn 965 Joseph Shear to John Emsley, 248 acres, proved by William Reed.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 966 Warham Glenn to James Alston, 288.5 acres, proved by John Alston.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 967 Michael Dixon to Edward Nash, 300 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 968 Benjamin Saxton to William Nunn, 660 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Saxon, 11 Jun 1761, 660 acres on Northeast Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj George Martin. Gv527, SSLG 99-K, ReglLn 2031.

Regln 969 Henry Warren to William Barnes, 100 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 970 Thomas Williams to Charles Boun, 250 acres, proved by James Bowie.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 971 Peter King to Richard Simpson, 560 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter King, 8 Jan 1761, 560 acres on Little Troublesome Creek,
branches of Pruits Fork. Gv434, SSLG 94-|, RegLn 871.

ReglLn 972 Henry McCulloch to Elias Powel, 143 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Elias Powell, 24
May 1761, 143 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 973 John Patterson to John Barbey, 277 acres, proved by James Bowie.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 974 Warham Glenn to John Alston, 288 acres, proved by James Alston.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 975 Alexander Mebane to Robert Tinning, 356 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Mebane, 13 Nov 1756, 356 acres on S side of Cane Creek,
on N side of Haw River, about a mile above the Piney Mountain. Gv189, SSLG 96-D, ReglLn 320.
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ReglLn 976 John Telfair to Charles Thompson, 154 acres, proved by John Bledsoe.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 977 Francis Jones to Francis Wright, 363 acres, proved by Charles Thompson.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 978 Moses Hollis to Nortley Hollis, 80 acres, proved by Alexander Going.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to Moses Holles, 2 Jan 1761, 162 acres on N side of Dan River,
adj Gowing, Mayo. Gv430, SSLG 92-F.

Regln 979 Jacob Mason to Robert Reed, 1 acre, proved by Robert Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 980 William Barnes to Henry Warren, 120 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 981 William Barnes to Henry Warren, 120 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

North Carolina, Orange County}...May 1762.

Regln 982 Christopher Kirksey to Gedian Kirksey, 160 acres, proved by Richard Spinks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 983 John Stewart to Robert Marsh, 220 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: CDB D/173 Robert Marsh to Nathan Stedman, 1786, three tracts, first
tract, 220 acres adj William Marsh [John Stewart to Robert Marsh ReglLn 983]; second tract, 30
acres adj road, Blackston, James Massey, Robert Marsh - part of Granville to John Stewart
[Granville to John Stewart Gv359, SSLG 100-G, ReglLn 1934, to Robert Marsh CDB A/159]; third
tract, 100 acres on waters of Haw River, adj his own land.
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Regln 984 Thomas Tucker to John Blasinger, 50 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 985 Alexander Going to George Whitton, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 986 Thomas Tucker to Thomas Westcoat, 50 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 987 Henry McCulloch to James McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 988 Henry McCulloch to Jacob Boon, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



RegLn 989 Earl Granville to Luke Lea, 174 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Luke Lea, 14 Oct 1761, 174 acres on a branch of S Fork of Country
Line Creek. Gv589, SSLG 95-F.

Regln 990 Earl Granville to William Graves, 401 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Graves, 3 Feb 1761, 401 acres on Little Brush Creek of Deep
River. Gv481, SSLG 91-E.

ReglLn 991 Earl Granville to John Scarlet, 349 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for John Scarlett Gv963, H6430, 349 acres. Later RaDB 2/193
John Scarlet & wife Mary to William Common Jr, 349 acres.

Regln 992 Henry Whitehead to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 202 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 993 John Powel to Henry Eustice McCulloch, _ acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Powell, 13
Oct 1762, 907 acres in Tract 11. Largely described by:

ODB 2/368 William O’Neal & Elizabeth O’Neal to Philip Albright, 12 Feb 1783, 100 acres on S
side of Haw River, adj Ludwick Albright - part of Henry McCulloh to John Powell [RegLn 993, to
William O’Neal not found].

ODB 5/13 William O’Neal & Elizabeth O’Neal to Phillip Albright, 25 Jan 1788, 150.5 acres on both
sides of Haw River, adj Phillip Albright, Mulhollan, Phillip Albright - part of Henry E McCulloh to
John Powell [ReglLn 993, to William O’Neal not found].

ODB 6/73 John Powell & Mary Powell to Elias Powell Jr, 19 Jan 1779, 139 acres on S side of Haw
River, adj Elias Powell Sr - part of 970 acres Henry McCulloh to John Powell Sr [RegLn 993, to
John Powell not found].

ODB 6/69 Everard Garrett to Ludwick Albright Jr, 7 Jul 1797, 173 acres on waters of Little
Alamance Creek, adj Jeremiah Holt - part of Henry E McCulloh to John Powell Sr [RegLn 993, to
Everard Garrett not found]. [Later to George Albright Jr ODB 13/475.]

ODB 6/112 Everard Garrett to John Holt Jr, 28 Jul 1797, 100 acres on both sides of Little
Alamance Creek, place formerly purchased by William Garrett, adj William O'Neal, a big road,
Ephraim Cook, John Albright, William Dixon - part of Henry McCulloh to John Powell Sr [RegLn
993, to Everard Garrett not found].

ODB 6/115 Everard Garrett to William Dixon, 28 Jul 1797, 127 acres on waters of Little Alamance
Creek, adj John Holt, John Albright - Henry E McCulloh to John Powell [RegLn 993]. [Later to
Jeremiah Holt ODB 13/445, to Everard Garrett not found.]

Depending on whether one believes this was 907 acres total or 970 acres total, the above deeds
leave either 117.5 acres or 180.5 acres unaccounted for.
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ReglLn 994 Peter Griffle to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 202 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Gevell, 18
Sep 1762, 202 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 995 Bernard Clap to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1122 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2191 Henry McCulloch to Bernard Clapp, 1122 acres.

Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Barnard Clapp, 18 Sep 1762, 1122 acres in
Tract 11.

ReglLn 996 Peter Elfrod [Efland] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1070 Henry McCulloch esq to Peter Efland, 210 acres.

Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Eiffland, 11 Sep 1762, 210 acres in
Tract 11.

ReglLn 997 Robert Hunter to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 317 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Robert Hunter, 12 Oct
1763, 316 acres in Tract 11. See also RegLn 1086 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Robert Hunter. Not
found, but see ODB 4/678 Robert Hunter to Matthew Hunter, 23 Feb 1793, 316 acres on W side
of Haw River, adj Robert Ray deceased, the Potter's old field - Henry E McCulloh to Robert
Hunter 22 Sep 1762. Proved Feb 1793 by Joseph Pindar.

Regln 998 Thomas Paul to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 228 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/186 Peter Herman to George Foust, 1 Apr 1786, 228
acres on Great Alamance Creek - Henry McCulloh to Paul Herman father of Peter Herman 11 Sep
1762 [ReglLn 1079]. Your mother has nothing to say to your Deed. | say | have nothing to say,
given under my hand Catharine Redennour, Peter Rule. ReglLn 1079 Henry McCulloch to Paul

Harmon, 228 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Paul Harmon, 11 Sep
1762, 228 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 999 Charles Adams to Henry Eustice McCulloch, _ acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1087 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Charles Adams. Also
cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Charles Adams, 24 Jun 1763, 200 acres in Tract
11. Regln 2405 Charles Adams to John Petton.

ReglLn 1000 Charles Adams to Henry Eustice McCulloch, _ acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Charles Adams, 20 Oct
1763, 297 acres in Tract 11. Partly described by ODB 5/78 Robert Ray Sr to Robert Ray Jr, 1 Jan
1790, 150 acres on Great Alamance Creek, adj S Branch of Alamance Creek, John Trousdale -
part of Henry Eustice McCulloh to Charles Adams [ReglLn 1000 & ReglLn 1093], to Robert Ray

[ReglLn 2408] & also of a State grant. [Later to William Ray Jr ODB 5/79, to Jonathan Lindley ODB
5/677.]



ReglLn 1001 Isaac Gresson to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 275 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/19 Nicholas Greeson & Margaret Greeson to John
Hawkins, 4 Mar 1787, 275 acres in Orange County & Guilford County, on both sides of Beaver
Creek of Alamance Creek, adj Daniel May - to Granville [actually McCulloh] to Isaac Greeson 11
Sep 1762 [ReglLn 1001].

Regln 1002 Peter Noe to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 507 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1080 Henry McCulloch esq to Peter Noe, 507 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Noe, 8 Sep 1762, 507 acres in Tract
11.

ReglLn 1003 John Shaddy to Henry Eustice McCulloch, _ acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2175 Henry McCulloch to John Shad[dy], 200 acres,
proved by Robert Rainey. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Shady, 7 Oct
1762, 200 acres in Tract 11.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...November 1762.

ReglLn 1004 Peter McNath [William McMath] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Robert
Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to William McMath, 11 Sep
1762, 200 acres in Tract 11. ODB 7/311 William Clendinnen to Joseph Clendenin, 4 Aug 1790,
200 acres on Varnels Creek - part of 100000 acres granted Henry McCulloh 3 Mar 1745 known as
Tract #11, to William McMath [RegLn 1004] to William Clendenin 30 May 1765, registered ODB
I/467 [RegLn 1899]. [Later to Jonathan Lindley ODB 11/142.]

RegLn 1005 Nicholas Holt to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 275 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1081 Henry McCulloch esq to Nicholas Holt, 225 acres.
ReglLn 1006 John Holt to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1065 Henry McCulloch esq to John Holt, 200 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Holt, 11 Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract
11.

Regln 1007 Joseph Walker to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 247 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: This deed of trust recorded at GvDB F/538 Joseph Walker to Henry Eustace
McCulloh, 4 Sep 1762, 247 acres whereon Walker lives.

ReglLn 1008 Daniel May to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 327 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 1067 Henry McCulloch esq to Daniel May, 321 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Daniel May, 13 Sep 1762, 327 acres in Tract
11.



Regln 1009 Adam Lawrence to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 320 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 4/138 Adam Lawrence & wife Susannah to William
Shaver, 17 Aug 1786, 320 acres on both sides of Great Alamance Creek, adj David Low’s mill -
Henry McCulloh to Adam Lawrence. See also RegLn 1077 Henry McCulloch esq to Adam
Lawrence, 320 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Adam Lawrance, 11
Sep 1762, 320 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1010 Nicholas Counts to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 250 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/142 Nicholas Cuntz & Mary Cuntz to Thomas
McCulloch, 7 Mar 1772, 250 acres in Guilford County & Orange County, mostly in Guilford, on
Stinking Quarter Creek, adj 2 rocks on a hill, spring branch - part of Tract 11 from McCulloh to
Cuntz 14 Sep 1763 [ReglLn 1061, ReglLn 1010].

Regln 1011 Benjamin Clements to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 215 acres, proved by Edward Edwards.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1012 Thomas Hart to Abraham Penn, 637 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Brashear, 17 Jul 1760, 637 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv330,
SSLG 85-A, Regln 1910.

Regln 1013 John Oliver to Abraham Hilton, 162 acres, proved by Dyal Pevey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1014 Robert Reed to James Hunter, 325 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Reed, 15 Mar 1759, 325 acres on both sides of Piney
Mountain Creek & branches of Bakers Creek. Gv293, SSLG 98-J, RegLn 634.

ReglLn 1015 John Spence to William Helliams, 100 acres, proved by Francis Nash. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/32]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1016 Reason Rickets to Thomas Hart, 450 acres, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1017 David Jenkins to Robert Hogings, 300 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to David Jenkins, 30 Jun 1762, 600 acres on Mill Creek of Deep
River. Gv682, SSLG 93-1-9, ODB 2/567. ReglLn 2357 Robert Hodgin to James Brown, 357 acres.
GDB 1/57 Robert Hudgins & Theodeal Hudgins to Sarah Duskin, 7 Oct 1771, 140 acres on Mill
Creek of Deep River, part of tract where Hudgins now lives, adj James Brown, Christopher
Kersey - David Jenkins to Hudgens 26 Jan 1763. GDB 1/62 James Brown to Robert Brown, 5 Nov



1771, 160 acres on Mill Creek of Deep River, where James Brown now lives, adj a small run,
Hodgins - Granville to David Jenkins 13 Jun 1762, to Robert Hodges, to James Brown.

ReglLn 1018 David Jenkins to Christian Husey, 300 acres, proved by Adam Moffet.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by RaDB 7/108 Christopher Hussey & wife Mary to William
Richards, 6 Sep 1785, 140 acres on Mill Creek of Deep River, adj mouth of a spring branch -
being part of Granville to David Jenkins 30 Jun 1762 [Gv682, SSLG 93-1, ODB 2/567], to
Christopher Hussey [RegLn 1018]. Proved Feb 1797 by Enoch Davis.

RaDB 7/173 Christopher Hussey to Robert Hodgin, 10 Nov 1787, 20 acres on Mill Creek of Deep
River, adj mouth of a spring branch - being part of Granville to David Jenkins 19 Jun 1762
[Gv682, SSLG 93-1, ODB 2/567], to Christopher Hussey [RegLn 1018]. Proved May 1797 by Henry
Ramsower.

Regln 1019 Valentine Braswel to John Harrington, 160 acres, proved by Henry Braswel.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1020 Earl Granville to Robert Brashear, 640 acres, proved by James Watson. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/38]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Brashear, 6 Dec 1761, 640 acres on Reedy Fork of Haw River,
adj Barzil Brashear, Buffalo Creek. Gv609, SSLG 85-B.

Regln 1021 James Bridges to John Bridges, 350 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to James Bridges, 13 Oct 1761, 340 acres on Cub Creek of Tar River,
adj Absolam Lankson. Gv580, SSLG 85-E, ReglLn 2119.
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Regln 1022 John Lambert to John Boling, 150 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/34 to John Baldwin]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

North Carolina, Orange County}...February 1763.

ReglLn 1023 Sarah Corl to Nathaniel Watson, bill of sale, proved by John Armstrong.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1024 John Hinchey to Reason Whitehead, 200 acres, proved by James Bowie. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/37 to Reason Ricketts, deed of mortgage]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1025 Robert Shearman to Robert Lytle, 320 acres, proved by Francis Nash.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 24 James Taylor to Judith Cotes, 320 acres, proved by
[acknowledgement]. Also Nuncupative will of Judith Coates in Halifax County VA left 320 acres



to Robert Shearman. Regln 1025 Robert Shearman to Robert Lytle, 320 acres, proved by Francis
Nash.

Regln 1026 Robert Jones to Adam Lynum, 400 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1027 Archibald Smith to William Lackey, 90 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/34 Arthur Smith to William Lackey]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1028 Niel McCoy to Henry Lewis, 210 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 898 Thomas Laxton to Niel McCoy, 210 acres.

Regln 1029 John Bradley [John Brantley] to William Ridley [William Riddle], 700 acres, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/67 Jeremiah Minter to John Minter, 1 Feb 1772, 500
acres on N side of Deep River - part of 700 acres Granville to John Brantley [Gv688, SSLG 85-A],
to William Riddle [RegLn 1029], to Jeremiah Minter [RegLn 1701].
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Regln 1030 William Wiley to Walter Welsh, 640 acres, proved by William Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Lewis, 16 Feb 1758, 640 acres on Sizemores Branch of Tick
Creek. Gv225, SSLG 95-H. Enoch Lewis to William Wiley RegLn 605.

Regln 1031 Nehemiah Howard to William Lacky, 90 acres, proved by John McDaniel.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1032 Nehemiah Howard to William Lackey, 54 acres, proved by John McDaniel.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1033 Robert Jones Jr to John Dunnagan, 384 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/33 to William Dunagan]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1034 John Hylotte [John Hyatt] to Adam Coble, 107 acres, proved by George Coble.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 7/208 Adam Coble to John Hornaday, 27 Oct 1795, 107
acres on Cane Creek, adj Henry McCulloh's boundary, Robert Stout - Henry McCulloh to Adam
Coble 20 Mar 1750 [RegLn 1034].

ReglLn 1035 Thomas Count Sr to Thomas Count Jr, 150 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1036 Henry Watson to James Crow, 640 acres, proved by Henry Watson.



Chilton’s notes: 640 acres Granville to William Martin 2 May 1750

Regln 1037 Ezekiel Shaddock to Richard Cheek, 320 acres, proved by John Armstrong.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1038 William Rainey to John Grant [Gant], 200 acres, proved by Stephen Merret.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1039 Charles Brown to David Mitchel, 250 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1040 Thomas Lawson to John Graves, 190 acres, proved by John Graves.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1041 Sarah Fountain to Thomas Roberson, _ acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1042 James Horton to Arthur Mangum, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 2/43 Arthur Mangum to Solomon Morgan, 1 May 1777,
4 acres on a branch of Dials Creek - part of James Horton to Mangum [ReglLn 1042].

Regln 1043 Thomas Capper [& wife] to James Trice [Jr], 320 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also
proved at OCPQS 2/32 proved by acknowledgement]

Chilton’s notes: The half of Gv605 not covered by ODB 34/6.
Regln 1044 Joseph Pinson to Charles Roberson, 80 acres, proved by Daniel Weldon.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/522 Harmon Husband to Jacob Gregg, 5 Aug 1768,
eight tracts...eighth tract on N side of Deep River - part of Granville to Joseph Pinson 11 Jun 1761
[Gv596, SSLG 98-B, Regln 1914], to Charles Robertson 15 Dec 1762 [RegLn 1044], 80 acres
Charles Robertson to George Roberts [Regln 2274], Roberts to Husband 13 Sep 1768 [not
found].

Regln 1045 Joseph Pinson to Thomas Dowdy, 50 acres, proved by John Cantril.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1046 John Oliver to Samuel Oliver, 168 acres, proved by Dyal Perry.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1877 Samuel Oliver to Jeremiah Fields, 168 acres.

ODB 3/435 Jeremiah Fields & Mary Fields to Henry Smith, 18 Apr 1772, tract where John Hilton
now lives, adj John Oliver, George Fogleman, Peter Hilton, an old survey made for Mr Brownrigg.

Regln 1047 Peter Youngblood to John Youngblood, 100 acres, proved by Joseph Stubbs.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/542 John Youngblood & Mary Youngblood to Thomas
Greave, 22 Jul 1769, 100 acres on Meadow Creek of Rocky River, adj meadow - part of Granville
to Peter Youngblood 13 Jun 1762 [Gv669, SSLG 102-M, ReglLn 1180], Peter Youngblood to John
Youngblood 4 Mar 1763 [ReglLn 1047].

ReglLn 1048 David Phillips Sr to Jenning Thompson, 200 acres, proved by Stephen Merret.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/348 John Moore & Mary Moore to William Oneal, 25
Jan 1772, 200 acres on both sides of Nelsons Branch - Granville to David Philips 20 Jun 1762
[Gv655, SSLG 97-K, to Jennings Thompson Regln 1048, to John Powell Regln 2277, to John
Moore ODB 3/353].

Regln 1049 James Young to James Yancey, 470 acres, proved by Henry McCoy.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 1050 Alexander Mebane [& wife] to William Mebane, 240 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
[Also proved at OCPQS 2/37]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1051 Peter Youngblood to Thomas Graves, 640 acres, proved by Joseph Stubbs.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Youngblood, 30 Jun 1762, 640 acres on Meadow Creek of
Rocky River. Gv669, SSLG 102-M, ReglLn 1180.

Regln 1052 James Anderson to Andrew Cadle, 640 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/555 Andrew Caddel & Jean Caddel to Elizabeth
Anderson, 18 Aug 1768, 100 acres on both sides of Richland Creek - part of 640 acres Granville
to James Anderson [Gv804, H5413, ReglLn 808], Anderson to Andrew Cadle 18 Jan 1763.

ReglLn 1053 John Fuller to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Hugh Smith.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Fuller, 13
Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1054 John Campbell to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 300 acres, proved by William Lowther.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1055 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1320 acres, proved by [blank].

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry E
McCulloh, 20 Nov 1763, 1320 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1056 Henry McCulloch to John Marshal, 216 acres, proved by John Frohovk.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Marshall,
__,216 acresin Tract 11.



Regln 1057 Henry McCulloch to William Marshal, 200 acres, proved by John Frohock.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1058 Henry McCulloch to David Lowe, 302 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/252 Conrad Lowe & Rosannah Lowe to David Lowe, 8
Jul 1773, 302 acres on both sides of Little Alamance Creek, adj Adam Lawrence.

Regln 1059 Henry McCulloch to Anthony Maser [Moser], 220 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Anthony Moser,
8 Sep 1762, 220 acres in Tract 11.
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Regln 1060 Henry McCulloch to Peter Poor, 202 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by

ODB 9/183 Peter Poor to Frederick Shofner, 25 Nov 1799, 101.2 acres on both sides of S Fork of
Stinking Quarter Creek, adj Willis.

ODB 10/57 Peter Poor to John Coble, 10 Jan 1800, 101 acres on Stinking Quarter Creek, adj
Frederick Shofner.

Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Poor, 14 Sep 1762, 202 acres in Tract
11.

Regln 1061 Henry McCulloch esq to Nicholas Counts, 250 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/142 Nicholas Cuntz & Mary Cuntz to Thomas
McCulloch, 7 Mar 1772, 250 acres in Guilford County & Orange County, mostly in Guilford, on
Stinking Quarter Creek, adj 2 rocks on a hill, spring branch - part of Tract 11 from McCulloh to
Cuntz 14 Sep 1763 [ReglLn 1061, ReglLn 1010].

Regln 1062 Henry McCulloch esq to Adam Smith, 320 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/361 Joseph Revoner & Mary Revoner to Eadon Smith,
101 acres?

ReglLn 1063 Henry McCulloch esq to Samuel Lowe, 250 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Samuel Low, 13
Sep 1762, 250 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1064 Henry McCulloch esq to Isaac Gresson, 907 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Isaac Grayson,
11 Sep 1762, 907 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1065 Henry McCulloch esq to John Holt, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1006 John Holt to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Holt, 11 Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract
11.

Regln 1066 Henry McCulloch to John McGee, 401 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 7/268 John McGee to Thomas Reives Sr of Chatham
County NC, 25 Aug 1797, 401 acres on head waters of Stinking Quarter Creek, adj John Barton.
Proved Nov 1798 by Thomas Rives Jr.

Regln 1067 Henry McCulloch esq to Daniel May, 321 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1008 Daniel May to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 327
acres.

North Carolina, Orange County}...May 1763.
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Regln 1068 Henry McCulloch esq to Benjamin Phillips, 560 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Benjamin
Phillips, 10 Sep 1762, 250 acres in Tract 11?

Regln 1069 Henry McCulloch to John Oliver, 562 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Oliver, 13
Sep 1762, 562 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1070 Henry McCulloch esq to Peter Efland, 210 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 996 Peter Elfrod [Efland] to Henry Eustice McCulloch,
200 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Eiffland, 11 Sep 1762, 210
acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1071 Henry McCulloch esq to Peter Lowe, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Low, 10
Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract 11. Partly described by GDB 7/194 Peter Low to Adam Low, 10 Mar
1800, 88 acres on both sides of Great Alamance Creek, adj Peter Low, McBrides Branch, McCann
- part of 200 acres surveyed Nov 1760 by Robert Rainey to Peter Low as part of estate of Henry
McCulloh & Robeson & Willcox in three tracts Number Eleven, said to be registered in Orange
County ODB H/271 [RegLn 1071].

Regln 1072 Henry McCulloch to George Coble, 202 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2204 George Coble to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George Coble, 13 Sep 1762, 202
acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1073 Henry McCulloch esq to Jeremiah Piggot, 209 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Jeremiah
Piggott, 13 Sep 1762, 209 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1074 Henry McCulloch esq to Archibald Morrison, 432 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Regln 2337 Archibald Morrison to James Harbison, [288 acres of] 432 acres.
ReglLn 1584 Archibald Morrison to John Lynn, 144 acres. Partly described by ODB 3/375 James
Harbison by Sheriff to Samuel Suther, 27 Mar 1771, 288 acres on waters of Alamance, adj John
Fuller, path - levy on James Harbison pursuant to order of Rowan Court 5 Sep 1770. ODB 3/24
Samuel Suther to Henry Kegg, 18 Dec 1786, 288 acres adj John Lynn, Adam Smith.

ReglLn 1075 Henry McCulloch to Jacob Coble, 202 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Jacob Coble, 13
Sep 1762, 202 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1076 Henry McCulloch esq to John Grisson, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/81 John Gresson & Hannah Gresson to Christian
Foust, 7 Sep 1771, 200 acres on Great Alamance Creek - Henry Eustace McCulloh to John
Greeson 10 Sep 1760 [ReglLn 1076].

Regln 1077 Henry McCulloch esq to Adam Lawrence, 320 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 4/138 Adam Lawrence & wife Susannah to William
Shaver, 17 Aug 1786, 320 acres on both sides of Great Alamance Creek, adj David Low’s mill -
Henry McCulloh to Adam Lawrence. See also ReglLn 1009 Adam Lawrence to Henry Eustice
McCulloch, 32[0] acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Adam Lawrance, 11
Sep 1762, 320 acres in Tract 11.
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Regln 1078 Henry McCulloch to Peter Holt, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Holt, 17
Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1079 Henry McCulloch to Paul Harmon, 228 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/186 Peter Herman to George Foust, 1 Apr 1786, 228
acres on Great Alamance Creek - Henry McCulloh to Paul Herman father of Peter Herman 11 Sep
1762 [ReglLn 1079]. Your mother has nothing to say to your Deed. | say | have nothing to say,
given under my hand Catharine Redennour, Peter Rule. ReglLn 998 Thomas Paul to Henry Eustice
McCulloch, 228 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Paul Harmon, 11 Sep
1762, 228 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1080 Henry McCulloch esq to Peter Noe, 507 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1002 Peter Noe to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 507
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Noe, 8 Sep 1762, 507 acres in
Tract 11. Apparently this was soon divided thus:



Regln 1413 Peter Noe to Thomas Rich, [184] acres, proved.

Regln 2281 Peter Noe to Joseph Noe, 323 acres, proved by John Butler. This latter part is
described by ODB 3/503 Joseph Noe & Caty Noe to John Counce, 11 Jan 1771, 100 acres on S
side of Haw River, adj Thomas Rich [Thomas Rike] - part of Henry E McCulloh to Peter Noe
[Regln 1080], to Joseph Noe [ReglLn 2281].

Regln 1081 Henry McCulloch esq to Nicholas Holt, 225 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 1005 Nicholas Holt to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 275
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Nicholas Holt, 16 Sep 1762, 275 acres
in Tract 11.

Regln 1082 Henry McCulloch to James Alston, 190 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/58 James Alston & Gilly Alston to Robert Abercrombie
Jr, 27 Nov 1777, 190 acres on both sides of Ellerbe Creek, adj drain, Borland. [RegLn 1082 Henry
McCulloch to James Alston, 190 acres.]

ReglLn 1083 Henry McCulloch to Thomas Branson, 577 acres, proved by Thomas Branson.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by CDB C/214 Thomas Branson to James Wier, 10 May 1784,
200 acres on waters of Rocky River, adj Thomas Hill and William Piggott - part of Henry McCulloh
to Thomas Branson 12 Jan 1761 [ReglLn 1083] and part of 640 acres Granville to Thomas Branson
[Gv65, SSLG 84-B].

CDB D/7 Thomas Branson to Levi Branson, 23 Jul 1785, 115 acres on a branch of Rocky River, adj
Wiers, Levi Branson - Henry McCulloh to Thomas Branson 12 Jan [Regln 1083].

Regln 1084 Henry McCulloch esq to Michael Holt, 232 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Michael Holt, 14
Nov 1761, 510 acres in Tract 11?

Regln 1085 Lodewick Isle to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 257 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Ludowick Isley, 14 Sep
1762, 257 acres in Tract 11. Not found, but see ODB 4/652 John Huffman to Adam Whitsell, 4
Feb 1793, 276 acres on Gun Creek of Great Alamance Creek, adj Christian Huffman - Henry
Eustace McCulloh [to Ludwick Isley RegLn 1085] to Michael Charles [RegLn 1406].

ReglLn 1086 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Robert Hunter, 316 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Robert Hunter, 12 Oct
1763, 316 acres in Tract 11. See also ReglLn 997 Robert Hunter to Henry Eustace McCulloh. Not
found, but see ODB 4/678 Robert Hunter to Matthew Hunter, 23 Feb 1793, 316 acres on W side
of Haw River, adj Robert Ray deceased, the Potter's old field - Henry E McCulloh to Robert
Hunter 22 Sep 1762. Proved Feb 1793 by Joseph Pindar.

Regln 1087 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Charles Adams, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Charles Adams, 24 Jun
1763, 200 acres in Tract 11. Not found but see RegLn 999 Charles Adams to Henry Eustice
McCulloch, ReglLn 2405 Charles Adams to John Petton.
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Regln 1088 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Nicholas Gresham, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1089 Henry Eustice McCulloh to George Sharp, 214 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 1090 Henry Eustice McCulloh to George Coutney [Cortner/Gortner], 494 acres, proved by
Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1091 Henry Eustice McCulloh to George Lienbesher [Linerbuger/Lineberry], 242 acres, proved
by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Half of this described at GDB 1/271.

North Carolina, Orange County}...Aug 1763.

Regln 1092 Henry Eustice McCulloh to William Davis, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1093 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Charles Adams, 297 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Charles Adams, 20 Oct
1763, 297 acres in Tract 11. Partly described by ODB 5/78 Robert Ray Sr to Robert Ray Jr, 1 Jan
1790, 150 acres on Great Alamance Creek, adj S Branch of Alamance Creek, John Trousdale -
part of Henry Eustice McCulloh to Charles Adams [RegLn 1000 & ReglLn 1093], to Robert Ray
[ReglLn 2408] & also of a State grant. [Later to William Ray Jr ODB 5/79, to Jonathan Lindley ODB
5/677.]

ReglLn 1094 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Joseph Wells, 208 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1095 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Lodewick Albright, 325 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1096 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Thomas Kennon, 202 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1097 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Samuel Underwood, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1098 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Samuel Underwood, 305 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1099 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Henry and Alexander Underwood, 363 acres, proved by Robert
Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1100 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Bevelley, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1101 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Henry Strader, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1102 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Barnard Troxwell [Barnard Troxler], 732 acres, proved by
Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1103 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Martin Loyd [Martin Loy], 347 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1104 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Fredrick Lowe, 932 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1105 Henry Eustice McCulloh to George Coble Jr, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1106 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Christian Hofman [Huffman], 290 acres, proved by Robert
Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1107 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Jacob Gresson, 223 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1108 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Anthony Coble Jr, 450 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1109 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Andrew Rudulph, 388 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/197 ODB 3/197 Andrew Rudolph & Mary Rudolph to
Anthony Coble, 18 Jan 1770, 388 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek, adj John Barton,



Christian Morris, Henry Eustace McCulloh Tract 7 - McCulloh to Rudolph 8 Jun 1763 [ReglLn
1109, Regln 2215].

Regln 1110 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Jacob Lineberry, 388 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1111 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Joseph Trotter, 561 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by GDB 7/528 William Moode by attorney John
Dixon to William Jones, 29 Mar 1802, 253 acres on Trotters Branch of Stinking Quarter Creek -
part of 561 acres McCulloh to Joseph Trotter 7 Jun 1761 [Regln 1111 & Regln 2150 & ReglLn
2162], to William Moode 3 Nov 1764 [ReglLn 1746]. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry
McCulloh to Joseph Trotter, 7 Jun 1763, 516 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1112 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Henry Camara, 300 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1113 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Thomas Rich, 430 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1114 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Holt, 215 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1115 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Nutts, 268 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 5/328 Peter Rame to Isaac Greeson, 5 Mar 1792, 100
acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek & Beaver Creek, adj Barnet Clap, David Low - Henry
McCulloh to John Nutts [ReglLn 1115], to Peter Reme 1764 [not found].
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Regln 1116 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Aaron Sharp, 262 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1117 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Francis Lineburger, 554 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1118 Henry Eustice McCulloh to George Coble, 360 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1119 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Samuel Oliver, 203 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1120 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Robert Lindley, 476 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 1121 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Marshal, 500 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1122 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Butler [John Bulla], 414 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1123 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Thomas Lynn, 410 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1124 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Joseph Clapp, 620 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1125 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Daniel McDaniel, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1126 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Barbee, 479 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1127 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Phillemon Clapp, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1128 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Michael Holt, 300 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1129 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Coble, 353 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1130 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Thomas Brichen, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1131 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Henry Whitsell, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1132 Henry Eustice McCulloh to James Davison, 616 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1133 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Lodewick Swing, 370 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described GDB 1/356.

Regln 1134 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Joseph Peavy, 744 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2156 Joseph Bevey to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 744
acres.

Regln 1135 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Peter Hilton, 247 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: See also ReglLn 2202 Robert Hilton to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 217 acres. Also
cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Helton, 28 Jun 1763, 217 acres in Tract 11.
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North Carolina}...November 1763.

Regln 1136 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Greshon, 531 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1137 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Christian Morris, 239 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 1/41 John Morris & wife Margaret to Christian Spoon,
2 Jul 1782, 231 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek & Rocky River, adj Andrew Rudolph,
John Barton - being part of Henry McCulloh to Christian Morris [RegLn 1137], by will to John &
Margaret [not found].

Regln 1138 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Michael Sting [Swing?], 256 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/146 John Smith & Margaret Smith to John Long &
John Clark, 21 Oct 1785, 184 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek - Henry McCulloh to
Michael King 2 Jun 1763 [RegLn 1138, to John Smith ReglLn 1906].

Regln 1139 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Adam Whitsel, 706 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1140 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Thomas Mitchel, 256 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1141 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Boon, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1142 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Thomas Fuller, 260 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1143 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Alexander Jansey, 304 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1144 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Mansfield Crow, 992 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 1145 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Tobias Clapp, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1146 Henry Eustice McCulloh to George Counts, 222 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1147 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Abraham Hilton, 210 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1148 Henry Eustice McCulloh to James Albright, 215 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1149 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John [Mc]Comb, 280 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1150 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Lodewick Isle [Lodwick Isley], 257 acres, proved by Robert
Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1151 Jacob Gresson to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 223 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Grayson,
10 Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1152 Henry McCulloch esq to Malachi Isley, 1100 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. [Also proved
at OCPQS 2/33]

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Malachy Isley,
14 Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1153 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1100 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry
Eustace McCulloh, 1 Jul 1763, 1100 acres in Tract 12.

[Page 126]
Regln 1154 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1035 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry
Eustace McCulloh, 1 Jul 1763, 1035 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1155 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1050 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry
Eustace McCulloh, 1 Jul 1763, 1050 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1156 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1499 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry
Eustace McCulloh, 1 Jul 1763, 1449 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1157 Henry McCulloch to John Wood, 308 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/414 Patrick McCulloch to William Johnston, 250
acres? Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Woods, 20 Jul 1763, 308 acres
in Tract 12.

Regln 1158 Henry McCulloch esq to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1350 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at Johnston County Deed Book D1/158 Henry McCulloh to
Henry Eustace McCulloh, 13 Jul 1763, 1350 acres in Orange County & Johnston County, part of
Tract 12, adj a good spring, Cabin Branch, Brury Branch, Little Lick Creek, Chinquapin Creek. Also
cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry Eustace McCulloh, 30 Jul 1763, 1350 acres
in Tract 12.

Regln 1159 Bartholomew Dunn to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1590 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Bartholomew
Dunn, 7 Jun 1763, 1590 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1160 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Jacob Whithrone, 1692 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1161 Nicholas Pundrick to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1386 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1263 Henry McCulloch to Nicholas Puntrick, 1386
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Nicholas Puntrick, 16 May 1763, 1386
acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1162 Nicholas Bulls to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 975 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 1262 Henry McCulloch to Nicholas Bulls, 975 acres.

ReglLn 1163 Nicholas Pundrick to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 887 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1164 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Bartholomew Dunn, 1590 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1165 Henry McCulloh esq to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1135 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1166 Earl Granville to Middleton Breashear, 256 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Middleton Brashear, 4 Feb 1761, 256 acres on Reedy Fork of Haw
River. Gv484, SSLG 85-B.



Regln 1167 Earl Granville to William Churton, 450 acres, proved by Thomas Child.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 21 Nov 1761, 450 acres on a branch of Hogans
Creek, adj Stubblefield. Gv598, SSLG 87-A.

Regln 1168 Earl Granville to William Churton, 256 acres, proved by Thomas Child.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1169 Earl Granville to William Churton, 512 acres, proved by Thomas Child.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 2 Feb 1762, 512 acres on Lick Fork of Hogans
Creek. Gv636, SSLG 87-B.

Regln 1170 Earl Granville to William Churton, 480 acres, proved by Thomas Child.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 1 Dec 1761, 480 acres on a branch of Country Line
Creek, adj Harts Road. Gv600, SSLG 86-J.

Regln 1171 Earl Granville to William Churton, 632 acres, proved by Thomas Child.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 2 Dec 1761, 632 acres on waters of Richland Creek
of S Hico Creek, adj Sargeant, Thomas Anderson, William Brooks. Gv601, SSLG 87-A.

Regln 1172 Earl Granville to William Churton, 450 acres, proved by Thomas Child.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 29 Nov 1761, 450 acres on Cabin Branch of Hogans
Creek, adj Jones. Gv599, SSLG 87-C.

Regln 1173 Earl Granville to William Churton, 460 acres, proved by Thomas Child.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 22 Feb 1759, 460 acres on S side of Eno River, on
Dutchmans Creek, adj Pattersons Path, Col Corbin. Gv266, SSLG 87-D.
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ReglLn 1174 Earl Granville to William Churton, 488 acres [sic], proved by Thomas Child.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to William Churton, 26 Jan 1762, 484 acres on Lick Fork of Hogans
Creek. Gv635, SSLG 87-F. [Surveyed for Charles Metcalf.]

Regln 1175 Earl Granville to William Churton, 450 acres, proved by Thomas Child.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1176 Earl Granville to William Churton, 526 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 3 Dec 1761, 526 acres on ridge between Cobb
Creek & S Hico Creek, adj branch. Gv602, SSLG 87-E. [Surveyed for Charles Metcalf.]

Regln 1177 Earl Granville to William Churton, 520 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 7 Apr 1762, 520 acres on Sirrats Spring Branch of S
Hico Creek. Gv647, SSLG 86-H.



Regln 1178 Earl Granville to William Churton, 468 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 23 Aug 1762, 468 acres on Rambos Branch of Hico
Creek. Gv687, SSLG 87-D.

Regln 1179 Earl Granville to James Bowie, 240 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bowie, 24 Apr 1754, 240 acres on head branches of Ellerbee
Creek. Patent Book 14:357.

ReglLn 1180 Earl Granville to Peter Youngblood, 640 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Youngblood, 30 Jun 1762, 640 acres on Meadow Creek of
Rocky River. Gv669, SSLG 102-M.

Regln 1181 Earl Granville to Thomas Capper, 640 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Capper, 6 Dec 1761, 640 acres on Second Fork of New Hope
Creek, adj John Patterson, Rhodes. Gv605, SSLG 86-B.

Regln 1182 Earl Granville to James McMiillion [sic], 693 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McMelian, 6 Oct 1761, 693 acres on Hogans Creek, adj
Alexander Gowing. Gv574, SSLG 95.1-F.

Regln 1183 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Powel, 688 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Powell, 30 Dec 1762, 688 acres on Deep River, adj King.
Gv767, SSLG 98-D.
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Regln 1184 Earl Granville to John McGee, 133 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McGee, 22 Dec 1762, 133 acres on waters of Sandy Creek of
Deep River. Gv755, SSLG 95.1-C.

Regln 1185 Earl Granville to Charles Clanton, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Charles Clanton, 9 Dec 1762, 700 acres on Robersons Creek of Haw
River, adj John Stewart, Petty. Gv710, SSLG 86-H.

Regln 1186 Earl Granville to Isaac Julian, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Julian, 29 Dec 1762, 280 acres on a branch of Polecat Creek of
Deep River. Gv763, SSLG 94-E.

Regln 1187 Earl Granville to Henry Braswel, 346 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1188 Earl Granville to James McLeroy, 550 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Mickleroy, 30 Jun 1762, 550 acres on Mount Pleasant Creek
of Sandy Creek, adj John Allred. Gv671, SSLG 96-E.

ReglLn 1189 Earl Granville to Thomas Perkins, 360 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Perkins, 6 Dec 1761, 360 acres on S Fork of Little River, adj
Robert Jones. Gv622, SSLG 97-K.

Regln 1190 Earl Granville to Needham Bryant, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Needham Bryant, 28 Jun 1762, 700 acres on Beaver Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv660, SSLG 85-H.

Regln 1191 Earl Granville to Robert Cheek, 241 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Cheek, 8 Dec 1762, 241 acres on Tices Creek, adj County line.
Gv702, SSLG 86-I.

Regln 1192 Earl Granville to George Smith, 190 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Smith, 6 Dec 1761, 190 acres on N side of Haw River. Gv625,
SSLG 100-D.

Regln 1193 Earl Granville to William Cannon, 328 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1194 Earl Granville to Stephen Loyd, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Stephen Lloyd, 13 Jan 1763, 700 acres on Morgan Creek, adj Capt
Lloyd, Henry Morris. Gv788, SSLG 95-J.

Regln 1195 Earl Granville to David Hart, 292 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to David Hart, 6 Aug 1759, 292 acres on a branch of Horsleys Creek &
Country Line Creek. Gv300, SSLG 91-J.

ReglLn 1196 Earl Granville to Phillip Dosset, 145 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Phillip Dossett, 15 Dec 1762, 135 acres on Crooked Run of Eno River,
adj Johnston, Synnott. Gv736, SSLG 89-H.

Regln 1197 Earl Granville to Henry Haze, 566 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Haise, 7 Jun 1761, 566 acres on Country Line Creek, adj Hugh
Dobbins. Gv508, SSLG 92-A.

Regln 1198 Earl Granville to Luke Bynum, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Luke Bynum, 30 Jun 1762, 700 acres on New Hope Creek, adj John
Falconer, Parker. Gv680, SSLG 84-G.



Regln 1199 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Jones, 61 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Jones, 6 Dec 1761, 61 acres on Wests Branch of Crabtree
Creek, adj Young, Jones, Edward Hening. Gv615, SSLG 94-D.

Regln 1200 Earl Granville to Edward Wilburne, 425 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Wilborn, 30 Jun 1762, 425 acres on both sides of Sandy
Creek, adj Seymour York. Gv674, SSLG 102-D.

Regln 1201 Earl Granville to William Griffin, 552 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Griffin, 15 Dec 1762, 552 acres on Pokeberry Creek of Haw
River, adj Richard Parker. Gv735, SSLG 91-F.

Regln 1202 Earl Granville to John Julian, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Julian, 29 Dec 1762, 200 acres on a branch of Bush Creek of
Deep River, adj Wilson. Gv765, SSLG 94-E.

ReglLn 1203 Earl Granville to William Allred, 296 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Allred, 11 Dec 1762, 296 acres on Bush Creek of Deep River.
Gv726, SSLG 83-D.
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Regln 1204 James Watson to Robert Watson, 2 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1205. Earl Granville to Jacob Barnes, 478 acres [578 acres?], proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jacob Barnes, 8 Dec 1762, 578 acres on Bear Creek of Rocky River.
Gv705, SSLG 83-J.

Regln 1206 Earl Granville to John Dennis, 375 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Dennis, 2 Oct 1761, 375 acres on the Trading Path, adj Isaac
Jackson, Christian Shy. Gv553, SSLG 89-A.

Regln 1207 Earl Granville to Gedion Kirksey, 483 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gideon Kirksey, 29 Dec 1762, 483 acres on Haw River, adj Robert
Patterson Edward Kirksey, Nathan Melton, Joseph Walker - incl the Cedar Island. Gv766, SSLG
94-).

ReglLn 1208 Earl Granville to John Hopkins, 206 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Hopkins, 11 Dec 1762, 206 acres on Deep River, adj Solomon
Allred, Argulus Ogle. Gv723, SSLG 92-I.

Regln 1209 Earl Granville to Malachi Fikes, 438 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Malachi Fikes, 2 Oct 1761, 438 acres on Phils Creek of New Hope
Creek, adj Michael Waldrop, Reed. Gv572, SSLG 90-E.

Regln 1210 Earl Granville to William Dunagan, 202 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Dunagan, 16 Dec 1762, 202 acres on waters of Little River,
adj Edmund Fanning, Thomas Dunagan. Gv740, SSLG 89-J.

Regln 1211 Earl Granville to Oliver Brewer, 690 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Oliver Brewer, 9 Dec 1762, 690 acres on Wilkersons Creek of Haw
River, adj Henry Brewer. Gv714, SSLG 85-E.

Regln 1212 Earl Granville to Christian Rhodes, 533 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 29 Jul 1760, 593 acres on both sides of
Crooked Creek of New Hope Creek, adj Mark Morgan, Joseph Barbee. Gv370, SSLG 99-A.

Regln 1213 Earl Granville to John Carington, 580 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Carrington, 31 Jan 1761, 581 acres on Flat River, adj Thomas
Gibson. Gv838, H5619, ReglLn 1213. ?0DB 3/401 John Bridges & Elizabeth Bridges to Henry
Bridges, 25 May 1770, 100 acres, two tracts of land on S side of Flat River, adj mouth of Deep
Creek - one tract part of Granville to Thomas Gibson 2 May 1752, Gibson to John Bridges 10 Feb
1770, other tract Granville to John Carrington 7 Jun 1761, to John Bridges 24 May 1770 [not
found]. CwDB B/43 David Mitchell to Dempsey Moore, 3 Jan 1783, 210 acres on Flat River -
Granville to John Carrington 31 Jan 1761.
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Regln 1214 Earl Granville to Stephen Norton, 153 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Stephen Norton, 21 Dec 1762, 152 acres on waters of Adams Creek,
adj James Curria. Gv753, SSLG 97-C.

Regln 1215 Earl Granville to Samuel Bumpass, 486 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Bumpass, 13 Oct 1761, 486 acres on waters of Tar River, ad]
Samuel Yarbrough, Robert Bumpass. Gv581, SSLG 85-I.

Regln 1216 Earl Granville to James Ta[l]bert, 649 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Talbert, 14 Oct 1761, 649 acres on Richland Creek of Hico
Creek, adj James Anderson, Talbert, Bankson. Gv587, SSLG 101-A.

Regln 1217 Earl Granville to Henry Reynolds, 420 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Reynolds Jr, 4 May 1762, 421 acres. Gv648, SSLG 99-G.
Regln 1218 Earl Granville to William Wiley, 484 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 1219 Earl Granville to Thomas Petman, 550 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Pitman, 15 Mar 1756, 550 acres on both sides of Haw River,
adj Little Creek, island, Travis Creek. Gv145, SSLG 98-B.

Regln 1220 Earl Granville to John Pryor, 698 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Pryor, 20 Dec 1762, 698 acres on waters of Mayo Creek, adj
Frederick Carlock, Robert Donaldson. Gv750, SSLG 98-F.

Regln 1221 Earl Granville to Gilbert Patterson, 350 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gilbert Patterson, 6 Feb 1761, 350 acres on S side of Deep River, adj
Zachariah Martin, mouth of Buffalo Creek. Gv487, SSLG 97-H.

Regln 1222 Earl Granville to John Pryor, 429 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Pryor, 20 Dec 1762, 429 acres on Hico Creek, adj Humphrey
Barnett, Beaver Branch, James Stewart. Gv749, SSLG 98-F.

Regln 1223 Earl Granville to John Posey, 407 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Posey, 17 Dec 1762, 407 acres on S side of Rocky River, adj
Ambrose Smith. Gv745, SSLG 98-C, ODB 9/67.
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Regln 1224 Earl Granville to John Rainey, 290 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Rainey, 7 Jun 1761, 290 acres on N side of Dan River, on Cane
Creek, adj the Country Line, Mayo. Gv503, SSLG 98-G.

Regln 1225 Earl Granville to James Crow, 425 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Crow, 28 Jun 1762, 525 acres on Phils Creek, adj Henry
Morris. Gv666, SSLG 88-H.

Regln 1226 Earl Granville to Thomas Flynn, 91 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Flynn, 6 Dec 1761, 91 acres on waters of Deep Creek of Flat
River, adj Col James Payne. Gv629, SSLG 90-G.

Regln 1227 Earl Granville to George Roe, 425 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Roe, 5 Jan 1763, 425 acres on Great Creek of Rocky River, adj
Aaron Harlan. Gv776, SSLG 99-F.

ReglLn 1228 Earl Granville to Reuben Young, 240 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/32]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Reuben Young, 6 Mar 1762, 240 acres on Buffalo Creek of Little
River. Gv641, SSLG 102-L.

Regln 1229 Earl Granville to Thomas Daniel, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Donnell, 16 Dec 1762, 700 acres on N Buffalo Creek of Haw
River, adj Hamilton, Robert Brashear. Gv741, SSLG 88-J.

ReglLn 1230 Earl Granville to Stephen Clayton, 117 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Stephen Clayton, 8 Dec 1762, 117 acres on Stoney Creek of Haw
River. Gv700, SSLG 87-G.

Regln 1231 Earl Granville to James Crow, 225 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Crow, 30 Jun 1762, 225 acres on S side of Haw River. Gv675,
SSLG 88-H.

Regln 1232 Earl Granville to Thomas Lewis, 165 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Lewis, 2 Oct 1761, 165 acres on both sides of Eno River.
Gv563, SSLG 95-H.

Regln 1233 Earl Granville to John Lowe, 316 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Love, 9 Jun 1761, 316 acres on N Hico Creek. Gv514, SSLG 95-
M.
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Regln 1234 Earl Granville to John Crow, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Crow, 8 Dec 1762, 280 acres on N Hico Creek. Gv704, SSLG 88-
H.

Regln 1235 Earl Granville to Thomas Laxton, 381 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for Thomas Laxon Gv908, 381 acres. H6095.
Regln 1236 Earl Granville to Zachariah Martin, 393 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Zachariah Martin, 9 May 1757, 393 acres on both sides of Mudlick
Creek & Johnstons Creek. Gv191, SSLG 96-C.

Regln 1237 Earl Granville to Samuel Temple, 154 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Temple, 3 Jan 1763, 154 acres on waters of Watery Creek of
Rocky River. Gv773, SSLG 101-D.

Regln 1238 Earl Granville to Thomas Graves, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Graves, 30 Jun 1762, 700 acres on both sides of Deep River,
adj William Searcy. Gv676, SSLG 91-D.

Regln 1239 Earl Granville to John Brantley, 420 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Brantley Jr, 10 Dec 1762, 420 acres on Rocky River. Gv715,
SSLG 84-B.



Regln 1240 Earl Granville to Margaret Boggan, 267 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Margaret Boggan, 4 Aug 1760, 267 acres on both sides of Knap of
Reeds Creek, adj McCulloh. Gv419, SSLG 84-).

Regln 1241 Earl Granville to Charles Adkinson, 358 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Charles Atkinson, 11 Dec 1762, 358 acres on Great Creek of Rocky
River, adj Aaron Harlan. Gv727, SSLG 83-E.

Regln 1242 Earl Granville to Michael Synnot, 250 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Synnott, 250 acres on both sides of Little River. Gvfile 933,
Gvfile 952.

Regln 1243 Earl Granville to William Churton, 300 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 16 Mar 1759, 300 acres on N side of Deep River,
adj Robert Patterson. Gv294, SSLG 87-D.
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Regln 1244 John Lewis to Nathaniel Reed, 300 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Evidently half of Granville to John Lewis, Loose Rowan Granville papers.
Regln 1245 John Lewis to Nathaniel Reed, 300 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Evidently half of Granville to John Lewis, Loose Rowan Granville papers.
Regln 1246 John Wade to Robert Abercromby, _ acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1247 Earl Granville to William Reed Jr, 488 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Reed, 9 Jun 1761, 488 acres on Nunns Mill Creek, adj
William Combs, Reed, Thomas Wiley, Nunn. Gv512, SSLG 98-J.

Regln 1248 James Bowie to William Reed, 270 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to James Bowie, 28 Feb 1760, 270 acres on head
branches of Barbees Creek. Gv327, SSLG 84-L.

Regln 1249 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 600 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 11 Jan 1763, 600 acres on waters of Morgan Creek &
Bolin Creek, called the Chapel Tract, adj Patterson, Eason, Rigsbee's Spring Branch. Gv784, SSLG
96-J.

Regln 1250 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 450 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 11 Jan 1763, 450 acres on Cub Creek of New Hope
Creek. Gv783, SSLG 96-L.



Regln 1251 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 475 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 12 Jan 1763, 475 acres on low grounds of New Hope
Creek, adj Patterson, Parker, Morgan. Gv786, SSLG 96-K.

Regln 1252 Earl Granville to Mark Morgan, 600 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mark Morgan, 11 Jan 1763, 600 acres on branches of Cub Creek &
Pokeberry Creek. Gv785, SSLG 96-J.

Regln 1253 John Woody Jr [John Woods Jr] to James Few, 70 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/86 James Denny to William Cox, 10 Sep 1755, 70
acres on Eno River - incl plantation of William Cox, part of Granville to James Denny 12 Mar 1755
[Gv73, SSLG 88-M, ODB 1/84, ReglLn 150].
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Regln 1254 Robert Sellars to William Ballard, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 1255 John Hopkins to William Trogdon, 160 acres [sic], proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 8/533 Jesse Stroud to Charles Duncan, 19 Aug 1805,
185 acres on S side of Deep River, adj Fuqua - being part of Granville to John Hopkins [Gv723,
SSLG 92-1, Regln 1208], [to William Trogdon ReglLn 1255] to Hercules Ogle [Regln 2230], to
Thomas Midcalf [ReglLn 2328], to Abraham Stroud [RegLn 2348], to Jesse Stroud [not found].
Proved Nov 1805 by Samuel Asten.

Regln 1256 Abraham Nelson to William Forrest, 225 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1257 James Latta to John Latta, 147 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1258 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1300 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by RaDB 6/153 Henry Eustace McCulloh of Province of North
Carolina to John Barton gentleman of Guilford County NC, 18 Mar 1773, 210 acres - being part of
1300 acres of Henry Eustace McCulloh [ReglLn 1258]. Proved Nov 1795 by Michael Holt.

Regln 1259 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1856 acres, proved by Alexander Ford.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry E
McCulloh, 1 Jun 1763, 1856 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1260 Henry McCulloch to Jacob Whitnow, 1692 acres, proved by Alexander Ford.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1261 Henry McCulloch to Christian Funkhouse, 120 acres, proved by Alexander Ford.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Christian
Funkhouser, 18 May 1763, 1240 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1262 Henry McCulloch to Nicholas Bulls, 975 acres, proved by Alexander Ford.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 1162 Nicholas Bulls to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 975
acres.

Regln 1263 Henry McCulloch to Nicholas Puntrick, 1386 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1161 Nicholas Pundrick to Henry Eustice McCulloch,
1386 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Nicholas Puntrick, 16 May 1763,
1386 acres in Tract 11.
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Regln 1264 Martin Loy to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 251 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2185 Henry McCulloch to Martin Loyg, 251 acres. Also
cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Martin Loy, 17 May 1763, 251 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1265 William Cooper to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to William Cooper,
25 Jul 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1266 George Sharp to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 214 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George Sharp,
13 May 1763, 214 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1267 John Willson to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1268 Joseph Brittain to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 333 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Joseph Britton, 4
Jul 1763, 233 acres in Tract 12.

ReglLn 1269 John Clark to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1270 Richard Clements to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 475 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Richard
Clements, 25 Jul 1763, 475 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1271 Malachi Hatmach[er] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 265 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1289 Malachi Hatmaker to Henry Eustice McCulloch,
265 acres.



Regln 1272 Henry Sharp to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 216 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry Sharp, 8
Oct 1762, 216 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1273 Conrod Stone to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 467 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2469 Conrod Stoner to Phillip Snowderly, 469 acres,
proved by John Oliver. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Conrad Stoner, 1 Jun
1763, 225 acres in Tract 11.
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ReglLn 1274 Mallachi Fogleman to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 218 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2190 Henry McCulloch to Malachi Fogleman, 218
acres.

Regln 1275 Peter Ream to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 202 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 4/191 John Foust Jr & wife Mary to George Foust,
Feb 1787, 202 acres on S side of Haw River, adj George Clap, Lowdick Clap - Henry McCulloh to
Peter Ream 4 Mar 1763 [ReglLn 1275], to John Foust Jr 13 Mar 1764 [RegLn 1712].

Regln 1276 Bernard Troxwell [Troxler] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 732 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Barnard Troxell,
16 May 1763, 732 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1277 George Laws to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by ODB 3/621 George Laws Sr to George Laws
Jr, 10 Aug 1771, 170 acres on Flat River, part in Granville County, larger part in Orange County,
where George Laws Jr now lives, adj James Veazey, Knap of Reeds Creek, George Laws Sr. Also
cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George Laws, 9 Aug 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1278 John Armstrong to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 573 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2180 Henry McCulloch to John Armstrong, 573 acres,
proved by Robert Rainey. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Armstrong,
22 May 1763, 573 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1279 William McMath to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 513 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1280 Bernard Troxwell [Barnard Troxler] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 204 acres, proved by
James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1281 John Aycock to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1282 Dial Pavey to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 330 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1313 Henry McCulloh to Deal Pavy, 330 acres.
Regln 1283 George Waisner to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 594 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1283 George Waisner to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 594
acres, proved by James Boyd. Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1284 Christian Funkhouser to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 250 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes:

ReglLn 1285 Christian Funkhouser to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 390 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/130 William Wiley & Mary Wiley to Thomas
Cummings, 12 Feb 1772, 250 acres adj Nicholas Puntrick - part of McCulloh to Christian
Funkhouser [RegLn 1285, to William Wiley RegLn 1332].

Regln 1286 James Woods to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 365 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to James Woods,
20 May 1763, 565 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1287 Christian Funkhouser to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 356 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1288 William Miles to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 287 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2187 Henry McCulloch to William Miles, 287 acres.
Regln 1289 Malachi Hatmaker to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 265 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1289 Malachi Hatmaker to Henry Eustice McCulloch,
265 acres.

Regln 1290 Isaac Gresson to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 432 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Grayson,
28 Jun 1763, 531 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1291 John Noe to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 308 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Noe, 23
May 1763, 308 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1292 Phillip Sellers to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 223 acres, proved by James Boyd.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2189 Henry McCulloch to Phillip Sellers, 223 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Phillip Sellers, 1 May 1763, 223 acres in
Tract 11?

ReglLn 1293 Alexander Clark to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 644 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Alexander Clark,
8 Aug 1763, 644 acres in Tract 12.

[Page 140]
Regln 1294 Charles McCarty to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at GvDB G/174 Henry McCulloh to Charles McCarty, 18 Aug
1763, 200 acres adj Little Ledge of Rocks Creek - registered in Granville office 8 Sep 1763. GvDB
G/184 Charles McCarty to Henry Eustace McCulloh, 19 Aug 1763, [deed to trust on] 200 acres on
Little Ledge of Rocks Creek. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Charles
McCarty, 16 Aug 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12. ReglLn 1309 Henry McCulloh to James McCarty, 200
acres, proved.

ReglLn 1295 James Isome to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 600 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1308 Henry Eustice McCulloh to James Isom, 600
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to James Isom, 27 Jul 1763, 600 acres in
Tract 12.

Regln 1296 Martin Loy to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 347 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1297 Elizabeth Browning to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1310 Henry McCulloh to Elizabeth Browning, 200
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Elizabeth Browning, 21 Jul 1763, 200
acres in Tract 12.

ReglLn 1298 Jacob Hoyle to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1299 Andrew Campbell to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 150 acres, proved by James Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1300 Lewis Howell to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Lewis Howell, 22
Jul 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

ReglLn 1301 Alexander Clark to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 235 acres, proved by James Boyd.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/345 Gideon Anderson to John Tilley, 14 Oct 1771, 235
acres on Mountain Creek, adj Henry McCulloh, cabin, branch. [McCulloh to Alexander Clark
Regln 1301, to Gideon Anderson Regln 1658.]

ReglLn 1302 John May to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 406 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John May, 6 Jul
1763, 406 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1303 Jasper Bare to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 202 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2173 Henry McCulloch to Jasper Bare, 202 acres,
proved by Robert Rainey. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Gasper Bare, 16
May 1763, 202 acres in Tract 11.
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Regln 1304 Mark Cook to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 1630 Mark Cook to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200
acres. Regln 2167 Henry McCulloch to Mark Cook, 200 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx
Henry McCulloh to Mark Cook, 17 Aug 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1305 George Fridle to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1306 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Alexander Clark, 640 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1307 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Watson Bromfield, 707 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see JoDB Tr1/224

Regln 1308 Henry Eustice McCulloh to James Isom, 600 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 1295 James Isome to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 600
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to James Isom, 27 Jul 1763, 600 acres in
Tract 12.

ReglLn 1309 Henry McCulloh to James McCarty, 200 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at GvDB G/174 Henry McCulloh to Charles McCarty, 18 Aug
1763, 200 acres adj Little Ledge of Rocks Creek - registered in Granville office 8 Sep 1763. GvDB
G/184 Charles McCarty to Henry Eustace McCulloh, 19 Aug 1763, [deed to trust on] 200 acres on
Little Ledge of Rocks Creek. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Charles
McCarty, 16 Aug 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12. ReglLn 1294 Charles McCarty to Henry Eustice
McCulloch, 200 acres.

Regln 1310 Henry McCulloh to Elizabeth Browning, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1297 Elizabeth Browning to Henry Eustice McCulloch,
200 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Elizabeth Browning, 21 Jul 1763,
200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1311 Henry McCulloh to John Adcock, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Adcock, 10
Aug 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1312 Henry McCulloh to Andrew Campbell, 487 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Andrew
Campbell, 23 May 1763, 487 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1313 Henry McCulloh to Deal Pavy, 330 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1282 Dial Pavey to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 330
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Dial Povey, 23 May 1763, 330 acres
inTract 11.
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Regln 1314 Henry McCulloh to Henry McMath, 213 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to William
McMath, 25 1763, 513 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1315 Jessee Simpson to Richard Oldham [Richard Simpson to Jesse Oldham], 204 acres, proved
by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB F/178 Jesse Oldham & wife Elizabeth to Thomas
Hornbuckle, 4 Oct 1787, 403 acres on S Fork of Stoney Creek, incl where Oldham lives, adj
Thomas Brinsfield, Simpson, Tyree Harris, Hughes - two tracts one Richard Simpson to Jesse
Oldham [RegLn 13157], other NC to Jesse Oldham.

Regln 1316 David Mitchel to John Ellison, 200 acres, proved by Andrew McBroom.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1317 James Lea to Thomas Bailey, 100 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1318 John Rainey to Thomas Breeze, 250 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1319 Henry Moore to Edward Ledbetter [Edward Moore to Henry Ledbetter], 375 acres, proved
by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Moore, 6 Feb 1761, 375 acres on both sides of Flat River,
adj Hosea Tapley, William Jay. Gv488, SSLG 96-H, ReglLn 2045.



Regln 1320 Robert Samuel Brashear to Edward Gilbert, 381 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Samuel Brashears, 8 Aug 1760, 381 acres on N Buffalo Creek
& S Buffalo Creek, adj Donnell, John McKnight. Gv426, SSLG 85-B, ReglLn 872.

Regln 1321 John Malkey [Mulkey?] to George Morris, 100 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1322 William Churton to James Hendricks [Kendrick], 300 acres, proved by Stephen Meril
[Merritt].

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB C/315 James Kendrick & wife Susannah to Benjamin
Watts, 24 Sep 1784, 300 acres on N side of Deep River, whereon James Kendrick now lives —
[Granville to] William Churton [Gv294, SSLG 87-D] to James Kendrick 13 Jan 1762 [ReglLn 1322].

Regln 1323 William Cox to Fredrick Sypart, 205 acres, proved by Peter Craven.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Cox, 5 Nov 1757, 205 acres on both sides of Deep River, adj
Peter Youngblood, Harmon Cox. Gv217, SSLG 88-E.
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Regln 1324 Reason Rickets to Solomon Draper, 350 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/554 Soloman Draper to Shurley Whatley, 28 Dec
1769, 350 acres adj John Patterson, Buchanan, William Rhodes - except 100 acres at the lower
end shall be the property of William Castlebury, purchased from Reason Ricketts [RegLn 1324].

Regln 1325 Joshua Gray to James Thompson, 300 acres, proved by Samuel Dixon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1326 William Martin to Joseph Burk, 400 acres, proved by John Brooks.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Martin, 2 Oct 1761, 400 acres on Dry Creek, adj Hickory
Mountain. Gv562, SSLG 96-A, ReglLn 2021.

ReglLn 1327 John Falcomb to John Wheel[is]s, 640 acres, proved by James Hunter.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Falconer, 11 Jun 1761, 640 acres on both sides of New Hope
Creek, adj John Hatley, Robert Patterson, Bynum. Gv528, SSLG 90-C.

ReglLn 1328 Nicholas Pundrick to Ralph Correl [Ralph Gorrel], 251 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/90 Ralph Gorrell & Mary Gorrell to Martin Boon, 25
Dec 1771, 251 acres adj Christian Funkhouser, Cedar Creek, small tract called number 38.

Regln 1329 Thomas Wiley & James Aspey to William Few, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/215 William Few Sr to John Butler, 27 Apr 1770, 200
acres on N side of Eno River, on both sides of the Main Road, adj Colonel Corbin, Thomas Wiley,



the Great Gulley. [Granville to Thomas Wiley Gv322, SSLG 102-K, ReglLn 2007, Thomas Wylie &
James Espy to William Few Sr ReglLn 1329]. [Later to Ralph McNair ODB 3/456.]

ReglLn 1330 Robert Clinton to Thomas Davis, 232 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Gv846 Granville to Robert Clinton, [unknown], 232 acres on
Ellerbe Creek, adj the springs, SCC: Michael Wright, Thomas Cammel. Gv846, H5669.

Regln 1331 David George to Samuel Parke, 100 acres, proved by James Rigsby.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1332 Christian Funkhouser to William Wiley, 251 acres, proved by Henry Eustice McCulloch.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/130 William Wiley & Mary Wiley to Thomas
Cummings, 12 Feb 1772, 250 acres adj Nicholas Puntrick - part of McCulloh to Christian
Funkhouser [ReglLn 1284, to William Wiley RegLn 1332].

Regln 1333 Wade Ashmore to James Ashmore, 250 acres, proved by Samuel Stewart.

Chilton’s notes: This deed at ODB 3/591 Walter Ashmore to James Ashmore, 21 Oct 1767, 290
acres on N side of Terrells Creek, adj Henry ____ - part of Granville to William [Johnson] 6 May
1756 [Gv155, SSLG 94-B, ODB 1/186, ReglLn 201, to James Elliot RegLn 284, to William Reed
ReglLn 285, to Walter Ashmore OCPQS 1/2807?].
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RegLn 1334 Placker Saylor [Plickard Siler] to Phillip Hartzo [Phillip Hartso], _ acres, proved by James
Willson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1335 Nathaniel Reynolds to Joseph Henderson, 61 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1336 Thomas Holden to Mary Holden, _ acres, proved by John Woods.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1337 Zachariah Martin to Argeus Henderson, 260 acres, proved by William Mallif.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1338 Micajah Picket to George Stanley, 181 acres, proved by William Johnson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Brashear, 17 Jul 1760, 637 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv330,
SSLG 85-A, Regln 1910.

Regln 1339 Thomas Hart to Edward Gilbert, 637 acres, proved by Thomas Donnel.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Brashear, 17 Jul 1760, 637 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv330,
SSLG 85-A, Regln 1910.



ReglLn 1340 Thomas Wiley to William Wiley, 297 acres, proved by William Johnson.
Chilton’s notes: Part of 467 acres

Regln 1341 Zachariah Martin to Thomas North, 260 acres, proved by Robert Marsh.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1342 Thomas Hart to Robert Wells, 229 acres, proved by John Hogan.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Boyd Jr, 15 Jul 1760, 229 acres on N side of N Fork of Haw
River. Gv334, SSLG 84-A, Regln 1913. ReglLn 2005 John Boyd to Thomas Hart, 229 acres. [Later
to Thomas Hart ODB 3/295, to Zephaniah Tate ODB 2/27.]

Regln 1343 Alex’r Fuller to James Small, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1344 Luke Bynum to Benjamin Clements, 105 acres, proved by John Wheeles.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but formerly Benjamin Clements to Luke Bynum ReglLn 274, 105
acres?

ReglLn 1345 Alexander Going to John Woods, 311.5 acres, proved by James Woods.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/116 James Roberts to John Ingram, 27 Mar 1779,
311.5 acres on both sides of Moons Creek - part of grant to William Gladen 7 Jun 1761 [not
found], to William Going [RegLn 1626], to John Wood [RegLn 1345], to James Roberts [RegLn
2453].

Regln 1346 Edward Stone Sr to Archibald Bowling, 100 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1347 Robert Stewart to Thomas Hart, 64 acres, proved by William Leman.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB D/183 Nath Hart & wife Elizabeth to Francis Dossett, 10
Sep 1785, 64 acres & 24 poles in Granville's boundaries, on Rocky River - Granville to Robert
Stewart [ReglLn 728].

Regln 1348 James Nicholson to Jonathan Paulk, 275 acres, proved by Herman Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/41 Isaac Jackson & Mary Jackson to David Jackson, 16
Oct 1768, 275 acres on Sandy Creek, adj Harmon Husband - part of 692 acres Granville to James
Nicholson [Gv756, SSLG 97-B, RegLn 1571], to John Athen Paulk [ReglLn 1348], to Isaac Jackson
[ReglLn 2330].

Regln 1349 Malachi Isley to Phillip Foust, 200 acres, proved by John Oliver.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/194 Philip Foust & Catherine Foust to John Albright, 3
Mar 1788, 200 acres adj Daniel May, Joseph Boggs, Greeson - Henry McCulloh to Malachi Isley



14 Sep , Malachi Isley & wife Magdalen Isley to Foust 6 Feb 1764 [RegLn 1349]. Proved May
1789 by [blank].

ReglLn 1350 Hezekiah Rhodes to John Patterson, 235 acres, proved by John Patterson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hezekiah Rhodes, 20 Nov 1761, 472 acres on Third Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj Joseph Barbee. Gv595, SSLG 99-A-5, ReglLn 1923. ODB 4/224 Anderson Comer &
Nanie Comer to James Wilson, 3 Oct 1788, three tracts, first tract, 236 acres on both sides of
Third Fork of New Hope Creek - half of Granville to Hezekiah Rhodes.

Regln 1351 Hugh Dobbin to William Robinson, 191 acres, proved by John Robinson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1352 Joseph Dolittle to John Graves, 100 acres, proved by Patrick Porter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1353 John Grigg to William Cox, 480 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to William McFarson, 20 Feb 1756, 480 acres on both sides of
Toms Creek alias Mill Creek, on W side of Deep River, adj William Cox. Gv136, SSLG 95.1-C,
Regln 412.
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Regln 1354 Priscilla Barker to Joseph Lashley, 450 acres, proved by William Williams.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Priscilla Barker excutrix of William Barker, 6 Dec 1761, 450 acres on
White Oak Creek of Buckhorn Creek, adj Thomas Parker. Gv631, SSLG 83-K, RegLn 2506.

Regln 1355 James Armstrong to James Lumkin, 147 acres, proved by Richard Finch.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps:

CwDB L/67 Roger Atkinson Sr of Dinwiddie County VA to Spillsby Coleman, 13 Dec 1798, 147
acres on Hogans Creek - George Lumpkin to Roger Atkinson Sr 1 Aug 1765 [not found].
[Formerly James Armstrong to James Lumkin ReglLn 13557]

CwDB L/68 Roger Atkinson & Thomas Atkinson & Robert Atkinson sons of Roger Atkinson
deceased to Spillsby Coleman, 30 Jan 1799, release of their interest in 147 acres on Hogans
Creek - George Lumpkin to Roger Atkinson Sr 1 Aug 1765 [not found]. [Formerly James
Armstrong to James Lumkin ReglLn 13557]

Regln 1356. Thomas Harrison to James Bradley, 639 acres, proved by William Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Harrison, 14 Dec 1762, 639 acres on Little Creek of Dan
River, adj Mayo. Gv731, SSLG 91-I.

Regln 1357 John Dunnagan to Adam Davis, 330 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Dunagan, 3 Feb 1761, 330 acres on both sides of Deep Creek.
Gv477, SSLG 89-1, Regln 2030.



North Carolina, Orange County}...Feb 1764.
Regln 1358 Ezekiel Shaddock to Drury Mims, 295 acres, proved by Thomas Leapoint.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/170 Drury Mims & wife Lidda to John Avent, 28 Sep
1772, 295 acres on N side of Cape Fear River, adj Cheek. [Granville to Enoch Lewis ReglLn 51, to
Richard Cheek Regln 710, to Ezekiel Shaddock not found, to Drury Mims ReglLn 1358.]

ReglLn 1359 William Mebane to Derbe Callahan, 50 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/325 Darby Callahan & Unity Callahan & Jean Mebane
to William Johnston, 21 Nov 1769, 50 acres on Eno River, adj a stony bank. [Formerly William
Mebane to Darby Callahan ReglLn 1359.]

Regln 1360 Thomas Lewis to Robert Clinton, 165 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Lewis, 2 Oct 1761, 165 acres on both sides of Eno River.
Gv563, SSLG 95-H, Regln 1232.

Regln 1361 Richard Simpson to Tyrie Harris, 560 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter King, 8 Jan 1761, 560 acres on Little Troublesome Creek,
branches of Pruits Fork. Gv434, SSLG 94-1, ReglLn 871.
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Regln 1362 Richard Simpson to Tyrie Harris, 180 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Simpson, 12 Jun 1761, 180 acres on S Fork of Stony Creek.
Gv529, SSLG 100-C, Regln 2024.

Regln 1363 James Blackley to John Swinney, 506 acres, proved by John Cunning.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Blakeley, Gv608, SSLG 84-C, ReglLn 2136, 566 acres. See also
PDB A/267.

Regln 1364 Joseph Barnet to Robert McFarland, 202 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barnett, 9 Dec 1762, 202 acres on Castle Creek of Hico
Creek, adj Robert McFarland. Gv712, SSLG 84-E, ReglLn 1538.

ReglLn 1365 James Bogan to Osan Martin, 225 acres, proved by Gannaway Martin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1366 Joseph Dunagan to Samuel Johnson, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1367 David Phillips Sr to Jessee Phillips, 144 acres, proved by Benjamin Phillips.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1368 John Wood Jr to John Geer, 312 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1369 John McKnight to Alexander McKnight, 511 acres, proved by Thomas Donnel.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McNight, 22 Feb 1759, 511 acres opposite mouth of S Buffalo
Creek, adj N Buffalo Creek, William Blackwood. Gv249, SSLG 95.1-F, RegLn 593.

RegLn 1370 James Kirkley [or Hinchey?] to James Hunter Underwood, 180 acres, proved by John
Whilas.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1371 Benjamin Arrenton [Harrington] to Luke Bynum, 85 acres, proved by Benjamin Clements.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1372 William Hallam to George Roberson, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1373 George Hobson to Andrew Jones, 210 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by CDB A/334 William Henderson to Isaac Carter, 18 May 1772,
110.5 acres on Rocky River, adj Stephen Hobson - part of 620 acres Granville to George Hobson
Jr 2 Feb 1761 [Gv474, SSLG 92-D, ReglLn 1920], to Andrew Jones 31 Oct 1763 [RegLn 1373], to
William Henderson 13 Mar 1767 [ReglLn 2511].

Regln 1374 John Bohannon to Burrel Williams, 402 acres, proved by Joseph Avent.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Bohannon, 4 Nov 1756, 402 acres on E side of Cape Fear River,
adj Goff. Gv166, SSLG 84-K, ReglLn 665.

Regln 1375 John Stroud to Joshua Stroud, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/275 Joshua Stroud to James Thackston Jr, 1 May
1770, 100 acres on N side of Cane Creek, adj Great Branch, New Hope Creek.

Regln 1376 William Lacy to Plice Saler [Plickard Siler], 300 acres, proved by James Wilson.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/314 Placker Saylor [Plickard Siler] & Elizabeth Saylor
to Philip Taylor, 18 Jul 1770, 100 acres on NW side of Lacys Creek - part of Granville to William
Lacy [Gv672, SSLG 95-A, Regln 2093], to Placker Siler [RegLn 1376].

Regln 1377 James Nicholson to John Owen, 417 acres, proved by Harmon Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Nicholson, 22 Dec 1762, 692 acres on Sandy Creek of Deep
River, adj Harmon Husband, Samuel Walker, Thomas Wilborn, Seymour York. Gv756, SSLG 97-B,
ReglLn 1571.

Regln 1378 Robert Stuart to Alexander Stuart, 67.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/159 Robert Stewart to Stephen Ward, 23 Oct 1792,
67.5 acres on a branch of Cane Creek, adj Joseph Staley now William Ward — McCulloh to his
father Alexander Stewart 26 Dec 1759 [ReglLn 2037], by will to Robert Stewart [OWB A/60]?

ReglLn 1379 Robert Stuart to Francis Dorset, [part of] 186 acres, proved by Soloman Terrel.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but evidently the part of RegLn 728 Earl Granville to Robert Stewart,
186 acres, not conveyed by CDB D/183 Nath Hart & wife Elizabeth to Francis Dossett, 10 Sep
1785, 64 acres & 24 poles in Granville's boundaries, on Rocky River - Granville to Robert Stuart.

Regln 1380 Edward Stone to Archibald Bowling, _ acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1381 William Castleberry to Paul Castleberry, 357 acres, proved by Robert Patterson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Straughan, [unknown], 357 acres on Prestwoods Creek of
New Hope Creek, adj Francis Day, SCC: John Barbee, Henry Key. Surveyed on 11 Oct 1758 by
William Churton. Gv973, H6496, ReglLn 874. ReglLn 920 Richard Strain to William Castleberry,
357 acres.

Regln 1382 George Morris to Samuel Parke, 100 acres, proved by Samuel Jones.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1383 Jacob Garland to Felix Gilbert, 640 acres, proved by Thomas Carr.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1384 William Marshal to Peter Stout, 26 acres, proved by Jeremiah Piggot.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1385 Annanias Allen to Daniel Duncan, 154 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1386 Thomas Loveley to John Boyd, 584 acres, proved by William Leaman.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Lovelatty, 11 May 1757, 584 acres on both sides of N Fork
of Haw River, adj Kennedys Branch. Gv201, SSLG 95-M, RegLn 729

Regln 1387 Earl Granville to Thomas Willson, 500 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Wilson, 10 Dec 1761, 500 acres on N Hico Creek, adj Col
James Payne. Gv632, SSLG 102-I.

ReglLn 1388 Earl Granville to John Lea, _ acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Lea, 24 Dec 1762, 436 acres on Lick Creek of Hogans Creek.
Gv759, SSLG 95-E.



ReglLn 1389 Earl Granville to David Vaughn, 376 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to David Vaun, 6 Mar 1762, 376 acres on Pruits Fork of Hogans Creek.
Gv639, SSLG 101-M.

Regln 1390 Thomas Whitehead to Reason Whitehead, 400 acres, proved by Benjamin Rhodes.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bowie, 31 Aug 1753, 400 acres adj Capt Synnott. Gv14, SSLG
84-M, Regln 1564. Regln 29 James Bowie to Thomas Whitehead, 400 acres. RegLn 1390 Thomas
Whitehead to Reason Whitehead, 400 acres. ReglLn 1777 Reason Whitehead to Edmund Faning,
400 acres.
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Regln 1391 Samuel Sarrat Sr to Samuel Sarrat Jr, 100 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1392 John Bumpas to John Trop, 209 acres, proved by John Bumpas.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1393 Margaret Morgan [Boggan] to Moses Quarles, 267 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Margaret Boggan, 4 Aug 1760, 267 acres on both sides of Knap of
Reeds Creek, adj McCulloh. Gv419, SSLG 84-J, RegLn 1240.

ReglLn 1394 Middleton Brashear to William Hamilton and Company, 216 acres, proved by Stephen
Jett.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Middleton Brashear, 6 Dec 1761, 216 acres on Buffalo Creek of
Reedy Fork of Haw River, adj Jesse Brashear, Prator. Gv606, SSLG 70-C. filed in another county

ReglLn 1395 William Lacy to Henry Bray, 400 acres, proved by Thomas Carr.

Chilton’s notes: Partly (or fully?) described by CDB A/116 Adam Moser & wife Catharine to
Phillip Siler, 16 Sep 1771, 200 acres on Rocky River, adj Robert Williams - part of 700 acres
Granville to William Lacy [Gv672, SSLG 95-A, Regln 2093] 13 Jun 1762, 200 acres of which to
Henry Bray [ReglLn 1395], to Adam Moser [ReglLn 2444] 25 Apr 1767. Also CDB A/235 Phillip Siler
& wife Mary to Adam Moser, 15 Feb 1773, 200 acres adj Robert Williams - part of 700 acres
from Granville to William Lacey 13 Jun 1762 [Gv672, SSLG 95-A, RegLn 2093], part of 400 acres
William Lacey to Henry Bray [ReglLn 1395], to Moser [RegLn 2444].

Regln 1396 Joseph Copeland to Joseph Pickets, 243 acres, proved by James Sellars.
Chilton’s notes: The part of Gv246 not covered by ODB 3/296 & ODB 3/298.
Regln 1397 John McKnight to Alexander McKnight, 511 acres, proved by Thomas Donnel.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McNight, 22 Feb 1759, 511 acres opposite mouth of S Buffalo
Creek, adj N Buffalo Creek, William Blackwood. Gv249, SSLG 95.1-F, RegLn 593.

Regln 1398 James Talbert to Thomas Anderson, 152 acres, proved by William Lea.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1501 Thomas Anderson to William Rankin.

Regln 1399 Thomas Lacston to Giles Lackey, 220 acres, proved by Andrew Forgerson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1400 Thomas Laxton to James Cavenach, 220 acres, proved by Andrew Forgerson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1401 John Long to James Thompson, _ acres, proved by William Sisson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1402 William Barney [Burney] to George Riggs, 175 acres, proved by William Riggs.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1403 Annanias Allen to William Chambers, 64 acres, proved by James Fulkerson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1404 Luke Lea to Thomas Rice, 174 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1405 Harmon Husband to Peter Givet [Kivett], 250 acres, proved by Henry Cagle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1406 Lodewick Isley to Michael Charles, 257 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/652 John Huffman to Adam Whitsell, 4 Feb 1793, 276
acres on Gun Creek of Great Alamance Creek, adj Christian Huffman - Henry Eustace McCulloh
[to Ludwick Isley RegLn 1085] to Michael Charles [RegLn 1406].

Regln 1407 Thomas Graves to Robert Graves, 200 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/188 Joseph Carr & Jean Carr to Jennings Thompson, 2
Nov 1772, 200 acres in fork of Flat Creek of Deep River, adj Carr formerly James Graves, the back
line, a gut. [Granville to Thomas Graves, Gv676, SSLG 91-D, ReglLn 1238, to Robert Graves ReglLn
1407, to Joseph Carr ReglLn 1833.]

Regln 1408 George Hobson to Stephen Hobson, 120 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1409 William Mebane to James Ray, 240 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1410 John Carragan to Robert Graves, 201 acres, proved by John Hogan.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1411 Benjamin Clements to Luke Bynum, 130 acres, proved by Edward Edwards.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1412 Daniel McDaniel to Jacob Albright, 200 acres, proved by Henry Eustice McCulloch.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1413 Peter Noe to Thomas Rich, [184] acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1080 Henry McCulloch esq to Peter Noe, 507 acres,
proved by Robert Rainey.

Regln 1414 Robert Jones to William Savage, 400 acres, proved by Francis Nash. [Also proved at OCPQS
2/34 proved by Daniel Weldon]

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by GDB 1/118? This is a Granville grant filed in Granville
County.

ReglLn 1415 Reason Rickets to John Castleberry, 200 acres, proved by James Cuming.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1416 George Lea to William Borin, 285 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Lea, 14 Oct 1761, 285 acres on S Fork of Country Line Creek.
Gv588, SSLG 95-D, ReglLn 2116.

Regln 1417 William Jackson to John Carragan, 480 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Jackson, 2 Aug 1760, 480 acres on head branches of New
Hope Creek. Gv409, SSLG 93-G, ReglLn 1952.

Regln 1418 Jacob Railey to James McCarley, 128 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1419 William Comb to William Nunn, 200 acres, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1420 James Dickey to Jacob Faries, 200 acres, proved by Richard Holeman.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

[Page 153]

Regln 1421 John Mitchel to William Luton, 352 acres, proved by Tyrie Harras.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/431 John Mitchell & Sarah Mitchell to Richard
Kennon, 28 Nov 1770, 352 acres on N side of Eno River, adj Hugh Woods now Robert Lewis.
[John Mitchell to William Luton ReglLn 1421, back to John Mitchell RegLn 2473.]

Regln 1422 William and Richard Burney to William Brigs [Riggs], 400 acres, proved by George Rigs.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1423 Samuel Sarret to Joseph Sarret, 420 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Sarrat, 13 Nov 1756, 422 acres on both sides of S Hico
Creek, adj Double Creek. Gv188, SSLG 99-I.

Regln 1424 Thomas Graves to James Graves, 200 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1425 Henry Kee to William Castleberry, 80 acres, proved by Phillip Gee.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1426 Michael Synnot to William Ray, 250 acres, proved by Joseph Allison.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to Michael Synnott, 250 acres on both sides of
Little River. Gvfile 933, Gvfile 952, ReglLn 1242.

ReglLn 1427 Michael Holt to Jacob Holt, 300 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1428 Robert Stubblefield to Wyatt Stubblefield, 310 acres, proved by Bartlet Yancey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1429 Edward Edwards to Robert Sellars, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/232 Robert Sellars to Benjamin Clemmons, 10 Oct
1769, 200 acres on N side of Haw River, on Beaver Dam Fork of Pokeberry Creek, where Robert
Sellars now lives.

Regln 1430 Zachariah Martin to Thomas West, 292 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by 1840. CDB D/341 Thomas West Jr to Henry
Lewis Lutterloh, 23 Aug 1787, 39 acres & 64 poles near Dry Creek - part of 292 acres of Thomas
West.
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Regln 1431 Nathaniel Reynolds to Abraham Miles, 140 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/349 William Hubart to William Meadows, 1 Nov 1771,
140 acres on E side of Country Line Creek, adj John Oakes. RegLn 1880 Abraham Miles to William
Hubart.



Regln 1432 Thomas Wiley to William Nunn, 170 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Part of 467 acres

Regln 1433 Zachariah Martin to Elnathan Davis, 219 acres, proved by William Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1434 James Ray to William Mebane, 320 acres, proved by William Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1435 George Hobson Jr to Stephen Hobson, 47 acres, proved by George Hobson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 1436 Phillip Perkins to Samuel Johnson, 360 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to Thomas Perkins, 6 Dec 1761, 360 acres on S Fork of Little River, adj
Robert Jones. Gv622, SSLG 97-K, RegLn 1189.

Regln 1437 Hezekiah Rhodes to Benjamin Rhodes, 237 acres, proved by William Rhodes.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hezekiah Rhodes, 20 Nov 1761, 472 acres on Third Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj Joseph Barbee. Gv595, SSLG 99-A-5, ReglLn 1923. ODB 4/224 Anderson Comer &
Nanie Comer to James Wilson, 3 Oct 1788, three tracts, first tract, 236 acres on both sides of
Third Fork of New Hope Creek - half of Granville to Hezekiah Rhodes.

Regln 1438 Henry Bruer [Henry Brewer] to William Mallet, 105 acres, proved by Argulus Henderson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/530 William Mallett to David Blalock, 4 Oct 1766, 105
acres on both sides of Terrells Creek.

ReglLn 1439 James Davidson to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 616 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to James Davison,
18 Jun 1763, 616 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 1440 Earl Granville to William Brooks, 207 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Brooks, 6 Dec 1761, 207 acres on Richland Creek of Hico
Creek, adj John Lea. Gv607, SSLG 85-G.
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Regln 1441 James Couch to William Hopper, 175 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/231 William Hooper Sr to Jacob Allen, 12 Apr 1769,
175 acres on both sides of Eno River.

Regln 1442 Andrew Campbell to Phillip Glass, 327 acres, proved by Henry Eustice McCulloch.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by GDB 5/414 Phillip Glass Sr to Powell Glass, 16
Jul 1773, 168.5 acres in Orange County on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek, adj Jacob Coble,



Phillip Glass Jr, John McGee - part of McCulloh to Andrew Campbell [RegLn 1299 & Regln 1312],
to Phillip Glass 1 Aug 1763 [RegLn 1442].

ReglLn 1443 John Posey to James Temple, 200 acres, proved by Charles Saxton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/5 Aaron Harland Sr to Aaron Harland Jr, 26 Jul 1770,
250 acres adj Posey, Ambrose Joshua Smith, the Canoe Hollow - part of [Granville to] John Posey
[Gv745, SSLG 98-C, Regln 1223] to Samuel Temples [Regln 1443], to Aaron Harland [not found]
3 Nov 1764.

Regln 1444 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 421 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1445 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 512 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 2 Feb 1762, 512 acres on Lick Fork of Hogans
Creek. Gv636, SSLG 87-B, ReglLn 1169.

Regln 1446 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 693 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 17 Jun 1761, 693 acres on Stewards branch of
Gargales Creek of Yadkin River, adj Wachovia Line. SSLG 115-B, H4470.

ReglLn 1447 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 480 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 1 Dec 1761, 480 acres on a branch of Country Line
Creek, adj Harts Road. Gv600, SSLG 86-J, RegLn 1170.

Regln 1448 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 625 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1449 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 632 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 2 Dec 1761, 632 acres on waters of Richland Creek
of S Hico Creek, adj Sargeant, Thomas Anderson, William Brooks. Gv601, SSLG 87-A, RegLn 1171.

Regln 1450 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 680 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1451 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, _ acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1452 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 484 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 26 Jan 1762, 484 acres on Lick Fork of Hogans
Creek. Gv635, SSLG 87-F, ReglLn 1174.

Regln 1453 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 649 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1454 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 647 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1455 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 664 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1456 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 450 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 29 Nov 1761, 450 acres on Cabin Branch of Hogans
Creek, adj Jones. Gv599, SSLG 87-C, ReglLn 1172.

Regln 1457 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 520 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 7 Apr 1762, 520 acres on Sirrats Spring Branch of S
Hico Creek. Gv647, SSLG 86-H, ReglLn 1177.

ReglLn 1458 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 480 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 21 Nov 1761, 450 acres on a branch of Hogans
Creek, adj Stubblefield. Gv598, SSLG 87-A, ReglLn 1167.

ReglLn 1459 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 680 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1460 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 700 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1461 William Churton to Charles Metcalf, 696 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1462 Thomas Wiley to Archibald Boley [Archibald Borland], 200 acres, proved by John Wood.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/383 Archibald Borland to Ralph McNair, 23 Jul 1771,
200 acres on N side of Eno River, adj mouth of a deep hollow, James Chamberlin formerly
William Wiley, William Few — to William Wiley to Archibald Borland 1 May 1764.

Regln 1463 John Lambert to Jessee Hollingsworth, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB C/453 Hanse Black to Jonathan Lindley, 15 Nov 1784,
300 acres on Cane Creek, adj William White - part of Granville to John Lambert 21 Dec 1759
[Gv317, SSLG 95-A, ReglLn 1582], to Jesse Hollingsworth 20 Dec 1762 [ReglLn 1463], to Hanse
Black 1 May 1766 [not found].

Regln 1464 Henry McCulloch esq to John Fuller, 500 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 1465 William Churton to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 290 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, [unknown], 290 acres on both sides of Seven Mile
Branch, adj Trading Path, Cullen Pollock, bents of a branch. Gv844, H5660, RegLn 2133. ODB
4/457 Walter Alves & Amelia Alves to Thomas Latta, 19 Apr 1791, two tracts, first tract, 389
acres on Mountain Creek of Little River, adj spring branch, John Latta Jr, Stephen Wilson, Ann
Horton; second tract, 200 acres on E end of Granville to William Churton, to Henry Eustace
McCulloh, to William Johnston, other part NC to William Johnston, bequeathed [OWB A/333]
with rest of estate to his only child [Amelia].

ReglLn 1466 Earl Granville to Makee Watson, 82 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to MacKie, Watson and Company, 1 Jan 1763, 82 acres on S side of
Cape Fear River, adj Richard Brawell, Campbell. Gv771, SSLG 102-D.

ReglLn 1467 John Patterson esq to Benjamin Hart, 210 acres [or 270 acres?], proved by Stephen
Merrel.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1468 Reason Whitehead to William Mebane, 227 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John White ReglLn 90, H2839

Regln 1469 John Wood to Patrick McCulloch, 308 acres, proved by William Jackson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/414 Patrick McCulloch to William Johnston, 2 Apr
1772, 250 acres on S side of Little River, adj William Johnston formerly Ray, Nathaniel Harris
formerly Wade - Henry McCulloh to Colonel John Woods 20 Jul 1763, to Patrick McCulloch 21
Feb 1764.

Regln 1470 Thomas Whitehead to Reason Whitehead, 227 acres, proved by William Few.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John White ReglLn 90, H2839
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Regln 1471 William Mebane to William Johnson, 350 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1472 Thomas Clark to John Dowel, 146 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/241 John Dowell by Sheriff to Nathaniel Walton, 26
Jul 1769, 146 acres on waters of Eno River - levy on John Dowell, part of land from Granville to
William Reed [Gv139, SSLG 98-K, ReglLn 624], to Thomas Clark [RegLn 578], to Dowell [RegLn
1472, deed of trust to William Few ReglLn 2335 upon which this is a foreclosure?].

Regln 1473 Mark Morgan to Benjamin Hart, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1474 Jacob Mason to Lawrence Vanhook, 1 acre, proved by James Cumming.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1475 James Hendrix to Joseph Duncan Jr, 145 acres, proved by William Anderson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1476 Robert Brashears to Harman Husbands, 640 acres, proved by John Stubbs.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Brashear, 6 Dec 1761, [640 acres] on Reedy Fork of Haw
River, adj Barzil Brashear, Buffalo Creek. Gv609, SSLG 85-B, ReglLn 1020.

Regln 1477 James Herndon to Joseph Barbee, _ acres, proved by Mark Morgan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1478 Alexander Torringtine to Ann Hogan, 369 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Turrentine, 9 Feb 1761, 369 acres adj spring branch.
Gv494, SSLG 101-J, Regln 1534,

Regln 1479 Samuel Benton to Charles Copeland, 320 acres, proved by William Luten.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/70 Peter Copeland to William Johnston, 25 Mar 1779,
320 acres on S side of Eno River, adj William Bobbitt, Charles Copeland now William Johnson -
Henry McCulloh to Samuel Burton 17 Apr 1759, to Charles Copeland 17 Apr 1764 [RegLn 1479],
to William Black 2 Mar 1766 [ODB 2/65], to Peter Copeland 9 Aug 1768 [ODB 2/65a].

Regln 1480 Thomas Ogle to Jacob Summers, 612 acres, proved by John Oliver.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 775 Granville to Alexander Mebane, ReglLn 769 to
Thomas Ogle.
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Regln 1481 Esther Boggs to John McGee, _ acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1482 Robert Samuel Brashear to Edward Gilbert, 381 acres, proved by Thomas Dannel.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Samuel Brashears, 8 Aug 1760, 381 acres on N Buffalo Creek
& S Buffalo Creek, adj Donnell, John McKnight. Gv426, SSLG 85-B, RegLn 872.

Regln 1483 Henry Kee to John Booth, 150 acres, proved by Gilly Booth.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/37 Mark Patterson to Benjamin Yeargan, 25 Feb 1788,
450 acres on Bolin Creek, adj Benjamin Bowling - except 80 acres which belongs to Hardy
Morgan, Granville to Henry Key 9 Jun 1761 [Gv513, SSLG 94-F, RegLn 2060], to Booth 4 Apr 1764
[ReglLn 1483?], Booth to Mark Patterson 12 Jul 1784 [OCPQS 3/577].

ReglLn 1484 William Bobbit to Charles Copeland, 80 acres, proved by William Luten.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/64 Charles Copeland to William Black, 2 Jun 1766, 80
acres on S side of Eno River, adj gut, William Bobbitt - William Bobbitt to Charles Copeland,
registered ODB E/127.

ReglLn 1485 Thomas Wilburne to William Wilburne, 120 acres, proved by Harman Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 1/53 Joshua Wilborn to Robert McClean, 20 Jun 1782,
120 acres adj a branch of Sandy Creek - being part of Granville to Thomas Wilborn [Gv569, SSLG
102-D, ReglLn 1576], to William Wilborn [RegLn 1485], to Joshua Wilborn [not found].

ReglLn 1486 Henry Morris to Samuel Parks, 433 acres, proved by Jessee Nevil.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1487 William Churton to Moses Tague, 225 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 1 Mar 1759, 225 acres on head branches of Nicks
Creek. Gv289, SSLG 87-E.

ReglLn 1488 Earl Granville to Edward Chambers, [528] acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/613 Benjamin Harrelson to Elkannah Harrelson, 16
Nov 1770, 300 acres on waters of Hico Creek, adj William Barnet - part of 528 acres Granville to
Edward Chambers 6 Mar 1762 [ReglLn 1488], to Benjamin Harrelson 2 Aug 1764 [ReglLn 1668].

ReglLn 1489 Earl Granville to Henry Beasley, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Beasley, 13 Jan 1763, 700 acres on forks of Obeds Creek.
Gv790, SSLG 84-F.

Regln 1490 John Williard to Ralph McNair, 200 acres, proved by Francis Nash.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1491 Robert Reed to John Dowel, 0.5 acres, proved by William Wiley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1492 Robert Reed to Thomas King, 150 acres, proved by William Wiley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1493 John Dunnagan to William Ray, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1494 Joshua Eason to Phillip Gee, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/186 Joshua Eason & Philip Gee & Rachel Gee to John
Whatley, 22 Sep 1769, 200 acres on S side of Bolin Creek adj John King - part of Granville to
Eason 5 Dec 1762 ODB E/166 [Gv732, SSLG 90-A, ReglLn 1537], Eason to Philip Gee 27 Sep 1763
ODB E/135 [ReglLn 1494].



ReglLn 1495 Hugh Dobbin to John Ellimore, 640 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/496 John Elliman to John Payne, 1 Dec 1768, 640
acres on both sides of Moons Creek, commonly called the Maple Swamp - Granville to Hugh
Dobbins 2 Aug 1760 [Gv404, SSLG 89-G], to Ellimon 7 Feb 1763.

Regln 1496 James McLeroy to Absolam McDaniel, 350 acres, proved by William Willburne.
Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to James Mickleroy Gv671, SSLG 96-E, 550 acres.

ReglLn 1497 Christopher Barbee to Francis Barbe, 588 acres, proved by William Nunn.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1498 George Martin to Phillimon Hawkins, 320 acres, proved by Richard Henderson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1499 Robert Wills to Joseph Person [Pinson?], 82 acres, proved by Herman Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Aaron Pinson, 13 Mar 1755, 82 acres on Stony Creek of Haw River.
Gv77, SSLG 98-A.

Regln 1500 Joseph Maddock to John Stubbs, 20 acres, proved by Harman Husbands.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1501 Thomas Anderson to William Rankin, 152 acres, proved by John Satterfield.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1398 James Talbert to Thomas Anderson.

ReglLn 1502 James Nichols to Joseph Pritchet, 143 acres, proved by Robert Wells.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1503 Andrew Michael to James Thompson, 560 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Per ODB
2/472 this was formerly ODB H/142.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Andrew Mitchell, 22 Feb 1759, 560 acres on both sides of
McGowans Creek of Eno River. Gv256, SSLG 96-F, ReglLn 645.

Regln 1504 Harman Husbands to Richard Wright, 218 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/144 Richard Right & Ann Right to Robert Field, 16 Mar
1772, 218 acres on branch of Sandy Creek, adj Nathan Maddocks - part of 641 acres Granville to
Harmon Husband 29 Jul 176 [Gv367, SSLG 93-B, ReglLn 2055].

Regln 1505 William Petty Sr to Zachariah Harmon, 108 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1506 James Hendricks Sr to Joseph Duncan, 575 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1507 The Last Will and Testament of William Brown, proved by George Johnson.
Chilton’s notes: OWB A/31.

Regln 1508 Thomas King to Stephen Maret, 1 acre, proved by Nicholas Durning.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1509 Argeus Henderson to Richard Berry, 150 acres, proved by James Forgerson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1510 Hugh Wiley to Thomas Wiley, 696 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Wiley, 1 Jan 1763, 696 acres on Beaver Creek of Alamance
Creek of Haw River, adj William Cusick, John Hanna. Gv770, SSLG 102-G, RegLn 1560.
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Regln 1511 Hugh Dobbin to James Finley, 266 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1512 Thomas Sheels to Simon Fooshee, 273 acres, proved by Vechell Clark.

Chilton’s notes: not found, but see CDB A/402 Simon Foushee to Nimrod Burck, 8 Nov 1774, 273
acres on S side of Haw River, on Brooks Creek. [Half of Granville to Thomas Shiles Gv775, SSLG
100-C, Regln 1559.]

Regln 1513 James Vastal to Enoch Pugh, 183 acres, proved by Thomas Branson.
Chilton’s notes: Collectively described by:

CDB A/91 Enoch Pugh to Jacob Pugh, 13 Jan 1771, 90 acres on branches of Rocky River, adj his
brothers land, Branson - half of 180 acres from James Vestal [RegLn 1513] 21 Oct 1772 [sic]. [See
Henry McCulloh to James Vestal ReglLn 2034.]

CDB A/101 Enoch Pugh to Thomas Pugh, 13 Jan 1771, 91 acres [on branches of Rocky River], adj
Thomas Branson - part of 180 acres Henry McCulloh to James Vestal [ReglLn 2034] 14 Nov 1760,
to Enoch Pugh [Regln 1513] 28 Oct 1762.

Regln 1514 Robert Thompson to Thomas Gilmore, 220 acres, proved by George Reynolds.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Thompson, 7 May 1756, 220 acres on S Cane Creek of Hico
Creek, adj Solmon Debow. Gv159, SSLG 101-H.

Regln 1515 Harman Husband to William Ward, 634 acres, proved by William Wilburne.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Branson, 13 May 1757, 634 acres on Sandy Creek, on N side
of the falls at a cleft of rocks, adj Harmon Husband, Ward. Gv212, SSLG 84-B, ReglLn 346.

Regln 1516 John Emery to Thomas Bowles, 202 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1517 Bazaleel Maxwel to William Todd, 275 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1518 John Harthorn to Abraham Richerson, 50 acres, proved by Solomon Morris.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1519 John Rainey to Garrand Terry, 170 acres, proved by James Saunders.
Chilton’s notes: The part of Gv503 not covered by ODB 3/216.

Regln 1520 Earl Granville to John Hannah, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Hannah, 10 Dec 1762, 700 acres on Beaver Creek of Alamance
Creek of Haw River, adj John Parker. Gv722, SSLG 91-G.
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Regln 1521 William Callahan to William Browning, _ acres, proved by Edward Grissham.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1522 William Chavis to James Boggan, 320 acres, proved by James Pinton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/254 Worham Glenn to John Carrington, 1789, 320
acres - Joseph Collins to William Chavers 10 Feb 1755 [ODB 1/40, ReglLn 130], to James Bogan 13
Feb 1764 [ReglLn 1522], to Joseph Glasson Apr 1776 [OCPQS 3/68, to Worham Glenn OCPQS
3/69]. Proved Nov 1789 by acknowledgment.

Regln 1523 William Morrow to John Rice, 625 acres, proved by James Morrow.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1524 Earl Granville to Joseph Dixon, 391 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Dixon, 17 Dec 1762, 391 acres on Terrells Creek of Haw
River, adj Jos Lambert. Gv744, SSLG 89-C.

Regln 1525 Earl Granville to Dudley Reynolds, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Dudley Reynolds, 6 Jan 1763, 700 acres on N Fork of Moons Creek.
Gv777, SSLG 99-F.

Regln 1526 Earl Granville to Thomas Harris, 477 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thompson Harris, 6 Mar 1762, 477 acres on Pruits Fork of Hogans
Creek, adj Samuel Watt, David Vann. Gv644, SSLG 91-I.

North Carolina, Orange County}...May 1764.

Regln 1527 Earl Granville to Harman Husbands, 660 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 11 Oct 1762, 660 acres on Loves Creek of Rocky
River. Gv694, SSLG 93-A.

ReglLn 1528 Earl Granville to Harman Husbands, 661 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 11 Dec 1762, 661 acres on Sandy Creek of Deep
River. Gv724, SSLG 93-B.
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Regln 1529 Earl Granville to Harman Husbands, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 10 Dec 1762, 700 acres on Sandy Creek of Deep
River. Gv717, SSLG 93-C.

Regln 1530 Earl Granville to Harman Husbands, 637 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 10 Dec 1762, 637 acres on Deep River, adj Jesse
Hollingsworth. Gv718, SSLG 93-E.

ReglLn 1531 Earl Granville to Solomon Dixon, 189 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Solomon Dixon, 17 Dec 1762, 189 acres on waters of Tick Creek of
Rocky River, adj May. Gv743, SSLG 89-D.

Regln 1532 Earl Granville to George Heagwood, 690 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Hagwood, 10 Dec 1762, 693 acres on waters of New Hope
Creek, adj Richard Caswell. Gv721, SSLG 92-A.

ReglLn 1533 Earl Granville to Henry Waggoner, 172 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Waggoner, 21 Jul 1760, 172 acres on Tapleys Creek, adj
McAllister. Gv344, SSLG 102-A.

Regln 1534 Earl Granville to Alexander Torrinton, 369 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Turrentine, 9 Feb 1761, 369 acres adj spring branch.
Gv494, SSLG 101-).

ReglLn 1535 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Hart, 259 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nathaniel Hart, 10 Dec 1762, 259 acres on Nats Fork of Country Line
Creek, adj John Boyd. Gv719, SSLG 91-J.

Regln 1536 Earl Granville to James Cheek, 409 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Cheek, 22 Feb 1759, 409 acres on both sides of N Fork of
Little River, adj Boggan. Gv265, SSLG 86-I.

Regln 1537 Earl Granville to Joshua Eason, 641 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joshua Eason, 15 Dec 1762, 641 acres on Bolin Creek of New Hope
Creek, adj John King. Gv732, SSLG 90-A.



ReglLn 1538 Earl Granville to Joseph Barnet, 202 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barnett, 9 Dec 1762, 202 acres on Castle Creek of Hico
Creek, adj Robert McFarland. Gv712, SSLG 84-E.
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Regln 1539 Earl Granville to Joseph Dixon, 680 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Dixon, 16 Dec 1762, 680 acres on Tick Creek of Rocky River,
adj John May. Gv738, SSLG 89-C.

Regln 1540 Earl Granville to Samuel Cobb, 487 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Cobb, 6 Nov 1761, 487 acres on Country Line Creek, adj
Nathaniel Hart. Gv593, SSLG 87-H.

Regln 1541 Earl Granville to Robert McFarland, 439 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert McFarland, 22 Dec 1762, 439 acres on waters of Castle Creek
of Hico Creek, adj McFarland, Joseph Barnett, Paul Harrelson. Gv754, SSLG 95.1-C.

ReglLn 1542 Earl Granville to Harman Husbands, 696 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1543 Earl Granville to Richard Parkel[r], 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Parker, 13 Jan 1763, 700 acres on waters of Bush Creek &
Pokeberry Creek, adj Kirby, William Griffin, Capt Parker. Gv787, SSLG 97-G.

Regln 1544 Earl Granville to Robert Wiley, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1545 Earl Granville to Miles Goforth, 472 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Miles Goforth, 30 Jan 1761, 472 acres on S Hico Creek, adj William
Wilson. Gv462, SSLG 91-A.

Regln 1546 Earl Granville to James Nichols, 269 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Nichols, 21 Dec 1762, 269 acres on Haw River, adj James
Cunningham, William Matear. Gv752, SSLG 97-B.

Regln 1547 Earl Granville to Phillip Pryor, 258 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Phillip Pryor, [surveyed 10 Jul 1762], 258 acres on a fork of Mayo
Creek of Hico Creek, adj John Pryor. No grant found, but survey is in Granville County Loose
Granville Papers.

Regln 1548 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbee, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 10 Jan 1763, 700 acres on waters of Bolin Creek of
New Hope Creek, adj John Stroud Jr, Lloyd, John King. Gv780, SSLG 83-H.
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Regln 1549 Earl Granville to Samuel Portis, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1550 Earl Granville to John Graves, 210 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Graves, 6 Mar 1762, 210 acres on head of Reedy Fork of N Hico
Creek. Gv646, SSLG 91-C.

Regln 1551 Earl Granville to Thomas James, 487 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas James, 26 Jan 1762, 487 acres on both sides of Horse Creek
of Little River. Gv634, SSLG 93-G.

Regln 1552 Earl Granville to William Mills, 216 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Mills, 8 Jan 1761, 216 acres on both sides of Stony Creek,
adj John West. Gv435, SSLG 96-E.

ReglLn 1553 Earl Granville to Charles Clanton, 390 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Clanton, 9 Dec 1762, 390 acres on Dry Creek of Haw River.
Gv708, SSLG 87-F.

ReglLn 1554 Earl Granville to Robert Cooley, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Corley, 8 Dec 1762, 700 acres on Robersons Creek of Haw
River, adj Petty, Charles Clanton. Gv699, SSLG 88-A.

Regln 1555 Earl Granville to Woolrich White, 182 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Woolrick White, 29 Jun 1762, 182 acres on Rocky River, adj Capt
Martin. Gv668, SSLG 102-E.

ReglLn 1556 Earl Granville to Austin Hightower, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Austin Hightower, 28 Jun 1762, 700 acres on Phils Creek of Morgan
Creek. Gv659, SSLG 92-D.

Regln 1557 Earl Granville to Phillip Hartso, 210 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Phillip Hartso, 10 Dec 1762, 210 acres on Rocky River. Gv720, SSLG
91-L.

ReglLn 1558 Earl Granville to Thomas Odien, 490 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Odien, 20 Dec 1762, 490 acres on Presswoods Creek of New
Hope Creek, adj Richard Strain, Gilbert Strayhorn. Gv748, SSLG 97-D.
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Regln 1559 Earl Granville to Thomas Sheels, 546 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Shiles, 4 Jan 1763, 546 acres on Brooks Creek of Haw River,
adj William Marsh. Gv775, SSLG 100-C.

Regln 1560 Earl Granville to Hugh Wiley, 696 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Wiley, 1 Jan 1763, 696 acres on Beaver Creek of Alamance
Creek of Haw River, adj William Cusick, John Hanna. Gv770, SSLG 102-G.

Regln 1561 Earl Granville to Thomas James, 192 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas James, 29 Dec 1762, 293 acres on both sides of N Fork of
Little River, adj S Fork of Little River. Gv764, SSLG 93-G.

Regln 1562 Earl Granville to James Ray, 325 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Ray, 6 Jan 1763, 325 acres on waters of Little Creek of
Robersons Creek of Haw River, adj William Petty, Robert Cooley. Gv779, SSLG 98-I.

ReglLn 1563 Earl Granville to Anne Smith, 660 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Anne Smith, 4 Dec 1763, 660 acres on Youngs Mill Creek, adj the
Province line. Gv803, SSLG 100-D.

Regln 1564 Earl Granville to James Bowie, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bowie, 31 Aug 1753, 400 acres adj Capt
Synnott. Gv14, SSLG 84-M, ReglLn 1564. ReglLn 29 James Bowie to Thomas Whitehead, 400 acres.
ReglLn 1390 Thomas Whitehead to Reason Whitehead, 400 acres. RegLn 1777 Reason
Whitehead to Edmund Faning, 400 acres.

ReglLn 1565 Earl Granville to Edward Trice, 375 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Trice, 28 Jun 1762, 375 acres on New Hope Creek E Fork, adj
James Trice, Bohannon, Barbee. Gv658, SSLG 101-K.

Regln 1566 Earl Granville to Robert Erwin, 217 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Erwin, 2 Aug 1760, 217 acres on SW side of Eno River, on
both isdes of the Old Courthouse Road. Gv407, SSLG 90-B.

ReglLn 1567 Earl Granville to John Walter, 577 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Walker, 6 Mar 1762, 577 acres on N Fork of Moons Creek.
Gv640, SSLG 102-A.

Regln 1568 Earl Granville to William Grayham, 532 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Graham, 14 Dec 1762, 532 acres on Horsleys Creek of
Country Line Creek, adj Thomas Hart. Gv730, SSLG 91-F.
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Regln 1569 Earl Granville to Robert McConnel, 299 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert McConnell, 13 Oct 1761, 299 acres on waters of Little River,
adj Archelaus Wilson. Gv583, SSLG 95.1-B.

Regln 1570 Earl Granville to Reuben Landrum, 379 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Reuben Landrum, 24 Dec 1762, 379 acres on ridge between Mill
Creek & Great Creek of Rocky River. Gv762, SSLG 95-B.

Regln 1571 Earl Granville to James Nicholson, 692 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Nicholson, 22 Dec 1762, 692 acres on Sandy Creek of Deep
River, adj Harmon Husband, Samuel Walker, Thomas Wilborn, Seymour York. Gv756, SSLG 97-B.

Regln 1572 Earl Granville to John Davis, 175 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Davis, 16 Dec 1762, 175 acres on N side of Deep River, adj
William Churton. Gv742, SSLG 88-K.

ReglLn 1573 Earl Granville to Hugh Barnett, 328 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Barnett, 9 Dec 1762, 328 acres on waters of Stories Creek, adj
William Chambers, Paul Harrelson, Barnett. Gv706, SSLG 83-L.

Regln 1574 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbee, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 11 Jan 1763, 700 acres on Panther Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv781, SSLG 83-G.

ReglLn 1575 Earl Granville to Joseph Barbee, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 11 Jan 1763, 700 acres on Panther Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv782, SSLG 83-H.

Regln 1576 Earl Granville to Thomas Wilborn, 225 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Wilborn, 2 Oct 1761, 225 acres on Sandy Run, called
Thomas Hazzard's Tract, adj Seymour York, John McGee. Gv569, SSLG 102-D.

Regln 1577 Earl Granville to James McGowen, 360 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James McGowan, 6 Mar 1762, 360 acres on waters of Eno River, adj
Minnis, Mitchell. Gv643, SSLG 95.1-D.

Regln 1578 Earl Granville to John Brown, 698 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Brown, 14 Oct 1761, 698 acres on Flat River, adj James
Watson, Thomas Gibson. Gv591, SSLG 85-H.
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Regln 1579 Earl Granville to Alexander Carson, 108 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Carson, 14 Jul 1760, 108 acres on both side of Eno River,
adj bents of river. Gv332, SSLG 86-C.

Regln 1580 Earl Granville to Edward Edwards, 680 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Edwards, 15 Dec 1762, 680 acres on Beaver Dam Creek &
Pokeberry Creek of Haw River. Gv733, SSLG 90-A.

Regln 1581 Earl Granville to Thomas Sharp, 313 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Sharp, 4 Jan 1763, 313 acres on Nelsons Creek of Haw
River, adj David Phillips. Gv774, SSLG 100-B.

Regln 1582 Earl Granville to John Lambert, 573 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Lambert, 21 Aug 1759, 573 acres on S side of Haw River, both
sides of Cane Creek, adj George Williams, Benjamin Martin. Gv317, SSLG 95-A.

ReglLn 1583 Earl Granville to John Forrist, 329 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/356 Richard Kennon to William McClellan, 20 Nov
1773, 320 acres on Forresters Creek, adj James Forrester. Proved May 1790 by Patrick
McCulloch. [ReglLn 1583 Granville to John Forrest...RegLn 2334 Robert Littler to John Embree, to
Richard Kennon ReglLn 2619. Later to William McClellan ODB 4/356, to Hezekiah McClellan
OCPQS 3/121.]

Regln 1584 Archibald Morrison to John Lynn, 144 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: The part of ReglLn 1074 Henry McCulloch esq to Archibald Morrison, 432 acres,
ReglLn 2337 Archibald Morrison to James Harbison, 432 acres, not conveyed by ODB 3/375
James Harbison by Sheriff to Samuel Suther, 27 Mar 1771, 288 acres on waters of Alamance, adj
John Fuller, path - levy on James Harbison pursuant to order of Rowan Court 5 Sep 1770.

Regln 1585 William Sission to John Jones, 300 acres, proved by James Carter.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/535 John Jones & Mary Jones to Samuel Temple, 21
Nov 1768, 150 acres on S side of Deep River, formerly in Bladen County, adj Edward Howard -
upper part of 300 acres, Granville to [Thomas] A[rmstrong] 21 Mar 1752 [ODB 1/189, ReglLn
202], to Charles Thompson [not found], to William Sisson [RegLn 707], to Jones [ReglLn 1585].

Regln 1586 James Cate to James Ballard, 150 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1587 William Rankin to James Curry, 503 acres, proved by Thomas Carr.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 19 Feb 1760, 503 acres on both sides of N Fork of
N Hico Creek, adj his own land. Gv325, SSLG 89-F. ReglLn 1985 Hugh Dobbin to William Rankin,
503 acres.



Regln 1588 James McLeroy to William Trogdon, [150?] acres, proved by John Lane.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 1/204 Walter Billingsley & wife Sarah & Basel
Billingsley planter to Christian Morris, 9 Dec 1786, 150 acres on branches of Mount Pleasant
Creek of Sandy Creek, adj Absalom McDaniel - being part of Granville to Muckleroy 19 Jun 1762
[Gv671, SSLG 96-E, ReglLn 1188], to William Trogdon 1 Nov 1762 [ReglLn 1588], to James
Billingsley 12 Oct 1764 [RegLn 1740], by will to Walter & Basel [GWB A:30]. Witness: Thomas
Hambleton, Elias Alred. Proved Aug 1794 by Ellias Alred.
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Regln 1589 Henry Reynolds to William Grayham, 222 acres, proved by Nathaniel Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2579 William Grayham to John Cochrane, 222 acres.
Regln 1590 Earl Granville to Robert Wells, 229 acres, proved by Stephen Maret.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1591 Jean Satterfield to John Satterfield, _ acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1592 Jessee Brashears to Edward Gilbert, 637 acres, proved by William Anderson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Brashear, 17 Jul 1760, 637 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv330,
SSLG 85-A, Regln 1910.

Regln 1593 Samuel Sarret Sr to Neil McCoy, 222 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/592 James McMurray to John McMurray, 1 May
1771, 222 acres on both sides of Double Creek of Hico Creek, adj Samuel Jarrat - Granville to
Samuel Jarrat Sr 20 Nov 1756 [Gv188, SSLG 99-1], Jarrett to Neil McCoy 13 Sep 1765 [ReglLn
1593].

Regln 1594 Abraham Penn to Thomas Hart, 637 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Brashear, 17 Jul 1760, 637 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv330,
SSLG 85-A, Regln 1910.

Regln 1595 John Landrum Sr to Reuben Landrum, 280 acres, proved by Samuel Landrum.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by CDB A/24
Regln 1596 Peter Young to Robert Moth[er]wel, 211 acres, proved by Charles Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB K/171 Ann Grier & Joseph Motherall & Robert
Motherall to William Breeze, 6 Sep 1789, 211 acres on S Hico Creek. [Formerly Peter Young to
Robert Motherall ReglLn 1596.]

Regln 1597 John Landrum to Elizabeth Burks, 250 acres, proved by Reuben Landrum.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 1598 Henry Sell to Jonathan Sell Jr, 80 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1599 Annanias Allen to David Chalmers, 6 acres, proved by Andrew Forgerson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1600 Edward Camp to John Cooper Sr, 236 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Camp, 6 Dec 1761, 236 acres on E side of Marlowes Creek,
adj Harrelson, Highs Creek, Chambers, Dickson. Gv603, SSLG 85-K, RegLn 2069.

Regln 1601 Oliff Milton to William Thompson, _ acres, proved by James Hendricks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1602 Thomas Holden Sr to Thomas Holden Jr, 150 acres, proved by John Woods.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1603 Jessee Brashear to Edward Gilbert, 637 acres, proved by William Anderson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Brashear, 17 Jul 1760, 637 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv330,
SSLG 85-A, Regln 1910.

Regln 1604 Earl Granville to Zachariah Martin, 585 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Zachariah Martin Jr, 6 Dec 1761, 585 acres on Dry Creek. Gv620,
SSLG 96-B.

ReglLn 1605 Earl Granville to David Moore, 168 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to David Moore, 6 Dec 1761, 168 acres on Forresters Creek of Little
River, adj Gaddis, England. Gv619, SSLG 96-H.

Regln 1606 Earl Granville to William Bustar, 609 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Buster, 2 Aug 1760, 639 acres on both sides of Dobbins
Branch of Country Line Creek, adj Dobbins. Gv414, SSLG 85-J.

ReglLn 1607 William Cox to Charles Johnson, 350 acres, proved by Benj Saxon.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Cox, 1 Aug 1760, 350 acres on New Hope Creek, adj
Blackwood, Patterson's Path. Gv380, SSLG 88-D, ReglLn 2027.

[Page 172]
ReglLn 1608 James Trice to Benjamin Blake, 240 acres, proved by Benjamin Saxon.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/731 Benjamin Blake to John Scott, 5 Feb 1787, 240
acres on both sides of New Hope Creek, adj Great Branch - James Trice to Benjamin Blake father
of grantor 22 Mar 1763, Benjamin Blake by will to son James Blake [RegLn 1608], by intestacy to



Benjamin Blake his brother. Proved Nov 1788 by Nich'l Perry. [Later to Robert Campbell ODB
4/344, to Charles Collier ODB 5/301.]

ReglLn 1609 Joseph Akins to James Bradley, 120 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1610 Thomas Fussell to Thomas Persons esq, 247 acres, proved by John Williams.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Zachariah Martin, 3 Feb 1761, 247 acres on Northeast Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj Moore. Gv479, SSLG 96-B. RegLn 805 Zachariah Martin to Thomas Fusell, 247
acres. no survey

Regln 1611 Luke Lea to John Graves, 174 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1612 Isaac Collins to Robert Patterson, 115 acres, proved by Gedion Kirksey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1613 William Cox to Phebe Allen, 240 acres, proved by Adam Moffat.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 8/397 Phebe Cox widow to John Allen of Orange
County NC, 10 Sep 1803 [QS], 240 acres on both sides of Coxes Mill Creek - being part of
Granville to William McFerson [Gv136, SSLG 95.1-C, RegLn 412], to Joshua Gregg [ReglLn 476], to
William Cox [ReglLn 1353], to Phebe Allen widow [RegLn 1613] as may appear by records of
Orange County, and by will of her late husband Isaac Cox [RaWB 2/29] as may appear by records
of Randolph County. Proved Feb 1804 by Samuel Allen.

Regln 1614 Thomas Anderson to John Anderson Sr, 225 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Anderson, 13 Oct 1761, 225 acres on Richland Creek of Hico
Creek, adj Lawrence Bankson. Gv577, SSLG 83-D.

Regln 1615 Absolam McDaniel to Daniel McDaniel, 100 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by GDB 1/165. Later RANDOLPH.
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Regln 1616 John Barbee Jr to Francis Barbee, 292 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1617 Harman Husband to Henry Lenderman, 208 acres, proved by Henry Cogle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by:

RaDB 2/66 Henry Lenderman farmer & wife Margaret of Guilford County NC to Henry
Lenderman Jr farmer of same, 21 Feb 1777, 53.5 acres adj Peter Kivett - being part of Granville
to Harmon Husband 14 Nov 1755 [Gv122, SSLG 93-D, ReglLn 467], 208 acres to Lenderman 20 Jul
1763 ODB 1/207 [ReglLn 1617].



RaDB 2/119 Henry Lenderman & wife Margaret to Peter Kivet, 6 Jan 1785, 155 acres on a branch
of Sandy Creek called Mount Pleasant Creek - being part of Granville to Harmon Husband 15 Nov
1755 [Gv122, SSLG 93-D, Regln 467], 208 acres to Lenderman 7 Jul 1763 [ReglLn 1617].

Regln 1618 William Chambers to John Byas, 280 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Chambers, 17 Jul 1760, 280 acres on Hughes Mill Creek.
Gv342, SSLG 86-G, Regln 827.

Regln 1619 William Jackson to William Gibson, 240 acres, proved by James Few.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1620 Samuel Bumpas to George Cooley, 228 acres, proved by Samuel Bumpas.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to Samuel Bumpass, [unknown], 218 acres on Spring Branch that
leads into Mud Branch. Gv832, H5586. Later ReglLn 2507 George Ely to Arthur Moore, 228 acres?

Regln 1621 Darbee Hanley to William Hanley, 154 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1622 Thomas Webb to John Meherg, 238 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1623 Thomas Swift to Enoch Sisson [Stinson], 80 acres, proved by Thomas Wilburn.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/506 Enos Stinson & Elizabeth Stinson to William
Hinshaw, 20 Feb 1769, 80 acres on a branch of Sandy Creek of Deep River - part of Granville to
Thomas Swift [Gv536, SSLG 100-J, ReglLn 865,] to Stinson [RegLn 1623].
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Regln 1624 John Cain to John Rainey, 250 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1625 Lawrence Thompson to Thomas Hart, 1 acre, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1626 William Gladen to William Gowen, 311.5 acres, proved by James Bradley.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/116 James Roberts to John Ingram, 27 Mar 1779,
311.5 acres on both sides of Moons Creek - part of grant to William Gladen 7 Jun 1761 [not
found], to William Going [ReglLn 1626], to John Wood [RegLn 1345], to James Roberts [RegLn
2453].

ODB 3/285 Alexander Gowen to John Dismukes, 30 May 1770, 311.5 acres on both sides of
Moons Creek - granted William Gladden 7 Jun 1761 [not found], Gladden to Gowen 7 Apr 1762
[RegLn 1626]. [Later to Samuel Paul CwDB A/38.]



Regln 1627 Earl Granville to William Barbee, 375 acres, proved by William Churton. [This deed is cited
by CDB C/179 as formerly being recorded at ODB F/215.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Barber, 9 Dec 1762, 375 acres on Indian Creek of Deep
River, adj Nathaniel Powell. Gv707, SSLG 83-I.

Regln 1628 Trustees of Hillsborough to Henry Lemond, 175 acres, proved by James Cummings.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1629 John Armstrong to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 300 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1714 John Armstrong to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 300
acres.

Regln 1630 Mark Cook to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1304 Mark Cook to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200
acres. Regln 2167 Henry McCulloch to Mark Cook, 200 acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx
Henry McCulloh to Mark Cook, 17 Aug 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 1631 Henry Lemon to Edmund Fanning, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1632 Trustees of Hillsborough to [Edmund Fanning], 1 acre, proved by James Cummings.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1633 William Nunn to John Chapman, 640 acres, proved by Joseph Barbee.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1634 Christopher Barbee Sr to Christopher Barbee, _ acres, proved by Joseph Barbe.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1635 Thomas Ring Sr to Thomas Ring Jr, 150 acres, proved by Thomas Luten.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1636 Trustees of Hillsborough to Edmund Fanning, 1 acre, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1637 Richard Wamack to William Hankins, 189 acres, proved by Jacob Womack.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1638 Trustees of Hillsborough to Edmund Fanning, 1 acre, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 1639 John Barton to William Barton, 290 acres, proved by Michael Stin.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by GDB 1/21 & GDB 1/352 & RaDB 3/242 & RaDB 4/100.
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ReglLn 1640 Paul Harrelson to Burges Harrelson, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1641 William Churton to Abraham Hill, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1642 Trustees of Hillsborough to William Reed, 400 acres, proved by James Cuming.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1643 Andrew Forgerson to William Prator, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1644 Thomas Clark to John Dowel, 1 acre, proved by Francis Nash esq.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1645 William Mebane to Warham Glenn, 180 acres, proved by Tyrie Harris.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1646 Jacob Roberson to Alexander Roberson, 100 acres, proved by Thomas Roberson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1647 Benjamin Bohannan to John Record, 150 acres, proved by Jessee Loc.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1648 Jeremiah Ward to John Ward, 1685 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/288 John Ward to William Buster, 15 Mar 1770, 265
acres on both sides of Wolf Island Creek, adj Ward - [?part of 1685 acres Robert Jones Jr to]
Jeremiah Ward [ReglLn 888] to John Ward [RegLn 1648]. [Later to Claudius Buster GDB 1/402 et

seq.]
Regln 1649 Michael Dixon to Michael Cockburn, 93 acres, proved by

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/34 John Cockburn to Henry Cockburn, 14 Aug 1775,
97 acres on E side of Gents Creek of Hico Creek - part of larger tract Michael Dickson to
Cockburn 4 Aug 1764 [ReglLn 1649].

Regln 1650 Robert Jones to Joseph Scott, 480 acres, proved by Daniel Duncan.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/532 Joseph Scott & Jenet Scott to Daniel Allen &
William Allen & George Allen, 7 Apr 1770, 480 acres on both sides of [blank] Creek, adj Jones.

Regln 1651 Enoch Lewis to Abner Nash, 33 sqare feet, proved by James Cumming.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1652 John Dunnagan to Moses Bonner, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/594 William Tub to William Ansley, 25 Sep 1769, 100
acres on both sides of Deep Creek, adj Adam Davis - part of 330 acres Granville to John Dunagan
3 Feb 1761 [Gv477, SSLG 89-I, ReglLn 2030, to Moses Bonner/Bonnett Regln 1652, to William
Tubb Regln 2275].

ReglLn 1653 Christian Shy to James Jackson, 20 acres, proved by William Nunn.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/412 James Jackson & Elizabeth Jackson to William
Whited, 9 Apr 1772, three tracts, first tract, 20 acres adj Samuel Money, William Jackson, John
Dennis — Isaac Jackson to Christian Shy 19 May 1761 [ODB 3/492], to James Jackson 16 May
1764 ODB 1/237 [RegLn 1653]...

Regln 1654 William Searcey to Solomon Morgan, 100 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/248 Solomon Morgan & Mehitabel Morgan to
Lombard Reed, 14 Dec 1773, 100 acres on N side of Deep River, adj Richeson, Granville's line —
Granville to William Searcy 7 Jan 1761 [Gv432, SSLG 99-H].

ReglLn 1655 Robert McFarland to Lawrence Rambo, 138 acres, proved by Lawrence Rambo.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1656 Alexander Lake to Mordica Moore, 130 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/427 Joseph Courtney to Ralph McNair, 16 Feb 1772,
130 acres adj Thomas Person formerly John McMunn, James Chamberlin formerly John
Thompson — [Granville to Alexander Lackey Gv310, SSLG 95-K, RegLn 647, to his daughter Mary
Lackey Moore & husband] Mordicai Moore [RegLn 1656,] to James Courtney 10 Oct 1765 [ReglLn
2626], moiety to Joseph Courtney 6 May 1768 [ReglLn 2301].

Regln 1657 Robert Donalson to Thomas Donalson, 315 acres, proved by Hugh Barnett.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1658 Alexander Clark to Gedion Anderson, 235 acres, proved by Robert Grisson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/345 Gideon Anderson to John Tilley, 14 Oct 1771, 235
acres on Mountain Creek, adj Henry McCulloh, cabin, branch. [McCulloh to Alexander Clark
ReglLn 1301, to Gideon Anderson Regln 1658.]

ReglLn 1659 Luke Robinson to John Camp, 402 acres, proved by Hosea Tapley.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/518 John Camp to Samuel Vanhook, 27 Sep 1765, 402
acres on Middle Fork of Little River, adj Rutherford - Granville to Nathaniel Walton 15 Jul 1760
[Gv340, SSLG 102-C, ReglLn 713], to Luke Robertson [not found], to John Camp 6 Feb 1764
[Regln 1659].

Regln 1660 William Barton to Martin Stayley, 165 acres, proved by George Coble.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by GDB 1/21 & GDB 1/352
Regln 1661 Thomas Harris to Charles Diew [or Dixon?], 213 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/111 Robert Jones Jr to William Wynne, four tracts,
first tract, 213 acres.

Regln 1662 Robert Jones to David Chambers, 100 acres, proved by Daniel Dunn.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1663 Zachariah Martin to Benjamin Drummon[d], 200 acres, proved by Joseph Stewart.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/315 Benjamin Drummond & Ann Drummond to James
Massey, 16 Jan 1770, 200 acres on Mullins Branch. [Granville to John Stewart Gv359, SSLG 100-
G-1, Regln 1934, to Zachariah Martin RegLn 931, to Benjamin Drummond ReglLn 1663.]
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Regln 1664 John Tabor to William Tabor, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1665 Michael King to Peter Richardson, 72 acres, proved by George Coble.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/365 Peter Richardson & Elizabeth Richardson to John
Morice, 30 Jul 1771, 72 acres on a draft of Stinking Quarter Creek - part of 256 acres Henry
McCulloh to Michael King 1 Jun 1762 [ReglLn 1138], King to Richardson 26 Jul 1764 [ReglLn 1665].

Regln 1666 Malachi Fikes to John Fikes, 100 acres, proved by James Carter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1667 Malachi Dixon to John Cockburn, 97 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1668 Edward Chambers to Burges Harrelson, 528 acres, proved by Paul Harrelson.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/613 Benjamin Harrelson to Elkannah Harrelson, 16
Nov 1770, 300 acres on waters of Hico Creek, adj William Barnet - part of 528 acres Granville to
Edward Chambers 6 Mar 1762 [ReglLn 1488], to Benjamin Harrelson 2 Aug 1764 [ReglLn 1668].

Regln 1669 Frederick Brown to Phillip Cooper, 116 acres, proved by Michael Sling.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps part of RegLn 591 Earl Granville to Frederick Brown, 233
acres?



Regln 1670 John Barton to John Coble, 68 acres, proved by Conrod Stanby.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1671 James Archmore [Ashmore?] to John Henry Richard [Pickard?], 250 acres, proved by
James Cumming.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/571 John Henry Pickard to Samuel Holladay, 11 Mar
1769, 250 acres on Terrells Creek. Regln 1333 Wade Ashmore to James Ashmore
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Regln 1672 John Byas to John Gwin, 100 acres, proved by Alexander Gray.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1673 Hosea Tapley to John Camp, 201 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1674 William Cox to Solomon Cox, 235 acres, proved by Joseph Conner.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2396 Solomon Cox to Nicholas Barker, 235 acres.
North Carolina, Orange Count}...August 1764.
Regln 1675 Alexander McCollister to Jessee Lea, 320 acres, proved by Charles Tharington.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1676 Thomas Sharp to William Carlisle, 165 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1677 Thomas Odien to David Castleberry, 245 acres, proved by Phillip Gee.

Chilton’s notes: Half of Granville to Thomas Odien, 20 Dec 1762, 490 acres on Presswoods Creek
of New Hope Creek, adj Richard Strain, Gilbert Strayhorn. Gv748, SSLG 97-D..
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Regln 1678 John Bohannon to John Record, 360 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1679 Annanias Allen to John Black, 100 acres, proved by Daniel Duncan.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/467 John Black to Daniel Duncan, 15 Dec 1770, 100
acres on both sides of N Fork of Hico Creek, adj Samuel Bell.

ReglLn 1680 John Bohannon to Elizabeth Shaddock, 100 acres, proved by John Record.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1681 Francis Nash to John Dowel, 1 acre, proved.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1682 John McMillion to George Lumpkin, 239 acres, proved by Nathan Bostick.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/398 John Dismukes to Ambrose Gatewood, 20 Sep
1771, 239 acres on both sides of Hogans Creek, adj Sideling Place - part of Granville to John
McMillan 7 Oct 1761 [Gv574, SSLG 95.1-F, ReglLn 1182], McMillan to George Lumkin [RegLn
1682], Lumkin to Humphrey Hendricks [RegLn 1797].

Regln 1683 William Almond to William Stokes, 150 acres, proved by Needham Bryant.

Chilton’s notes: Formerly ReglLn 851 Luke Roberson to William Almond, 150 acres. Later ReglLn
2284 William Stokes to Roger Adkinson, 150 acres.

Regln 1684 Needham Bryant Sr to Needham Bryant esq, 700 acres, proved by Needham Bryant.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Needham Bryant, 28 Jun 1762, 700 acres on Beaver Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv660, SSLG 85-H, ReglLn 1190.

Regln 1685 Needham Bryant Sr to Needham Bryant Jr, 350 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1686 Francis Jones to John Miles, 230 acres, proved by Andrew Mitchel.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Francis Jones, 22 Feb 1759, 230 acres on S side of Bear Creek,
opposite Little Bear Creek. Gv272, SSLG 94-A, Regln 558.

Regln 1687 William Barton to Conrad Stale[y], 125 acres, proved by George Coble.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 4/100 Conrod Stealey & wife Barbara to Jacob Stailey,
29 Nov 1790, 125 acres adj branch - being part of Henry McCulloh to John Barton 176_ [ReglLn
2017], to William Barton [ReglLn 1639], to Conrod Staley 1764 [RegLn 1687]. Witness: Chris
Stailey, John Ferguson.

Regln 1688 Henry Brewer to Charles Thompson, 480 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by CDB B/45

Regln 1689 Andrew Lynum to John Jacob, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1690 Thomas Dobbins to William Serjant, 200 acres, proved by John McGee.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1691 Thomas Hart to John Triple[t], 202 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB G/36 John Triplett Sr to Jepthah Rice, 12 Feb 1788,
202 acres on both sides of Horsleys Creek of Country Line Creek, adj Thomas Hart - part of
Granville to Thomas Hart.



Regln 1692 John Harrington to Charles Harrington Sr, 160 acres, proved by Charles Harrington.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1693 David Phillips to James Carlisle, 179 acres, proved by William Carlisle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1694 Charles Davis to John Davis, 187 acres, proved by Thomas Davis.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 573 Henry McCulloch to Charles Davis, 187 acres, but
87 acres to Thomas Davis Regln 1927, so perhaps this deed was actually only 100 acres?

Regln 1695 Thomas King Sr to Julias King, 75 acres, proved by Thomas King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1696 Robert Jones Jr to Andrew Forgerson, 300 acres, proved by Daniel Duncan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1697 John Record to Francis Drake, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1698 Joseph Kirk to William Braswell, 375 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1699 Benjamin Bohannan to Drury Mims, 320 acres, proved by Daniel Carrell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1700 John Dowel to Isaac Lewis, 220 acres, proved by James McGowen.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 537 James Taylor to John Dowel, 220 acres & ReglLn
2662 Isaac Lewis & his wife to John Woods, 220 acres.

Regln 1701 William Ridle to Jeremiah Minter, 500 acres, proved by William Riddle.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/67 Jeremiah Minter to John Minter, 1 Feb 1772, 500
acres on N side of Deep River - part of 700 acres Granville to John Brantley [Gv688, SSLG 85-A],
to William Riddle [RegLn 1029], to Jeremiah Minter [RegLn 1701].
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Regln 1702 John Bumpas to Alexander Erskin, 360 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1703 Joshua Avin to David Chapman, 275 acres, proved by Charles Harrington.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 1704 Richard West to Malachi Fike, 288 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Half of Gv768. Partly described by CDB A/316 Malachi Fike to Mical Loper, 20
Sep 1772, 100 acres adj Richard West. [See Granville to Richard West Gv768, SSLG 102-E, ReglLn
2259, to Malachi Fike Regln 1704.]

ReglLn 1705 Thomas Oden to Henry Castleberry, 245 acres, proved by William Castle[berry].

Chilton’s notes: Half of Granville to Thomas Odien, 20 Dec 1762, 490 acres on Presswoods Creek
of New Hope Creek, adj Richard Strain, Gilbert Strayhorn. Gv748, SSLG 97-D..

Regln 1706 Samuel Underwood to John Patterson, 305 acres, proved by Jeremiah Piggot.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1098 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Samuel Underwood,
305 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. ReglLn 2159 Samuel Underwood to Henry Eustice
McCulloch, 305 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Regln 1707 John Dowel to Francis Nash, 0.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1708 John Williard to John Dowel, 0.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1709 Robert Stewart to Joseph Stala, [part of] 207 acres, proved by Peter Richardson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/593 Edmund Fanning to William Lindley, 2 Oct 1769,
100 acres on a branch of Cane Creek, adj Thomas Davis - part of Henry McCulloh to Robert
Stewart [Regln 2037], to [Joseph Stala ReglLn 1709] to Thomas Canby [RegLn 2379], to Edmund
Fanning 21 Mar 1769 [not found].
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Regln 1710 George Coble to Peter Spoon, 180 acres, proved by William King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1711 Earl Granville to William Reeves, 368 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Reeves, 28 Jun 1762, 363 acres on Stirrup Iron Creek of
Crabtree Creek. Gv653, SSLG 98-K.

Regln 1712 Peter Ream [& wife] to John Foust, 202 acres, proved by Michael Holt Jr. [Also proved at
OCPQS 2/249]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 4/191 John Foust Jr & wife Mary to George Foust,
Feb 1787, 202 acres on S side of Haw River, adj George Clap, Lowdick Clap - Henry McCulloh to
Peter Ream 4 Mar 1763 [ReglLn 1275], to John Foust Jr 13 Mar 1764 [ReglLn 1712].

Regln 1713 William Couch to Thomas Couch, 300 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 1714 John Armstrong to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 300 acres, proved by Isaac Edwards.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1629 John Armstrong to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 300
acres.

Regln 1715 James Bowie to William Reed, 240 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/476 William Reed to James Watson Sr, 5 Apr 1770,
240 acres on head branches of Ellerbe Creek, being the place whereon | now live. [Granville to
James Bowie Patent Book 14:357, H3700, RegLn 1179, to William Reed ReglLn 1715.]

Regln 1716 John Meherg to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 440 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2165 Henry McCulloch to John Meherg, 440 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Meherg, 27 Jul 1763, 440 acres in
Tract 12.

Regln 1717 Benjamin Carter to Hugh Dobbins, 262 acres, proved by Patrick Porter.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Carter, 2 Aug 1760, 262 acres on both sides of Rattlesnake
Creek. Gv413, SSLG 86-E, ReglLn 821.
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Regln 1718 William Dunnagan to John Kelly, 202 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Dunagan, 16 Dec 1762, 202 acres on waters of Little River,
adj Edmund Fanning, Thomas Dunagan. Gv740, SSLG 89-J, ReglLn 1210.

Regln 1719 Nathaniel Astin to Abner Nash, _ acres, proved by Jame Lwa.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1720 Thomas Hines to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 840 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2171 Henry McCulloch to Thomas Hines, 848 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Thomas Hines, 22 Jul 1763, 840 acres in
Tract 12.

Regln 1721 Nathaniel Reed to Joseph Reed, 100 acres, proved by John McGee.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 3/109 Jacob Elliot Sr & wife Elizabeth of Montgomery
County VA to Jacob Elliot Jr, 14 Oct 1782, 100 acres on E side of Polecat Creek - being part of
John Lewis to Nathaniel Reed 4 May 1762 [RegLn 1244, Regln 1245], to Joseph Reed 3 Oct 1764
[Regln 1721, Regln 18757], to Jacob Elliot Sr 2 Apr 1765 [not found]. Witness: Israel Elliott,
Abraham Elliott.

Regln 1722 James Blackley to James Dinkins, 362 acres, proved by James Wilkinson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Blakeley, 28 Jan 1761, 362 acres on Flat River, adj Osborn
Jefffries. Gv451, SSLG 84-H, ReglLn 810. See also ReglLn 1738.

ReglLn 1723 Charles Posax to Charles Saston [Charles Saxon], 207 acres, proved by Theophilus Petty.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1724 Michael Dixon to John Hodge, 55 acres, proved by William Chambers.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1725 John Lay to John Graves, 75 acres, proved by Joseph Dolittle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1726 Robert Taylor to John McAllister, 200 acres [or 201 acres?], proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1727 John Warren to John Hodge, 100 acres, proved by William Chambers.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1728 Mathew Couch to Archibald Bowland, 100 acres, proved by Abraham Nelson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1729 Edward Trice to John Trice, 240 acres, proved by James Lea.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/223 John Trice & Elizabeth Trice to John Booth, 15
Mar 1770, 240 acres on S side of New Hope Creek, adj the low grounds, Bohannon. [Granville to
Edward Trice Gv658, SSLG 101-K, ReglLn 1565, to John Trice ReglLn 1729.]

North Carolina, Orange County}...November 1764.
Regln 1730 Robert Erwin to Samuel Allen, 217 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Erwin, 2 Aug 1760, 217 acres on SW side of Eno River, on
both isdes of the Old Courthouse Road. Gv407, SSLG 90-B, ReglLn 1566.

Regln 1731 John Trice to Edward Trice, 32 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1732 Thomas Nelson to Abraham Nelson & Archibald Bowling, 430 acres, proved by Gilbert
Strayhorn.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to Thomas Nelson, [unknown], 430 acres on Eno
River & Stones Creek, adj Governor Johnston, Stone. Gv940, H6278

ReglLn 1733 Felix Lang to John Douglas, 150 acres, proved by Thomas Douglas.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/610 John Anderson Sr to Andrew Caddel, 1 Dec 1770,
150 acres on waters of Hico Creek, adj head of South Creek, Long - Joseph Long to Felix Long
[RegLn 2071], to Douglass [RegLn 1733].



Regln 1734 Michael Synnot to Edmund Fanning, 640 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1735 William Leaky to Samuel Stout, 93 acres, proved by Samuel Landerman.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1736 Abraham Fulkerson to Isaac Tetsort, 250 acres, proved by William Chambers.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1737 Paul Harmon to Edmund Fanning, 1 acre, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1738 John Allentharp to James Dickins, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Some part of Gv626 partly described by ODB 3/525 James Dickens to Richard
Person, _ Oct 1769, 60 acres on N side of Flat River - part of two tracts Granville to James
Blake[ley] 20 Jun 1761 for 362 acres [Gv451, SSLG 84-H, ReglLn 810, to James Dickens ReglLn
1722] & Granville to John [Allen] Tharp 6 Dec 1761 for 365 acres [Gv626, SSLG 101-F, ReglLn
2088, 100 acres to James Dickens ReglLn 1738].

Regln 1739 Herman Husband to Ebeneezer Starns, 244 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/265 Ebeneezer Starns & Anne Starns to Aquilla Jones,
4 Nov 1773, 244 acres on a branch of Sandy Creek, adj John Fields, James Davis - part of 660
acres Granville to Harmon Husband 11 Dec 1762 [Gv717, SSLG 93-C, RegLn 1529, to Ebenezer
Starnes Regln 1739.]
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Regln 1740 William Trogden to James Billinslea, 150 acres, proved by William Wilburne.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 1/204 Walter Billingsley & wife Sarah & Basel
Billingsley planter to Christian Morris, 9 Dec 1786, 150 acres on branches of Mount Pleasant
Creek of Sandy Creek, adj Absalom McDaniel - being part of Granville to Muckleroy 19 Jun 1762
[Gv671, SSLG 96-E, Regln 1188], to William Trogdon 1 Nov 1762 [ReglLn 1588], to James
Billingsley 12 Oct 1764 [RegLn 1740], by will to Walter & Basel [GWB A:30]. Witness: Thomas
Hambleton, Elias Alred. Proved Aug 1794 by Ellias Alred.

Regln 1741 James Vestal to Mason Pegman, 120 acres, proved by Lewis Johnson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1742 William Leaky to John Stout, 90 acres, proved by Samuel Launderman.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1743 James Lea to Henry McCulloh [Henry McCoy], 100 acres, proved by William Lea.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 34/12 James Lea to Henry McCoy, 18 Jan 1764, 100
acres on N side of Richland Creek - part of 200 acres Lawrence Vanhook to James Lea 16 Sep
1760. Proved by William Lea Nov 1764.

Regln 1744 Harman Husbands to Thomas Pugh, 172.5 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by RaDB 9/278 John Pugh farmer to John Rudolph, 16 Sep
1802, 108 acres on a branch of Sandy Creek - being Granville to Harmon Husband [not in
Bennett, SSLG 93-D], to Thomas Pugh 1764 [ReglLn 1744], by will dated 10 Aug 1795 to John
Pugh [RaWB 2/34]. Proved Nov 1802 by Simeon Geren.

Regln 1745 Hugh Smith to John McGee, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1746 Joseph Trotter to William Moode, 561 acres, proved by Harman Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by GDB 7/528 William Moode by attorney John
Dixon to William Jones, 29 Mar 1802, 253 acres on Trotters Branch of Stinking Quarter Creek -
part of 561 acres McCulloh to Joseph Trotter 7 Jun 1761 [Regln 1111 & Regln 2150 & ReglLn
2162], to William Moode 3 Nov 1764 [RegLn 1746]. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry
McCulloh to Joseph Trotter, 7 Jun 1763, 516 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1747 John Fuller to Adam Smith, 200 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 1748 Peter Griffel to Peter Hoffman, 200 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1749 Trustees of Hillsborough to John Campbell, 1 acre, proved by James Cumming.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1750 Bernard Clap to Lodewick Clap, 276 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1751 Felix Gilbert to Benjamin Allentharp, 180 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1752 Bernard Clap to Jacob Clap, 251 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1753 Jacob Garrat to Felix Gilbert, 640 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1754 Moses Hollis to George Lumpkin, 82 acres, proved by Joseph Akin.



Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to Moses Holles, 2 Jan 1761, 162 acres on N side of Dan River,
adj Gowing, Mayo. Gv430, SSLG 92-F. Later Regln 2252 George Lumpkin to Roger Adkinson, 82
acres.

ReglLn 1755 Joseph Nelson Sr to Archibald Bowling, 100 acres, proved by Stephen Merret.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1756 George Counts to Peter Smith, 202 acres, proved by George Fogleson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1757 Harmon Husbands to John Fields, [part of?] 661 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Evidently part of Granville to Harmon Husband 1762 Gv724, SSLG 93-B, 661
acres.

Regln 1758 Harmon Husband to James Davidson, [part of?] 661 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Evidently part of Granville to Harmon Husband 1762 Gv724, SSLG 93-B, 661
acres.

Regln 1759 John Marshal to Betty Mayner, 110 acres, proved by Jacob Marshal.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1760 William Grymes to Nathaniel Hart, 300 acres, proved by Phillip Jackson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1761 Harmon Husband to Aquilla Jones, [part of?] 644 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to Harmon Husband 1762 Gv724, SSLG 93-B, 661 acres? See
GDB 1/2017? Or part of Granville to Harmon Husband Gv241, SSLG 93-D, 644 acres?

or
Regln 1762 Nathaniel Hart to Thomas Hart, 300 acres, proved by Charles Abercrombie.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1763 John Marshal to James Meyer [Jane Mayner?], 170 acres, proved by Harmon Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB D/406 Jane Mayner to John Piggott, 24 Feb 1786, 170
acres on Cane Creek, adj Betty Mayner - Henry McCulloh to John Marshall [RegLn 1121].
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Regln 1764 Earl Granville to Harman Cox, 665 acres, proved by Harman Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Cox, 5 Aug 1758, 665 acres on E side of Deep River, on
Narrow Mouth Creek, both sides of Youngbloods Path. Gv245, SSLG 88-B.



ReglLn 1765 Earl Granville to James Bowie, 275 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bowie, 6 Aug 1759, 274 acres adj Barbee, Lick Creek, Bolin,
Wilkinsons Creek. Gv299, SSLG 84-M.

Regln 1766 Henry McCulloch to James Powel, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to James Powell, 9
Sep 1762, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 1767 William Braswell to Valentine Braswell, 375 acres, proved by Jacob Braswell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1768 William Braswell to Valentine Braswell, _ acres, proved by Jacob Braswell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1769 John Gray to Robert Watson, 577 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/240 Granville to James Watson, 12 Mar 1755, 577
acres on both sides of Watsons Creek. [Otherwise not found. Same deed at Regln 222. See also
0ODB 1/116, ODB 1/244.]

ReglLn 1770 William Reed to Robert Watson, 270 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 1248 James Bowie to William Reed.
Regln 1771 Thomas Hart to John Gray, 577 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Watson, 12 Mar 1755, 577 acres on both sides of Watsons
Creek. [ReglLn 222, ODB 1/240, to William Mowat ODB 1/116, to James Watson ODB 1/244.]
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Regln 1772 Richard Browning to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 992 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 777 Henry McCulloch to Richard Brownrigg, 992 acres,
proved by James Lapslie.

Regln 1773 William Luten Sr to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 503 acres, proved by James Boyd.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/243 William Luten by Sheriff to James Alston, 20 Apr
1770, 503 acres adj Mitchell, Ragan, William Luten, Thomas Webb, McStag [Stagg?] - levy on
William Luten, land originally George Il to Henry Eustace McCulloh [to William Luton ReglLn
2168]. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to William Luten, 26 Jul 1763, 503 acres
in Tract 12.

ReglLn 1774 John Dennis to Henry Ashfield, 52 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1775 John Dennis to Henry Ashfield, 52 acres, proved.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1776 John Johnson to Edmund Fanning, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1777 Reason Whitehead to Edmund Faning, 400 acres, proved by Isaac Edwards.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bowie, 31 Aug 1753, 400 acres adj Capt Synnott. Gv14, SSLG
84-M, ReglLn 1564. ReglLn 29 James Bowie to Thomas Whitehead, 400 acres. RegLn 1390 Thomas
Whitehead to Reason Whitehead, 400 acres. ReglLn 1777 Reason Whitehead to Edmund Faning,
400 acres.

Regln 1778 Thomas Hart to James Young, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1779 Hill Smith to Charles Saxon, 450 acres, proved by Theophilus Petty.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1870 Charles Saxton to Aaron Evans, 450 acres.
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Regln 1780 Thomas Willson Sr to James Willson, 250 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: The half of Gv632 not covered by ODB 3/570.
Regln 1781 Joseph Copeland to John Falconer, 243 acres, proved by James Blyth.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by:

ODB 3/298 John Falconer & Elizabeth Falconer to Thomas Blyth, 13 Oct 1768, 122 acres on N
side of Haw River, adj gut, branch, island - part of 486 acres Granville to Benjamin Clemmons
1758 [Gv246, SSLG 87-G to Joseph Copeland ReglLn 499, to John Falconer ReglLn 1781]. [See CDB
A/51 for later title.]

ODB 3/296 John Falconer & Elizabeth Falconer to Joseph Copeland, 13 Oct 1768, 121 acres on N
side of Haw River, adj mouth of Sugar Tree Gut, branch - part of 486 acres Granville to Benjamin
Clemmons [Gv246, SSLG 87-G to Joseph Copeland ReglLn 499, to John Falconer ReglLn 1781].
[See CDB A/232 for later title.]

Regln 1782 Gilbert Strayhorn to John Gratis [John Gattis], 570 acres, proved by acknowledgment.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gilbert Strayhorn, 27 Feb 1759, 570 acres on Presswoods Creek.
Gv282, SSLG 100-H.

Regln 1783 Herman Husband to Laughlin Campbell, 150 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1784 Gilbert Strayhorn to Henry Waggoner, 570 acres, proved by acknowledgment.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gilbert Strayhorn, 27 Feb 1759, 570 acres on Presswoods Creek.
Gv282, SSLG 100-H.



RegLn 1785 Phillip Hartso to Fredrick Hartso, 350 acres, proved by John Salling.

Chilton’s notes: Most or all of Granville to Phillip Hartso, 2 Oct 1761, 375 acres on Rocky River,
SCC. Gv555, SSLG 91-K, ReglLn 2099.

ReglLn 1786 Jessee Hollings[worth] to Harmon Husband, 250 acres, proved by acknowledgment.

Chilton’s notes: ?Granville to Jesse Hollingsworth, 15 Jul 1760, 225 acres on N side of Deep
River, adj the Target Rock. Gv337, SSLG 92-G, ReglLn 2053.

Regln 1787 Henry Ledbetter to John Langston, 220 acres, proved by Samuel Langston.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1788 William Searcey to Richard Searcey, 200 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1789 Harmon Husbands to Roger Murphy, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgment.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 34/13 Hermon Husband to Roger Murphy, 6 Feb
1765, 200 acres on a branch of Sandy Creek, adj original NE corner; part of 640 acres Granville to
Hermon Husband 1758 called the Levell.

Regln 1790 Alexander McEntire to Samuel Murry, 200 acres, proved by Hugh Barnett.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/449 Samuel McMurray to Ebenezer Moss, 15 Jan
1770, 200 acres on both sides of Gents Creek of Hico Creek - Granville to William Barnet
[Granville to Joseph Barnett, Gv221, SSLG 84-D, ReglLn 394], to Alexander McEntire [RegLn 698],
to McMurray [Regln 1790].

Regln 1791 Frederick Hartson [Frederick Hartso] to Phillip Harson [Phillip Hartso], _ acres, proved by
Francis Nash.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1792 Cullen Pollock to George Tate, 250 acres, proved by Phillip Jackson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1793 Cullen Pollock to Edward Willson, 250 acres, proved by Phillip Jackson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1794 Thomas Couch Sr to Thomas Merodith, 160 acres, proved by Stephen Merret.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1795 John Edwards Sr to John Edwards Jr, 160 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1796 Grase Young to Joseph Barbee, 451 acres, proved by Charles Copeland.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/321 Joseph Barbee to Thomas Wooten, 24 Jul 1770,
451 acres on Crabtree Creek, adj Marks Branch, Francis Jones - Granville to Charles Young 11
May [1756] [Patent Book 14:262 in Johnston County], Young by executors to Joseph Barbee
[Regln 1796].

Regln 1797 George Lumpkin to Humphry Hendricks, 239 acres, proved by John Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/398 John Dismukes to Ambrose Gatewood, 20 Sep
1771, 239 acres on both sides of Hogans Creek, adj Sideling Place - part of Granville to John
McMillan 7 Oct 1761 [Gv574, SSLG 95.1-F, RegLn 1182], McMillan to George Lumkin [RegLn
1682], Lumkin to Humphrey Hendricks [RegLn 1797].

ReglLn 1798 Harmon Husband to William Thompson, 1.75 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1799 Hosea Tapley to Thomas Willson Jr, 195 acres, proved by Jacob Womack.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 1800 John McMillion to Thomas Dobbin, 444 acres, proved by acknowledgment.
Chilton’s notes: The part of Gv574 not covered by ODB 3/398?

Regln 1801 John Pernal to Robert Allen, 50 acres, proved by James Strongfield.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Harris, 25 Oct 1753, 50 acres on SW side of Northwest River
of Cape Fear, between Fall Creek & Gulf Creek. Gv17, SSLG 91-I, ReglLn 278.

Regln 1802 James Crow to Thomas Raibin, 525 acres, proved by Henry Morriss.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Crow, 28 Jun 1762, 525 acres on Phils Creek, adj Henry
Morris. Gv666, SSLG 88-H, ReglLn 1225.

Regln 1803 Nathaniel Reed to Abraham Elliott, 200 acres, proved by John McGee.
Chilton’s notes: Collectively described by RaDB 2/138 & RaDB 2/140 & RaDB 3/83.
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Regln 1804 John Brooks to Jacob Brooks, 320 acres, proved by Isaac Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1805 Andrew Mitchell to Joseph Hastin, 237 acres, proved by James Pratt.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Andrew Mitchell, 22 Feb 1759, 237 acres on head branches of New
Hope Creek. Gv254, SSLG 96-F.

Regln 1806 George Bagbelly to William Henley, 104 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Gv170.



Regln 1807 Gray Bynum to William Ware, 150 acres, proved by Richard Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1808 John Bohannan to Richard Bohannan, 695 acres, proved by Benjamin Bohannan.

Chilton’s notes: Gv316 Granville to Duncan Bohannon, 21 Aug 1759, 695 acres on S side of Deep
River, just above the mouth of Rocky River. Gv316, SSLG 84-J, ReglLn 656.

ReglLn 1809 John Gray to Robert Watson, 320 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1810 Thomas Hart to John Gray, 320 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1811 Joseph Barbee to Thomas Loyd, 700 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 10 Jan 1763, 700 acres on waters of Bolin Creek of
New Hope Creek, adj John Stroud Jr, Lloyd, John King. Gv780, SSLG 83-H, RegLn 1548.
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Regln 1812 George Lumpkin to William Black, 157 acres, proved by Isham Browder.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1813 Nathaniel Powel to John Watkins, 54 acres, proved by William Thompson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1814 John Tabor Jr to John Thomas Sr, 200 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1815 Harmon Husbands to Peter Craven, 174 acres, proved by Edward Moore.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1816 John Ursury to Roger Adkinson, 139 acres, proved by William Marsh.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB H/408 Thomas Atkinson of Dinwiddie County VA to
William Swift, 21 Nov 1794, 250 acres - William Ussery to Roger Atkinson 1766 registered in
Orange County [ReglLn 1816].

Regln 1817 William Ballard to Robert Patterson, 200 acres, proved by James Sellars.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1818 Joseph Barbee to William Watson, 570 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1819 William Churton to Peter Wrightsman, 365 acres, proved by John Wrightsman.



Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to William Churton, 31 Jan 1761, 550 acres on S side of Eno
River, adj back side of Occaneechee Mountain, Francis Corbin. Gv465, SSLG 87-B, ReglLn 2013.
ODB 3/502 Peter Writesman & Anne Writesman to Nathaniel Rochester, 25 Aug 1772, [blank,
but presumably 220 acres on S side of Eno River, on Occaneechee Mountain - part of Granville
to William Churton Gv465, SSLG 87-B, ReglLn 2013, 365 acres to Peter Wrightsman ReglLn 1819,
other 145 acres having been deeded to Edmund Fanning ReglLn 2454]. ODB 5/357 Edmund
Fanning by Sheriff to David Ray, 7 Nov 1788, 145 acres on S side of Eno River, on back side of
Occaneechee Mountain, adj Francis Corbin - part of Granville to William Churton 31 Jan 1761, to
Peter Wrightsman 23 Feb 1765, to Fanning 18 Apr 1767, levy on Edmund Fanning sold 11 Oct
1788. ODB 5/358 David Ray to Absalom Tatum, 13 Jun 1795, 145 acres on S side of Eno River, on
back or S side of Occaneechee Mountain, adj Francis Corbin - part of Granville to William
Churton 31 Jan 1761, to Peter Wrightsman 23 Feb 1765 [RegLn 1819], to Edmund Fanning 18
Apr 1767, Sheriff to David Ray 7 Nov 1788.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...May 1765.

ReglLn 1820 William Serjant to William Black, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1821 Joseph Barbe to William Watson, 220 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Rhodes, 26 Oct 1753, 220 acres on Third Fork of New
Hope Creek. Gv21, SSLG 98-L, ODB 1/164, ReglLn 194.

Regln 1822 James Hart to Jacob Railey, 285 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/20 John Rutherford to James Hart, 17 Aug 1755, 285
acres on Eno River, number 16, bounded to W by easternmost branch of Eno River, to N by
number 11, to E by number 15, to S by outlines - part of 8929 acres conveyed 25 Mar 1751 from
Granville to Gabriel Johnston.

Regln 1823 George Reave to James Howel, 200 acres, proved by William Speed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1824 Luke Robinson to Hosea Tapley, 260 acres, proved by James Nicholson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1825 William Serjant to John Black, 112 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Sargeant, 6 Aug 1759, 112 acres on Highes Creek, both sides
Sargeants Creek, adj Cargeant, McFarland. Gv298, SSLG 100-A1.
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Regln 1826 John Robinson to Thomas Dobbins, 157 acres, proved by Hugh Dobbin.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Robinson, 9 Jan 1761, 157 acres on Bold Branch of Country
Line Creek. Gv441, SSLG 99-E, ReglLn 838.

Regln 1827 John Bumpas to William Bridges, 100 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1828 Harmon Husbands to Archibald McLeroy, 201 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 2/405 Agness McElroy & James Sinkey McElroy to
Robert Marley, 17 Nov 1783, 201 acres on Reedy Fork of Haw River, adj orig corner - part of 640
acres Granville to Robert Brashear 6 Dec 1761 [Gv609, SSLG 85-B, ReglLn 1020], to Harmon
Husband [ReglLn 1476], to Archiblad McElroy [RegLn 1828].

Regln 1829 Adam Smith to Adam Reasoner, 101 acres, proved by Hermon Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/361 Joseph Revoner & Mary Revoner to Eadon Smith,
2 Feb 1771, 101 acres on a branch of Stinking Quarter Creek - part of 320 acres Henry McCulloh
to Smith 9 Sep 1762 [RegLn 1062, to Adam Reasoner Regln 1829, to Joseph Revoner not found].

ReglLn 1830 John Hunter to Charles Morgan, 177 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Hunter, 8 May 1755, 177 acres on a small branch of Eno River
that runs through Capt Gray's land. Gv92, SSLG 93-A, ODB 1/55, ReglLn 140.

Regln 1831 Thomas Cox to Jacob Grigg, 179 acres, proved by William Moffitt.
Chilton’s notes: Part of Gv244

ReglLn 1832 Theophilus Petty to Charles Clanton, 101 acres, proved by Benjamin Clanton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1833 Robert Graves to Joseph Carr, 200 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/188 Joseph Carr & Jean Carr to Jennings Thompson, 2

Nov 1772, 200 acres in fork of Flat Creek of Deep River, adj Carr formerly James Graves, the back
line, a gut. [Granville to Thomas Graves, Gv676, SSLG 91-D, ReglLn 1238, to Robert Graves ReglLn

1407, to Joseph Carr ReglLn 1833.]
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Regln 1834 John Landrum Jr to Samuel Landrum, 108 acres, proved by Ruben Landrum.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1835 Luke Roberson to Hosea Tapley, 5 acres, proved by James Nicholson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 2296 Hosea Tapley to Roger Adkinson, 5 acres.
ReglLn 1836 Joseph Barbee to William Watson, 617 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barbee, 21 Jul 1760, 617 acres on Third Fork of New Hope
Creek, adj Rhodes. Gv347, SSLG 83-H, ReglLn 723.



Regln 1837 William Reaves to Edward Thompson, 368 acres, proved by Nathan Almond.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Reeves, 28 Jun 1762, 363 acres on Stirrup Iron Creek of
Crabtree Creek. Gv653, SSLG 98-K, RegLn 1711.

Regln 1838 Joseph Richardson to Joseph Lindley, _ acres, proved by Alexander Mebane.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1839 George Johnson to William Wiley, _ acres, proved by Alexander Mebane esq.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 1840 John Scarlet to Jacob Allen, [part of] 700 acres, proved by John Kelly.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Scarlet, 2 Oct 1761, 700 acres on both sides of Eno River, adj
James Couch. Gv538, SSLG 99-L.

Regln 1841 Robert McFarland to Moses Walker, 101 acres, proved by John Pryor.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1842 James Benone to Samuel Cumberston, 200 acres, proved by Zachariah Martin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1843 Nathaniel Barnes [Nathaniel Powell?] to Jonathan Barnes, 140 acres, proved by John
Jones.

Chilton’s notes: ?CDB B/25 Jonathan Barnes to Connor Dowd, 1 Nov 1774, 25 perches on W side
of Great Road, on Deep River, adj Connor Dowd’s mill dam - part of [Granville to Nathaniel
Powell Gv767, SSLG 98-D, ReglLn 1182,] 150 acres Nathaniel Powell to Jonathan Barnes ODB
1/409 [ReglLn 18437?].

CDB E/342 Jonathan Barnes to John Porterfield, 24 Jun 1791, 14.5 acres (except 0.125 acres
Barnes deeded to Connor Dowd [CDB B/25]) on N side of Deep River, adj ford, Dowds Mill Dam,
road, John Wilkins, a small creek - part of 140 acres Nathaniel Powell to Jonathan Barnes 18 Oct
1764.

Regln 1844 James Taylor to James Hart, 290 acres, proved by James Cary.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 456 Earl Granville to James Cary, 2 acres.
Regln 1845 Reason Rickets to Solomon Draper, 100 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1846 William Riddle to Benjamin Watts, 200 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: The other 200 acres not conveyed CDB A/67 Jeremiah Minter to John Minter, 1
Feb 1772, 500 acres on N side of Deep River - part of 700 acres Granville to John Brantley
[Gv688, SSLG 85-A], to William Riddle [RegLn 1029], to Jeremiah Minter [RegLn 1701].



Regln 1847 James Ray to Teasley Hodge, 60 acres, proved by Charles Clanton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1848 Samuel Fuller to Henry Ledbetter, 520 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Fulton, 15 Dec 1762, 520 acres on Deep Creek of Flat River,
adj John Dunagan. Gv734, SSLG 90-H.

Regln 1849 George Allen to John Brazer, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1850 James Saunders to James Scott, 350 acres, proved by Samuel Watt.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Sanders, 6 Dec 1761, 350 acres on Charles Branch of Hogans
Creek, adj Benajah King. Gv624, SSLG 99-H, ReglLn 2096.

Regln 1851 Lodewick Clapp to William Wiley, 640 acres, proved by John Oliver.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Ludwick Clapp, 25 Mar 1752, 640 acres on N Fork of Alamance
Creek. Gv2, SSLG 87-G, ReglLn 524.

ReglLn 1852 Jonas Chamberlain to John Thompson, 300 acres, proved by Moses Ambre.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1853 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Raichel Mayner, 582 acres, proved by Jeremiah Piggot.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1854 John Carragan to James Scarlett, 480 acres, proved by Enoch Bradley.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Jackson, 2 Aug 1760, 480 acres on head branches of New
Hope Creek. Gv409, SSLG 93-G, ReglLn 1952.

Regln 1855 Hugh Porter to Adam Porter Jr, 413 acres, proved by John Boyd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1856 Oliver Brewer to Vachel Clark, 400 acres, proved by John Stewart.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1857 James Graves to James Carr, 200 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1858 William Serjant to John Black, 529 acres, proved.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Sargeant, 11 Aug 1756, 529 acres on S side of Hico Creek,
adj Jones, Sargeant. Gv165, SSLG 100-A1, ODB 1/264.

ReglLn 1859 Nathaniel Aldridge to James Foster, 350 acres, proved by William Pryor.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/421 James Foster to Peter Farra, 26 Nov 1771, 350
acres on both sides of Flat River, adj Thomas Robinson - Granville to Nathaniel Aldridge 3 Nov
1762 [Gv703, SSLG 83-B], Aldridge to Foster [RegLn 1859].

ReglLn 1860 Thomas Branson to Levy Branson, 292 acres, proved by Harmon Husbands.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1861 Earl Granville to Joshua Smith, 450 acres, proved by Robert Calliar.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1862 Earl Granville to Thomas Lapsey, 250 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Lapsley, 10 Jun 1761, 250 acres on drains of Back Creek, adj
Jacob Riley, Edward Lynch. Gv515, SSLG 95-B.

ReglLn 1863 Earl Granville to Robert Cate, 430 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Cate Sr, 26 Oct 1753, 400 acres on S side of New Hope
Creek. Gv20, SSLG 86-F.

Regln 1864 Earl Granville to Thomas Philpot, 165 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Philpot, 17 Dec 1762, 165 acres on Rocky River. Gv746,
SSLG 97-L.

ReglLn 1865 Earl Granville to Samuel Mash, 495 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Marsh, 23 Dec 1762, 495 acres on Robersons Creek of Haw
River. Gv758, SSLG 96-A.

[Page 205]
ReglLn 1866 James Fulkerson to Hugh Dobbins, 251 acres, proved by Abraham Funkhouser.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Fulkerson, 6 Mar 1762, 251 acres on Watery Branch of N Hico
Creek. Gv645, SSLG 90-H, ReglLn 2086.

Regln 1867 James Cheek to John Clark, 209 acres, proved by John Dunnagan.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/43 James Clark Sr to John Watson, 4 Dec 1788, 209
acres on N Fork of Little River, adj Hoovers Branch - John Clark to James Clark Sr. [Granville to
James Cheek, Gv265, SSLG 86-I, ReglLn 1536, to John Clark ReglLn 1867.]

ReglLn 1868 John Dennis to Edward Dennis, 146 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/10 John Dennis & Rachel Dennis to Sarah Lytle, 12 Jun
1787, 146 acres & 20 rod on Buck Quarter Creek of Eno River, adj Jonathan Sell - Granville to



John Dennis Sr 27 Feb 1759 [Gv283, SSLG 88-M, ReglLn 683, to Edward Dennis ReglLn 18687].
Proved Nov 1787 by Archibald Lytle. [Later to Robert Lytle ODB 8/287, to Young Dorch ODB
11/127.]

Regln 1869 William Grayham to Henry Cobb, 232 acres, proved by James Carr.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1870 Charles Saxton to Aaron Evans, 450 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1779 Hill Smith to Charles Saxon, 450 acres.

Regln 1871 Jessee Phillips to John Butler, 700 acres, proved by William Phillips.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1872 William Grayham to Phillip Gressham, 300 acres, proved by Thomas Rice.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1873 William Reaves to William Reeves, 200 acres, proved by Thomas Hines.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1874 Robert Satterfield to William Husbands, 250 acres, proved by Wyatt Satterfield.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1875 Joseph Reed to Nathaniel Reed, 100 acres, proved by John McGee.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 3/109 Jacob Elliot Sr & wife Elizabeth of Montgomery
County VA to Jacob Elliot Jr, 14 Oct 1782, 100 acres on E side of Polecat Creek - being part of
John Lewis to Nathaniel Reed 4 May 1762 [ReglLn 1244, ReglLn 1245], to Joseph Reed 3 Oct 1764
[Regln 1721, Regln 18757?], to Jacob Elliot Sr 2 Apr 1765 [not found]. Witness: Israel Elliott,
Abraham Elliott.

ReglLn 1876 James Wood to John Linn, 100 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1877 Samuel Oliver to Jeremiah Fields, 168 acres, proved by John Oliver.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1046 John Oliver to Samuel Oliver, 168 acres. ODB
3/435 Jeremiah Fields & Mary Fields to Henry Smith, 18 Apr 1772, tract where John Hilton now
lives, adj John Oliver, George Fogleman, Peter Hilton, an old survey made for Mr Brownrigg.

ReglLn 1878 James Kirkley to Daniel Murphey, 180 acres, proved by John Hally.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1879 John Roberts to William Shad, 120 acres, proved by Abraham Miles.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Roberts, 7 Jun 1761, 120 acres on ridges in fork of Rattlesnake
Creek, adj his own land, branch. Gv506, SSLG 99-D, ReglLn 864.

Regln 1880 Abraham Miles to William Hubart, 140 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/349 William Hubart to William Meadows, 1 Nov 1771,
140 acres on E side of Country Line Creek, adj John Oakes.

Regln 1881 Henry Ledbetter to William Jay Jr, 375 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Moore, 6 Feb 1761, 375 acres on both sides of Flat River,
adj Hosea Tapley, William Jay. Gv488, SSLG 96-H, ReglLn 2045.
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Regln 1882 Luke Bynum to Daniel Murphy, 175 acres, proved by John Haly.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1883 Benjamin Saxon to Thomas Hopson, 400 acres, proved by Richard Hopson.

Chilton’s notes: part of Granville to Benjamin Saxon, 11 Jun 1761, 640 acres on Northeast Creek
of New Hope Creek, adj Samuel Saxon. Gv526, SSLG 99-K, ReglLn 2235.

Regln 1884 William Searcy to Mary Pierce, 100 acres, proved by Enoch Spinks.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/336 Windsor Pearce & wife Mary to Ransom
Sutherland, 14 Feb 1775, 100 acres on S side of Deep River, adj path now called road, Pearces
Creek, lower end of Reads Island - part of 2 tracts 640 acres Granville to William Searcy 9 Jun
1761 [Gv511, SSLG 100-A & Gv432, SSLG 99-H], to Mary Pearce [ReglLn 1884]. Later RANDOLPH.

and
RegLn 1885 John Hinchey to Thomas Borne, 200 acres, proved by John Horne.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1886 George Heagwood [George Hagwood] to Bird Heagwood [Bird Hagwood], 300 acres,
proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1887 William Gibbs to Richard Gateley, 200 acres, proved by James Foster.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1888 Samuel Bumpass to John Cooley, 440 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/475 George Cowley to Robert Dickens, 2 Jul 1772, 440
acres on Spring Branch of Flat River aka Deep Creek - Granville to Samuel Bumpass registered
ODB A/204 [Gv582, SSLG 85-I, Regln 2124, to George Cooley ReglLn 1888].

Regln 1889 John Walker to Samuel Bracken, 577 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Walker, 6 Mar 1762, 577 acres on N Fork of Moons Creek.
Gv640, SSLG 102-A, Regln 1567.
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Regln 1890 Joseph Wells to Joseph Cloud, 110 acres, proved by Alexander Underwood.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 5/247 John Piggott to Levi Gifford, 21 May 1791, 24
acres on Middle Fork of Cane Creek - part of 500 acres Henry McCulloh to Joseph Wells, to
Joseph Cloud [ReglLn 1890], to John Piggott 6 Jan 1782.

Regln 1891 Alexander Going to James Roberts, 268 acres, proved by George Terry.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1892 Daniel McDaniel to William Aldridge, 100 acres, proved by Alexander McDaniel.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by GDB 1/165. Later RANDOLPH.

ReglLn 1893 Henry Whitsel to Joseph Clap, 202 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1894 William Jay to James Jay, 120 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1895 Robert Kilgore to Thomas [Kil]Gore, 363 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1896 Robert Bumpas to Edward Bumpas, 291 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1897 John Camp to William Willson, 210 acres, proved by William Jay.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Camp, 31 Jan 1761, 210 acres. Gv464, SSLG 85-K, ReglLn 2260.
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ReglLn 1898 John Ursury to James Gregory, 313 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Usury, 14 Oct 1761, 313 acres on Gents Creek of Hico Creek,
adj Michael Dickson, Humphrey Barnett, Henry Dickson, Paul Harrelson. Gv586, SSLG 101-L,
Regln 2065.

ReglLn 1899 William McMath to William Clendinnen, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 7/311 William Clendinnen to Joseph Clendenin, 4 Aug
1790, 200 acres on Varnels Creek - part of 100000 acres granted Henry McCulloh 3 Mar 1745
known as Tract #11, to William McMath [ReglLn 1004] to William Clendenin 30 May 1765,
registered ODB /467 [RegLn 1899]. [Later to Jonathan Lindley ODB 11/142.]

ReglLn 1900 William Handley to George Rosborough, 640 acres, proved by Edmund Handley.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1901 Samuel Cobb to Henry Cobb, 238 acres, proved by Thomas Rice.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/369 Henry Cobb to Matthew Jouett, 11 Aug 1770, 238
acres on Country Line Creek, adj Nathaniel Hart - part of Granville to Samuel Cobb 6 Nov 1761
[Gv593, SSLG 87-H, ReglLn 1540], to Henry Cobb 10 Aug 1765 [ReglLn 1901].

Regln 1902 Thomas Kilgore to Solomon Deboe, 220 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1903 William Anderson to Robert Anderson, 200 acres, proved by Joseph Williams.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1904 Jesse Pugh to William Ward, 147 acres, proved by Enoch Pugh.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1905 Luke and Martin Bynum to John Hatley, 350 acres, proved by Daniel Murphey.

Chilton’s notes: half of Granville to Luke Bynum, Gv680, SSLG 84-G, ReglLn 1198. See aCDB A/455
& CDB B/424.
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Regln 1906 Michael Sting to John Smith, 184 acres, proved by David Low.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/146 John Smith & Margaret Smith to John Long &
John Clark, 21 Oct 1785, 184 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek - Henry McCulloh to
Michael King 2 Jun 1763 [RegLn 1138, to John Smith ReglLn 1906].

ReglLn 1907 Thomas Harriss to Tyrie Harriss, 100 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1908 Earl Granville to Valentine Hollingsworth, 420 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also
proved at OCPQS 1/446 for 365 acres?]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Valentine Hollingsworth, 2 Aug 1760, 420 acres on W side of Haw
River, on the fork of Cane Creek, adj Hugh Laughlin, Hollingsworth, Thomas Lindley. Gv410, SSLG
92-G.

ReglLn 1909 Earl Granville to James Lindley, 200 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/445. This is cited by CDB D/298 as formerly being recorded at ODB G/2.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Lindley, 2 Aug 1760, 200 acres on Lick Creek of Terrells Creek.
Gv393, SSLG 95-I.

Regln 1910 Earl Granville to Jessee Brashear, 637 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Brashear, 17 Jul 1760, 637 acres on Buffalo Creek. Gv330,
SSLG 85-A.



Regln 1911 Earl Granville to Zachariah Martin Sr, 339 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Zachariah Martin Jr, 30 Jan 1761, 339 acres on both sides of Rocky
River & Cape Fear Road. Gv460, SSLG 96-B.

Regln 1912 Earl Granville to John Boyd, 630 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Boyd, 15 Jul 1760, 630 acres on Little Troublesome Creek.
Gv333, SSLG 84-A.

Regln 1913 Earl Granville to John Boyd Jr, 229 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Boyd Jr, 15 Jul 1760, 229 acres on N side of N Fork of Haw
River. Gv334, SSLG 84-A. ReglLn 2005 John Boyd to Thomas Hart, 229 acres. ReglLn 1342 Thomas
Hart to Robert Wells, 229 acres.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...August 1765.
ReglLn 1914 Earl Granville to Joseph Pinson, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Pinson, 20 Nov 1761, 280 acres on N side of Deep River, adj
Jesse Hollingsworth. Gv596, SSLG 98-B.

Regln 1915 Earl Granville to David Mitchell, 144 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to David Mitchell, 1 Aug 1760, 144 acres on Negro Creek, adj Hugh
Bobbins. Gv386, SSLG 96-F.

Regln 1916 Earl Granville to Isaac Cantril, 115 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Cantrell, 30 Jul 1760, 115 acres on NE side of Haw River, adj
Collins Creek, Henry Warson, Robert Cate. Gv377, SSLG 86-A.

Regln 1917 Earl Granville to William Braxton, 262 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for William Braxon Gv827, H5543, 262 acres
Regln 1918 Earl Granville to John Logue, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Logue, 11 Feb 1761, 280 acres on head of W Fork of Eno River,
adj Gov Johnston. Gv496, SSLG 95-K.

Regln 1919 Earl Granville to James Horton, 320 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/447]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Horton, 24 Jul 1760, 320 acres on both sides of Dials Creek.
Gv352, SSLG 92-I.
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Regln 1920 Earl Granville to George Hobson, 620 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Hobson Jr, 2 Feb 1761, 620 acres on forks of Rocky River, adj
George Hobson Sr. Gv474, SSLG 92-D.

Regln 1921 Earl Granville to Alexander Torringtine, 275 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Turrentine, 9 Jan 1761, 275 acres on both sides of Buffalo
Creek of N Fork of Little River. Gv439, SSLG 101-J. [Surveyed for Thomas Wade.]

Regln 1922 Earl Granville to William Richards, 558 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Rhodes, 9 Feb 1761, 558 acres on Mill Creek & Jumping Run
of Eno River. Gv493, SSLG 99-A.

ReglLn 1923 Earl Granville to Hezekiah Rhodes, 472 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hezekiah Rhodes, 20 Nov 1761, 472 acres on Third Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj Joseph Barbee. Gv595, SSLG 99-A. ReglLn 1437 Hezekiah Rhodes to Benjamin
Rhodes, 237 acres. Regln 1350 Hezekiah Rhodes to John Patterson, 235 acres.

Regln 1924 Earl Granville to George Hobson, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Hobson, 2 Aug 1760, 240 acres on Middle Fork of Rocky
River. Gv408, SSLG 92-E.

Regln 1925 Earl Granville to Abraham Nelson, 450 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Abraham Nelson, 12 Feb 1761, 450 acres on both sides of a fork of
Edward Maner Creek, adj Edward Maner. Gv497, SSLG 97-A.

Regln 1926 Earl Granville to Thomas Nelson, 430 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Nelson, [unknown], 430 acres on Eno River & Stones Creek,
adj Governor Johnston, Stone. Gv940, H6278.

Regln 1927 Charles Davis to Thomas Davis, 87 acres, proved by John Davis.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/562 Thomas Davis & Elisabeth Davis to Jeremiah
Piggott, 21 Jul 1769, 87 acres on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek, adj Charles Davis - Henry
McCulloh to Charles Davis 2 Aug 1758 [RegLn 573], to Thomas Davis 31 Jan 1761.
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Regln 1928 Benjamin Long to Henry Fuller, 365 acres, proved by Benjamin Long.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Long, 2 Mar 1761, 365 acres on both sides of Stony Creek,
adj fork. Gv499, SSLG 95-L, ReglLn 824.

Regln 1929 William Churton to James Spratt, 195 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/491]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/429 William Churton to James Sprat [James Pratt], 31
Mar 1761, 195 acres adj William Churton - part of Granville to Churton 31 Jan 1761 [Gv465, SSLG
87-B, Regln 2013].



Regln 1930 Thomas Lindley Sr to Thomas Lindley Jr, 300 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1931 Benjamin Cate to George Horner, 384 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Wade, H2768, ReglLn 360, 384 acres

RegLn 1932 Phillip Pryor to Thomas King, 300 acres, proved by Gabriel Davey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1933 Earl Granville to Gabriel Davey, 519 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for Gabriel Davey Gv850, H5732, 519 acres

ReglLn 1934 Earl Granville to John Stewart, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Stewart, 25 Jul 1760, 640 acres on S side of Haw River, adj
William Marsh, Mullis Branch, John Marsh. Gv359, SSLG 100-G.

Regln 1935 Earl Granville to John Bohannon, 637 acres, proved by William Churton esq.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Bohannon, 2 Aug 1760, 637 acres on Second Fork of New Hope
Creek. Gv398, SSLG 84-K.
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Regln 1936 Earl Granville to John Frazier, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Frazier, 30 Jul 1760, 300 acres adj Joseph Maddock, Churton,
Taylor. Gv378, SSLG 90-G.

ReglLn 1937 Earl Granville to John Conner, 365 acres, proved by William Churton. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/446]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Connor, 29 Jul 1760, 365 acres on branches of Stones Creek,
adj Churton. Gv365, SSLG 87-J.

Regln 1938 John Tinnen to Isaac Lowe, 50.75 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1939 William Andrews to Jacob Mason, 0.5 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1940 William Reed to George Powers, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/490 William Reed & Elizabeth Reed to George
Power, 25 Sep 1761, 240 acres on waters of Eno River, adj Thomas Stubbs - Granville to Reed 10
Jun 1761 [ODB 3/488, Regln 1941]. Above deed formerly registered ODB G, now lost.

Regln 1941 Earl Granville to William Reed, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/488 Granville to William Reed, 10 Jun 1761, 240
acres on the drains of Eno River, adj Thomas Stubbs.

Regln 1942 Ann Smith to Ann Smith, 54 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Anne Smith, 2 Aug 1760, 54 acres on Country Line Creek, adj
Benjamin Merritt. Gv389, SSLG 100-D, ReglLn 712.

Regln 1943 Ann Smith to Martha Smith, 75 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/216 Benjamin Merritt to Ann Smith, 3 Apr 1756, 75
acres on Dan River, adj the Country line [Virginia Line], branch - Granville to Benjamin Merritt 26
Apr 1754 [ReglLn 267].
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Regln 1944 Earl Granville to Peter Black, 102 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Black, 31 Jan 1761, 102 acres. Gv463, SSLG 84-C.
ReglLn 1945 Earl Granville to John Tabor Jr, 605 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Tabor Jr, 30 Jan 1761, 605 acres adj creek, Phillip Pryor. Gv457,
SSLG 101-A.

Regln 1946 Earl Granville to William Searcey, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Searcy, 7 Jan 1761, 640 acres on both sides of Deep River,
adj Lord Granwville's S boundary line. Gv432, SSLG 99-H.

Regln 1947 Earl Granville to William Searcey, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Searcy, 9 Jun 1761, 640 acres on both sides of Deep River,
adj Searcy. Gv511, SSLG 100-A.

Regln 1948 Earl Granville to George Tabor, 269 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1949 Earl Granville to George Miller, 270 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Miller, 15 Jul 1760, 270 acres on drains of Forresters Creek,
adj Robert Davis. Gv341, SSLG 96-E.

Regln 1950 Earl Granville to James Bird, 388 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bird, 24 Jul 1760, 388 acres on Staggs Creek of Back Creek.
Gv351, SSLG 84-G.

Regln 1951 Earl Granville to Henry Brewer, 585 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Brewer, 22 Feb 1759, 585 acres on forks of Terrells Creek.
Gv278, SSLG 85-D.
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Regln 1952 Earl Granville to William Jackson, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Jackson, 2 Aug 1760, 480 acres on head branches of New
Hope Creek. Gv409, SSLG 93-G.

Regln 1953 Earl Granville to Christopher Huston, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Christopher Huston, 3 Feb 1761, 640 acres on Moons Creek, adj
Henry Reynolds Sr. Gv476, SSLG 93-E. [Surveyed for Henry Runnels.]

Regln 1954 Earl Granville to James Payne, 278 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Payne, 30 Jan 1761, 278 acres on Deep Creek of Flat River,
adj Payne. Gv456, SSLG 97-).

ReglLn 1955 Edward Lynch to Robert Carson, 128 acres, proved by James Allison.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1956 John Cate Jr to Richard Cate Sr, 239 acres, proved by James Bound.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1957 Benjamin Carter to Francis Brunin, 328 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Carter, 27 Feb 1760, 328 acres on the fork of Reedy Fork
of N Hico Creek, adj W Fork. Gv326, SSLG 86-E.

ReglLn 1958 John Haygood [John Hagwood] to George Edwards, 70 acres, proved by John King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1959 John Embree to John Mordock, 200 acres, proved by John King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 1960 Gedion Kirksey [George Hagwood] to James Haygood [James Hagwood], 50 acres, proved
by John King. [Also proved at OCPQS 1/277 George Haygood to Gideon Kirksey]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1961 John Murdock to John Emree, 355 acres, proved by John Murdock.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/132 John McNair to James Hogg, 13 Oct 177_, 355
acres on S Fork of Little River, adj Robert Wilson, Michael Synnott, Alexander Mebane - Granville
to John Murdock 7 Jun 1761 [RegLn 825], John Murdock & wife Elizabeth Murdock to Embree 3
Aug 1761, John Embree to MacNair 15 Jul 1774 [not found].

Regln 1962 James Anderson to John Anderson, [part of?] 641 acres, proved by James Anderson.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps part of Granville survey for James Anderson Gv804,
H5413, Regln 808?

ReglLn 1963 John Dowell to Jacob Mason, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1964 Earl Granville to Mary Day, 656 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Mary Day Jr, 9 Feb 1761, 656 acres on Cane Creek, adj Cate, Pollock,
fork. Gv491, SSLG 88-L.

Regln 1965 Harmon Husband to Luke Smith, 640 acres, proved by John Cagle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1966 Earl Granville to Michael Dixon, 380 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Dickson, 2 Feb 1761, 381 acres on Marlows Creek, adj
Henry Dickson, Robert Barnett. Gv473, SSLG 89-B.

Regln 1967 Michael Dixon to William Miles, 140 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1968 William Ware to David Hix, 300 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1969 Alexander Mebane to John Howard, 400 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1970 Isaac Jackson to Christian Shy, 80 acres, proved by Thomas King. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/490]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/492 Isaac Jackson & Mary Jackson to Christian Shy,
19 May 1761, 80 acres adj land sold by Isaac Jackson to Samuel Money - part of Granville to
Jackson 27 Jul 1760 [Gv362, SSLG 93-F, ReglLn 868]. Foregoing deed formerly registered in ODB
G, now lost.

ReglLn 1971 Isaac Jackson to Christian Shy, 20 acres, proved by William Reed. [Also proved at OCPQS
1/490]

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/493 Isaac Jackson & Mary Jackson to Christian Shy,
19 May 1761, 20 acres - part of Granville to Jackson [Gv362, SSLG 93-F, ReglLn 868]. Above deed
formerly registered ODB G, now lost.

Regln 1972 William Jackson to Christian Shy, 13 acres, proved by Thomas King.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/494 William Jackson to Christian Shy, 4 Aug 1761,
13 acres adj Christian Shy, Isaac Jackson - part of Isaac Jackson to William Jackson [RegLn 761].
Above deed formerly registered ODB G, now lost.

ReglLn 1973 William Couch to Thomas Couch, 300 acres, proved by Thomas King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1974 Nathaniel Harris to Mark Morgan, 300 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1975 Mark Cadle to Lodwick Lard, 49 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/208 John Forrest Sr to John Forrest Jr, 26 Dec 1794,
[128 acres] adj branch - part of Granville to Zachariah Keadle 25 Oct 1753 [Gv18, SSLG 94-E,
Regln 94], to Mark Keadle [ReglLn 105], to Lodwick Lard [RegLn 1975], Lard to Benjamin
Thompson [Regln 1976], Thompson to John Forrest Sr [not found].
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Regln 1976 Lodwick Lard to Benjamin Thompson, 46 acres, proved by David Mitchell.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/208 John Forrest Sr to John Forrest Jr, 26 Dec 1794,
[128 acres] adj branch - part of Granville to Zachariah Keadle 25 Oct 1753 [Gv18, SSLG 94-E,
Regln 94], to Mark Keadle [RegLn 105], to Lodwick Lard [RegLn 1975], Lard to Benjamin
Thompson [Regln 1976], Thompson to John Forrest Sr [not found].

Regln 1977 Richard Fincher to Tyrie Harriss, 316 acres, proved by Jonathan Fincher.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to Francis Day Gv72, SSLG 88-L, ReglLn 242, to
Jonathon Fincher ODB 1/94, to Joshua Fincher ReglLn 571, to Richard Fincher ReglLn 572

ReglLn 1978 Joshua Fincher to Jonathan Fincher, 165 acres, proved by Tyree Harriss. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/356]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Joshua Fincher to Jonathan Fincher ReglLn 1978, to Tyrie
Harris Regln 725, to Edmund Fanning ReglLn 2636, to Isaac Edwards ReglLn 2631. ODB 3/539
Isaac Edwards to Samuel Clenning, 6 Feb 1771, two tracts...165 acres on both sides of a branch
of Buck Quarter Creek, adj Richard Fincher, Captain Synnott, Holden.

Regln 1979 Joseph Duncan to Robert Baker, 157.5 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 1980 William Cox to James Moon, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB E/76 James Moon & wife Ann to John Moon, 27 Apr
1789, 100 acres in Earl Granville's boundaries in Orange County, on S side of Haw River, on Cane
Creek, adj Richard Kemp - part of 490 acres Granville to Anthony Chamness 24 Jun 1751 [filed in
Anson County], to William Cox 9 Aug 1753 [ReglLn 44, to James Moon ReglLn 1980].



Regln 1981 William Cox to James Moon, 180 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/44 William Piggott to William Cox, 4 Sep 1755, 180
acres on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek - Granville to William Piggott 3 Feb 1754 [Gv63,
SSLG 97-M]. [Same deed at Regln 133. Later to James Moon ReglLn 19817?]

ReglLn 1982 William Chambers to William Stone, 250 acres, proved by John Pryor. [Also proved at
OCPQS 1/491 William Chambers to William Stanford]

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1983 James Couch to William Callahan, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 1984 Henry Lemon to Joseph Money, 200 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1985 Hugh Dobbin to William Rankin, 503 acres, proved by Samuel Luckie.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Dobbins Jr, 19 Feb 1760, 503 acres on both sides of N Fork of
N Hico Creek, adj his own land. Gv325, SSLG 89-F. ReglLn 1587 William Rankin to James Curry,
503 acres.

Regln 1986 Lawrence Thompson Sr to Lawrence Thompson Jr, 50 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1987 Joseph Powell to Nathaniel Harriss, 62 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1988 Thomas King to Abner and Francis Nash, 1 acre, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1989 Thomas Harriss to Lewis Brantley, 300 acres, proved by James Saunders.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/47 Thomas Armstrong to Thomas Harris, 22 Aug
1755, 300 acres on N side of Deep River about 6 miles above Mr Duncan Campbell - granted
Armstrong [ReglLn 202 Earl Granville to Thomas Armstrong, 300 acres]. CDB A/38 Lewis Brantley
to John Bird, 120 acres.

ReglLn 1990 Benjamin King to Samuel Pack, 252 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/111 Robert Jones Jr to William Wynne, four tracts,
second tract, 252 acres.

Regln 1991 James Lindley to William Helliams, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement. [Also proved
at OCPQS 1/448]



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB D/298 George Allen to Isaac Richardson, 28 May 1787,
200 acres on Lick Creek of Terrells Creek - Granville to James Lindley 2 Aug 1760 ODB G/2
[Gv393, SSLG 95-1, ReglLn 1909], James Lindley to William Hellams 3 Oct 1763 ODB G/171 [ReglLn
1991], William Hellams to George Allen 1 Nov 1763 ODB 1/29 [not found].
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Regln 1992 Richard Burton to William Reaves, 7 acres, proved by Michael Pickett.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1993 Elizabeth Parker to Thomas Dove, 100 acres, proved by Thomas Lawson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1994 Joseph Dolittle to Henry Reynolds, 222 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1995 John Barbee to John Booth, 400 acres, proved by Thomas King.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 1996 John Cate to Robert Cate, 277 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Kate, 20 Aug 1759, 227 acres on S Fork of Flat River, adj James
Dickens. Gv313, SSLG 86-E, ReglLn 653.

Regln 1997 Thomas Cadle to Samuel Stewart, 128 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 1998 Thomas Cate Jr to Robert Cate Jr, 140 acres, proved by affirmation of William Wiley
(Quaker).

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 1999 Alexander Going to John Thomas, 300 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2000 James Espey to Francis Nash, 1 acre, proved by affirmation of William Wiley (Quaker).
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2001 James Cary Jr to Thomas King, 2 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2002 James Talbert to Robert McNiel, 552 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Talbert, 29 Jul 1760, 552 acres on waters of Richland Creek,
adj Lawrence Vanhook, Anderson. Gv369, SSLG 101-A, ReglLn 857.



Regln 2003 Bartholemew Tucker to Thomas Hodge, 100 acres, proved by John Brantley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2004 Valentine Braswel Sr to Volentine Braswel Jr, 214 acres, proved by William Yarborough.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 2005 John Boyd to Thomas Hart, 229 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Boyd Jr, 15 Jul 1760, 229 acres on N side of N Fork of Haw
River. Gv334, SSLG 84-A, Regln 1913. Regln 1342 Thomas Hart to Robert Wells, 229 acres.

ReglLn 2006 Thomas Nelson to Zachariah Downs, 200 acres, proved by Setphen Meratt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2007 Earl Granville to Thomas Wiley, 560 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Wiley, 7 Feb 1760, 560 acres on N side of Eno River, adj
Trading Path, Col Corbin, William Reed, Thomas Wiley's two tracts. Gv322, SSLG 102-K.
[Surveyed for John Hall.]
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ReglLn 2008 Earl Granville to William Churton, 275 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, [unknown], 275 acres on both sides head branches
of Dutchmans Creek of Eno River. Gv843, H5658. ReglLn 2009 William Churton to Peter
Wrightsman, 275 acres.

Regln 2009 William Churton to Peter Wrightsman, 275 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, [unknown], 275 acres on both sides head branches
of Dutchmans Creek of Eno River. Gv843, H5658. ReglLn 2009 William Churton to Peter
Wrightsman, 275 acres.

ReglLn 2010 James Blackley to Samuel Johnson, 312 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2011 Robert Jones Jr to Samuel Bell, 740 acres [744 acres], proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see:

ODB 3/391 Samuel Bell & Mary Bell to Roger Atkinson, 5 Sep 1771, 356 acres on both sides of
Cobbs Creek, adj Hico Creek - from a larger tract of 744 acres which Bell lived on, [Granville to]
Robert Jones Jr [not found,] to Samuel Bell [RegLn 2011]

ODB 3/392 Samuel Bell Sr & Mary Bell to Roger Atkinson, 24 Sep 1771, 127 acres on both sides
of S Hico Creek, adj Robert Bell - part of [Granville to] Robert Jones [not found,] to Bell [RegLn
2011].



CwDB A/506 Samuel Bell of Guilford County NC to son John Bell, 24 Jan 1780, 261 acres on W
side of S Hico Creek - part of 744 acres Granville to Robert Jones Jr 1751 [not found], to Samuel
Bell 1761 [RegLn 2011].

Regln 2012 Henry McCulloch esq to Chaney Townsend, 12500 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at GvDB G/245 Henry McCulloh to Chancy Townsend, 25
May 1759, 12500 acres on Neuse River, Eno River & Tar River - subdivided from Tract 12.

Regln 2013 Earl Granville to William Churton, 550 acres, proved by William Lewis.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Churton, 31 Jan 1761, 550 acres on S side of Eno River, adj
back side of Occaneechee Mountain, Francis Corbin. Gv465, SSLG 87-B.

Regln 2014 Earl Granville to John Carrigan, 304 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Carragan, [unknown], 304 acres on S side of Eno River, on
Spirit Branch, adj Wiley, Jackson, Hugh Woods. Gv834, H5607. RegLn 907 John Carragen to
William Jackson, 244 acres. Regln 911 John Carragan to William Wiley, 60 acres.

Regln 2015 Earl Granville to Joseph Sharp, 478 acres, proved by William Churton esq.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Sharp, 31 Jan 1761, 478 acres adj James Armstrong, Eno
River, Panther Branch, Robert Erwin, Joseph Maddock, Thomas Stubbs, James Taylor. Gv469,
SSLG 100-B.
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Regln 2016 Earl Granville to John Graves, 457 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Graves, 13 Oct 1761, 457 acres on S Fork of Country Line
Creek. Gv576, SSLG 91-D.

Regln 2017 Henry McCulloch to John Barton, 1000 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by RaDB 2/206 & RaDB 4/100 & RaDB 8/471 & RaDB 8/513
Regln 2018 Earl Granville to John Scott, 344 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Scott, 13 Oct 1761, 344 acres on Kilgores Branch of County
Line Creek. Gv585, SSLG 99-H.

Regln 2019 Earl Granville to William Maxwel, 545 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Maxwell, 6 Nov 1761, 545 acres on forks of Cobbs Creek of
N Hico Creek. Gv594, SSLG 96-C

Regln 2020 Earl Granville to Henry Bray, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Bray, 30 Jun 1762, 300 acres on S Fork of Rocky River. Gv681,
SSLG 85-C.

Regln 2021 Earl Granville to William Martin, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Martin, 2 Oct 1761, 400 acres on Dry Creek, adj Hickory
Mountain. Gv562, SSLG 96-A.

ReglLn 2022 Earl Granville to James Doraster, 577 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Dorchester, 3 Aug 1760, 577 acres on middle Ground, waters
of Cane Creek, Hico Creek & Country Line Creek. Gv416, SSLG 89-H.

Regln 2023 Earl Granville to Joseph McLester, 127 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph McLester, 2 Aug 1760, 127 acres on Middle Ground between
Terrells Creek & Dry Creek, no SCC's - no survey, Gv395, SSLG 95.1-E, Patent Book 12:3. ReglLn
2273 Joseph McAllister to John Pyle, 127 acres.
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Regln 2024 Earl Granville to Richard Simpson, 100 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Simpson, 12 Jun 1761, 180 acres on S Fork of Stony Creek.
Gv529, SSLG 100-C.

Regln 2025 Earl Granville to William Few, 280 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Few, 22 Jan 1761, 280 acres on W side of Eno River, adj his
own land, Watson, William Cox. Gv447, SSLG 90-E.

ReglLn 2026 Earl Granville to George Adam [Salling], 470 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Adam Saling, 2 Oct 1761, 470 acres on Rocky River. Gv541,
SSLG 99-H.

Regln 2027 Earl Granville to William Cox, 350 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Cox, 1 Aug 1760, 350 acres on New Hope Creek, adj
Blackwood, Patterson's Path. Gv380, SSLG 88-D.

Regln 2028 Earl Granville to Nathaniel Kimbrough, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for Nathaniel Kimbrough Gv899, H6046, 400 acres
ReglLn 2029 Earl Granville to John Dunnagan, 392 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Dunagan, 2 Feb 1761, 392 acres on both sides of Little River,
adj Michael Synnott, Joseph Ellison, Robert Wilson. Gv472, SSLG 89-J.

ReglLn 2030 Earl Granville to John Dunnagan, 330 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Dunagan, 3 Feb 1761, 330 acres on both sides of Deep Creek.
Gv477, SSLG 89-I.

Regln 2031 Earl Granville to Benjamin Saxton, 660 acres, proved.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Saxon, 11 Jun 1761, 660 acres on Northeast Fork of New
Hope Creek, adj George Martin. Gv527, SSLG 99-K, ReglLn 2031. Duplicate of ReglLn 2051 below?
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Regln 2032 Earl Granville to John Braeshear, 140 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Brashear, 2 Aug 1760, 140 acres on both sides of S Hico Creek.
Gv399, SSLG 85-B.

Regln 2033 Earl Granville to John Cate, 191 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Cate, 9 May 1755, 191 acres on W Fork of Flat River. Gv95,
SSLG 86-E.

Regln 2034 Earl Granville to James Vestal, 183 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Collectively described by CDB A/101 & CDB A/91.
ReglLn 2035 Henry McCulloch to Jessee Pugh, 147.5 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Jesse Pugh,
__,147 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 2036 Henry McCulloch to Joseph Wield Jr, 513 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Joseph Wells,
__,513 acresin Tract 11.

Regln 2037 Henry McCulloch to Robert Stewart, 207 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by

ODB 2/593 Edmund Fanning to William Lindley, 2 Oct 1769, 100 acres on a branch of Cane
Creek, adj Thomas Davis - part of Henry McCulloh to Robert Stewart, to [Joseph Stala ReglLn
1709] to Thomas Canby [RegLn 2379], to Edmund Fanning 21 Mar 1769 [not found].

ODB 2/560 Thomas Davis & Elisabeth Davis to Jeremiah Piggott, 21 Jul 1769, 39 acres & 140
poles on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek, adj Charles Davis, field - part of 207 acres Henry
McCulloh to Robert Stewart 26 Dec 1759 [RegLn 2037], to Robert Davis [sic, but apparently
Thomas Davis] 20 Jul 1762 [ReglLn 2083].

ODB 5/159 Robert Stewart to Stephen Ward, 23 Oct 1792, 67.5 acres on a branch of Cane Creek,
adj Joseph Staley now William Ward — McCulloh to his father Alexander Stewart 26 Dec 1759
[RegLn 2037], by will to Robert Stewart [OWB A/60].

Regln 2038 Earl Granville to Samuel Farmer, 581 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Farmer, 9 Feb 1761, 581 acres adj James Dickens, Robert
Cate, Flat River, Richard Holeman. Gv495, SSLG 90-D.

ReglLn 2039 Earl Granville to John Campbell, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Campbell, 2 Sep 1761, 300 acres on the Trading Path, on W
side of Haw River, adj Phillips, McCulloh. Gv531, SSLG 85-L.
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Regln 2040 Earl Granville to John Scarlett, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Scarlet, 2 Oct 1761, 700 acres on both sides of Eno River, adj
James Couch. Gv538, SSLG 99-L.

Regln 2041 Earl Granville to William Moffitt, 130 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Moffitt, 1 Aug 1760, 130 acres on Tibbs Run of Richland
Creek, adj Crow Hill. Gv385, SSLG 96-G.

Regln 2042 Earl Granville to John Hawkins, 308 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2043 Earl Granville to John McGee, 180 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McGee, 2 Oct 1761, 180 acres adj Harmon Husband. Gv561,
SSLG 95.1-D.

Regln 2044 Earl Granville to Zachariah Martin, 180 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2045 Earl Granville to Edward Moore, 375 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Moore, 6 Feb 1761, 375 acres on both sides of Flat River,
adj Hosea Tapley, William Jay. Gv488, SSLG 96-H.

Regln 2046 Earl Granville to Edmund Fanning esq, 378 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edmund Fanning, 6 Dec 1761, 378 acres on Dunagans Mill Creek of
Little River, adj Jones, Dunagan. Gv630, SSLG 90-C.

Regln 2047 Earl Granville to Gabriel Freeman, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gabriel Freeman, 26 Oct 1759, 500 acres on both side of Deep River,
adj County line. Gv319, SSLG 90-H. Duplicate of ReglLn 20497? See below.
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Regln 2048 Earl Granville to John Wade, 620 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Wade H2769. Filed in Granville County.

ReglLn 2049 Earl Granville to Gabriel Freeman, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gabriel Freeman, 26 Oct 1759, 500 acres on both side of Deep River,
adj County line. Gv319, SSLG 90-H. Duplicate of ReglLn 2047? See above.

Regln 2050 Earl Granville to James Cheney, 455 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Cheney, 26 Oct 1759, 455 acres on Richland Creek of Deep
River, adj Crawford Road. Gv320, SSLG 86-I.



Regln 2051 Earl Granville to Benjamin Saxon, 660 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Duplicate of RegLn 2031? See above.
Regln 2052 Earl Granville to William Cox, 487 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Cox, 13 Nov 1756, 487 acres on Little Brush Creek of Deep
River. Gv187, SSLG 88-E.

ReglLn 2053 Earl Granville to Jessee Hollingsworth, 225 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jesse Hollingsworth, 15 Jul 1760, 225 acres on N side of Deep River,
adj the Target Rock. Gv337, SSLG 92-G.

Regln 2054 Earl Granville to Harmon Husband, 321 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 25 Jul 1760, 321 acres on waters of Sandy Creek
& Rocky River, called Levels Addition Tract. Gv353, SSLG 93-C.

ReglLn 2055 Earl Granville to Harmon Husband, 641 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 29 Jul 1760, 641 acres on both sides of Sandy
Creek, adj Samuel Walker, Thomas Branson. Gv367, SSLG 93-B.
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Regln 2056 Earl Granville to Harmon Husband, 245 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 30 Jul 1760, the Harmonia Union Tract, 245 acres
on Deep River, adj Peter Youngblood. Gv375, SSLG 93-B.

Regln 2057 Earl Granville to Harmon Husband, 587 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 25 Jul 1760, 587 acres on waters of Sandy Creek,
called Treble Union Tract, adj Walker, bents of the branch, Harmon Husband. Gv355, SSLG 93-D.

Regln 2058 Earl Granville to Harmon Husband, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 640 acres on Sandy Creek & Wards Run
RESEARCH not in Bennett, SSLG 93-D.

Regln 2059 Earl Granville to Harmon Husband, 644 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Harmon Husband, 5 Aug 1758, 644 acres on head branches of Sandy
Creek, adj a small branch of Rocky River, Husband. Gv241, SSLG 93-D.

ReglLn 2060 Earl Granville to Henry Key, 450 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Henry Key, 9 Jun 1761, 450 acres on Bolin Creek, adj Benjamin Bolin.
Gv513, SSLG 94-F.

Regln 2061 Earl Granville to William Teague, 160 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Teague, 21 Jul 1760, 160 acres on New Garden Road to
Cape Fear, adj William Varnel. Gv346, SSLG 101-C.

Regln 2062 Earl Granville to Daniel Booth, 282 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Daniel Booth, 28 Jun 1762, 282 acres on Barbees Creek, adj Booth,
Barbee. Gv663, SSLG 84-L.

Regln 2063 Earl Granville to James Sellers, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Sellers, 2 Oct 1761, 700 acres on Pine Tree Creek of Haw
River, adj Nathan Melton. Gv539, SSLG 100-A.
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Regln 2064 Earl Granville to Luke Lea, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2065 Earl Granville to John Ursury, 313 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Usury, 14 Oct 1761, 313 acres on Gents Creek of Hico Creek,
adj Michael Dickson, Humphrey Barnett, Henry Dickson, Paul Harrelson. Gv586, SSLG 101-L.

Regln 2066 Earl Granville to Hugh Moffitt, 330 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Moffitt, 2 Oct 1761, 330 acres on a drain of Tick Creek, adj a
branch of Brush Creek. Gv560, SSLG 96-G.

ReglLn 2067 Earl Granville to William Cox, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Cox, 11 Jun 1754, 400 acres on W side of Deep River. Gv40,
SSLG 88-D.

ReglLn 2068 Earl Granville to Thomas Cox, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Cox, 5 Aug 1758, 400 acres on Richland Creek of Deep
River, adj Benjamin Cox. Gv244, SSLG 88-C.

ReglLn 2069 Earl Granville to Edward Camp, 236 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Camp, 6 Dec 1761, 236 acres on E side of Marlowes Creek,
adj Harrelson, Highs Creek, Chambers, Dickson. Gv603, SSLG 85-K

Regln 2070 Earl Granville to Nicholas Barker, 155 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nicholas Barker, 30 Jun 1762, 160 acres on Panther Creek of
Richland Creek. Gv679, SSLG 83-J.

Regln 2071 John Long to Felix Long, 150 acres, proved by John Pryor.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/610 John Anderson Sr to Andrew Caddel, 1 Dec 1770,
150 acres on waters of Hico Creek, adj head of South Creek, Long - Joseph Long to Felix Long
[Regln 2071], to Douglass [RegLn 1733].



[Page 231]

Regln 2072 James Sellers to Robert Sellers, 200 acres, proved by John Alexander.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2073 Robert Stublefield to Abraham Womack, 150 acres, proved by Wyatt Stubblefield.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2074 William Morrow to James Morrow, 200 acres, proved by John Jones.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2075 Nathaniel Powell to Thomas Smith, 300 acres, proved by Connor Dowd.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2076 James Sellers to James Caller [Collier?], 150 acres, proved by John Alexander.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2077 Robert Stubblefield to Richard Stubblefield, 150 acres, proved by Wyatt Stubblefield.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2078 Thomas Lindley Jr to Richard Jones, 260 acres, proved by Harmon Husband.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by CDB A/239 Michael Wisner & wife Ruth to
Thomas Lindley Jr, 6 Feb 1772, 110 acres on S Fork of Cane Creek, W side of Haw River - part of
Granville to Thomas Lindley Sr 22 Feb 1759 [Gv248, SSLG 95-) & SSLG 122-F, Regln 557, to
Richard Jones ReglLn 2078, to Michael Wisnor ReglLn 2464].

Regln 2079 Thomas Lindley Jr to Evan Jones, 89 acres, proved by Harmon Husband.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2080 George Brown to Thomas Whitehead, 227 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John White ReglLn 90, H2839

Regln 2081 Benjamin Saxton to Nathaniel Almond, 140 acres, proved by John Jones.

Chilton’s notes: ? ODB 4/129 Nathan Almond & Alsey Almond to William Halliburton, 10 Nov
1787, 140 acres on W side of Northeast Creek, adj Robert Hogan. Proved Feb 1789 by John
Jenkins. {Proved at OCPQS 4/226}

Regln 2082 Joseph Wells to William Marshal, 171 acres, proved by John Jones.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by ODB 9/293 Cane Creek Monthly Meeting &
Peter Stout trustee & Benjamin Piggott trustee & John Piggott trustee & Daniel Vestall trustee &
Solomon Dixon trustee & Joshua Chamness trustee to Solomon Dixon & Joshua Chamness, 4 Jul
1801, 26 acres on Cane Creek, adj Dixon's mill dam, incl present Meeting House, adj McCulloh,



the graveyard [cemetery] - part of 170 acres from Joseph Wells to William Marshall & wife
Rebecca Marshall [ReglLn 2082], ratifying an earlier deed.

ReglLn 2083 Robert Stewart to Thomas Davis, 40 acres, proved by William Reed.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/560 Thomas Davis & Elisabeth Davis to Jeremiah
Piggott, 21 Jul 1769, 39 acres & 140 poles on S side of Haw River, on Cane Creek, adj Charles
Davis, field - part of 207 acres Henry McCulloh to Robert Stewart 26 Dec 1759 [ReglLn 2037], to
Robert Davis [sic, but apparently Thomas Davis] 20 Jul 1762.

ReglLn 2084 John Burt to Edward Sorrel, 640 acres, proved by Tingel Jones.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Burt, 8 Jul 1760, 640 acres on Stirrup Iron Creek & Briar Creek.
Gv331, SSLG 85-J.

RegLn 2085 Earl Granville to John King, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John King, 2 Oct 1761, 640 acres on Robersons Creek of Haw River.
Gv567, SSLG 94-H.

Regln 2086 Earl Granville to John Fulkerson, 251 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Fulkerson, 6 Mar 1762, 251 acres on Watery Branch of N Hico
Creek. Gv645, SSLG 90-H.

ReglLn 2087 Earl Granville to John Thomas, 441 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Thomas, 6 Dec 1761, 441 acres on Deep Creek, adj Mr
Whorton, Weldon. Gv627, SSLG 101-F.
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Regln 2088 Earl Granville to John Sharp, 365 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Allen Tharp [John Allenthorp], 6 Dec 1761, 365 acres on waters
of Deep Creek of Flat River, adj James Blakeley. Gv626, SSLG 101-F.

Regln 2089 Earl Granville to Thomas Craven, 224 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Craven, 6 Dec 1761, 224 acres on Deep Creek of Flat River,
adj James Payne, Peter Craven. Gv604, SSLG 88-F.

ReglLn 2090 Earl Granville to Andrew [T]Rollinger, 275 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Adam Trollinger, 6 Dec 1761, 275 acres on W side of Haw River.
Gv614, SSLG 89-I.

Regln 2091 Earl Granville to John Brooks, 400 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2092 Earl Granville to David Hambree [Embree], 400 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 925 David Hembre to David Alley, 400 acres.



ReglLn 2093 Earl Granville to William Lacey, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Lacey, 30 Jun 1762, 700 acres on both sides of Rocky River,
adj Brinsley Barnes, George Adam Salling. Gv672, SSLG 95-A.

Regln 2094 Earl Granville to Joseph Brantley, 650 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Brantley, 2 Oct 1761, 650 acres on S side of Deep River, adj
Duncan Bohannon, John Brantley. Gv545, SSLG 70-D, survey located in Orange County Loose
Granville Papers $108.279, image 681.

ReglLn 2095 Earl Granville to Daniel Brown, 595 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Daniel Brown, 1 Aug 1760, 595 acres on S side of Deep River, adj
William Cox. Gv383, SSLG 85-G.
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Regln 2096 Earl Granville to James Saunders, 350 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Sanders, 6 Dec 1761, 350 acres on Charles Branch of Hogans
Creek, adj Benajah King. Gv624, SSLG 99-H.

ReglLn 2097 Earl Granville to Gedion Hogg, 135 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gideon Hogg, 6 Dec 1761, 135 acres on Greens Creek of Dan River,
adj the Province Line. Gv613, SSLG 92-E.

Regln 2098 Earl Granville to John Boyd, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Boyd, 2 Oct 1761, 300 acres on S side of Deep River, ad]
Duncan Bohannon. Gv556, SSLG 84-B.

ReglLn 2099 Earl Granville to Phillip Hartso, 350 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Phillip Hartso, 2 Oct 1761, 375 acres on Rocky River. Gv555, SSLG
91-K.

Regln 2100 Earl Granville to John Lea, 487 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Lea, 6 Oct 1761, 487 acres on Aldridges Branch of Flat River.
Gv575, SSLG 95-E.

ReglLn 2101 Earl Granville to William Phillips, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Phillips, 2 Oct 1761, 700 acres on Haw River, adj McCulloh.
Gv543, SSLG 97-L, Regln 2101.

Regln 2102 Earl Granville to James Humphries, 516 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: ?Gv892 Granville to William Humphreys, [unknown], 516 acres on Neuse River,
adj branch, Marr. Gv892, H5973

ReglLn 2103 Earl Granville to Edward Stone, 574 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Edward Stone, 21 Jan 1761, 574 acres on Eno River, adj Thomas
Nelson. Gv444, SSLG 100-G, ReglLn 2103.
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Regln 2104 Earl Granville to Michael Waldrop, 370 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Waldrop, 5 Feb 1761, 370 acres on waters of New Hope
Creek, adj a stony knap. Gv486, SSLG 102-A, ReglLn 2104.

ReglLn 2105 Earl Granville to John Gardiner, 500 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Gardner, 2 Oct 1761, 500 acres on Deep River, adj Richland
Creek. Gv571, SSLG 91-A, ReglLn 2105.

Regln 2106 Earl Granville to John Thrasher, 670 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Thrasher, 6 Dec 1761, 693 acres on Lick Fork of Hogans Creek.
Gv628, SSLG 101-1, Regln 2106.

Regln 2107 Earl Granville to Moses Nelson, 675 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Moses Nelson, 28 Jun 1762, 625 acres on Alden Branch of Mile
Branch of Rocky River. Gv656, SSLG 97-A, ReglLn 2107.

Regln 2108 Earl Granville to Thomas Alexander, 267 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Alexander, 28 Jun 1762, 267 acres on S Fork of Rocky River.
Gv662, SSLG 83-B, Regln 2108.

Regln 2109 Earl Granville to Jacob Cushatt, 228 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jacob Cashat, 2 Oct 1761, 228 acres on S Fork of Cane Creek, adj
Lindley. Gv548, SSLG 86-D. ReglLn 2646 Jacob Cashatt to Isaac Towns, 228 acres.

Regln 2110 Earl Granville to Thomas Collins, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Collins, 13 Oct 1761, 700 acres on Dials Creek of Flat River.
Gv579, SSLG 87-H, ReglLn 2110.

Regln 2111 Earl Granville to John Doan, 135 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Doan, 28 Jun 1762, 135 acres on a branch of Cane Creek, adj
Anthony Chamness, Simon Dixon. Gv665, SSLG 89-D, RegLn 2111.
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Regln 2112 Earl Granville to John Landrum, 700 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Landrum, 2 Oct 1761, 700 acres adj fork. Gv566, SSLG 95-A,
Regln 2112.

Regln 2113 Earl Granville to Enoch Spinks, 225 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Enoch Spinks, 2 Oct 1761, 225 acres on Fork Creek of Deep River,
adj Cow Branch. Gv535, SSLG 100-E, RegLn 2113.

Regln 2114 Earl Granville to John Bumpas, 675 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2115 Earl Granville to John Rainey [John Ramsey], 400 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Ramsey, 2 Oct 1761, 400 acres. Gv542, SSLG 98-H, ReglLn 2115.
Regln 2116 Earl Granville to George Lea, 285 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to George Lea, 14 Oct 1761, 285 acres on S Fork of Country Line Creek.
Gv588, SSLG 95-D, ReglLn 2116.

Regln 2117 Earl Granville to James Copeland, 275 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Copeland, 2 Oct 1761, 275 acres above Stinking Creek, adj
Haw River, bents of fork, a thoroughfare. Gv551, SSLG 87-J, RegLn 2117.

Regln 2118 Earl Granville to Samuel Cox, 430 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Cox, 1 Aug 1760, 430 acres on Richland Creek & Batchelors
Creek. Gv382, SSLG 88-C, ReglLn 2118.

Regln 2119 Earl Granville to James Bridges, 430 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Bridges, 13 Oct 1761, 340 acres on Cub Creek of Tar River, ad]
Absolam Lankson. Gv580, SSLG 85-E, RegLn 2119.
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Regln 2120 Earl Granville to Gabriel Davey, 364 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Gabriel Davey, 13 Oct 1761, 364 acres on N Fork of Mayo Creek.
Gv578, SSLG 88-J, Regln 2120.

Regln 2121 Earl Granville to Brinsley Barnes, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for Brinsley Barnes Gv809, H5452, 640 acres
Regln 2122 Earl Granville to Sherwood Reynolds, 337 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Sherwood Reynolds, 7 Jun 1760, 337 acres on Lower Back Creek.
Gv329, SSLG 98-L, Regln 2122.

Regln 2123 Earl Granville to Peter Craven, 597 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Craven, 14 Oct 1761, 597 acres on Deep Creek of Flat River,
adj John Bumpass. Gv592, SSLG 88-F, Regln 2123.

ReglLn 2124 Earl Granville to Samuel Bumpass, 440 acres, proved by William Churton. [ODB 3/475 cites
this as ODB A/204.]



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Bumpass, 13 Oct 1761, 440 acres on Spring Branch of Flat
River. Gv582, SSLG 85-1, ReglLn 2124,

Regln 2125 Earl Granville to William Harvey, 414 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for William Harvey Gv880, H5903, 414 acres
Regln 2126 Earl Granville to Jacob Bledsoe, 600 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jacob Bledsoe, 11 Jun 1761, 600 acres on White Oak Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv520, SSLG 84-1, RegLn 2126. no survey

Regln 2127 Earl Granville to Thomas Copeland, 225 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Copeland, 2 Oct 1761, 225 acres on Richland Creek of Rocky
River. Gv549, SSLG 88-A, Regln 2127.
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Regln 2128 Earl Granville to Joseph Comar, 370 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Comber, 3 Feb 1761, 370 acres on both sides of Coxs Mill
Creek on W side of Deep River, adj William Cox, McPherson. Gv475, SSLG 85-K, RegLn 2128.

Regln 2129 Earl Granville to Stephen Poe, 347 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Stephen Poe, 2 Oct 1761, 347 acres on S side of Haw River, adj John
Stuart. Gv544, SSLG 98-B, Regln 2129.

ReglLn 2130 Earl Granville to Richard Bullock, 570 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Bullock, 30 Jan 1761, 570 acres adj McCulloh, Robert
Abercrombie, Ellerbee Creek. Gv461, SSLG 85-H, ReglLn 2130.

Regln 2131 Earl Granville to William Rainey, 519 acres [sic], proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: ?Granville survey for William Rainey Gv950, H6361, 591 acres
Regln 2132 Earl Granville to William Serjant, 210 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Sargeant, 7 Jun 1761, 210 acres on Mill Creek of S Hico
Creek, adj Darby Henly. Gv507, SSLG 99-1, ReglLn 2132.

Regln 2133 Earl Granville to William Churton, 290 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for William Churton Gv844, H5660, 290 acres

ReglLn 2134 Earl Granville to Richard Parsons, 360 acres, proved by William Churton. [CwDB B/51 cites
this as ODB A/210.]

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Person, 7 Jun 1761, 360 acres on Flat River, adj James
Bowie. Gv504, SSLG 97-G, ReglLn 2134.

Regln 2135 Earl Granville to Richard Parker, 345 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Parker, 2 Oct 1761, 345 acres on Pokeberry Creek, adj his
own land, bents of the creek. Gv558, SSLG 97-F, ReglLn 2135.
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Regln 2136 Earl Granville to James Blackley, 566 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Blakeley, 6 Dec 1761, 566 acres on Deep Creek of Flat River,
adj John Thomas. Gv608, SSLG 84-C, ReglLn 2136.

Regln 2137 Henry McCulloch to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1000 acres, proved by Robert Jones Jr.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at GvDB G/178 Henry McCulloh to Henry Eustace McCulloh,
16 Jun 1763, 1000 acres on Cedar Creek, adj Burford's path. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx
Henry McCulloh to Henry Eustace McCulloh, 16 Jun 1763, 1000 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 2138 Henry McCulloch esq to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1120 acres, proved by Robert Jones Jr.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry E
McCulloh, 20 Nov, 1763, 1120 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2139 William Chambers Sr to William Chambers Jr, 190 acres, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2140 Thomas West to Thomas Leopard, 89 acres, proved by Joseph Brantley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2141 James Sellers to John Alexander, 150 acres, proved by James Carter.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB F/102 Rebecca Alexander to Josiah Copeland, 26 Aug
1790, 150 acres whereon Josiah Copeland now lives, on N side of Haw River, adj Bullard,
Williams - Granville to James Sellers [Gv539, SSLG 100-A-3, ReglLn 2063, of which 150 acres to
John Alexander ReglLn 2141, by will to Rebecca Alexander]. [Later to Thomas Stokes CDB G/236,
to Josiah Copeland Jr CDB M/497, of which 75 acres to French Fort CDB M/481, other 75 acres
to John Crow CDB M/636.]

Regln 2142 John Hornaday to John Hadley, 400 acres, proved by William Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2143 William Gladen to Alexander Going, 311.5 acres, proved by Moses Hollis.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/285 Alexander Gowen to John Dismukes, 30 May
1770, 311.5 acres on both sides of Moons Creek - granted William Gladden 7 Jun 1761 [not
found], Gladden to Gowen 7 Apr 1762 [RegLn 2143]. [Later to Samuel Paul CwDB A/38.]
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ReglLn 2144 Richard Parker to Elijah Cain [Elisha Cain], 140 acres [148 acres?], proved by Richard
Parker.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Parker, 28 Oct 1754, 148 acres on E side of New Hope
Creek. Gv62, SSLG 97-F.

ReglLn 2145 Earl Granville to Dempsey Rawles, 275 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Dempsey Rawls, 28 Jun 1762, 375 acres on White Oak Creek of New
Hope Creek. Gv652, SSLG 98-I, ReglLn 2145.

Regln 2146 Earl Granville to John Millins [sic], 422 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Mullin, 6 Dec 1761, 422 acres on Lick Fork of Hogans Creek.
Gv618, SSLG 96-N, Regln 2146.

Regln 2147 Earl Granville to Charles Williams, 622 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Charles Williams, 6 Dec 1761, 622 acres on Flat River, adj Redman,
Osborn Jeffreys. Gv616, SSLG 102-H, Regln 2147.

Regln 2148 John Scott to John Dowell, 344 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Scott, 13 Oct 1761, 344 acres on Kilgores Branch of County
Line Creek. Gv585, SSLG 99-H, ReglLn 2018.

Regln 2149 William Chambers to Richard Chambers, 234 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2150 Joseph Trotter to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 561 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by GDB 7/528 William Moode by attorney John
Dixon to William Jones, 29 Mar 1802, 253 acres on Trotters Branch of Stinking Quarter Creek -
part of 561 acres McCulloh to Joseph Trotter 7 Jun 1761 [Regln 1111 & Regln 2150 & ReglLn
2162], to William Moode 3 Nov 1764 [ReglLn 1746]. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry
McCulloh to Joseph Trotter, 7 Jun 1763, 516 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2151 John Anthony to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 300 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2152 Michael Holt to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 300 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Michael Holt, 21
Jun 1763, 300 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2153 John Albright to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 215 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Jacob Albright, 10 Jun 1763,
215 acresin Tract 11°?

Regln 2154 John Cable to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 355 acres, proved by Michael Holt.



Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Coble, 22
Jun 1763, 355 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2155 Amon [Aaron] Sharp to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 266 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Aaron Sharp, 1
May 1763, 266 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 2156 Joseph Bevey [Joseph Peavey] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 744 acres, proved by William
Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1134 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Joseph Peavy, 744
acres.

Regln 2157 Joseph Beavey [Joseph Peavey] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 476 acres, proved by Michael
Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2158 James Watson Sr to James Watson Jr, 321 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Watson, 17 Jun 1754, 321 acres on forks of Seven Mile Creek,
adj Mr Gray. Gv51, SSLG 102-C, ReglLn 85.

Regln 2159 Samuel Underwood to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 305 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1098 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Samuel Underwood,
305 acres, proved by Robert Rainey. Regln 2159 Samuel Underwood to Henry Eustice
McCulloch, 305 acres, proved by Michael Holt. ReglLn 1706 Samuel Underwood to John
Patterson, 305 acres, proved by Jeremiah Piggot.
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Regln 2160 Samuel Anderson to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Michael Holt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2161 John Beverly to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Christian Hofman.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Beverly, 3
May 1763, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2162 John Trotter to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 561 acres, proved by Christian Hoffman.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by GDB 7/528 William Moode by attorney John
Dixon to William Jones, 29 Mar 1802, 253 acres on Trotters Branch of Stinking Quarter Creek -
part of 561 acres McCulloh to Joseph Trotter 7 Jun 1761 [Regln 1111 & Regln 2150 & ReglLn
2162], to William Moode 3 Nov 1764 [ReglLn 1746]. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry
McCulloh to Joseph Trotter, 7 Jun 1763, 516 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 2163 Francis Limburg [Lineburger/Lineberry] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 554 acres, proved by
Jacob Limburg.



Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Fr Lineburger,
10 Jun 1763, 554 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 2164 John Lynn to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 410 acres, proved by Joseph Trotter.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Linn, 9 Jun
1763, 410 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2165 Henry McCulloch to John Meherg, 440 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1716 John Meherg to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 440
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Meherg, 27 Jul 1763, 440 acres
in Tract 12.

Regln 2166 Henry McCulloch to Samuel Howell, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2167 Henry McCulloch to Mark Cook, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1304 Mark Cook to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200
acres. Regln 1630 Mark Cook to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres. Also cited by Patent Book
19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Mark Cook, 17 Aug 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.
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Regln 2168 Henry McCulloch to William Luten Sr, 503 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/243 William Luten by Sheriff to James Alston, 20 Apr
1770, 503 acres adj Mitchell, Ragan, William Luten, Thomas Webb, McStag [Stagg?] - levy on
William Luten, land originally George Il to Henry Eustace McCulloh [to William Luton ReglLn
2168]. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to William Luten, 26 Jul 1763, 503 acres
in Tract 12.

Regln 2169 Henry McCulloch to Watson Bromfield, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/460, _Jul 1770, Watson Bromfield by Sheriff to
Edmund Fanning, 200 acres adj Thomas Hines, Panther Creek. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx
Henry McCulloh to Watson Broomfield, 27 Jul 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 2170 Henry McCulloch to Richard Chamness, 475 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2171 Henry McCulloch to Thomas Hines, 848 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1720 Thomas Hines to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 840
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Thomas Hines, 22 Jul 1763, 840 acres
in Tract 12.

Regln 2172 Henry McCulloch to John Brittain, 213 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 2173 Henry McCulloch to Jasper Bare, 202 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1303 Jasper Bare to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 202
acres, proved by James Boyd. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Gasper Bare,
16 May 1763, 202 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2174 Henry McCulloch to Jacob Holt, 235 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2175 Henry McCulloch to John Shad[dy], 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1003 John Shaddy to Henry Eustice McCulloch, _
acres, proved by Robert Rainey. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John
Shady, 7 Oct 1762, 200 acres in Tract 11.
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Regln 2176 Henry McCulloch to John Webb, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2177 Henry McCulloch to John Clark, 235 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John
Clark, 5 Jul 1763, 200 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 2178 Henry McCulloch to George Waisner, 594 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1283 George Waisner to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 594
acres, proved by James Boyd. Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2179 Henry McCulloch to John Madin, 220 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2180 Henry McCulloch to John Armstrong, 573 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Armstrong, 22 May
1763, 573 acres in Tract 11. Regln 1278 John Armstrong to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 573 acres,
proved by James Boyd.

Regln 2181 Henry McCulloch to John Alston, 100 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see JoDB E3/447 John Alston & wife Elizabeth to James Jones,
___17__, 2 tracts, second tract, 100 acres on both sides of Great Lick Creek, adj Granville's line -
part of Tract 12. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Alston, 6 Dec 1760,
100 acres in Tract 12.

Regln 2182 Henry McCulloch to Jacob Housman, 200 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2183 Henry McCulloch to George Ingle, 258 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.



Chilton’s notes: Partly described at GDB 1/232.
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Regln 2184 Henry McCulloch to William Phillips, 246 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2210 William Phillips to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 246
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to William Phillips, 15 Jun 1763, 246
acres in Tract 12.

ReglLn 2185 Henry McCulloch to Martin Loyg, 251 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1264 Martin Loy to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 251
acres.

Regln 2186 Henry McCulloch to Fredrick Moser, 225 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 2194 Fredrick Moser to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 225
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Frederick Moser, 24 May 1763, 225
acres in Tract 11. ODB 8/343 Frederick Moser Sr to Frederick Moser Jr, 21 Feb 1800, 225 acres,
whereon | now live, adj Malachi Fogleman. [Henry McCulloh to Frederick Moser ReglLn 2186 &
Regln 2194. Later 144 acres to John Moser ODB 11/270, by heirs to Peter Moser ODB 30/284
first tract.]

Regln 2187 Henry McCulloch to William Miles, 287 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1288 William Miles to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 287
acres.

Regln 2188 Henry McCulloch to George Clapp, 362 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George Clapp, 8
May 1763, 362 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 2189 Henry McCulloch to Phillip Sellers, 223 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1292 Phillip Sellers to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 223
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Phillip Sellers, 1 May 1763, 223 acres
inTract 117

ReglLn 2190 Henry McCulloch to Malachi Fogleman, 218 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1274 Mallachi Fogleman to Henry Eustice McCulloch,
218 acres.

Regln 2191 Henry McCulloch to Bernard Clapp, 1122 acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 995 Bernard Clap to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 1222
acres. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Barnard Clapp, 18 Sep 1762, 1122
acres in Tract 11.
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Regln 2192 George Counts to Henry McCulloh, 222 acres, proved by John Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George Counts,
8Jun 1763, 222 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2193 George Coble to Henry McCulloch, 360 acres, proved by Joseph Trotter.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George Coble, 8
Jun 1763, 360 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2194 Fredrick Moser to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 225 acres, proved by Nicholas Gibbs.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2186 Henry McCulloch to Fredrick Moser, 225 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Frederick Moser, 24 May 1763, 225 acres in
Tract 11.0DB 8/343 Frederick Moser Sr to Frederick Moser Jr, 21 Feb 1800, 225 acres, whereon |
now live, adj Malachi Fogleman. [Henry McCulloh to Frederick Moser RegLn 2186 & ReglLn 2194.
Later 144 acres to John Moser ODB 11/270, by heirs to Peter Moser ODB 30/284 first tract.]

Regln 2195 Samuel Oliver to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 203 acres, proved by Nicholas Gibbs.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Samuel Oliver, 6
Jun 1763, 203 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 2196 Alexand[er] Jones to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 304 acres, proved by Elizabeth Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Alexander
Tansey, 8 Jun 1763, 304 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2197 Conrod Stoner to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 225 acres, proved by Elizabeth Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Conrad
Stoner, 1 Jun 1763, 225 acres in Tract 11.

ReglLn 2198 John Butler [or Buller?] to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 414 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Butler, 6
May 1763, 414 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2199 Hugh Smith to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 170 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Hugh Smith, 16
Sep 1762, 467 acres in Tract 11?
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ReglLn 2200 Christian Hoffman to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 290 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2201 John Phillip Clapp to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to J P Clapp, 25 Jun
1763, 200 acres in Tract 11.



Regln 2202 Robert Hilton to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 217 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: See also Regln 1135 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Peter Hilton, 247 acres. Not
found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Peter Helton, 28 Jun 1763, 217 acres
in Tract 11.

North Carolina, Orange County}...November 1765.
Regln 2203 George Linn to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 242 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George
Leingurger, 28 Jun 1763, 242 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2204 George Coble to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1072 Henry McCulloch to George Coble, 202 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to George Coble, 13 Sep 1762, 202 acres in
Tract 11.

Regln 2205 Andrew Whitsell to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 706 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Adam Whitsell,
22 Jun 1763, 706 acres in Tract 11.
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Regln 2206 John Barler to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 479 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Barber, 9
Jun 1763, 479 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2207 Joseph Clapp to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 620 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Joseph Clapp,
30Jun 1763, 620 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2208 John Bratkin to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to John Bracken,
28 May 1763, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2209 Fredrick Lowe to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 932 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Frederick Low,
27 Jun 1763, 932 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2210 William Phillips to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 246 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 2184 Henry McCulloch to William Phillips, 246 acres.
Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to William Phillips, 15 Jun 1763, 246 acres in
Tract 12.

Regln 2211 Tobias Clapp to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 400 acres, proved by Michael Holt.



Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Tobias Clapp, 26
Jun 1763, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2212 John Gresham to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 243 acres, proved by Michael Holt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2213 Nicholas Gresham to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 243 acres, proved by Michael Holt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2214 Henry Whitsel to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 200 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Henry Whitsell,
24 Jun 1763, 200 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2215 Andrew Rudolph to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 388 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/197 Andrew Rudolph & Mary Rudolph to Anthony
Coble, 18 Jan 1770, 388 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek, adj John Barton, Christian
Morris, Henry Eustace McCulloh Tract 7 - McCulloh to Rudolph 8 Jun 1763 [ReglLn 1109, ReglLn
2215].

Regln 2216 Thomas Rich to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 430 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found. Also cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Thomas Reck,
31 May 1763, 430 acres in Tract 11.

Regln 2217 John Holt to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 215 acres, proved by Michael Holt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2218 Robert Reed to William Reed, 1 acre, proved by James Watson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2219 [Mansfield] Crow to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 992 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1144 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Mansfield Crow, 992
acres, proved by Robert Rainey.

Regln 2220 Richard Gibbs to William Person, 150 acres, proved by James Foster.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2221 Robert Corley to John Lashley, 350 acres, proved by Charles Clanton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/596 William Jones & Martha Jones to Robert
Rutherford, 20 Aug 1768, half of 700 acres taken up by Robert Corley & now lives on, on
Roberson Creek, adj James Stewart. ReglLn 2455 John Lashley to William Jones, 350 acres.
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Regln 2222 James Lindsey to John Ellis, 190 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2223 John King to Joseph George, 640 acres, proved by Henry Ledbetter.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John King, 2 Oct 1761, 640 acres on Robersons Creek of Haw River.
Gv567, SSLG 94-H, Regln 2085.

Regln 2224 John Tabor to Timothy Toney, 302 acres [or 300 acres?], proved by Henry Jones.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2225 Richard Garsons to Elijah Eastwood, 360 acres, proved by Henry Ledbetter.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/319 Elijah Eastwood & Margaret Eastwood to Henry
Kell, 24 May 1770, 360 acres on Flat River, adj James Bowie. [Granville to Richard Person Gv504,
SSLG 97-G, Regln 2134, to Elijah Eastwood Regln 2225. Later to Samuel Sneed CwDB B/51.]

Regln 2226 David Jenkins to Jacob Grigg, 349 acres, proved by William Moffitt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2227 John Reed to Jacob Reed, 154 acres, proved by John Lea.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/549 Jacob Reed to Thomas Kilgore, 21 Nov 1769, 154
acres on waters of Kilgores Branch of N Hico Creek, adj pond, John Reed - part of 302 acres
Granville to [John] Reed [Gv442, SSLG 98-, to Jacob Reed ReglLn 2227].

Regln 2228 Robert Leopard to John Bohanon, 100 acres, proved by Benjamin Bohannon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2229 John Harrington to Charles Harrington, 160 acres, proved by Henry Braswel.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/507 Charles Harrington & Agnes Harrington to
Thomas Matthews, 23 Jan 1769, 160 acres on S side of Cape Fear River, adj Bush Creek. [John
Harrington to Charles Harrington Regln 22297 or John Harrington to Charles Harrington Sr
Regln 1692?]

[Page 251]
Regln 2230 William Trogdon to Herculus Ogle, 206 acres, proved by Abraham Strod?.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to John Hopkins, 11 Dec 1762, 206 acres on Deep River, adj
Solomon Allred, Argulus Ogle. Gv723, SSLG 92-1, ReglLn 1208. See RaDB 8/533.

Regln 2231 William Mebane to Barnaby Cabe, 227 acres, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2232 John Dennis to Enoch Bradley, 218 acres, proved by John Dnnis.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/75 Cosimo Medice to William Blunt, 28 Sep 1786, 100
acres adj James Jackson, Jacob Dennis, Jacob Brinton - Granville to John Dennis 27 Feb 1759
[Gv283, SSLG 88-M, Regln 683], Dennis to Enoch Bradley 16 Feb 1765 [RegLn 2232 or ReglLn
2233], Bradley to Jacob Brinton 1 Aug 1766 [ReglLn 2268]. Proved Oct 1788 by Abisha Thomas
before Sam’l Ashe.

Regln 2233 John Dennis to Enoch Bradley, 219 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/75 Cosimo Medice to William Blunt, 28 Sep 1786, 100
acres adj James Jackson, Jacob Dennis, Jacob Brinton - Granville to John Dennis 27 Feb 1759
[Gv283, SSLG 88-M, ReglLn 683], Dennis to Enoch Bradley 16 Feb 1765 [ReglLn 2232 or ReglLn
2233], Bradley to Jacob Brinton 1 Aug 1766 [ReglLn 2268]. Proved Oct 1788 by Abisha Thomas
before Sam’l Ashe.

Regln 2234 James Woods to Robert Roberson, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2235 Earl Granville to Benjamin Saxon, 640 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Benjamin Saxon, 11 Jun 1761, 640 acres on Northeast Creek of New
Hope Creek, adj Samuel Saxon. Gv526, SSLG 99-K, ReglLn 2235.

Regln 2236 Earl Granville to Peter Burmor, 223 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Beeman, 6 Dec 1761, 223 acres on Double Creeks of S Hico
Creek, adj Josiah Carter. Gv610, SSLG 84-F, Regln 2236. ReglLn 2314 Peter Brusnor to Francis
Nash, 223 acres.

Regln 2237 Earl Granville to Paul Harrilson, 252 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Paul Harrelson, 14 Dec 1762, 252 acres on waters of Marlows Creek
of Hico Creek, adj Hugh Barnett. Gv729, SSLG 91-H, ReglLn 2237.
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ReglLn 2238 William Churton to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 640 acres, proved by Isaac Edwards.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2239 George Bagby to William Serjant, 232 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Part of Gv170

Regln 2240 Edmund Fanning to William Nevans, 288 acres, proved by Isaac Edwards.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2241 John Cantril to William Jones, 202 acres, proved by John Cantril.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Isaac Cantrell, 13 Nov 1756, 202 acres on ridge between Country
Line Creek & Jordans Creek, adj spring branches. Gv184, SSLG 86-A, ReglLn 321



Regln 2242 William Neeley to William Rankins, 200 acres, proved by William Jay.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2243 Jonathan Fincher to Richard Fincher, 83 acres, proved by Jonathan Fincher.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2244 Trustees of Hillsborough to Francis Nash & Ralph McNair, 1 acre, proved by Henry Petillo.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/553 Francis Nash to John Wood, 23 Jul 1771, lot 10 in
Hillsborough, adj Spring Lane - Commissioners to Nash 3 May 1766 registered ODB A/347 [ReglLn
22447?]. [Later ODB 3/500.]

Regln 2245 John Williard to Edmund Fanning, 0.5 acres, proved by Isaac Edwards.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2246 Trustees of Hillsborough to John Campbell, 1 acre, proved by Henry Petillo.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2247 Ann Pinson to Ralph McNair, 385 acres, proved by Robert Thom.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Aaron Pinson, 12 Mar 1755, 385 acres on head of Stony Creek &
head of Country Line Creek. Gv76, SSLG 98-A, ReglLn 324.

Regln 2248 Robert Cate to Jessee Cantrell, 300 acres, proved by Charles Cate.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2249 Ephraim Potter to Nathaniel Hart, 350 acres, proved by Samuel Watt.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Ephraim Potter, 20 Feb 1756, 350 acres on both sides of N Fork of
Wolf Island Creek called Thrashers Fork. Gv138, SSLG 98-D, ReglLn 304.

North Carolina, Orange County}...May 1766.

Regln 2250 William Maxwel to William Johnson, 272 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: The part of Gv594 not conveyed by ODB 3/434.

Regln 2251 James Trice to Robert Davis, 318 acres, proved by William Armstrong.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2252 George Lumpkin to Roger Adkinson, 82 acres, proved by William Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to Moses Holles, 2 Jan 1761, 162 acres on N side of Dan River,
adj Gowing, Mayo. Gv430, SSLG 92-F. RegLn 1754 Moses Hollis to George Lumpkin, 82 acres.



Regln 2253 John Mulkey to Samuel Parks, 100 acres, proved by Jessee Nevills.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2254 Robert Cate Sr to Charles Cate, 138 acres, proved by Thomas Cate.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/515 Charles Cate to Thomas Cate, 21 Jan 1769, 138
acres on S side of Haw River, adj a little branch.

Regln 2255 Lawrence Rambo to Roger Adkinson, 438 acres, proved by Joseph Gill.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB G/214 Roger Atkinson of Dinwiddie County VA to
Joseph Jones of same, 10 Mar 1790, three tracts, first tract, 438 acres - Lawrence Rambo to
Roger Atkinson 30 Oct 1765 [ReglLn 2255]...

Regln 2256 Robert Woody to James Woody, [part of] 374 acres, proved by James Allen.

Chilton’s notes: Evidently intended to be ODB 4/555 John Woody to James Woody, 21 Jan 1791,
167 acres on Haw River, adj James Woody Sr, John Carter, John Woody.

Regln 2257 Hezekiah Collins to Samuel Mann, 550 acres, proved by James Hutchingson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2258 Earl Granville to Hugh Porter, 413 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Porter, 20 Dec 1762, 413 acres on a branch of Reedy Fork of
Haw River, adj Basil Brashear. Gv751, SSLG 98-C, ReglLn 2258.

Regln 2259 Earl Granville to Robert West, 576 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard West, 30 Dec 1762, 576 acres on Haw River. Gv768, SSLG
102-E, Regln 2259.
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Regln 2260 Earl Granville to John Camp, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Camp, 31 Jan 1761, 210 acres. Gv464, SSLG 85-K, ReglLn 2260.
Regln 2261 Earl Granville to Moses Walker, 193 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Moses Walker, 31 Dec 1762, 193 acres on a branch of Mayo Creek.
Gv769, SSLG 102-B, Regln 2261.

Regln 2262 Isaac Tedford to Charles Mulholland, 250 acres, proved by William Chambers Sr.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2263 James Lindley to Thomas Brasair, 100 acres, proved by James Lindley Jr.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/525 John Elliot to William Carter, 5 Feb 1793, 100
acres on both sides of Cane Creek - part of Granville to James Lindley [?Gv912, H6124], Lindley
to Thomas Brazier [Regln 2263], heirs of Brazier to Elliot 18 Jul 1760 [OCPQS 3/222].



Regln 2264 James Vestal to Simon Hadley, 80 acres, proved by Jeremiah Harrison.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/113 Jacob Cashatt to Joseph Cashatt, 9 Mar 1772, 80
acres, adj John Hornaday. [Granville to Zachariah Martin Gv191, SSLG 96-C, ReglLn 1236, to
James Vestal Regln 9387, to Simon Hadley ReglLn 2264, to Jacob Cashatt ODB 3/400.]

Regln 2265 Thomas Douglass to Abraham Womack, 166 acres, proved by Jeremiah Harrison.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB C/82 David Womack to Roger Atkinson of Dinwiddie
County VA, 17 Oct 1784, 166 acres on Hico Creek, adj William Stone, Lawrence Rambo -
[Granville to] Thomas Douglass [Gv509, SSLG 89-I-1] to Abraham Womack 7 Jul 1761 [ReglLn
2265].

Regln 2266 Robert Willis to Francis Nash, 250 acres, proved by Richard Kennon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2267 James Trice to Ralph McNair, 500 acres, proved by Robert Patterson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2268 Enoch Bradley to Jacob Brinton, 215.5 acres, proved by Enoch Bradley.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described at ODB 4/75 Cosimo Medice to William Blunt,
28 Sep 1786, 100 acres adj James Jackson, Jacob Dennis, Jacob Brinton - Granville to John Dennis
27 Feb 1759 [Gv283, SSLG 88-M, ReglLn 683], Dennis to Enoch Bradley 16 Feb 1765 [ReglLn 2232
or Regln 2233], Bradley to Jacob Brinton 1 Aug 1766 [ReglLn 2268]. Proved Oct 1788 by Abisha
Thomas before Sam’l Ashe.

Regln 2269 James Martin to Roger Adkinson, 172 acres, proved by John Pryor.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see PDB A/211 Robert Atkinson Sr to Roger Atkinson Jr, 28 May
1793, 172 acres on Holts Mill Creek, N side of Hico River, adj Roger Atkinson Jr - where John
Rogers & Joseph Glenn now live, James Mclintire Jr to Roger Atkinson 29 May 1766 registered in
Orange [ReglLn 2269].

Regln 2270 William Forrist to Gilbert Strayhorn, 225 acres, proved by Edward Gresham.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

North Carolina, Orange County}...August 1766.

Regln 2271 John Conner to Thomas Crabtree, 150 acres, proved by James Lindley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2272 Edward Gilbert to Robert Smith, 381 acres, proved by William Gilbert.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Samuel Brashears, 8 Aug 1760, 381 acres on N Buffalo Creek
& S Buffalo Creek, adj Donnell, John McKnight. Gv426, SSLG 85-B, RegLn 872.
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Regln 2273 Joseph McCallister to John Pyle, 127 acres, proved by Joseph Richardson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph McLester, 2 Aug 1760, 127 acres on Middle Ground between
Terrells Creek & Dry Creek. Gv395, SSLG 95.1-E, ReglLn 2023.

Regln 2274 Charles Roberson to George Roberts, 80 acres, proved by William Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/522 Harmon Husband to Jacob Gregg, 5 Aug 1768,
eight tracts...eighth tract on N side of Deep River - part of Granville to Joseph Pinson 11 Jun 1761
[Gv596, SSLG 98-B, ReglLn 1914], to Charles Robertson 15 Dec 1762 [RegLn 1044], 80 acres
Charles Robertson to George Roberts [Regln 2274], Roberts to Husband 13 Sep 1768 [not
found].

Regln 2275 Moses Bonnett to William Tubb, 100 acres, proved by Robert Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/594 William Tub to William Ansley, 25 Sep 1769, 100
acres on both sides of Deep Creek, adj Adam Davis - part of 330 acres Granville to John Dunagan
3 Feb 1761 [Gv477, SSLG 89-1, ReglLn 2030, to Moses Bonner/Bonnett Regln 1652, to William
Tubb ReglLn 2275].

Regln 2276 Harmon Husband to Joseph York, 132 acres, proved by Simon York.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by RaDB 2/84 & RaDB 5/162.
Regln 2277 Jennings Thompson to John Powell, 200 acres, proved by George Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/353 John Powell Jr & Margaret Powell to John Moore,
25 Jan 1772, 200 acres on both sides of Nelsons Branch - Granville to David Phillips 28 Jun 1762
[Gv655, SSLG 97-K, to Jennings Thompson Regln 1048, to John Powell ReglLn 2277].

Regln 2278 Thomas Dove to John Duke, 100 acres, proved by Gedion Anderson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2279 John Jacob Gramer & Andrew Leman to William Savage, 100 acres, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2280 Hugh Porter to Jane Willson, 393 acres, proved by William Gibbons.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Pinson, 6 Sep 1754, 393 acres on E side of N Fork of Haw
River, adj mouth of High Rock Creek. Gv52, SSLG 98-A, ReglLn 176. ReglLn 176 Joseph Pinson to
Joseph Porter [sic], 393 acres.
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Regln 2281 Peter Noe to Joseph Noe, 323 acres, proved by John Butler.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but partly described by ODB 3/503 Joseph Noe & Caty Noe to John
Counce, 11 Jan 1771, 100 acres on S side of Haw River, adj Thomas Rich [Thomas Rike] - part of
Henry E McCulloh to Peter Noe [ReglLn 1080], to Joseph Noe [ReglLn 2281].

Regln 2282 Thomas Bailey to William Serjant, 100 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2283 John Stewart to Thomas Petty, 320 acres, proved by John Stewart.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2284 William Stokes to Roger Adkinson, 150 acres, proved by William Stokes.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2285 Peter Ream to Jacob Greson, 100 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2286 William Henley to William Serjant, 104 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Part of Gv170.

Regln 2287 George Poplin to Charles Smith, 137 acres, proved by John Knox.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 3/515 Charles Smith to John Rennals, 18 Jan 1768, 75
acres adj small branch on N side of Bear Creek, adj George Poplin - part of George Poplin to
Smith 11 Aug 1766 [ReglLn 2287].

ReglLn 2288 William Carlisle to James Truman, 165 acres, proved by Henry Trollings.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2289 John Thompson to William Mann, 152 acres, proved by Thomas Douglass.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Thompson, 3 Jan 1763, 152 acres on Adams Creek of Hico
Creek, adj James Currie. Gv772, SSLG 101-G.

ReglLn 2290 John May Sr to John May Jr, 100 acres, proved by Joseph Dixon.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/533 John May Sr & Mary May to Joseph Dixon, 10 Jun
1769, 80 acres on Lick Creek, adj George Dixon — part of 520 acres Granville to John May Sr 13
Feb 1756 [Gv129, SSLG 96-D, ReglLn 318], 100 acres John May Sr to John May Jr 16 Aug 1766.

Regln 2291 Thomas James to John Kelley, 487 acres, proved by James Wilkinson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas James, 26 Jan 1762, 487 acres on both sides of Horse Creek
of Little River. Gv634, SSLG 93-G, ReglLn 1551.

Regln 2292 Timothy Toney to John Adams, 300 acres, proved by Daniel Bush.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 2293 James Armstrong to William Armstrong, 420 acres, proved by Francis Nash.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2294 Michael Holt to George Holt, 739 acres, proved by John Butler.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Michael Holt, 20 Aug 1759, 739 acres on waters of Little Alamance
Creek, adj McCulloh, Phillips Spring Branch. Gv314, SSLG 92-G, ReglLn 622

Regln 2295 Alexander Going to Roger Adkinson, 248 acres, proved by Alex’r Going.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Alexander Gowing, 25 Jul 1760, 248 acres on N side of Dan River, adj
Mayo. Gv356, SSLG 91-C, ReglLn 732.

Regln 2296 Hosea Tapley to Roger Adkinson, 5 acres, proved by John Pryor.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1835 Luke Roberson to Hosea Tapley, 5 acres.
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Regln 2297 Phillip Pratis to William Clarke, 300 acres, proved by John Roberson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 3/199 William Clark to William Clark Jr, 22 Apr 1785,
240 acres on both sides of Hogans Creek, adj Joseph Scott now Daniel Allen Jr, Joseph Clark,
Joseph Payne - part of Granville to Phillip Prator 15 Oct 1766 ODB A1/434 [not found], to
William Clark [RegLn 2297].

Regln 2298 James Carlisle to James Bowle, 179 acres, proved by James Freeland.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2299 Robert McFarland to John Pryor, 573 acres, proved by Thomas Douglass.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Hugh Barnett, 27 Jul 1760, 573 acres on both sides of Mayo Creek,
adj Robert Donaldson. Gv361, SSLG 83-L, RegLn 753

Regln 2300 James Ray to William Petty, 162 acres, proved by Charles Clanton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2301 Mordica Moore to Joseph Courtney, 130 acres, proved by John McMun.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/427 Joseph Courtney to Ralph McNair, 16 Feb 1772,
130 acres adj Thomas Person formerly John McMunn, James Chamberlin formerly John
Thompson — [Granville to Alexander Lackey Gv310, SSLG 95-K, ReglLn 647, to his daughter Mary
Lackey Moore & husband] Mordicai Moore [ReglLn 1656,] to James Courtney 10 Oct 1765 [ReglLn
2626], moiety to Joseph Courtney 6 May 1768 [ReglLn 2301].

Regln 2302 John May to Herman Gregg, 320 acres, proved by Joseph Dixon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2303 Howell Brewer to Harmon Grigg, 11 acres, proved by Joseph Dixon.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2304 Anson Miller to George Porter, 100 acres, proved by Robert Patterson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2305 Roger Murphey Sr to Roger Murphey Jr, 106 acres, proved by Harmon Husband.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2306 Patrick Bogan to John Ray, 225 acres, proved by James Boggan.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/306 John Ray to William Ray, 14 Feb 1770, 225 acres
on Little River, adj Jo Mitchell, James Ragan - purchased from Henry McCulloh [by Patrick
Boggan GvDB A/1697?, to John Ray ReglLn 2306].

ReglLn 2307 John Long to Charles Bostick, 338 acres, proved by Joseph Douglass.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2308 William Wiley to John Wiley, 242 acres, proved by Thomas Wiley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2309 William Wiley to John Wiley, 242 acres, proved by Thomas Wiley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2310 Joseph Boggs to Henry Eustice McCulloch, 546 acres, proved by Michael Holt.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 585 Henry McCulloch to Joseph Bogs, 546 acres. Also
cited by Patent Book 19/xxx Henry McCulloh to Joseph Boggs, 11 Mar 1758, 546 acres in Tract
11.

ReglLn 2311 John Elmon to Enos Elmore [Ellimon], 120 acres, proved by John Elmore. [ODB 2/552 cites
this as ODB A1/455.]

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/552 Enos Elliman to John Mordah, 24 Oct 1768, 120
acres on N Fork of Little River - John Ellimon to Enos Ellimon 1 Nov 1765 ODB A1/455.

Regln 2312 William Few to John Dowell, 1 acre, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2313 Samuel Barnett to Joseph Duncan, 250 acres, proved by Joseph Duncan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2314 Peter Brusnor to Francis Nash, 223 acres, proved by James Hendricks.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Beeman, 6 Dec 1761, 223 acres on Double Creeks of S Hico
Creek, adj Josiah Carter. Gv610, SSLG 84-F, ReglLn 2236.

Orange County, North Carolina}...November 1766.

Regln 2315 Jacob Mason to Catherine Lockheart, 1 lot acres, proved by Jacob Mason Jr.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2316 William Wiley to John Wiley, 242 acres, proved by Thomas Wiley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2317 James Lindley to Robert Andrews, 180 acres, proved by James Lindley.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 11/153 David Andrews & Thomas Andrews to William
Andrews, 22 Oct 1796, 180 acres on N side of Cane Creek, adj William Andrews - part of
Granville to James Lindley 18 Jul 1760 [Gv343, SSLG 95-1], James Lindley to Robert Andrews 25
Jul 1766 [ReglLn 2317], Robert Andrews bequeathed [OWB B/241] to sons David Andrews &
Thomas Andrews.
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ReglLn 2318 Charles Gilgore to Thomas Gilgore, 280 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Crow, 8 Dec 1762, 280 acres on N Hico Creek. Gv704, SSLG 88-
H, Regln 1234,

Regln 2319 John Crow to Charles Kilgore, 280 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Crow, 8 Dec 1762, 280 acres on N Hico Creek. Gv704, SSLG 88-
H, ReglLn 1234.

ReglLn 2320 Charles Saxon to Hugh Peoples, 207 acres, proved by Aaron Harlan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2321 Alexander McKnight to John Rankin, 511 acres, proved by William Wiley.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McNight, 22 Feb 1759, 511 acres opposite mouth of S Buffalo
Creek, adj N Buffalo Creek, William Blackwood. Gv249, SSLG 95.1-F, RegLn 593.

Regln 2322 Alexander McKnight to John Rankin, 511 acres, proved by William Wiley.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John McNight, 22 Feb 1759, 511 acres opposite mouth of S Buffalo
Creek, adj N Buffalo Creek, William Blackwood. Gv249, SSLG 95.1-F, RegLn 593.

Regln 2323 William Luten to William Nunn, negro named Nann, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2324 James Taylor to Thomas Taylor, 172 acres, proved by Benjamin Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 2325 John Salling to Jacob Leton, 235 acres, proved by George Adam Saling.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/308 Jacob Layton to Edward Teague, 2 Apr 1770, 235
acres - Granville to George Adam Sailing 3 Oct 1761 [Gv541, SSLG 99-H, ReglLn 2026, to Jacob
Layton Regln 2325].
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Regln 2326 William Satterfield to James Satterfield, 67 acres, proved by John Satterfield.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2327 John Graves to Thomas Kimbrough, 453 acres, proved by John Graves.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2328 Hercules Ogle to Thomas Midcal [Metcalf], 260 acres [sic], proved by John McGee.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to John Hopkins, 11 Dec 1762, 206 acres on Deep River, adj
Solomon Allred, Argulus Ogle. Gv723, SSLG 92-1, ReglLn 1208. See RaDB 8/533.

Regln 2329 Charles Clanton to Thomas Ray, 200 acres, proved by Charles Clanton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2330 Jonathan Paulk to Isaac Jackson, 275 acres, proved by Herman Husbands.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/41 Isaac Jackson & Mary Jackson to David Jackson, 16
Oct 1768, 275 acres on Sandy Creek, adj Harmon Husband - part of 692 acres Granville to James
Nicholson [Gv756, SSLG 97-B, RegLn 1571], to John Athen Paulk [ReglLn 1348], to Isaac Jackson
[Regln 2330].

ReglLn 2331 David Hart esq to George Foote, 292 acres, proved by Nathaniel Hart.

Chilton’s notes: Either Granville to David Hart, 6 Aug 1759, 292 acres on a branch of Horsleys
Creek & Country Line Creek. Gv300, SSLG 91-J, RegLn 649, ReglLn 1195. Or Granville to David
Hart, [unknown], 292 acres on a frok of S Fork of Country Line Creek. Gv876, H5887.

or
Regln 2332 James Webb to Thomas Harrison, 130 acres, proved by Warham Glenn.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2333 William Fannen to James Roast, two mares, three cows & 14 hogs, proved by Alexander
Mebane.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2334 Robert Littler to John Embree, 320 acres, proved by Robert Lyttle.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/356 Richard Kennon to William McClellan, 20 Nov
1773, 320 acres on Forresters Creek, adj James Forrester. Proved May 1790 by Patrick
McCulloch. [RegLn 1583 Granville to John Forrest...ReglLn 2334 Robert Littler to John Embree, to
Richard Kennon ReglLn 2619. Later to William McClellan ODB 4/356, to Hezekiah McClellan
OCPQS 3/121.]

ReglLn 2335 John Dowel to William Few, [deed of trust on?] 146 acres, proved by John Hogan.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/241 John Dowell by Sheriff to Nathaniel Walton, 26
Jul 1769, 146 acres on waters of Eno River - levy on John Dowell, part of land from Granville to
William Reed [Gv139, SSLG 98-K, ReglLn 624], to Thomas Clark [RegLn 578], to Dowell [ReglLn
1472, deed of trust to William Few ReglLn 2335 upon which this is a foreclosure?].

Regln 2336 John Dowel to William Few, lot 6, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2337 Archibald Morrison to James Harbison, [part of] 432 acres, proved by Oliver McMullin.

Chilton’s notes: RegLn 1074 Henry McCulloch esq to Archibald Morrison, 432 acres. ReglLn 2337
Archibald Morrison to James Harbison, 432 acres, proved by Oliver McMullin. Partly described
by ODB 3/375 James Harbison by Sheriff to Samuel Suther, 27 Mar 1771, 288 acres on waters of
Alamance, adj John Fuller, path - levy on James Harbison pursuant to order of Rowan Court 5
Sep 1770. ODB 3/24 Samuel Suther to Henry Kegg, 18 Dec 1786, 288 acres adj John Lynn, Adam
Smith. [McCulloh to Archibald Morrison ReglLn 1074, to Harbison ReglLn 2337.]

ReglLn 2338 James Harbison to Oliver McCullen & Barney Garland, [deed of trust on?] 288 acres,
proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: ReglLn 1074 Henry McCulloch esq to Archibald Morrison, 435 acres. Regln 2337
Archibald Morrison to James Harbison, 432 acres, proved by Oliver McMullin. ODB 3/375 James
Harbison by Sheriff to Samuel Suther, 27 Mar 1771, 288 acres on waters of Alamance, adj John
Fuller, path - levy on James Harbison pursuant to order of Rowan Court 5 Sep 1770. ODB 3/24
Samuel Suther to Henry Kegg, 18 Dec 1786, 288 acres adj John Lynn, Adam Smith. [McCulloh to
Archibald Morrison Regln 1074, to Harbison ReglLn 2337.]

ReglLn 2339 James Harbison to Oliver McMullen & Barny Garland, [deed of trust on?] 288 acres,
proved by James Harbison.

Chilton’s notes: Regln 1074 Henry McCulloch esq to Archibald Morrison, 435 acres. ReglLn 2337
Archibald Morrison to James Harbison, 432 acres, proved by Oliver McMullin. ODB 3/375 James
Harbison by Sheriff to Samuel Suther, 27 Mar 1771, 288 acres on waters of Alamance, adj John
Fuller, path - levy on James Harbison pursuant to order of Rowan Court 5 Sep 1770. ODB 3/24
Samuel Suther to Henry Kegg, 18 Dec 1786, 288 acres adj John Lynn, Adam Smith. [McCulloh to
Archibald Morrison ReglLn 1074, to Harbison ReglLn 2337.]

Regln 2340 James Harbison to Oliver McMullin & Barney Garland, _ acres, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 2341 William Churton to John Stokes, 600 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2342 John Roberson to William Whitton, 150 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2343 Hugh Dobbin to Richard Simpson, 640 acres, proved by Nathaniel Hart.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2344 Henry Eustice McCulloh to William Johnson, 650 acres, proved by Charles Bruce.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2345 Isaac Johnson to John Pryor, 477 acres, proved by Green Pryor.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2346 Joseph Dolittle to John Graves, 700 acres, proved by William Kimbro.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Doolittle, 16 Dec 1762, 700 acres on Wolf Island Creek, adj
Byrd. Gv739, SSLG 89-H.

Regln 2347 Semore York to Edward Wilburne, 375 acres, proved by John McGee.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2348 Thomas Midcalf to Abraham Stroud, 206 acres, proved by John McGee.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to John Hopkins, 11 Dec 1762, 206 acres on Deep River, adj
Solomon Allred, Argulus Ogle. Gv723, SSLG 92-1, ReglLn 1208. See RaDB 8/533.

Regln 2349 David Lowe to Conrad Lowe, 302 acres, proved by John Oliver.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/252 Conrad Lowe & Rosannah Lowe to David Lowe, 8
Jul 1773, 302 acres on both sides of Little Alamance Creek, adj Adam Lawrence.
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Regln 2350 Robert Roberson to John Spoon, 100 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2351 Robert Witty to Ralph McNair, 700 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Witty, 30 Jun 1762, 700 acres on Seven Mile Creek of Eno
River, adj Minnis. Gv673, SSLG 102-F.

Regln 2352 William Bobbitt to Robert Lewis Jr, 280 acres, proved by William Bobbit.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 2353 Niel McCoy to James McMory, 222 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/592 James McMurray to John McMurray, 1 May
1771, 222 acres on both sides of Double Creek of Hico Creek, adj Samuel Jarrat - Granville to
Samuel Jarrat Sr 20 Nov 1756 [Gv188, SSLG 99-1], to Neil McCoy 13 Sep 1765 [ReglLn 1593, to
James McMurray not found].

Regln 2354 Drury Mims to Benjamin Bohannon, 320 acres, proved by Francis Drake.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2355 John Booth to John Allen, 357 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/412 John Allen to John Davis, 27 Jan 1791, 357 acres
on Presswoods Creek, adj Day, Francis Gray. Chilton’s notes: Granville to Richard Straughan,
[unknown], 357 acres on Prestwoods Creek of New Hope Creek, adj Francis Day, SCC: John
Barbee, Henry Key. Surveyed on 11 Oct 1758 by William Churton. Gv973, H6496, ReglLn 874.
ReglLn 920 Richard Strain to William Castleberry, 357 acres. RegLn 1381 William Castleberry to
Paul Castleberry, 357 acres. [Paul Castelberry to John Booth not found.]

RegLn 2356 Sheriff Tyrye Harris to William Johnson, part of lot 6, proved by Tyrie Harriss.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2357 Robert Hodgin to James Brown, 357 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Granville to David Jenkins, 30 Jun 1762, 600 acres on Mill Creek of Deep
River. Gv682, SSLG 93-1-9, ODB 2/567. ReglLn 1017 David Jenkins to Robert Hogings, 300 acres.
Regln 2357 Robert Hodgin to James Brown, 357 acres. GDB 1/62 James Brown to Robert Brown,
5 Nov 1771, 160 acres on Mill Creek of Deep River, where James Brown now lives, adj a small
run, Hodgins - Granville to David Jenkins 13 Jun 1762, to Robert Hodges [ReglLn 1017], to James
Brown [ReglLn 2357].

[Page 268]
Regln 2358 William Harvey to Stephen Hussey, 207 acres, proved by Robert Hodgin.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but part of Granville to William Harvey, [unknown], 414 acres on
main S Fork of Richland Creek of Deep River. Gv880, H5903.

ReglLn 2359 William Wiley to Jonas Chamberlain, 381 acres, proved by William Wiley.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor H2753, Patent Book 14:81. ReglLn 23 to Thomas Wiley,
381 acres, ReglLn 96 to William Reed [William Wiley?], 381 acres. RegLn 2359 William Wiley to
Jonas Chamberlain, 381 acres, ODB 5/366 Jonas Chamberlin by executor to William Chamberlin,
28 Feb 1794, four tracts...third tract 381 acres — from William Wiley 12 Aug 1765 recorded ODB
A1/500 [Regln 2359]. Later ODB 5/403 to Isaac Jackson, 7 Jan 1795, 381 acres.

ReglLn 2360 Thomas Cox to David Jackson, 221 acres, proved by John Hogan.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 3/254 David Jackson by Sheriff John Hambleton to
Thomas Johnston, 25 Mar 1779, 221 acres on E side of Richland Creek of Deep River, adj Jacob
Grigg, Benjamin Cox - being part of Granville to Thomas Cox 7 Aug 1756 [Gv244, SSLG 88-C,
Regln 2068], to Jackson 9 Oct 1765 [RegLn 2360].

Regln 2361 William Wiley to James Chamberlain, 60 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2362 Samuel Temple to George Harland, 180 acres, proved by Aaron Harland.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2363 Archibald McCallister to James Freeland, bill of sale, proved by John Butler.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2364 John Dowell to William Few & Nathaniel Walton, _ acres, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2365 Cullen Pollock to Archibald Hamilton & Robert Pacely, 250 acres, proved by Cullen Pollock.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/364 Archibald Hamilton to Robert Peasley, 2 Jul 1768,
250 acres on both sides of a branch of Back Creek, N half of Tract 7, adj Rev Henry Patillo, Mr
Strudwick - part of 5000 acres in the Hawfields, Cullen Pollock to Hamilton & Paisley [RegLn
2365].
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North Carolina, Orange County}...February 1767.

RegLn 2366 Trustees of Hillsborough to Edmund Fanning, adj lot 18 acres, proved by Ralph McNair.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2367 Richard Fincher to Edmund Fanning, 100 acres, proved by Tyrie Harriss.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/336 Edmund Fanning by Sheriff to William Johnston,
22 Oct 1782, 100 acres on branches of Eno River & Buck Quarter Creek, adj Tyree Harris now
Samuel Clenny — [Granville to Francis Day Gv72, SSLG 88-L, ReglLn 242, to Jonathan Fincher ODB
1/94, to Joshua Fincher Regln 571, to Richard Fincher ReglLn 572,] to Fanning 31 Jan 1767, now
sold per levy on Edumund Fanning 1 Oct 1782.

ReglLn 2368 Joseph Duncan to James Dowell, 164 acres, proved by Thomas Donalson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2369 Thomas Philpot to Henry Bagby, 165 acres, proved by James Philpot.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Philpot, 17 Dec 1762, 165 acres on Rocky River. Gv746,
SSLG 97-L, ReglLn 1864.

ReglLn 2370 James Small to Joseph Glasson, 100 acres, proved by Thomas Hart.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2371 Gilbert Strayhorn to David Steel, 18 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/148 Gilbert Strayhorn to William Strayhorn, 20 Feb
1788, two tracts, first tract, 18 acres adj second tract - Gilbert Strayhorn to David Steel 1 Feb
1767.
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ReglLn 2372 Sheriff to Edmund Fanning, 137 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2373 John Meherg to Nicholas Roberson, 238 acres, proved by William Tatum.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1622 Thomas Webb to John Meherg, 238 acres,
proved by William Reed.

Regln 2374 James Crow to John Pilkinton, 440 acres, proved by Robert Cate.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/266 John Pilkinton Sr to Ralph Macnair, 22 Oct 1773,
deed of trust on 440 acres where he now lives, on Haw River - bought of James Crow [ReglLn
2374].

Regln 2375 Cullen Pollock to Robert Holloway, 261 acres, proved by John Baker.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2376 Trustees of Hillsborough to Jane Lockheart, 33 sq ft lot 99 acres, proved by James
Thackston.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2377 Trustees of Hillsborough to William Nunn, 33 sq ft lot 99 acres, proved by Ralph McNAir.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2378 Edward Branon to Jacob Railey, 196 acres, proved by Hugh Finley.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Taylor, 23 May 1758, 196 acres on W side of Eno River, adj
late Gov Johnston. Gv236, SSLG 101-B, ReglLn 433.

Regln 2379 Joseph Stala to Thomas Canby, 100 acres, proved by affirmation of Robert Morrison
(Quaker).

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/593 Edmund Fanning to William Lindley, 2 Oct 1769,
100 acres on a branch of Cane Creek, adj Thomas Davis - part of Henry McCulloh to Robert
Stewart [Regln 2037], to [Joseph Stala ReglLn 1709] to Thomas Canby, to Edmund Fanning 21
Mar 1769 [not found].
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ReglLn 2380 William Marsh Sr to William Braxton, 290 acres, proved by James Linley.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2381 Brinsley Barnes to Samuel Barnes [Samuel Carter?], 150 acres, proved by Brinsley Barnes.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB C/136 Samuel Carter to John Carter, 6 Feb 1784, 150
acres on Rocky River, adj John Barnes - part of 640 acres Granville to Brinsley Barnes 10 Jun
1761 [Regln 2121], 150 acres to Samuel Carter 26 Aug 1766 [RegLn 23817].

Regln 2382 Trustees of Hillsborough to James Young, 33 sq ft acres, proved by James Thackston.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2383 Trustees of Hillsborough to Robert Lytle, 33 sq ft adj lot 35 acres, proved by Ralph McNAir.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2384 Robert Patterson Sr to Robert Patterson Jr, 200 acres, proved by John Morgan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2385 Richard Cheek to John Burt, 220 acres, proved by Richard Cheek.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/322 Richard Cheek to John Burt Jr, 21 Jul 1770, 200
acres on Buckhorn Creek, on N side of Cape Fear River, adj island, Enoch Lewis.

ReglLn 2386 Jacob Barns to Jacob Fudge, 200 acres, proved by Thomas Hendry.

Chilton’s notes: Part of Gv705. Partly described by CDB A/90 Jacob Fudge to William Pearsy, 24
Apr 1769, 100 acres adj Gideon Gilbert, Jacob Fudge.

ReglLn 2387 Trustees of Hillsborough to Edmund Fanning, 33 sq ft acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2388 William Nunn to William Comb, 348 acres, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2389 Trustees of Hillsborough to Thomas Hart, lot 121 acres, proved by Ralph McNair.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2390 Trustees of Hillsborough to John Campbell, 33 sq ft acres, proved by James Thackston.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2391 Francis Nash to George Lea, 223 acres, proved by acknowledgment.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Beeman, 6 Dec 1761, 223 acres on Double Creeks of S Hico
Creek, adj Josiah Carter. Gv610, SSLG 84-F, ReglLn 2236.

ReglLn 2392 Catherine Vanhook to Samuel Vanhook, 200 acres [100 acres?], proved by William
Rankins.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/220 Aaron Vanhook Sr estate by executor
Catherine Vanhook to Samuel Vanhook, 16 Jan 1768, 100 acres on both sides of N Fork of Flat
River, adj David Vanhook - part of 400 acres Granville to Hosea Tapley 1 Nov 1751 [ODB 1/171,
Regln 196, Patent Book 14:81 in Granville County], to Aaron Vanhook 9 Jun 1756 [ODB 1/175,
Regln 197].

ReglLn 2393 William Hart to George Hartland, 53 acres, proved by affirmation of Aaron Evans.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 675 Samuel Temple to William Hart, 53 acres.
Regln 2394 Brinsley Barnes to John Barnes, 150 acres, proved by Samuel Dixon.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps related to CDB B/221 James Barnes to Adam Moser, 9
Nov 1778, 104 acres on E side of Rocky River, adj Brinsley Barnes - part of 640 acres Granville to
Brinsley Barns 10 Jun 1761 ODB A1/203, to James Barnes ODB A1/530?

ReglLn 2395 Brinsley Barnes to James Barnes, 640 acres, proved by John Barnes.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for Brinsley Barnes Gv809, H5452, 640 acres.
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RegLn 2396 Solomon Cox to Nicholas Barker, 235 acres, proved by William Moffitt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1674 William Cox to Solomon Cox, 235 acres.
Regln 2397 William Castlebury to John Weems, 382 acres, proved by John Castleberry.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Kennedy, 7 May 1757, 382 acres adj Bolin, Wilkinson.
Gv190, SSLG 94-E, ReglLn 464.

Regln 2398 James Denny to Thomas Mehaffee, 75 acres, proved by James Denny.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2399 Robert Corley to John Lashley, 350 acres, proved by Robert Corley.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/596 William Jones & Martha Jones to Robert
Rutherford, 20 Aug 1768, half of 700 acres taken up by Robert Corley & now lives on, on
Roberson Creek, adj James Stewart. ReglLn 2455 John Lashley to William Jones, 350 acres.

ReglLn 2400 David McCullum to John McCullum, 91 acres, proved by Patrick Mullin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2401 William Marsh to John Stewart, 160 acres, proved by Robert Marsh.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2402 Malachi Fikes to Joseph White, 438 acres, proved by Malachi Fikes.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Granville to Malachi Fikes, 2 Oct 1761, 438 acres on Phils
Creek of New Hope Creek, adj Michael Waldrop, Reed. Gv572, SSLG 90-E, ReglLn 1209.



ReglLn 2403 Robert Berry to Mathew Linley, _ acres, proved by John Dickie.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2404 William Marsh Sr to Joseph Foushe, 220 acres, proved by John Stewart.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2405 Charles Adams to John Petton, 200 acres, proved by Charles Adams.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1087 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Charles Adams, ReglLn
999 Charles Adams to Henry Eustice McCulloch.

Regln 2406 Neetley Hollis to Roger Adkinson, 80 acres, proved by Nathaniel Terry.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2407 Josiah Alday to John Pryor, 150 acres, proved by John Thomas.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2408 Charles Adams to Robert Ray, 297 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by ODB 5/78 Robert Ray Sr to Robert Ray Jr, 1 Jan 1790, 150
acres on Great Alamance Creek, adj S Branch of Alamance Creek, John Trousdale - part of Henry
Eustice McCulloh to Charles Adams [RegLn 1000 & Regln 1093], to Robert Ray [RegLn 2408] &
also of a State grant. [Later to William Ray Jr ODB 5/79, to Jonathan Lindley ODB 5/677.]

Regln 2409 James Bradley to James Saunders, 150 acres, proved by James Saunders.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2410 Daniel McCullums to Patrick Mullins, 80 acres, proved by John McCullum.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/173 Patrick Mullin to John Odeneal, 7 Nov 1767, 80
acres on S side of Hogans Creek, adj the Court House Road - Daniel McCollom to Mullins 2 Aug
1766 [Regln 2410]. Later ROCKINGHAM.

Regln 2411 Jacob Barnes to Gedion Gilbert, 289 acres, proved by Thomas Hendry.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/347 Gideon Gilbert to John Wilkins, 9 Nov 1773, 289
acres on Bear Creek of Rocky River — half of 578 acres Granville to Jacob Barns 8 Dec 1762
[Gv705, SSLG 83-J, RegLn 1205], to Gilbert.
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Regln 2412 Hugh Smith to John Sample, 467 acres, proved by Isaac Edwards.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2413 David Steel to Gilbert Strayhorn, 30[0?] acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/481 David Steel to Gilbert Strayhorn, 20 Aug 1772,
300 acres, incl 18 acres Steel purchased from Strayhorn 1 Feb 1767 — [Granville to John Woods,
Gv43, SSLG 102-J, ODB 2/202, ReglLn 113, to] Gilbert Strayhorn [ODB 1/4, ODB 2/205, ReglLn
114] to Ann Hunter 10 Jun 1755 [ODB 1/5, ODB 2/206, RegLn 115].

Regln 2414 Joshua King to Thomas Whitworth, sundry acres, proved by Thomas Capper.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2415 William Akin to John Rainey, _ acres, proved by William Akin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2416 Cullen Pollock to Francis Nash, power of attorney, proved by Richard Kennon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2417 Earl Granville to John Edwards, 265 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Edwards, 2 Oct 1761, 265 acres on Morgan Creek, adj Thomas
Durham, John Price. Gv573, SSLG 90-A, ReglLn 2417.

ReglLn 2418 Earl Granville to Thomas Choisht, 240 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Choisht, 30 Jun 1762, 240 acres on Reedy Creek & Fork
Creek of Deep River. Gv678, SSLG 86-J, ReglLn 2418.

Regln 2419 Earl Granville to Robert Willson, 228 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Robert Wilson, 30 Jul 1760, 228 acres on a branch of M Fork of Little
River, adj Michael Synnott. Gv372, SSLG 102-J, RegLn 2419. ODB 13/100 Thomas Wilson & James
Wilson & Elizabeth Wilson & John Wilkinson & Anne Wilkinson & Robert Wilson & John Wilson
to Caleb Wilson, 27 May 1806, 228 acres whereon late Robert Wilson lived, on the branch of the
Middle Fork of Little River, adj Michael Synnott, branch.
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Regln 2420 Earl Granville to Joseph Barnett, 250 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Barnett, 9 Dec 1762, 250 acres on McFarlands Branch of
Hico Creek, adj Stephen Sargeant, William Sargeant, John McFarland. Gv711, SSLG 84-D, ReglLn
2420.

Regln 2421 Earl Granville to Thomas Barnett, 200 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Barnett, 14 Oct 1761, 200 acres on Stories Creek, adj
Thomas Saxon. Gv590, SSLG 84-E, ReglLn 2421.

North Carolina, Orange County}...May 1767.

Regln 2422 Earl Granville to John Roberson, 368 acres, proved by William Churton.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Robinson, 6 Jan 1763, 368 acres on Watsons Creek of Haw
River. Gv778, SSLG 99-E, ReglLn 2422.

Regln 2423 Earl Granville to John Graves, 394 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Graves, 6 Mar 1761, 394 acres on Country Line Creek, adj
James Lea, Dobbins, bents of the creek. Gv501, SSLG 91-D, ReglLn 2423.

Regln 2424 Earl Granville to Henry Morris, 633 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Granville survey for Henry Morris Gv937, H6254, 633 acres
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Regln 2425 Earl Granville to William Varnal, 399 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Varnal, 28 Jan 1761, 399 acres on a branch of Little River.
Gv453, SSLG 101-M, Regln 2425.

Regln 2426 Ezekiel Shaddocks to Charles Mathews, 100 acres, proved by William Churton.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2427 John Record to Charles Matthews, 150 acres, proved by Abner Hill.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2428 George Flynn to David Stroud, 160 acres, proved by William Ursury.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/235 David Stroud to Moses Bridges, 9 Aug 1769, 166
acres on Mayo Creek, adj Gabriel Davey - part of Granville to Gabriel Davey 27 Jan 1762
[Granville survey for Gabriel Davey Gv850, H5732, ReglLn 1933], Davey to George Flynn [ReglLn
904], Flynn to Stroud [ReglLn 2428].

Regln 2429 Henry Bray to Robert Williams, 200 acres, proved by George Adams Salling.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described by CDB A/94 & CDB B/518

ReglLn 2430 Joseph Kirk & Valentine Braswil Jr to - Saftor, 375 acres, proved by Abner Hill.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2431 William Phillips to William Trousdale, 100 acres, proved by James Wilkins.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2432 Robert Patterson to John Herndon, 100 acres, proved by John Gunter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2433 Thomas Webb to Tyrie Harris, 593 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 2434 William Pickett to James Bynum, 456 acres, proved by John Booth.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Pickett, 24 Jul 1760, 456 acres adj Parker, Braswell. Gv350,
SSLG 97-M.

Regln 2435 John Dowell to John Hodge, 350 acres, proved by John Donell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2436 Valentine Braswell to Jesse Lee, 50 acres, proved by Charles Harrington.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2437 Gideon Kirksey to James Sellers, 177 acres, proved by Robert Sellars.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/592 Zachariah Goss to William Ansley, 3 Mar 1770,
177 acres on N side of Haw River, adj Luke Bynum, Nathan Melton - [Granville to Gideon Kirksey,
Gv766, SSLG 94-J, ReglLn 1207, 177 acres to] James Sellars [Regln 2437] to John Hogan 21 Dec
1767 [ReglLn 2566, to Goss ODB 3/593]. [See CDB A/372 for later title.]

ReglLn 2438 Henry Willis to Jacob Bull, 210 acres, proved by Samuel Bull.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2439 Nathaniel Harris to Tyrie Harris, 300 acres, proved by Sherwood Harriss.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2440 Jesse Lee to James Parham, 320 acres, proved by Charles Harrington.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2441 Joseph Patterson to Thomas Lea, 188 acres, proved by William Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2442 William Wiley to Samuel Hill, 100.5 acres, proved by William Wiley.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/569 James Young & Andrew Miller & George Alston to
Samuel Hill, 22 Apr 1769, 100.5 acres on both sides of Gents Creek, adj William Few, road - part
of tract [William Wiley to] Samuel Hill [RegLn 2442] in trust for James Young, Andrew Miller &
George Alston registered ODB B2/79 [ReglLn 2604].

ReglLn 2443 Charles Harriss to John Burks, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2444 Henry Bray to Adam Moser, 200 acres, proved by George Adam [Salling].

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/116 Adam Moser & wife Catharine to Phillip Siler, 16
Sep 1771, 200 acres on Rocky River, adj Robert Williams - part of 700 acres Granville to William



Lacy [Gv672, SSLG 95-A, Regln 2093] 13 Jun 1762, 200 acres of which to Henry Bray [ReglLn
1395], to Adam Moser [ReglLn 2444] 25 Apr 1767.

ReglLn 2445 John Tabor to Abraham Womack, 205 acres, proved by George Flynn.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2446 Hosea Tapley to John Pryor, 201 acres, proved by Hosea Tapley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2447 Richard Searcy to William Searcy, 200 acres, proved by Richard Henderson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 1/186 William Argo & wife Kerenhappuch to Edmond
Waddell of Chatham County NC, 11 Mar 1786, 200 acres on N side of Deep River, adj County
Line, Charles Goldston, branch - being part of survey taken up by William Searcy decd called
Morgan’s Neck. Witness: Mary Perce, Jesse Hill. [See Granville to William Searcy Gv432, SSLG
99-H, Regln 1946, also ODB 34/14, ReglLn 2447, Will of William Searcy GWB A:330.
Kerenhappuch Searcy married William Argo.]

Regln 2448 Earl Granville to Joseph Landrum, 136 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Landrum, 24 Dec 1762, 136 acres on Mill Creek of Rocky
River. Gv761, SSLG 95-A, Regln 2448.
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Regln 2449 Edward Gresham to William Forrest, 78 acres, proved by John Lannum [Lincecum?].
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2450 James Lea to John Lea, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2451 Watson Bromfield Jr to Watson Bromfield Sr, 200 acres, proved by Thomas Hines.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2452 James Payne to John Payne, 380 acres, proved by Abraham Womack.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2453 John Woods to James Roberts, [half of] 623 acres, proved by Hugh Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/116 James Roberts to John Ingram, 27 Mar 1779,
311.5 acres on both sides of Moons Creek - part of grant to William Gladen 7 Jun 1761 [not
found], to William Going [RegLn 1626], to John Wood [RegLn 1345], to James Roberts [ReglLn
2453].

Regln 2454 Peter Writsman to Edmund Fanning, 145 acres, proved by John Hogan.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/357 Edmund Fanning by Sheriff to David Ray, 7 Nov
1788, 145 acres on S side of Eno River, on back side of Occaneechee Mountain, adj Francis



Corbin - part of Granville to William Churton 31 Jan 1761 [Gv465, SSLG 87-B, ReglLn 2013], to
Peter Wrightsman 23 Feb 1765 [ReglLn 1819], Wrightsman to Fanning 18 Apr 1767 [RegLn 2454],
levy on Edmund Fanning sold 11 Oct 1788.

RegLn 2455 John Lashley to William Jones, 350 acres, proved by Edmund Fanning.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 2399 Robert Corley to John Lashley, 350 acres. ODB
2/596 William Jones & Martha Jones to Robert Rutherford, 20 Aug 1768, half of 700 acres taken
up by Robert Corley & now lives on, on Roberson Creek, adj James Stewart.

ReglLn 2456 Cullen Pollock to David Bradford, 300 acres, proved by Ralph McNair.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2457 John Hanon to William Forbus, _ acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2458 Timothy Terrel to Jephthah Terrel, _ acres, proved by Jacob Bledsoe.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2459 Stephen Poe to Simon Poe, 173 acres, proved by John Stewart.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB D/629 Simon Poe to Reuben Poe, 8 Feb 1790, 50 acres
adj William Poe Jr, Robert Thompson, Reuben Poe, improved frounds, James Stewart. CDB
D/644 Simon Poe to Robert Thompson, 8 Feb 1790, 123 acres adj road, William Poe Jr, Reuben
Poe, Robert Thompson, improved grounds. [Evidently half of Granville to Stephen Poe Gv544,
SSLG 98-B, Regln 2129.

Regln 2460 John Mayo to William Stokes, 1284 acres, proved by Robert Lytle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2461 James Saunders Sr to William Whitton, 150 acres, proved by James Saunders Jr.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2462 James Lea to William Lea, 29 acres, proved by James Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2463 Benjamin Bohannon to Abner Hill, 325 acres, proved by Charles Mathis.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2464 Richard Jones to Michael Wisnor, 110 acres, proved by William Pickett.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/239 Michael Wisner & wife Ruth to Thomas Lindley Jr,
6 Feb 1772, 110 acres on S Fork of Cane Creek, W side of Haw River - part of Granville to Thomas
Lindley Sr 22 Feb 1759 [Gv248, SSLG 95-J & SSLG 122-F, ReglLn 557, to Richard Jones ReglLn 2078,
to Michael Wisnor ReglLn 2464].
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Regln 2465 Nathan Milton to John Brown, 300 acres, proved by John Gunter.

Chilton’s notes: Partly described by CDB B/129. Probably mostly composed of ReglLn 873 Earl
Granville to Nathan Milton, 350 acres, Gv374, SSLG 96-D.

Regln 2466 John Bohannon to Syon Hill, 360 acres, proved by John Bohannon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2467 John Armstrong to Stephen Norton, 250 acres, proved by James Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, not found, but see ReglLn 839 Earl Granville to John Armstrong, 250
acres.

ReglLn 2468 John Tabor to Isaac Jackson, 200 acres, proved by Abraham Womack.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2469 Conrod Stoner to Phillip Snowderly, 469 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 1273 Conrod Stone to Henry Eustice McCulloch.
ReglLn 2470 Trustees of Hillsborough to William Churton, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2471 Vinerius Turner to Joseph Porter, 85 acres, proved by Patrick Porter.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/127 Joseph Porter & Jannet Porter to Reuben Estes,
1Jan 1779, 85 acres on S side of Moons Creek - part of Granville to [Christopher Huston Gv476,
SSLG 93-E, ReglLn 1953, to Venerias] Turner [Regln 935, to Joseph Porter Regln 2471].

Regln 2472 John Graves to Joseph Patterson, 394 acres, proved by John Pryor.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Graves, 6 Mar 1761, 394 acres on Country Line Creek, adj
James Lea, Dobbins, bents of the creek. Gv501, SSLG 91-D, ReglLn 2423.
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Regln 2473 William Luten to John Mitchell, 352 acres, proved by Hugh Wood.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/431 John Mitchell & Sarah Mitchell to Richard
Kennon, 28 Nov 1770, 352 acres on N side of Eno River, adj Hugh Woods now Robert Lewis.
[John Mitchell to William Luton ReglLn 1421, back to John Mitchell RegLn 2473.]

Regln 2474 McKie, Watson and Company to Duncan McKie, 82 acres, proved by Edmund Fanning.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to MacKie, Watson and Company, 1 Jan 1763, 82 acres on S side of
Cape Fear River, adj Richard Brawell, Campbell. Gv771, SSLG 102-D, ReglLn 1466.

Regln 2475 William Stokes to John Bird, 1284 acres, proved by William McWhann.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



North Carolina, Orange County}...August 1767.

Regln 2476 James McGowing Sr to William McGowing, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2477 Joshua Going to Henry Bremer, 156 acres, proved by Thomas Carr.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2478 Thomas Donaldson to John Lawson, 157.5 acres, proved by Thomas Horn.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2479 John Landrum Jr to Charles Landrum, 180 acres [or 18 acres?], proved by Thomas Cox.

Chilton’s notes: See CDB A/130 Charles Landrum to Samuel Dark, 28 Sep 1772, 18 acres on Gum
Branch - part of Granville to John Landrum __ Oct 1761 [Granville to John Landrum Gv566, SSLG
95-A, Regln 2112].

ReglLn 2480 Mark Morgan to James Riggs, 400 acres, proved by John Morgan.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/203 James Rigsbee to John Morgain, 25 Jul 1772, 300
acres where | now dwell - part of Granville to Mark Morgan, to James Rigsbee [RegLn 2480]. CDB
A/412 John Morgan to Cuming Warwick & Company, 15 Feb 1775, [deed of trust on] 300 acres
where James Rigsbee now lives - Granville to Mark Morgan, to James Rigsbee, to John Morgan.

ReglLn 2481 Hugh Smith to Phillip Grace, 567 acres, proved by John McGee.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2482 Oson Martin to Ganaway Martin, 225 acres, proved by George Martin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2483 Peter Black to John Allen, 102 acres, proved by John Pryor.
Chilton’s notes: Granville to Peter Black, 31 Jan 1761, 102 acres. Gv463, SSLG 84-C, ReglLn 1944.
Regln 2484 Henry Hays to John Triplet, 100 acres, proved by Samuel Watt.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2485 William Williams to Nathaniel Cary, 640 acres, proved by Mark Morgan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2486 Trustees of Childsburg to Benjamin Merritt, 1 acre, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2487 Dorman Harson to Francis Posey, _ acres, proved by Mathew Clark.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2488 Dorman Harson to Francis Posey, power of attorney, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2489 Samuel Marsh to William Whilkie, 100 acres, proved by Joseph Stewart.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2490 Benjamin and Thomas Watts to Mathew Drake, _ acres, proved by Francis Drake.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2491 Thomas Hargot to John Armstrong, 100 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2492 Robert Watson to John Brockman, 577 acres, proved by James Wilson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/240 Granville to James Watson, 12 Mar 1755, 577
acres on both sides of Watsons Creek. [Otherwise not found, ReglLn 222.]

Regln 2493 John Pryor to David Halliburton, 477 acres, proved by John Adams.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/42 John Halliburton & wife Martha to James Jones,
8 Dec 1777, 477 acres on Crooked Fork of Aarons Creek - David Halliburton by will to John
Halliburton. [ReglLn 2345 Isaac Johnson to John Pryor, 477 acres.]

Regln 2494 David Morgan to Moses Ambrey, 200 acres, proved by Elizabeth Long.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/367 Moses Embree & wife Margaret to William
Lindley, 8 Apr 1773, 200 acres on branch of Cane Creek - part of Granville to George Williams
[Gv13, SSLG 102-H], to William Helms [ReglLn 41], to Hugh Smith [ReglLn 481], to David Morgan
[not found], to Moses Embree 25 Mar 1767 [RegLn 2494].
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Regln 2495 Thomas Eastis to Thomas Cate, 72 acres, proved by John Baskett.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/157 Thomas Cate & Elizabeth Cate to John Basket, 4
Jan 1769, 72 acres on Bear Creek - Thomas Estes to Thomas Cates 29 Apr 1767.

Regln 2496 Joseph Maddock to Robert Burnsides, 270 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2497 Samuel Trouston to Alexander Coughron, 362 acres, proved by William Rigs.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2498 William Rankin to William Neely, 200 acres, proved by affirmation of William Jay.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2499 Harmon Deldine to William McCoy, 100.4 acres, proved by Lawrence Vanhook.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

RegLn 2500 John Brackin to Isaac Brackin, 577 acres, proved by James Watson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 1/240 Granville to James Watson, 12 Mar 1755, 577
acres on both sides of Watsons Creek. [Otherwise not found, Regln 222.]

Regln 2501 Thomas King to Edmund Fanning, 100 acres, proved by Charles Bruce.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2502 Thomas North to Charles Milligan, 260 acres, proved by John Stewart.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2503 Benjamin Allenthorp to Jones Griffin, 180 acres, proved by John Knight.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2504 Frederick Sypart to Thomas Davis, 205 acres, proved by William Moffitt.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/193 Frederick Safert to Thomas Davis, 12 Jun 1767,
205 acres on both sides of Deep River, adj Mill Tract, William Cox, the Thicket, Peter
Youngblood, Harmon Cox - Granville to William Cox 5 Nov 1757 [Gv217, SSLG 88-E], to Safert 4
Feb 1764 [RegLn 1323], also stack of grain, plantation implements & household furniture [deed
of trust?]. [See also GDB 1/311.]

ReglLn 2505 Harmon Husband to Harmon Cox, 71 acres, proved by Harmon Husband.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/192 Harmon Husband & Amy Husband to Hermon
Cox, 4 Aug 1767, 71 acres on NE side of Deep River - part of 245 acres Granville to Husband 13
Jul 1760 [Gv375, SSLG 93-B, Regln 2056].

ReglLn 2506 Earl Granville to Priscilla Barker, 450 acres, proved by William Churton.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Priscilla Barker excutrix of William Barker, 6 Dec 1761, 450 acres on
White Oak Creek of Buckhorn Creek, adj Thomas Parker. Gv631, SSLG 83-K, RegLn 2506. ReglLn
1354 Priscilla Barker to Joseph Lashley, 450 acres.

Regln 2507 George Ely to Arthur Moore, 228 acres, proved by Charles Thourton.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 1620 Samuel Bumpas to George Cooley, 228 acres?
Regln 2508 George Mauch to Daniel Thiff, 250 acres, proved by John Oliver.

Chilton’s notes: Collectively described by CDB B/133 & CDB C/129.

ReglLn 2509 William Willson to John Willson, 270 acres, proved by Fuller Lane.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2510 Joseph Barbee to William Howard, 700 acres, proved by Joseph Barbee.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2511 Andrew Jones to William Henderson, 110.5 acres, proved by affirmation of Jeremiah
Pickett.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/334 William Henderson to Isaac Carter, 18 May 1772,
110.5 acres on Rocky River, adj Stephen Hobson - part of 620 acres Granville to George Hobson
Jr 2 Feb 1761 [Gv474, SSLG 92-D, ReglLn 1920], to Andrew Jones 31 Oct 1763 [RegLn 1373], to
William Henderson 13 Mar 1767 [RegLn 2511].

Regln 2512 Richard Woods to George Allen, 490 acres, proved by Richard Woods.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/212 Benjamin Martin to William Johnston, 26 May
1755, 490 acres on S side of Haw River on Cane Creek, adj George Martin - Granville to Benjamin
Martin 10 Mar 1755 [Gv82, SSLG 96-A, ODB 1/9, ReglLn 117]. [Same deed at ODB 1/12 & Regln
118, see also ODB 1/11. Later to James Nethery ODB 1/156, to Michael Murrah ReglLn 421, to
Richard Woods ReglLn 776, after which see CDB B/182 for later title.]

Regln 2513 Tyrie Harriss to Joseph Barbee, 570 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2514 Jones Griffin to John Knight, 100 acres, proved by James Thackston.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2515 Tyrie Harriss to Thomas Lloyd, 480 acres, proved by Tyrie Harriss.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2516 Charles Morgan to Edmund Fanning, 177 acres, proved by Charles Morgan.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Hunter, 8 May 1755, 177 acres on a small branch of Eno River
that runs through Capt Gray's land. Gv92, SSLG 93-A, ODB 1/55, RegLn 140.

Regln 2517 John Hughs to Sarah Hughs, 100 acres, proved.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...November 1767.

Regln 2518 John Brooks to Thomas Graves, 20 acres, proved by Abraham Grigg.
Chilton’s notes: 15 acres of this described by CDB B/228 or CDB A/461.

Regln 2519 Samuel Henley to William Hill, 280 acres, proved by James Drake.



Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB A/250 William Hill to Frederick Cobb, 7 Jan 1774, 280
acres begin at sweet gum by river, E 20 ch to WO, N 54 ch to P, W 51.5 ch to sweet gum on the
island, down river to 1% sta. [Part of 400 acres Granville to Samuel Henley ReglLn 840, otherwise
not found, of which 280 acres to William Hill RegLn 2519. Later to John Burt CDB B/379.]

Regln 2520 Robert Patterson to Edward Tatum, 100 acres, proved by John Gunter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2521 Earl Granville to Thomas Dunnagan, 200 acres, proved by Tyrie Harriss.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2522 John Stubbs to Thomas Hart, 20 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2523 Joseph Maddock to Thomas Hart, 20 acres, proved by John Gray.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2524 Cullen Pollock to Edward Thomas, 150 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2525 Thomas King to Tyrie Harriss, 138 acres, proved by John Woods.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2526 William Varnel to Alexander Torringtine, 390 acres, proved by Samuel Torringtine.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Varnal, 28 Jan 1761, 399 acres on a branch of Little River.
Gv453, SSLG 101-M, Regln 2425.

Regln 2527 John Owing to John Lowe, 208 acres, proved by John Butler.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 1/44 John Low & wife Charity to Conrod Staley, 1 Jun
1782, 208 acres on waters of Sandy Creek - being part of 417 acres Granville to James Nicholson
22 Dec 1765 [Gv756, SSLG 97-B, Regln 1571], to John Owens 17 Jan 1764 [ReglLn 1377], to Low
[Regln 2527].

ReglLn 2528 Abraham Miles to Thomas McNiel, 320 acres, proved by Abraham Miles.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2529 Thomas Jackson to Anthony Dougharty, 20 acres, proved by affirmation of Henry Sell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2530 Abraham Miles to Roger Adkinson, 150 acres, proved by Benson Fearon?.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 2531 Thomas Webb to William Cain, 200 acres, proved by William Glenn.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2532 Nathaniel Powell to John Reese, 270 acres, proved by William Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/183 John Rees Jr & Martha Rees to Joseph Burton, 18
Jun 1769, 270 acres where Burton now lives, on Deep River, adj Indian Creek, Thomas Smith,
Nathaniel Powell - part of 600 acres granted [Granville to] Nathaniel Powell. [Gv421, SSLG 98-D,
to John Reese Regln 2532.]

ReglLn 2533 Joseph Talbert to Roger Adkinson, 655 acres, proved by Abraham Miles.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Talbert, 7 Jun 1761, 655 acres on both sides of Stories Creek.
Gv502, SSLG 101-A, Regln 856.

Regln 2534 John Dennis to Ralph McNair, mortgage of 200 acres, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2535 Trustees of Hillsborough to Francis Nash & Ralph McNair, lot 27, proved by John
Campbell.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2536 Nicholas Parker to Benjamin Cox, 160 acres, proved by Peter Craven.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Nicholas Barker, 30 Jun 1762, 160 acres on Panther Creek of
Richland Creek. Gv679, SSLG 83-J, ReglLn 2070.

ReglLn 2537 Francis Nash to Ralph McNair, 1/2 of lots 27 & 28, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2538 Thomas Bayliff to Ralph McNair, 200 acres, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2539 Francis Nash to Ralph McNair, 1/2 of lot 26, proved by John Hogan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2540 Thomas James to William Tatum, 30 acres, proved by James Kelley.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/521 William Tatum to John Wells, 10 Nov 1767, 30
acres adj bent of Little River — [Granville to] Thomas James [Gv764, SSLG 93-G, ReglLn 1561,] to
William Tatum 7 Jan 1765 [ReglLn 2540].

Regln 2541 John Brooks to John Brooks, _ acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.



Chilton’s notes: ?CDB A/78 John Brooks & wife Jane to Balaam Thompson, 2 Oct 1771, 200 acres
on Middle Branch, adj John Brooks Sr - upper part of Granville to John Brooks Sr [Gv232, SSLG
85-F, Regln 620] 23 May 1758, to John Brooks Jr 6 Mar 1764 [RegLn 2541].

Regln 2542 John Brooks to Mark Brooks, _ acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2543 John Brooks to James Brooks, _ acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2544 John Brooks to Thomas Brooks, _ acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2545 John Brooks to Mark Brooks, _ acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2546 John Brooks to Martha Goodman, _ acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2547 George Dixon to Harmon Grig, 520 acres, proved by affirmation of William Graves.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

[Page 293]

Regln 2548 William Browning to Robert Clynton, 100 acres, proved by William Baker.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2549 John Brooks to Isaac Brooks, _ acres, proved by Thomas Brooks.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2550 Trustees of Hillsborough to Edmund Fanning, 1 lot, proved by John Campbell.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2551 James Williams to William Graves, 200 acres, proved by Abraham Grigg.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2552 Benjamin Jackson to Richard Kennon, 213 acres, proved by John Hawkins.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2553 Hugh Woods to Hugh Cain, 60 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2554 William Few to Jeremiah Horton, 156 acres, proved by James Few.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2555 James Few to John Wood, _ acres, proved by Tyrie Harriss.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2556 Thomas Cate Sr to John Cate, 177 acres, proved by Richard Cate.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2557 William & John Armstrong to Gordon and Ramsey, _ acres, proved by Alexander Gordon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2558 Isaac Holdon to John Woods, 40 acres, proved by Thomas Holden.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2559 David Carson to Thomas Breeze, _ acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2560 Francis Cox to John Armstrong, _acres, proved by John Armstrong.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2561 Nicholas Roberson to Samuel and Alexander Torringtine, bill of sale, proved by John
Tabor.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2562 Thomas Flynn to William Taylor, 91 acres, proved by John Tabor.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Thomas Flynn, 6 Dec 1761, 91 acres on waters of Deep Creek of Flat
River, adj Col James Payne. Gv629, SSLG 90-G, ReglLn 1226.

ReglLn 2563 Charles Clanton to Benjamin Watts, 100 acres, proved by Thomas Stewart.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CDB B/83 Benjamin Watts to James George, 14 May 1776,
100 acres on Robeson Creek - David Griffin to Benjamin Watts [ODB 3/280], also partly Charles
Clanton to Benjamin Watts [ODB 3/303? ReglLn 25637?].
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Regln 2564 James Taylor to Richard Woods, 200 acres, proved by John Taylor.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2565 John Patterson to Mark Patterson, 400 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Orange County}...January 1768.



ReglLn 2566 James Sellers to John Hogan, 177 acres, proved by James Monroe.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/593 John Hogan to Zachariah Goss, 10 1768, 177
acres on N side of Haw River, adj Luke Bynum, Nathan Melton - [Granville to Gideon Kirksey,
Gv766, SSLG 94-J, ReglLn 1207, 177 acres to] James Sellars [RegLn 2437] to John Hogan 21 Dec
1767 [ReglLn 2566]. [

Regln 2567 William Comb to Enoch Bradley, 60 acres, proved by William Comb.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2568 William Hixon to Elizabeth Hixon, deed of gift, proved by affirmation of Henry Jones
(Quaker).

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2569 William Hixon to Elizabeth Hixon, deed of gift, proved by affirmation of Henry Jones
(Quaker).

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2570 Samuel Johnson to Joseph Scott, 210 acres, proved by William Dunnagan.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 17/155 Macy Newton to Joseph Armstrong, 1 Oct 1818,
two tracts, 1st tract Granville to Thomas Perkins 1761 [Gv622, SSLG 97-K, ReglLn 1189], Perkins
to Samuel Johnston [ReglLn 1436], to Joseph Scott [ReglLn 2570], to George Newton; 2nd tract
NC to Samuel Eakins; both tracts on both sides of S Fork of Little River, adj Armstrongs corner,
Joseph Woods, William Woods, Stephen Clements Corner, William Cain, rock pile, the old
Perkins line, totalling 472 acres.

Regln 2571 Joseph Money to Samuel Chambers, 200 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2572 Enoch Bradley to William Comb, a water course, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2573 Thomas Dunnagan to John Ambree, 64 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/418 John Embree to John Pinkerton, 10 Sep 1771, 64
acres on S side of S Fork of Little River, adj Clark, the Fork, John Dunagan - part of 640 acres
Granville to John Dunagan 26 May 1753 [ReglLn 344, to Thomas Dunagan Jr RegLn 549, to John
Embree ReglLn 2573]. [Later Hardawick Davis to John Latta ODB 3/168, to James Jackson ODB
4/402]

Regln 2574 John Trop to John Bumpass, 209 acres, proved by William Bridges.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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North Carolina, Orange County}...April 1768.

Regln 2575 Hosea Tapley Sr to William Rankin, 100 acres, proved by John Wood.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2576 William Jackson & wife to Ralph McNair, 244 acres, proved by James Monroe.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/540 Ralph McNair to Joseph Glasson, 11 Aug 1770,
244 acres on Spirit Branch & Eno River, adj William Wylie, Hugh Woods - William Jackson to
MacNair 19 Nov 1767 [RegLn 2576].

Regln 2577 John Frazier & wife to Thomas Bulla, 300 acres, proved by William Pigot.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/368 Thomas Bulla to Thomas Bulla, 2 Oct 1770, 300
acres adj Joseph Maddock, Churton, Taylor - from Granville [to John Frazier] 30 Jul 1760 [Gv378,
SSLG 90-G, ReglLn 1936, to Thomas Bulla ReglLn 2577].

Regln 2578 Thomas Hart esq to Edmund Fanning esq, lots 25, 34 & 35 acres, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2579 William Grayham to John Cochrane, 222 acres, proved by Thomas Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RegLn 1589 Henry Reynolds to William Grayham, 222 acres.
Regln 2580 John Edwards to George Haygood [George Hagwood], 70 acres, proved by Samuel Parker.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2581 Robert Lytle esq & his wife to Edmund Fanning esq, 89 sq ft in Hillsborough, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2582 Thomas Hart esq to Joseph Sharp, lot 121, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2583 James Crow to Young, Miller, McNair and Company, deed of trust, proved by John
Campbell.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2584 Henry Eustice McCulloch to Henry Whitsel, [no acreage], proved by Benj’n McCulloch esq.
Chilton’s notes: Partly described at GDB 1/204.

Regln 2585 Henry Eustice McCulloh to Nicholas Gibbs, 600 acres, proved by Benjamin McCulloch esq.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



ReglLn 2586 Henry Eustice McCulloh to David Lowe, 355 acres, proved by Benj’n McCulloch esq.
Chilton’s notes: Collectively described by GDB 1/243 & GDB 1/393.

Regln 2587 John Brooks & his wife to Jane Brooks, 320 acres, proved by Micajah Terril.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2588 John Day to Burges Harrilson, bill of sale, proved by Wm Day.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2589 Hugh Barnett to William Chames, 164 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but perhaps half of Granville to Hugh Barnett, 9 Dec 1762, 328 acres
on waters of Stories Creek, adj William Chambers, Paul Harrelson, Barnett. Gv706, SSLG 83-L,
Regln 1573
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Regln 2590 Henry Eustice McCulloh to John Noe, _ acres, proved by Benjamin McCulloch.

Chilton’s notes: This deed at ODB 2/576 Henry Eustace McCulloh to John Noe, 20 Apr 1764, 116
acres on Stinking Quarter Creek, incl George improvements, adj Phillip Sellars, John
Graves line, Hatmaker.

Regln 2591 Anthony Moser to Benjamin Pickitt, 220 acres, proved by William Pickett.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but collectively described by

ODB 5/274 Benjamin Piggott & Mary Piggott to John Piggott, 21 Aug 1795, 110 acres on S side of
Haw River on a branch of Rock Creek, adj Benjamin Piggott whereon he now lives, drain - part of
220 acres Anthony Moser to Piggott 8 Mar 1762 [ReglLn 2591].

ODB 16/181 Joshua Piggott to Joseph Albright, 5 Sep 1807, 110 acres on Rock Creek on S side of
Haw River, adj Benjamin Piggott - part of Anthony Moser to Piggott 8 Mar 1762 [ReglLn 2591].

Regln 2592 Henry Castleberry & his wife to Daniel Booth, 245 acres, proved by William Castleberry.

Chilton’s notes: Half of Granville to Thomas Odien, 20 Dec 1762, 490 acres on Presswoods Creek
of New Hope Creek, adj Richard Strain, Gilbert Strayhorn. Gv748, SSLG 97-D..

Regln 2593 Isaac Cantril to Henry Pickett Jr, 300 acres, proved by Thomas Cate.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2594 John Boyd to Sion Hill, _ acres, proved by William Gamblin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2595 Joseph Montford esq to Robert Collier, 312 acres, proved by Thomas Parson.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Joseph Montfort, 10 May 1756, 312 acres on S side of N Fork of Flat
River. Gv162, SSLG 96-H, RegLn 356.



ReglLn 2596 John Lynn to James Wood, 100 acres, proved by John Oliver.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2597 Benjamin Merrit to James Young & William Johnston, lot 29, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.

[Page 300]

Regln 2598 John Harrington to Peter Savory, 130 acres, proved by Henry Ledbetter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2599 Samuel Johnston to John Kelly, 50 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2600 Tyrie Harris to Nathaniel Harriss, 150 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2601 Samuel Means to George Harrison, 100 acres, proved by Garrit Harrison.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2602 William Brooks to John Lea, 126 acres, proved by Alex’r Reed.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2603 John Taylor to Richard Woods, 25.5 acres, proved by Thomas Taylor.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2604 Samuel Hill to Young, Miller & Company, 100.5 acres, proved by Jno Campbell.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/569 James Young & Andrew Miller & George Alston to
Samuel Hill, 22 Apr 1769, 100.5 acres on both sides of Gents Creek, adj William Few, road - part
of tract [William Wiley to] Samuel Hill [RegLn 2442] in trust for James Young, Andrew Miller &
George Alston registered ODB B2/79 [ReglLn 2604].

ReglLn 2605 William Barnes to Tignal Jones, 490 acres, proved by John Jones.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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ReglLn 2606 John Swiney to Peter Savary, 200 acres, proved by Henry Ledbetter.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2607 Samuel Barnett to Hugh Barnett, 250 acres, proved by William Chambers.



Chilton’s notes: Granville to Samuel Barnett, 25 Jul 1760, 250 acres on Gents Creek, adj William
Barnett, SCC: Humphrey Barnett & Jesse Barnett - surveyed on 8 Apr 1755 by William Churton,
SSLG 83-K, Patent Book 14:354, H3692. ReglLn 807 Earl Granville to Samuel Barnett, 250 acres.
ODB 3/614 Dudley Runnels to Charles Colwell, 23 Apr 1771, 250 acres on Jents Creek — Samuel
Barnet to Hugh Barnet 15 May 1767 [RegLn 2697, to Dudley Reynolds not found]. Old Caswell
Granville to Samuel Barnett, Gv357, SSLG 83-K, RegLn 807

ReglLn 2608 William Evans to Robert Gwinn, 488 acres, proved by David Morrow.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2609 Gideon Kirksey and his wife to Isaac Kirksey, 57 acres, proved by Christopher Kirksey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2610 Robert Gwin to William Wallice & William Smith, 413 acres, proved by David Morrow.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/1 William Wallace to William Smith, 18 May 1771,
413 acres on a branch of Reedy Fork of Haw River, adj Bazel Brashear - half tract to Hugh Porter
[Gv751, SSLG 98-C], to Robert Gwinn [not found], to Wallace Smith & William Smith [RegLn
2610].
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North Carolina, Orange County}...July 1768.

Regln 2611 Thomas Willson to John Willson, 195 acres, proved by William Ansley.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2612 Michael Dixon to John Hodge, 30 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2613 John Slater to John Embrie, 427 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/396 John Embre to Elias Davis, 14 Sep 1771, 323 acres
on waters of Eno River, adj Lytle, Jackson - part of Granville to Isaac Jackson 12 Mar 1755 [Gv70,
SSLG 93-G, ReglLn 362], Jackson to John Slater 7 Dec 1755 [RegLn 283], Slater to Embre 8 Jun
1768 [ReglLn 2613].

Regln 2614 Marey Wibley to Benjamin Waller, Negro boy named Ben, proved by Richard Kennon.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2615 Francis Posey to William Lindley, 200 acres, proved by William Thompson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2616 Nicholas Robertson to Samuel & Alex’r Toringtines, 283 acres, proved by William Johnson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2617 Benjamin Clements & wife to Jos’h Barbie, 105 acres, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2618 James Rigsby to Mark Morgan, 100 acres, proved by John Morgan.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2619 John Embrie to Richard Kennon, 320 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 4/356 Richard Kennon to William McClellan, 20 Nov
1773, 320 acres on Forresters Creek, adj James Forrester. Proved May 1790 by Patrick
McCulloch. [ReglLn 1583 Granville to John Forrest...RegLn 2334 Robert Littler to John Embree, to
Richard Kennon ReglLn 2619. Later to William McClellan ODB 4/356, to Hezekiah McClellan
OCPQS 3/121.]

Regln 2620 John Slater to John Embrie, deed of release, proved by Robert Lytle.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2621 John Kirsey to Jacob Robertson, _ acres, proved by David Robertson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2622 John Lea to William Chambers, 436 acres, proved by William Lea.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Lea, 24 Dec 1762, 436 acres on Lick Creek of Hogans Creek.
Gv759, SSLG 95-E, Regln 1388.

Regln 2623 James Talbert to Alexander Rose, 649 acres, proved; James Talbert’s wife relinquishes
dower.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to James Talbert, 14 Oct 1761, 649 acres on Richland Creek of Hico
Creek, adj James Anderson, Talbert, Bankson. Gv587, SSLG 101-A, ReglLn 1216.

Regln 2624 Lawrence Bankston to Robert Motherlin, 220 acres, proved by Joseph Porter.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but part of Granville to Lawrence Bankson, Gv449, SSLG 83-F, ReglLn
848.

ReglLn 2625 Richard Cheek & his wife to William Ragland, [part of] 326 acres, proved by Joseph Avent.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 3/378 Richard Cheek & Ann Cheek to William
Rayland, 21 Oct 1767, part of 326 acres [badly damaged)]. See also CDB A/149 Richard Cheek &
wife Nanie to William Ragland, 6 Mar 1772, 160 acres on Buckhorn Creek of Cape Fear River, adj
Henry Shaddock - remainder of tract formerly sold by me to Ragland [ODB 3/378, ReglLn 2625].
[Granville to Enoch Lewis Gv657, SSLG 95-H, ReglLn 950.]
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Regln 2626 James Courtney to Joseph Courtney, 130 acres, proved by James Courtney.

Chilton’s notes: Not found.



Regln 2627 Jeffrey Beck to John Johnston, 175 acres, proved by Simon Hadley.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/348 Nathan Pike & Elizabeth Pike to John Fannen, 12
Nov 1774, 175 acres on waters of Brush Creek of Rocky River, adj Moses Nelson - part of
Granville to Moses Nelson 28 Jun 1762 [Gv656, SSLG 97-A, ReglLn 2107], to Jeffrey Beck 4 Jan
1764 [not found], to John Johnston 27 Jul 1767 [ReglLn 2627].

Regln 2628 Levy Johnston to Jessee Johnston, 382 acres, proved by Robert Reid.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Johnston, 6 Aug 1759, 382 acres on a branch of Mudlick Creek.
Gv302, SSLG 93-K, ReglLn 673.

Regln 2629 George Stanley to James Wilkinson, 181 acres, proved by William Johnston.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to William Combs, 22 Feb 1759, 181 acres on Mountain Creek of Flat
River, adj Churton. Gv268, SSLG 87-J, ReglLn 784.

Regln 2630 Commissioners of Hillsborough to Isaac Edwards, 2 lots, proved by Ralph McNair.

Chilton’s notes: This deed at ODB 2/536 Town of Hillsborough to Isaac Edwards, 29 Aug 1768, lot
96 & lot 72, adj Tryon Street & Queen Street, lot 75, lot 70, lot 78, lot 97.

Regln 2631 Edmund Fanning esq to Isaac Edwards, 165 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Joshua Fincher to Jonathan Fincher ReglLn 1978, to Tyrie
Harris Regln 725, to Edmund Fanning ReglLn 2636, to Isaac Edwards ReglLn 2631. ODB 3/539
Isaac Edwards to Samuel Clenning, 6 Feb 1771, two tracts...165 acres on both sides of a branch
of Buck Quarter Creek, adj Richard Fincher, Captain Synnott, Holden.

Regln 2632 John Dennice to Isaac Dennice, 9 acres & 8 perches, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 6/404 Isaac Dennis to Robert Marley, 22 Apr 1772, 90
acres & 8 perches on Buck Quarter Creek - part of Granville to John Dennis [?Gv283, SSLG 88-M,
ReglLn 683], John Dennis to Isaac Dennis 27 Apr 1768 [ReglLn 2632].

Regln 2633 William Aldridge to Absalom McDaniel, 100 acres, proved by Semore York.

Chilton’s notes: Half of this described at GDB 1/165? Or RaDB 8/396 Heirs of Peter Richason to
Christian Richason heir & administrator, 100 acres?
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ReglLn 2634 Vachel Clarke to William Trip, 400 acres, proved by John Trip.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2635 Joseph Maddock to William Tryon esq, 434 acres, proved by Edmund Fanning esq.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/388 William Tryon & Margaret Tryon to Edward
Turner, 6 Aug 1770, 434 acres on both sides of Eno River, adj mouth of Little River, edge of a
steep hill, Captain Thomas Hart’s Mill, whole tract granted Joseph Maddock by Granville 22 Feb
1759.



ReglLn 2636 Tyrie Harris esq to Edmund Fanning esq, 165 acres, proved by Charles Bruce.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Joshua Fincher to Jonathan Fincher ReglLn 1978, to Tyrie
Harris Regln 725, to Edmund Fanning ReglLn 2636, to Isaac Edwards Regln 2631. ODB 3/539
Isaac Edwards to Samuel Clenning, 6 Feb 1771, two tracts...165 acres on both sides of a branch
of Buck Quarter Creek, adj Richard Fincher, Captain Synnott, Holden.

Regln 2637 Henry Reynolds to John Graves, 121 acres, proved by Bartlett Yancey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2638 Peter Savory to William Webb, 200 acres, proved by Peter Swiney.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2639 Absolom McDaniel to Semore York, 200 acres, proved by James Billings.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2640 Moses Nelson to William Warrin, 125 acres, proved by Henry Lenterman.

Chilton’s notes: Half of this described at RaDB 8/28 Ann Warren to Henry Warren, 20 Aug 1798,
62.5 acres on waters of Rocky River - being part of Granville to Moses Nelson [Gv656, SSLG 97-A,
Regln 2107], to William Warren 11 Sep 1767 [ReglLn 2640], confirmed unto James Warren 11
Jan 1790 by will of William Nelson [not found]. Proved Aug 1798 by John Scotten.

Regln 2641 Moses Nelson to Henry Lenterman, 300 acres, proved by William Warren.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see GDB 1/151 Henry Lenderman & Margaret Lenderman to
Lenard Mier, 28 Jun 1772, 300 acres on waters of Rocky River - part of Granville to Moses
Nelson 28 Jun 1762 [Gv656, SSLG 97-A, ReglLn 2107], Nelson to Linterman 11 Sep 1767 [ReglLn
2641].
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Regln 2642 Absolom McDaniel to James Aldridge, 50 acres, proved by Semore York.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 7/26 Nathan Aldridge yeoman to Jeremiah York
yeoman, 30 Oct 1794, 50 acres on Mount Pleasant Creek of Sandy Creek, adj Absalom McDaniel,
John Allred - being [part of] Granville to James Muckleroy 30 Jun 1762 [Gv671, SSLG 96-E, ReglLn
1188], to Absolam McDaniel [RegLn 1496], to Nathan Aldridge [RegLn 26427?]. Proved Aug 1796
by John White Jr.

Regln 2643 Drury Mimms to Benjamin Bohannon, 320 acres, proved by Joseph Avent.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2644 Edmund Fanning to Thomas King Sr, 1 lot acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2645 John Hug[he]s to Thomas Evans, 100 acres, proved by John Richmond.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2646 Jacob Cashatt to Isaac Towns, 228 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to Jacob Cashat, 2 Oct 1761, 228 acres on S Fork of Cane Creek, adj
Lindley. Gv548, SSLG 86-D, ReglLn 2109.

Regln 2647 Benjamin Arrington to Luke Bynum, 136 acres, proved by Edward Tatum.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2648 John Walker to William Robertson, 43 acres, proved by Charles Crawford.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see CwDB A/196 Reuben Estes to Henry Williams, 1 Mar 1779, 43
acres on Moons Creek, adj John Walker - part of Granville to John Walker 20 Jan 1761 [Gv459,
SSLG 102-B, ReglLn 819], to William Robinson [ReglLn 2648].

ReglLn 2649 William Savage to Zebulon Savage, 100 acres, proved by Samuel Watt.
Chilton’s notes:
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Regln 2650 John Graves to Bartlett Yancey, 61 acres, proved by Richard Martin.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2651 John Fuller Lane to John Graves, 220 acres, proved by Bartlett Yancey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 961 Joseph Dolittle to John Fuller Lane, 220 acres.
[Page 308]
North Carolina, Orange County}...October 1768.
Regln 2652 William Serjant Sr to William Pascal, 163 acres, proved by John Lea.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2653 Jonathan Allen to Thomas Aspen, 10 acres, proved by William Pascal.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2654 William Chambers & his wife to Thomas Aspyn, 64 acres, proved by William Pascal.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
ReglLn 2655 William Serjant to Benj’n South, 163 acres, proved by John Lea esq.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2656 Ozborne Jeffers to Jones Griffin, 126 acres, proved by James Murrow.
Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ReglLn 261 Earl Granville to Osborne Jeffers, 126 acres.
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ReglLn 2657 James Clarke to John McCallister, 300 acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2658 John Whitsell to Benjamin Slone, 100 acres, proved by Lawrence Thompson.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2659 Thomas Dobbins Jr to Robert McFarland, 275 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 3/356 Robert McFarland to William Stone, 29 Nov 1771,
275 acres on both sides of S Hico Creek, adj mouth of Mill Creek, Sargeant - Thomas Dobbin to
Robert McFarland 31 Jan 1769 [RegLn 2659].

Regln 2660 John McKee to Thomas Thompson, _ acres, proved by acknowledgement.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
Regln 2661 Lawrence Thompson Jr to Moses Embrie, 159 acres, proved by Richard Forrist.

Chilton’s notes: Formerly ReglLn 32 James Swafer to James Dickey, 159 acres. Regln 2661
Lawrence Thompson Jr to Moses Embrie, 159 acres. ODB 6/168 Robert Morrison to John Shy, 10
Jun 1795, 14.75 acres on Haw River, adj mouth of a branch, Robert Morrison - part of Granville
to Zachariah Martin 24 Jun 1751, to James Swaffer [ReglLn 7], to James Dickey esq, to Lawrance
Thompson esq, to Lawrence Thompson Jr, to Moses Embree.

Regln 2662 Isaac Lewis & his wife to John Woods, 220 acres, proved by John Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see Regln 537 James Taylor to John Dowel, 220 acres. ReglLn
1700 John Dowel to Isaac Lewis, 220 acres.

Regln 2663 Alexander Mebane & his wife to Isaac Lewis, 80 acres, proved by John Armstrong.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 2/13 Isaac Lewis & Prudence Lewis to John Woods, 22
Sep 1777, 80 acres on waters of Little River, adj James McAllister, John Armstrong, James Ray -
part of Gabriel Johnston to Alexander Mebane 25 Mar 1751 [GvSEARCH, to Isaac Lewis ReglLn
2663]. [Later John Woods Sr to Thomas Woods ODB 6/170.]

Regln 2664 Alex’r Mebane esq to John Armstrong, 80 acres, proved by William Anderson.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 11/174 John Armstrong to John Hanks, 23 Apr 1804, 80
acres on waters of Little River, adj James McAllister, William Woods, Isaac Lewis, James Ray -
Gabriel Johnston to Alexander Mebane 25 Mar 1751, Alexander Mebane & Janet his wife to
John Armstrong 24 Oct 1768, registered 31 Jan 1769 ODB B2/250 [RegLn 2664].
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ReglLn 2665 Luke and Martha Bynum to William Blyth, 175 acres, proved by David Murphey.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2666 James Hunter Underwood to Daniel Murphey, 180 acres, proved by Dan’l Murphey Jr.



Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2667 Mark Morgan to John Morgan, 640 acres, proved by James Watson esq.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2668 Commissioners of Hillsborough to William Reed, lot 40, proved by Ralph McNair.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

Regln 2669 James Murry to William Murry, 200 acres, proved by George Murry.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.

ReglLn 2670 John Whelis to Jacob Rogers, 400 acres, proved by Daniel Murphey.

Chilton’s notes: Half of this described by CDB B/42 Jacob Rogers to Bias Rogers, 3 Aug 1774, 200
acres on E side of New Hope Creek - lower half of 400 acres John Wheeler to Jacob Rogers 21
Feb 1766 [ReglLn 2670].

Regln 2671 Thomas King Jr to Thomas King Sr, half of lot 18, proved by John Litterel.
Chilton’s notes: Not found.
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Regln 2672 Orange County Sherriff to William Reed, lot 45 in Hillsborough, proved by Edm Fanning
esq.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see ODB 5/730 John Ray & James Carrington to William
Courtney, 8 Apr 1788, lot 45 in Hillsborough, adj King Street, lot 44, Margaret Lane, lot 46 -
which Courtney contracted with Young Miller for, known as Still House lot - confiscated property
of Young Miller and Company.

Regln 2673 Absolum McDaniel & his wife to Peter Richardson, 100 acres, proved by Semore York.

Chilton’s notes: Not found, but see RaDB 8/396 Conrad Richason & Petter Richason & John
Richason heirs of Petter Richason to Christian Richason heir & administrator of said estate, 15
Nov 1803, 100 acres on waters of Mount Pleasant Creek, adj John White, a small branch. Proved
Feb 1804 by John Brower. [See Granville to William Aldridge, Gv183, SSLG 83-B, ReglLn 629, also
Regln 2633, Regln 2673.]

Regln 2674 John Carson to Daniel Cloud, 337 acres, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: Granville to John Carson, 11 Jun 17__, 337 acres on head branches of Big Creek
of Eno River, adj William Combs. Gv518, SSLG 86-D, ReglLn 852.

[Page 312 is blank. The Register of Orange was not used for many years after this point, but as paper
was in short supply, the Court apparently resumed the use of this book in 1793 and the following pages
include probates of deeds from that year, all of which deeds are well documented elsewhere in Orange
County’s Deed Books in Hillsborough and at the State Archives in Raleigh.]
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Orange County, Feb’y Court 1793} At an Inferior Court of Pleas and quarter Sessions begun and held for
said county on the 4th monday of February 1793 present the Worshipful Justices of said Court —

ReglLn 2675 William Partin to William Pendergrass, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/680 William Partin to William Pendergrast, 29 Mar
1791, 150 acres on Obeds Creek, adj John Sparrow - part of Granville to Henry Beasley 13 Jan
1763 [Gv790, SSLG 84-F, ReglLn 1489], Hardy Morgan to Partin [ODB 2/386, ODB 2/477]. Proved
Feb 1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2676 Jacob Holt to Israel Holt, proved by William Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/676 Jacob Holt to Israel Holt, 20 Jul 1791, 115
acres on N side of Haw River, adj Jacob Holt, branch. Proved Feb 1793 by William Rainey.

Regln 2677 Frederick Kimbrough to Tobais Smith, proved by John Siddell.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/679 Frederick Kimbro to Tobias Smith, 12 Feb
1793, 163 acres adj James Boggs, James Robertson, John Willis. Proved Feb 1793 by John
Luddall.

Regln 2678 Robert Hunter to Matthew Hunter, proved by Abraham Whinery & Joseph Pindar.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/678 Robert Hunter to Matthew Hunter, 23 Feb
1793, 316 acres on W side of Haw River, adj Robert Ray deceased, the Potter's old field - Henry E
McCulloh to Robert Hunter 22 Sep 1762. Proved Feb 1793 by Joseph Pindar.

Regln 2679 Zacharias Dicks to Nathan Dicks, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/677 Zacharias Dicks to Nathan Dicks, 20 Nov 1792,
200 acres on S side of Cane Creek, adj Jonathan Lindley - part of 770 acres NC to Zacharias Dicks
10 Jul 1788. Proved Feb 1793 by acknowledgment.

ReglLn 2680 Thomas Connally to Abijah Massey, proved by W Pendergrass.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/676 Thomas Conally to Abijah Massey, 26 Jan
1793, tract on waters of Prices Creek of New Hope Creek, adj his own line. Proved Feb 1793 by
William Pendergrast.

ReglLn 2681 John Brooks to Cain and Ray, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/659 John Brooks to William Cain & David Ray, 26
Feb 1793, tract on both sides of Buck Quarter Creek, adj Captain Synnott - Granville to Isaac
Jackson 20 Mar 1755 [Gv69, SSLG 93-G, ReglLn 245], to Thomas Jackson 8 Sep 1755 [ReglLn 170],
to Joseph Jackson, to Abraham Nordyke 24 May 1786, to Brooks 23 Dec 1792 [ODB 4/655].
Proved Feb 1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2682 John Dannel to Peter House, proved by Samuel Dannel.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/675A John Daniel to Peter House, 27 Sep 1790,
302 acres on waters of Third Fork of New Hope Creek, adj Anderson Comer, Francis Moreland,
John Marcom. Proved Feb 1793 by Samuel Daniell.

RegLn 2683 Philip Austin to John Minnis, proved by Jonathan Wittie.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/648 Phillip Austin & Sarah Austin to John Minnis,
15 Dec 1791, 100 acres on both sides of Watsons Creek of Seven Mile Creek - NC to Austin [Ofile
893, ODB 2/300]. Proved Feb 1793 by Jonathan Wittie. [Later to Ben Jackson ODB 10/175.]

ReglLn 2684 Chamberlain Hudson to Michael Charles, proved by John Hudson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/675 Chamberlin Hudson to Michael Charles, 29
Aug 1792, 200 acres on waters of Haw River, on Dry Creek, adj Stewart, head of a drain - part of
245 acres [NC to Chamberlin Hutson Ofile 1642]. Proved Feb 1793 by John Hutson.

ReglLn 2685 Peter Hamilton to James Lea, proved by Nicholas Delone.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/674 Peter Hamlin to James Lea, 7 Feb 1793, 277
acres on waters of Lynches Creek of N Hico Creek, bounded on E by Stephen Hamlin, N by John
Breeze & Caswell Line, adj Caswelll County line. Proved Feb 1793 by Nicholas Delone.
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Regln 2686 William Lytle to John McKerall, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/673 William Lytle to John McCarroll, 26 Feb 1793,
lot 145, lot 122 & lot 123 in Hillsborough, bounded on N by King Street, W by Town Commons, S
by Hoyle & Hazel, E by lot 125 - same lots sold by Lytle to McKerrall 9 Jun 1787. Proved Feb 1793
by acknowledgment.

Regln 2687 William Marcom to Thomas Cook, proved by Dan Grind?.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/672 William Markham to Thomas Cook, 20 Feb
1793, 150 acres on Third Fork of New Hope Creek - part of NC to Benjamin Rhodes. Proved Feb
1793 by Dan Grard?

ReglLn 2688 Robert Moore to Margaret Denning, proved by John Denning.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/671 Robert Moore to Margaret Dinning, 23 Feb
1793, 99 acres on Whittles Fork of Laughlins Creek adj Denning - NC to Robert Moore, registered
ODB M2/21. Proved Feb 1793 by John Dinning.

ReglLn 2689 Nicholas Coonce to Benjamin Roany, proved by Andrew Murdock.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/656 Nicholas Cunce to Benjamin Roney, 4 Feb
1788, 100 acres on W side of Back Creek, bounded on E by John Baldridge, N by Craig, W by
Trousdale. Proved Feb 1793 by James Dixon.

Regln 2690 John Hufman to Adam Whitsell, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/652 John Huffman to Adam Whitsell, 4 Feb 1793,
276 acres on Gun Creek of Great Alamance Creek, adj Christian Huffman - Henry Eustace
McCulloh [to Ludwick Isley RegLn 1085] to Michael Charles [RegLn 1406]. Proved Feb 1793 by
acknowledgment.

Regln 2691 William Brackin to James Brackin, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/669 William Bracken to James Bracken, 12 May
1790, 216 acres on both sides of Stony Creek of Haw River - Granville to William Mills 8 Jan 1760
[Gv435, SSLG 96-E, Regln 1552], Mills to Jonathan Robeson 8 Mar 1767 [not found], Robeson to
Jonathan Bracken 13 Aug 1768 [not found], deed from William Bracken son of Jonathan Bracken
24 Apr 1770 [not found]. Proved Feb 1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2692 Joshua Horne to Thomas Horne, proved by Cutbud Burton.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/668 Joshua Horn to Thomas Horn, 10 Jul 1792,
tract on waters of New Hope Creek, adj Thomas Horn, Madden, road from Hillsborough to New
Bern. Proved Feb 1793 by Cutberd Burton.

ReglLn 2693 John Rudolph to William Woolf, proved by Adam Smith.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/667 John Rudolf & Margaret Rudolf to William
Wolf, 25 Oct 1792, 128 acres adj David Cable, William Ward - NC to Rudolf 17 Nov 1790. Proved
Feb 1793 by Adam Smith.

Regln 2694 William Loyd to William Saxon, proved by Edward Trice.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/665 William Saxon to William Lloyd, 22 Feb 1790,
158 acres on waters of Third Fork of New Hope Creek, adj branch. Proved Feb 1793 by Edward
Trice.

Regln 2695 Jacob Holt to Hannah Holt, proved by Benjamin Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/653 Jacob Holt to Hannah Holt, 20 Feb 1793, 116
acres on N side of Haw River, adj Israel Holt, branch, Rainey Phillips. Proved Feb 1793 by
Benjamin Rainey.

ReglLn 2696 William Standard to John Cable, proved by William Rainey.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/660 William Standard to John Cable, 1 Oct 1792,
200 acres on Dry branch of Haw River, adj John Cable Sr. Proved Feb 1793 by Wm Rainey &
Jonas Hudson.

Regln 2697 Abraham Nordyke to John Brooks, proved by James Neal.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/655 Abraham Nordyke to John Brooks, 3 Dec 1792,
330 acres on both sides of Buck Quarter Creek, adj Captain Synontt - Granville to Isaac Jackson
12 Mar 1755 ODB C/48 [Gv69, SSLG 93-G, Regln 245], to Joseph Jackson’s father Thomas
Jackson 8 Sep 1755 registered ODB B/120 [ODB 1/120, ReglLn 170]. Proved Feb 1793 by James
Neal.
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Regln 2698 Major George Doherty to Jonathan Nicolas, proved by Jonathan Nicholas Jr.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/663 George Doherty to Jonathon Nichols, 19 Dec
1789, 214 acres on both sides of Forresters Creek - [Granville to Daniel Kain Gv281, SSLG 94-E,
ReglLn 607, to David Pinkerton ReglLn 609, OWB A/164 to William and David Pinkerton, to John
Kelly ODB 2/124, by] Sheriff to Doherty 5 Mar 1785 [ODB 3/82]. Proved Feb 1793 by Jonathan

Nichols Junior.

Regln 2699 Jesse Philips to George Charles, proved by John Hudson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/662 Jesse Phillips & Mary Phillips to George
Charles, 3 Feb 1792, 150 acres on Dry Creek, adj Jacob Holt - NC to Jesse Phillips 9 Nov 1784.
Proved Feb 1793 by John Hudson.

Regln 2700 Thomas Willinghames to James Lea, proved by Nicholas Delone.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/664 Thomas Willingham to James Lea, 17 Jan
1793, 150 acres on waters of Lynches Creek of N Hico Creek, adj Caswell County line. Proved Feb
1793 by Nicholas Delon.

Regln 2701 Major George Doherty to Jonathan Nicolas Sr, proved by Jonathan Nickols Jr.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/666 George Doherty to Jonathon Nichols Sr, 19
Dec 1789, 100 acres on waters of Forresters Creek & Little River, adj Pinkerton's old field - NC to
John Kelly 25 Oct 1782 [Ofile 1266, ODB 2/265]. Proved Feb 1793 by Jonathan Nichols Jun'r.

Regln 2702 Mary Nelson to John Barnwell, proved by John McCauley.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/657 Mary Nelson to John Barnwell, 30 Nov 1792,
200 acres on waters of Quaker Creek, bounded on W side of by Swanney, incl land where
William Hooper once lived. Proved Feb 1793 by John McCauley. [Later to Horation Cope ODB
6/449.]

RegLn 2703 John Nichols to Spencer Crawford Vaughan, proved by John Allison.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/651 John Nichols Sheriff to Spencer C Vaughan, 6
Oct 1792, lot 142 & lot 85 in Hillsborough, bounded on S by Tryon Street, E by lot 86, N by lot 63
& lot 145, W by Town Commons. Proved Feb 1793 by John Allison.

Regln 2704 Nicholas Coonce to Benjamin Roany, proved by Andrew Murdock.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/670 Nicholas Coonce to Benjamin Roney, 4 Feb
1788, 94 acres on Back Creek, adj White, Stockard, Kirkpatrick. Proved Feb 1793 by Andrew
Murdock.

ReglLn 2705 Peter House to Thomas Trice, proved by Daniel Watson and Daniel Carlton.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/661 Peter House to Thomas Trice, 20 Aug 1792,
303 acres on waters of Third Fork of New Hope Creek, adj Anderson Comer, Francis Moreland,
John Meacham, William Pritchett. Proved Feb 1793 by Daniel Watson & Daniel Carleton.

ReglLn 2706 Jesse Miller to John Ray, proved by James Miller.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/650 Jesse Miller to John Ray, 20 Oct 1792, 210
acres on a branch of Little River - part of NC to Robert Pinkerton. Proved Feb 1793 by James
Miller.

ReglLn 2707 Jesse Miller to John Ray, proved by James Miller.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/658 Jesse Miller to John Ray, 25 Oct 1792, 210
acres on a branch of Little River - George Miller to Jesse Miller 8 Feb 1780 [ODB 2/105]. Proved
Feb 1793 by James Miller.

Regln 2708 Robert Faucet to Thomas Fitch, proved by David Ray.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/653 Robert Faucett to Thomas Fitch, 28 Aug 1792,
100 acres on both sides of Stony Creek, incl Matthew Bromberg's land, adj James Burch, Toms
Creek, branch - William Faucett to Robert Faucett 6 Jun 1789. Proved Feb 1793 by David Ray.

Regln 2709 Matthew Durham to William Lindsey Durham, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/647 Matthew Durham to William Lindsay Durham,
25 Jul 1791, 100 acres on E side of Indian Branch, adj branch - granted to Matthew Durham.
Proved Feb 1793 by acknowledgment.

ReglLn 2710 Matthew Durham to William Lindsey Durham, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/647 Matthew Durham to William Lindsay Durham,
25 Jul 1791, 100 acres on W side of Terrells Creek, adj Indian Camp Branch - deeded to Durham.
Proved Feb 1793 by acknowledgment.
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Regln 2711 William Galbreath to Thomas Dixon, proved by James Dixon.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/656 William Galbreath to Thomas Dixon, 12 Nov
1791, 50 acres on N side of Haw River, bounded on N by John Embree, E by Richard Foster.
Proved Feb 1793 by Andrew Murdock.

Regln 2712 William Bynum to Jesse Heagwood [Jesse Hagwood], proved by Ambrose Petty.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/649 William Bynum & Mary Bynum to Jesse
Hagwood, 26 Aug 1791, 200 acres on Phils Creek, adj Ambrose Petter, Griffin, Herndon, branch,
the Broomstraw Spring. Proved Feb 1793 by Ambrose Pettie.

Regln 2713 Thomas Hunt to John Cain, proved by Jonathan Clower.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/687 Thomas Hunt to John Cain, 17 Sep 1792, 70
acres on S side of Little River, bounded by Henry Eustace McCulloh, Thomas Cain. Proved Feb
1793 by Jonathan Clower.

Regln 2714 John Gray to John Cain, proved by Jonathan Clower.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/688 John Gray to John Cain, 13 Dec 1792, 400
acres on branches of River & Eno River, adj Hugh Woods, William Cain, Timothy Cain, John
Cain - NC to John Gray 13 Mar 1780. Receipt. Proved Feb 1793 by Jonathan Clower.

/Abner B Bruce/ C. C.

Orange County, May Court 1793} At an Inferior Court of Pleas and Quarter Sessions begun and held for
said County on the 4th Monday of May being the 27th day of said month Present the worshipful Justices
of said Court.

Regln 2715 William Ray Sr to James Stockard, 175 acres, proved by Robert Ray.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/708 William Ray to James Stockard, 4 Mar 1793,
175 acres on waters of Great Alamance Creek - part of Henry Eustace McCulloh to William Ray.
Proved May 1793 by Thomas Cate.

Regln 2716 John Edwards to Henry Edwards, 520 acres, proved by Ezekiel Brewer.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/707 John Edwards Sr to Henry Edwards, 30 Mar
1793, 520 acres on both sides of Collins Creek of Haw River, adj Balls Path. Proved May 1793 by
James Patterson.

Regln 2717 John Barbee to George Johnston & Mann Patterson & Chesley Page Patterson, 10 acres &
98 poles, proved by Edith Barbee.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/714 John Barbee to George Johnston & Mann
Patterson & Chesley Page Patterson, 28 May 1793, 10 acres & 98 poles on both sides of New
Hope Creek & Ponds Creek, adj Barbee's new field, the island. Proved Dec 1790 by
acknowledgment before J Williams.

ReglLn 2718 Archibald Mahon to Joseph Hodge, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/695 Archibald Mahon to Joseph Hodge, 29 Oct
1789, 250 acres on waters of Haw Creek, adj Clendenin - NC to Archibald Mahon [Ofile 1079].
Proved May 1793 by William Clendinain.

ReglLn 2719 William Hanley to Daniel Wasson, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/709 William Handley to Daniel Washon, 3 May
1793, 108 acres on Quaker Creek, adj Hutchison, spring branch, a small branch, Stony Creek
Road, widow Faucett, the low grounds of Back Creek, McRory - part of Billy G Gooch to Daniel
Handley Feb 1792. Proved May 1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2720 Thomas H Perkins to Everard Garrett, proved by William Garrett.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/694 Thomas Hardin Perkins & wife Mary of Moore
County NC to Evrard Garret, 10 Jan 1792, 655 acres on E & W side of Little Alamance Creek, adj
Jeremiah Holt, Cook's fence, John Holt, Michael Holt, Little Alamance Creek. Proved May 1793
by John Estes.
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Regln 2721 Richard Christmas to Nathaniel McLemore, proved by Charles Christmas & James
Christmas.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/692 Richard Christmas to Nathaniel McLemore, 14
Nov 1791, 146 acres on waters of Little Cane Creek. Proved May 1793 by Charles Christmass &
James Crhistmass.

Regln 2722 Benjamin Peelor to James Hutchings, proved by Mark Browning & John Rhodes.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/711 Benjamin Peelor to James Hutchins, __ May
1793, 20 acres on waters of Second Creek, adj Hutchins - NC to Peelor 10 Nov 1784. Proved May
1793 by Mark Browning.

ReglLn 2723 Eli Harvey to Nathaniel Carter, proved by William Hanley.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/710 Eli Harvey to Nathaniel Carter, 25 May 1793,
100 acres on waters of Cane Creek, bounded on N by Jonathan Lindley, W by John Carter, S by
Henry Holliday. Proved May 1793 by John Freeland.

Regln 2724 John Davis to Wm Pickett, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/691 John Davis to William Pickett, [no date], 96
acres on both sides of Forresters Creek, adj James Davis - part of 325 acres granted to Robert
Davis. Proved May 1793 by Hugh Telford.

Regln 2725 William Hudson to George Dannel, proved by John Dannel.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/701 William Hudson Sr to George Daniel, 9 Mar
1792, 23 acres on Lick Branch, adj George Daniels, Tar Kiln Branch, Samuel Parks, Duck Creek.
Proved May 1793 by John Allison.

Regln 2726 John Lindsey to Benjamin Lacy, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/705 John Lindsay to Benjamin Lacy, 23 Feb 1793,
2.5 acres & 16 rods on waters of Collins Creek, adj Benjamin Law's Spring. Proved May 1793 by
acknowledgment.

Regln 2727 Thomas Latta to John Latta, proved by William Dollar.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/704 Thomas Latta to John Latta, 24 May 1793, 8.5
acres on Tussocky Branch of Mountain Creek, adj John Latta - part of Walter Alves to Thomas
Latta 19 Apr 1791. Proved May 1793 by Jacob Bound?

Regln 2728 Joseph Noe & John Coonce to Martin Shofner, proved by James Patterson.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/707 Joseph Noe & John Counce to Martin Shofner,
7 Mar 1793, 136.5 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek. Proved May 1793 by Ezekile
Brower.

Regln 2729 Joseph Hodge to Alexander Russel, proved by acknowledgment.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/706 Joseph Hodge to Alexander Russell, 25 Mar
1783, 45 acres on W side of Haw Creek, adj Rocky Branch, widow Russell, Hawfield Branch,
McDaniel — NC to Walter Burnsides [Ofile 1075, to Hodge ODB 4/89]. Proved May 1793 by
acknowledgment.

Regln 2730 Stephen Wilson to William Dollar, proved by John Latta Jr.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/713 Stephen Wilson to William Dollar, 13 May
1793, 100 acres, part of a tract belonging to Stephen Wilson, on Mountain Creek, adj Latta.
Proved May 1793 by John Latta Junr.

Regln 2731 Lewis Meredith & Elisha Norfleet & Sarah Meredith executors of David Meredith to
George Johnston, proved by John Freeland.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/710 David Merideth estate by executor to George
Johnston, 13 Jul 1792, 520 acres [570 acres?] on New Hope Creek, adj William Blackwood, John
Young - part of 2 tracts James Lashley to George McClelland by will [WILL SEACH not in OWB],
Ebenezer MacNair by agent to Lashley [ODB 2/152, OCPQS 3/69, ODB 2/153], George
McClelland to George Meredith [ODB 4/646]. Proved May 1793 by William Haney.

Regln 2732 Tence and James Massey to John Thompson, proved by Nathan Kanady.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/703 Tench Massey & James Massey to John
Thompson, 5 Jan 1792, 255 acres on Marys Creek, adj Robert Woody. Proved May 1793 by
Nathan Kenady. [?From Robert Ray OCPQS 3/5187?]

Regln 2733 Jacob Shoemaker to John Vanhorn, proved by Jacob Boone.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/704 Jacob Shoemaker of Wasington County VA to
John Vanstone of Guilford County NC, 17 Dec 1792, 100 acres on N side of Haw River, adj Jacob
Holt, William Baldwin, Rainey Phillips - part of NC to Samuel Parks deceased. Proved May 1793
by William Dollar.

Regln 2734 Alexander Underwood to Nathan Hornaday, proved by John Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/712 Alexander Underwood to Nathan Hornaday,
17 Oct 1792, 300 acres on head branches of Rock Creek - one part Henry Eustace McCulloh to
Alexander Underwood 13 May 1763, the other NC to Underwood 17 Nov 1790. Proved May
1793 by John Albright.
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Regln 2735 Benjamin Lacy to John Lindsey, proved by acknowledgement.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/698 Benjamin Lacy to John Lindsay, 23 Feb 1793,
2.5 acres & 16 rods on E side of Collins Creek, adj a small branch, mouth of branch. Proved May
1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2736 Mary Parks & William Rainy executors of Saml Parks to Jame Brackin, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/697 Samuel Parks estate by executor to James
Bracken, 26 Jan 1790, 100 acre on Stony Creek - NC to Samuel Parks. Proved May 1793 by
acknowledgment.

Regln 2737 Hugh McCaddam to William McCaddam, proved by James Murray.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/699 Hugh McAdams to William McAdams, 19 Feb
1793, 150 acres on Owens Creek of Stony Creek, adj John Bracken, William White, Saxon, James
Murray - NC to Hugh McAdam 1784. Proved May 1793 by James Murray.

ReglLn 2738 John Armstrong to Richard Christmas, proved by John Homes.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/692 John Armstrong to Joseph Hodge & Richard
Christmas, 18 Apr 1790, 135 acres on Haw Creek, adj fork of Rocky Branch. Proved May 1793 by
John Homs.

Regln 2739 Joseph Noe to David Patterson, proved by James Patterson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/698 Joseph Noe to David Patterson, 7 Mar 1793,
134 acres on waters of Wasses Creek, adj old field. Proved May 1793 by James Peterson.

ReglLn 2740 Andrew Mitchell to Joseph Culberson, proved by John Albright.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/712 Andrew Mitchell to Joseph Culbertson, 16 Nov
1791, 150 acres on S side of Haw River, adj Arthur Lovings, James McAdams, William Ray, John
Albright, Great Road leading to Hillsborough. Proved May 1793 by acknowledgment. [Later to
Thomas Cole ODB 5/156, to Andrew Mitchell ODB 7/90.]

Regln 2741 Abijah Massey to Isham Blake, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/690 Abijah Massey to Isam Black [Isham Blake],
[no date], 200 acres on Crooked Creek of New Hope Creek, adj Enoch Lewis, Abram Massey.
Proved May 1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2742 John Ray to George Foust, proved by William Way.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/693 John Ray to George Foust, 6 Mar 1793, 150
acres on Great Alamance Creek, adj mouth of a branch, Foust, James Latta, mouth of Little
Alamance Creek - part of Henry Eustace McCulloh to William Ray Sr, William Ray Sr to John Ray
22 Aug 1785. Proved May 1793 by William Ray.

Regln 2743 William Ray to George Foust, proved by William Ray Jr.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/697 William Ray to George Foust, 2 Mar 1793, 0.75
acres & 18 poles on waters of Alamance Creek, adj street, John Ray. Proved May 1793 by
William Ray Junr.

Regln 2744 William Courtney Sr to William Lockheart, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/694 William Courtney Sr to William Lockhart, 9 Jan
1793, 380 acres bounded on N by M Palmer & Tullock, S by T Tullock & Courtney, on waters of
Eno River — [NC to] William Lockhart [Ofile 1129, ODB 2/89] to William Courtney. Proved May
1793 by William Garret.

Regln 2745 Thomas Telford to William Brannock, proved by Hugh Telford.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/693 James Telford to William Brannock, 29 Dec
1791, 220 acres in Guilford County & Orange County, adj Cuningham Smith, James Warnock,
Hunter, Hugh Telford - legated to Telford by will of his father Thomas Telford [OWB A/325],
except 2 poles in breadth along land of John Hunter deceased alloted to James Warnock for a
wagon Road, adj Fishing Creek. Proved May 1793 by Hugh Telford.

Regln 2746 John Tinnen to Francis Child, proved by John McKerall & John Allison.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/700 John Tinnen to Frances Child, 28 May 1793,
two tracts, first tract, 167 acres on waters of Eno River, adj Thomas Person; second tract, 186.5
acres adj branch, John Tinnen, Thomas Person. Proved May 1793 by John Allison.
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Regln 2747 John Sloss Sheriff to John Tinnen, proved by John Allison.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/701 John Sloss Sheriff to John Tinnen, 28 May
1793, two tracts, adj each other, on waters of Eno River, first tract, 167 acres on Eno River, ad]
Thomas Person; second tract, 186.5 acres adj branch, John Tinnen, Thomas Person - land of
Thomas Hart sold to satisfy judgement. Proved May 1793 by John Daniel Junr.

ReglLn 2748 Cain and Ray to Isaac Holden, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/696 Cain and Ray to John Holden & Isaac Holden,
29 May 1793, 330 acres adj Captain Synnott - Granville to Isaac Jackson 12 Mar 1755 [Gv69,
SSLG 93-G, Regln 245], to Thomas Jackson father of Joseph Jackson 8 Sep 1755 [ReglLn 170],
Joseph Jackson to Abraham Nordyke 24 May 1786, to John Brooks 23 Dec 1792, to Cain & Ray
26 Feb 1793. Proved May 1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2749 William Thomas Person to John Carrington, proved by William Little.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/702 Thomas Person to John Carrington, 1 Jan
1789, 400 acres on both sides of Dials Creek of Flat River, adj Arthur Mangum, Anthony Cozart.
Proved May 1793 by William Little.

ReglLn 2750 Sterling Edwards to Nath’l Edwards & Arch’d Edwards & Wm Edwards & John Edwards,
proved by Alexander Hatch.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/699 Sterling Edwards of Wilks County NC to
Nathaniel Edwards & Archibald Edwards & William Edwards & John Edwards, 6 Mar 1793, 200
acres on S side of Collins Creek, adj mouth of Dividing Branch, David Edwards - part of a tract
surveyed for David Edwards. Proved May 1793 by Allexander Hatch.

Regln 2751 John Carrinton to John Knight, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/703 John Carrington to John Knight, 10 May 1793,
172 acres on both sides of Mountain Creek, adj James Commons, Walter Alves. Proved May
1793 by acknowledgment.

Regln 2752 James Crawford to William Moore, proved by Thomas Cate.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/708 James Crawford to William Moore, 2 Apr
1793, 100 acres on Collins Creek of Haw River, adj Mr Edwards - Lewis Kirk to James Crawford 20
Jan 1791, NC to Kirk 9 Nov 1784. Proved May 1793 by Robert Ray.

ReglLn 2753 Rich’d Dobbs Spaight esq to John Edwards Sr, was left in the office and ordered to be
Registered.

Chilton’s notes: Not found in ODB, but apparently OFile 2004 NC to John Edwards.
ReglLn 2754 William Brannock to James Vinson, proved by Hugh Telford.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 4/691 William Brannock to James Vinson, 20 May
1793, 50 acres adj Cunningham Smith. Proved May 1793 by acknowledgment.

/A B Bruce/

North Carolina, Orange County} At an Inferior Court of Pleas & Quarter Sessions begun and held for said
county at the court house in Hillsborough on the 4th Monday in August 1793 and 18th year of our
Independence. Present the Worshipful Justices of said Court &c.

Regln 2755 John Estes to William Lockheart James Coghland, proved by John McCauley.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/21 John Estes to James Coughlin, 20 Jul 1793, lot
31 in Hillsborough, adj Wake Street, Tryon Street - sold as confiscated property of Edmund
Fanning, to Absalom Tatum 25 Aug 1786.
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ReglLn 2756 William Nash to John Fairman, proved by John McCauley.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/5 William Nash to John Fairman, 25 Mar 1793, lot
109 in Hillsborough, adj Tryon Street, lot 110, lot 108, lot 118.

Regln 2757 John Taylor & wife Elenor to John Fearman, proved by Henry Thompson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/18 John Taylor & Eleanor Taylor to John Fairman, 8
Mar 1793, 428 acres on Combs Creek, adj Gaddis now Burke, Moore.

ReglLn 2758 Alexander Duncan Moore esq to John Fearman, proved by Joseph Dickson.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/17 Alexander Duncan Moore to John Fairman, 14
Aug 179_, 262.5 acres on both sides of Morgan Creek - Thomas Durham to Mark Morgan.

ReglLn 2759 John McKerall to John Fearman, proved by Joseph Dixon.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/16 John McCarrel to John Fairman, 25 Apr 1793,
lot 145, lot 122 & lot 123, bounded on N by King Street, W by Town Commons, S by Hazel Lane,
E by lot 125.

Regln 2760 Joseph Cook to Bartholomew Stoveall, proved by Daniel Green.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/22 Joseph Cook to Bartholomew Stovall, 1 Feb
1793, 265 acres on waters of Third Fork of New Hope Creek - NC to Joseph Cook.

Regln 2761 William Tapp to Abner Tapp, proved by William Riley.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/22 William Tapp to Abner Tapp, 19 Sep 1791, two
tracts, first tract adj James Riley; second tract adj Witty.

Regln 2762 John Davis to James Davis, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/13 John Davis to James Davis, 29 Aug 1793, 96
acres on waters of Little River, adj Taylor - part of 385 acres granted to Robert Davis.

Regln 2763 Hardy Morgan to Edmund Jones, proved by Edward Jones.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/17 Hardy Morgan to Edmond Jones, 15 Apr 1793,
lot 21 in Hillsborough, bounded on S by King Street, W by Wake Street, N by lot 31, E by lot 22.

Regln 2764 Henry Dunwiddie to John Jackson, proved by George Grisham.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/9 Henry Dinwiddie to John Jackson, 17 Aug 1793,
408 acres adj plantation he now lives upon, on waters of Eno River; also 1 feather bed &
furniture [deed of trust].

ReglLn 2765 Michael Holt & wife Jane to Anthony Thompson, proved by Joshua Holt.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/15 Michael Holt & Jean Holt to Antoney
Thompson, 13 Aug 1793, 235 acres on N side of Haw River, adj William Baldwin, Shadrach
Henderson, Jacob Holt, Joseph Smith.

Regln 2766 Jesse McComb to Thomas Mulhollan, proved by Andrew Gibson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/14 Jesse McCombe to Thomas Mulhollen, 23 Aug
1793, 244 acres adj Joseph Noe, James Patterson & David Patterson.

Regln 2767 Edmund Jones to Edward Jones, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/12 Edmond Jones to Edward Jones, 24 Oct 1792,
200 acres on Back Creek, adj Mr Woods, mouth of a branch.

Regln 2768 William Walker to Levi Whithead, proved by acknowledgment.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/19 William Walker to Levi Whithead, 20 Aug 1793,
30 acres adj John Craig, Alexander Piper.
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Regln 2769 Thomas Connally to John Farrington, proved by Pomfrett Herndon.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/7 Thomas Coneley to John Ferrington, 23 Jan 1793,
110 acres adj John Wilson, the Gully Branch, Prices Creek, Hightower's Old Path, mouth of
Chestnut Ridge Branch, Chatham County line, Pomfret Herndon's wagon road, Hagwoods Cabin,
Jesse Nevell.

Regln 2770 Fardenand Grisham to Richard Leigh, proved by Daniel Green.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/6 Farthing Grisham to Richard Leigh, 22 Oct 1789,
200 acres adj Grant Rencher, Charles Abercrombie, Lewis, Navies? Nevis? Mevis?

Regln 2771 Samuel Strudwick to Samuel Kirkpatrick, proved by William F Strudwick esq.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/12 Samuel Strudwick to Samuel Kirkpatrick, 24 Oct
1792, 200 acres on Back Creek, adj Mr Woods, mouth of a branch.

Regln 2772 William Davis to Henry White, proved by Adam Ellison.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/8 William Davis to Henry White, 12 Apr 1792, 195
acres on waters of Nelsons Creek, adj William Davis, Andrew Gibson - part of Granville to David
Phillips [Gv655, SSLG 97-K].

Regln 2773 Henry Dunwiddie to George Grisham, proved by John Jackson.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/8 Henry Dinwoody to George Grisham, 17 Aug
1793, 100 acres adj Matthew Clinton, Joseph Warren, Elijah Dollar, John Jackson.

Regln 2774 Josh Sloss esq Sheriff to John Casey, two lotts in Hillsborough No 34 & 25, proved by
acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/11 George Doherty by Sheriff to John Casey, 29
Aug 1793, first lot, lot 34 in Hillsborough, adj Tryon Street; second lot, lot 25 in Hillsborough, adj
Churton Street, King Street - property of George Doherty.

RegLn 2775 Josh Sloss esq Sheriff to John Casey, % acres in Hillsborough, proved by acknowledgement.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/10 George Doherty by Sheriff to John Casey, 29
Aug 1793, 30.75 acres, lot 35 in Hillsborough, adj Church Street, Tryon Street, George Dogherty
sold to satisfy a judgment the sheriff had initially levied upon 12 head of horses, 24 cattle, 8
sheep, stock of hogs, a wagon, and all the farming utensils & household furniture and sale was
stopped by John Casey who claimed a bill of sale - sale of a house and part of 3 lots in
Hillsborough was stopped by another execution.

Regln 2776 John Mitchell to William Walker, proved by William Courtney Jr.



Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/23 John Mitchell & Elizabeth Mitchell to William
Walker, 14 Dec 1791, 213 acres on waters of Eno River.

Regln 2777 James Murray to William Murray & Levi Hall & Alexander Ander[son] & James Forrest &c,
proved by William Bradford.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/6 James Morrow to William Morrow & Levi Hall &
Alexander Anderson & James Forest as Elders of the Cross Roads Meeting House, 6 Mar 1790, 3
acres on waters of Stags Creek. This deed recorded at ODB 5/6. Grantees were the trustees for
Cross Roads Presbyterian Church at 3302 North NC Hwy 119, Mebane, North Carolina 27302.
See also Upon this Rock by Mark Chilton.

Regln 2778 Thomas Connally to Daniel Stephens, proved.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/24 Thomas Conelly to Daniel Stephens, 8 May
1788, 110 acres adj the old field, Pumphouse Road, Old Hagwood's Cabin, the road was made
first, Chatham County line, Gid's Old Path.
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Regln 2779 John Howell to Edward Thomas, proved by John Dorris.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/15 John Howell of Rockingham to Edward Thomas,
1792, 212 acres on waters of Stinking Quarter Creek & Beaver Creek, adj Adam Smith, the Great
Road from Hillsborough to Salisbury.

Regln 2780 William Courtney Sr to William Courtney Jr, proved by James Philips.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/21 William Courtney Sr of Hillsborough to William
Courtney Jr, 4 Jan 1792, lot 46 in Hillsborough.

Regln 2781 Hardy Morgan to Edmund Jones, proved by Edward Jones.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/19 Hardy Morgan to Edmond Jones, 30 Aug 1793,
213 acres on waters of Eno River.

Regln 2782 Hardy Morgan to Edmund Jones, proved by Edward Jones.

Chilton’s notes: This deed recorded at ODB 5/20 Hardy Morgan to Edmond Jones, 29 Mar 1792,
10 acres incl a saw mill & mill tract, adj B Yeargan.

/A B Bruce/ C.C. [Clerk of Court]

[End of the Orange County Register.]



